WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
Meeting Agenda
Wayzata City Hall Community Room, 600 Rice Street
Tuesday, May 17, 2022
ZOOM INFORMATION
Click here to join Zoom Mtg
Meeting ID: 835 1215 5427 Passcode: 278201
Members of the public may watch and listen remotely by viewing the meeting on Channel
8, WCTV, and at the City's website at www.wayzata.org/WCTV.
Public comment during the Public Forum and/or Public Hearing portions of the meeting
may be provided in person at the meeting, in advance, or by logging into the zoom call
and raising your hand during the public hearing. When your name is called in the
meeting, you will be seen and heard in our Council Chambers and the cable
channel. You will be asked to unmute and then you may begin your comment. All public
comments must include your full name and address.
The City encourages comments or questions about items on the agenda and, when
possible, requests that you submit them in advance by emailing
PublicComment@wayzata.org, calling City staff at 952-404-5323, or mailing Wayzata City
Hall at 600 Rice St E, Wayzata, MN 55391 (Attn: Public Comment).

4:30 p.m. Dinner Available for Wayzata City Council - Conference Room
WORKSHOP TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION:
•

Tree Preservation Ordinance & Staffing Discussion (5:15-5:30 p.m.)

•

Discussion of 2022 Community Survey Results (5:30-6:30 p.m.)
7:00 PM - CITY COUNCIL MEETING

1.

Call to Order

2.

Pledge of Allegiance

3.

Roll Call

4.

Approve Agenda

5.

Public Forum (3min/person)

6.

New Agenda Items

7.

Consent Agenda

8.

a.

Approval of City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting Minutes of April 5 and April 19, 2022 and the Local
Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2022

b.

Approval of Check Register

c.

Approval of Municipal Licenses

d.

Receipt of Police Activity Report

e.

Receipt of Building Activity Report

f.

Adoption of Resolution 20-2022 Accepting Donation from the Wayzata Lions Club

g.

Approval of Resolution 21-2022 Authorizing a Grant Application to the Legislative-Citizen Commission on
Minnesota Resources (LCCMR) for Panoway on Wayzata Bay

h.

Approval of the Annual Renewals of the 2022 Sidewalk Cafe Permits

Public Hearing
a.

9.

Consider Approval of On-Sale Intoxicating and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor Licenses for Z&H
Boatworks LLC, dba Macana located at 294 Grove Lane Street W180

New Business
a.

Consider Acceptance of the City's 2021 Audited Financial Reports
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b.

Consider Adoption of Resolution 22-2022 Approving a Site Alteration Permit and Schematic Design for
Section Foreman House at 738 Lake Street East

c.

Consider Adoption of Resolution 19-2022 and Approve First Reading of Ordinance 812 Approving Zoning
Ordinance Amendment to Create New Parks and Open Space Zoning District and to Rezone Certain
Properties to Such District

10.

City Manager's Report and Discussion Items

11.

Public Forum (as necessary)

12.

Adjournment

Meeting Rules of Conduct:
Turn in white card for public forum and blue card for agenda item
Give name and address
Indicate if representing a group
Limit remarks to 3 minutes

Upcoming Meetings:
City Council - June 7, 2022
Planning Commission - May 17, 2022

Members of the City Council and some staff members may gather at the Wayzata Bar and Grill immediately after the meeting for a purely social event.
All members of the public are welcome.
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.a
TITLE: Approval of City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting Minutes of April 5 and April 19, 2022 and
the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2022
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the City Council Workshop & Regular Meeting Minutes of April 5 and
April 19, 2022 and the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2022
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the attached draft minutes.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
April 5, 2022 Workshop Minutes (draft)
2.
April 5, 2022 CC Minutes (draft)
3.
April 19, 2022 LBAE (draft)
4.
April 19, 2022 CC Minutes (draft)
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES
April 5, 2022
5:30 p.m. Discussion of ARPA Funds Allocation
Mayor Mouton called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Council Members present in the community room
at City Hall offices: Plechash, MacDonald, and Buchanan. Iverson was absent. Also present: City
Manager Jeff Dahl, Administrative Services Director Aurora Yager, and Public Works Director/City
Engineer Mike Kelly.
Ms. Yager noted that in March of 2021, the Federal Government passed the American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) which established the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to provide state, local,
and Tribal governments with resources needed to both respond to the pandemic and its economic impacts.
State, local, and tribal governments were to receive their funds in two equal installments, the first half in
2021 and the second half in 2022.
Wayzata’s ARPA allocations are outlined below. Wayzata's ARPA Allocations are:
1st Half 2021
$246,394.94
Extra 2021 Distribution
$8,068.76
2nd Half 2022
$254,463.70
Total
$508,927.40
ARPA Eligible Uses generally fall into these five categories 1) Responding to the public health
emergency - Eligible uses include but are not limited to: vaccination programs, medical care, testing,
contact tracing, enforcement of public health orders, etc.; 2) Responding to the negative economic
impacts of the pandemic - Eligible uses include, but are not limited to: assistance to households, small
businesses and non-profits for things like food, rent/mortgage payments or utilities, aid to impacted
industries through loans or grants to retain employees, etc.; 3) Premium pay for essential workers Eligible uses include, but are not limited to: additional pay on top of wages for essential workers who
work in person in critical infrastructure sectors; 4) Replacement of lost public sector revenue - Eligible
uses include, but are not limited to: claim standard revenue loss of up to $10 million or complete a full
revenue loss calculation. Both options allow for streamlined reporting requirements; 5) Investments in
water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure - Eligible uses include, but are not limited to: water treatment
and distribution rehabilitation and decontamination projects, sewer treatment and water conservation
projects, and broadband improvements that deliver minimum speeds of 100 Mbps.
Ms. Yager recommended that the City move forward with replacement of lost public sector revenue
because it has the broadest use, streamlined reporting requirements, and is aligned with how many other
cities were using their ARPA allocation.
The Council asked questions pertaining to previous budget allocation of ARPA and previous pandemicrelief related funding from the federal government. Based on budgeting for these funds and the gap in
revenue that the pandemic caused, there was consensus on the Council to utilize the ARPA funds as
budgeted.
Next Steps will be to proceed with claiming the standard allowance. Staff will bring back a resolution
recommended by the League of Minnesota Cities that will memorialize these intentions at the April
19th City Council meeting.
5:50 p.m. Review of Ferndale Road Sidewalk Feasibility Study
Mr. Kelly provided background that as part of the 2021 CIP, funding was allocated to determine the
feasibility of a sidewalk along Ferndale Road South, between Lake Street and Wayzata Blvd. This
segment is a critical north-south corridor for pedestrians and cyclists and is a direct route between the
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Dakota Rail Regional Trail and the Luce Line Trail. WSB was hired to evaluate this corridor and
determine the viability of a pedestrian facility. The CIP allocates funding for the construction of this
project in 2023.
Additionally, staff requested that the City's consulting arborist complete an inventory of the trees located
in this corridor.
The Council asked questions on both of the trail options and, ultimately, there was consensus that it made
the most sense to pursue planning efforts for a new sidewalk on the east side of Ferndale Road between
Wayzata Boulevard and Lake Street.
Next steps include: Sharing the feasibility study with the Parks and Trails Board and solicit comments;
Hold a neighborhood meeting to share the study and solicit feedback on the presented options; and
Bring comments back to the Council and formally consider selecting an option to move forward with in
2023
6:10 p.m. Update of Emerald Ash Borer Status and Discussion of Mitigation Plan
Mr. Kelly stated in January of 2020, the Minnesota Department of Agriculture confirmed the first emerald
ash borer infestation in the City of Wayzata. Earlier this year, the City's consulting arborist began an
inventory of trees in public spaces, including parks and City right-of-way. Unfortunately, the arborist
discovered that EAB quickly spread across the City.
To minimize the spread of EAB to additional trees, a quick response is needed. The Parks Department is
preparing a mitigation plan for the removal of infested ash trees and treatment of healthy ash trees. The
goal would be to implement the mitigation plan by May 1, before EAB enters its active spreading season.
Staff solicited quotes for removal and treatment of the inventoried trees. The Parks CIP has $80,500
allocated in 2022 for the planting, removal, and maintenance of City trees, including managing EAB.
Given the community-wide impact of EAB, staff have already begun informing the public about its
presence. It was included in the Wayzata Weekly and is on the City's website, which includes information
on how Wayzata's residents can contact the Parks Department for additional assistance in evaluating ash
trees on private property. Additional communication will be sent out when the mitigation plan is
prepared.
The Council agreed that immediate action was needed and that the City should do as much
communication on the front end, related to specific trees to be removed, but then continue
communications regarding future actions that will be needed. Mr. Kelly indicated that they would put
together a mitigation plan that could be reviewed by the Council in the future.
The workshop meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
DRAFT - MEETING MINUTES
April 5, 2022
AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order.
Mayor Mouton called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Mayor Mouton shared the multiple
options for joining remotely and submitting comments or questions.
AGENDA ITEM 2. Pledge of Allegiance.
AGENDA ITEM 3. Roll Call.
Council Members present: Mouton, Buchanan, MacDonald, and Plechash. Council
Member absent: Iverson. Also present: City Manager Dahl, Community Development
Director Goellner, and City Attorney Schelzel.
Mayor Mouton noted earlier this evening, the City Council participated in a workshop.
The following items were on the agenda:
• Discussion of ARPA Funds Allocation
• Review of Ferndale Road Sidewalk Feasibility Study
• Update of Emerald Ash Borer Status and Discussion of Mitigation Plan
AGENDA ITEM 4. Approve Agenda.
Mr. Buchanan made a motion, seconded by Mr. Plechash, to approve the agenda, as
presented. The motion carried 4/0.
AGENDA ITEM 5. Public Forum.
a.
Swearing in of New Police Officers
Police Chief Schultz thanked the Council for taking the time to recognize three of
Wayzata’s newest Police Officers. Chief Schultz shared Police Officers Natalie Kalkes,
Laura Carlson, and Will Carstens biographies and welcomed them.
Mr. Dahl administered the oaths of office for Officers Kalkes, Carlson, and
Carstens.
Mayor Mouton said the City looked forward to getting to know them better. She
encouraged them to remember all of Chief Schultz’s counsel.
Mayor Mouton recessed the meeting at 7:17 p.m.
Mayor Mouton reconvened the meeting at 7:32 p.m.
AGENDA ITEM 6. New Agenda Items.
None.
AGENDA ITEM 7. Consent Agenda.
Mayor Mouton read the items on the consent agenda and asked if any Council member
wished to pull an item for further discussion. Hearing no such request, she asked for a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Mr. Plechash made a motion,
seconded by Ms. MacDonald, to approve the consent agenda:
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a.

Approval of City Council Workshop and Regular Meeting Minutes of March 22,
2022
b.
Approval of Check Register
c.
Approval of Municipal Licenses
d.
Approval to Call for Public Hearing to Consider Applications for the Grant of a
Cable Franchise to Operate a Cable System in the City of Wayzata
The motion carried 4/0.
AGENDA ITEM 8. Public Hearings.
a.
Consider Approval of On-Sale Intoxicating and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating
Liquor License for the Grocer’s Table LLC at 326 Broadway Avenue South
Mr. Dahl presented the application for a full On-Sale Intoxicating and Sunday On-Sale
Intoxicating Liquor License from Grocer’s Table. He discussed the location, background,
and process.
Mayor Mouton asked if the Council had questions for staff.
Mr. Buchanan asked if the hours of operation were part of the license and whether
an applicant could change the hours. Mr. Dahl answered he believed that hours of
operation were not tied to the license. They were tied to additional permits such as the
outdoor café permit.
Mayor Mouton asked if the On-Sale and Sunday On-Sale were separate due to State
requirements. Mr. Schelzel said it was both State and City requirements.
Mayor Mouton invited the applicant to speak.
Lindsay Pohlad, Owner, thanked the Council for their consideration of the
application. She talked a little about their hours and plans.
Mayor Mouton opened the public hearing at 7:46 p.m.
Stacy Carisch, 681 Lake Street East, spoke in support of Grocer’s Table.
Mayor Mouton closed the public hearing at 7:47 p.m.
Ms. MacDonald expressed her support for the application.
Mr. Plechash said he enjoyed their food and service and was supportive.
There being no further discussion, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion. Mr.
Buchanan made a motion, seconded by Mr. Plechash, to Approve the On-Sale Intoxicating
and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for the Grocers Table LLC at 326
Broadway Avenue South. The motion carried 4/0.
AGENDA ITEM 9. New Business.
a.
Consider Adoption of Resolution 11-2022 and Approve First Reading of
Ordinance No. 810 Amending Definitions, Single-Family Detached Uses, OffStreet Parking Restrictions, and Shoreland Overlay District Sections
Ms. Goellner explained that from time-to-time staff determined that City Code was either
outdated or out of compliance with State regulations. Staff was proposing four changes to
the Zoning Ordinance. She discussed the proposed amendments, review process, Planning
Commission review and recommendation, and next steps.
Mayor Mouton said she thought the Council did something similar fairly recently.
Ms. Goellner said there were a lot of moving parts with the zoning study. She discussed
some of the changes and other amendments being worked on currently.
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Hearing no further discussion, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion. Ms. MacDonald
made a motion, seconded by Mr. Buchanan, to Adopt Resolution No. 11-2022 Approving
Zoning Ordinance Amendments and to Approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 810
Amending Chapters 902, 917, 920, and 991 of the Zoning Ordinance. The motion carried
4/0.
b.

Consider Adoption of Resolution 12-2022 Appointing Wayzata Boulevard
Corridor Study Committee Co-Chairs
Ms. Goellner explained that the project had its origins in the City’s Strategic Plan. She
discussed the Corridor Study area, the committee, Co-Chair roles, core project team,
timeline, and next steps.
Mayor Mouton asked if this was step one before Planning Commission and
Housing and Redevelopment Authority members were selected. Ms. Goellner said the plan
was to select Co-Chairs first and then move forward with the request for proposal. She
planned to invite all members to participate in the committee. Mayor Mouton said all of
Wayzata Boulevard was not a City street. Ms. Goellner said that was correct, part of it was
under County jurisdiction. Staff would work closely with Hennepin County’s engineering
staff.
Mayor Mouton asked if anyone was interested in the position. Mr. Buchanan and
Ms. MacDonald expressed interest.
Mr. Plechash asked if including the entire Council at the meetings become a
problem. Mr. Dahl said staff did not anticipate a lot of the joint meetings. Possibly three
to five over the next year, but each meeting would be noticed and all proper legal protocols
would be followed.
Mayor Mouton mentioned that Council Member Iverson had expressed interest
prior to the meeting, but since she was not present to speak for herself and there were two
Council Members present who were interested, she asked for a motion on the draft
resolution appointing Council Member Buchanan and Council Member MacDonald to the
committee.
Mr. Plechash made a motion, seconded by Mr. Buchanan, to Adopt Resolution No.
12-2022 Appointing Co-Chairs Jeff Buchanan and Molly MacDonald to Wayzata Blvd
Corridor Study Committee. The motion carried 4/0.
AGENDA ITEM 10. City Manager's Report and Discussion Items.
a.
Upcoming Events/Announcements
Mr. Dahl noted the community survey vendor was finished and staff was looking forward
to getting those results. There was another survey on Solar Panels on the City’s website.
The Council’s next meeting, April 19th, would probably be a long meeting and the Local
Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting was earlier that same day. Mr. Dahl also noted
the Earth Day Tree Giveaway on April 23rd at Klapprich Park and Spring Clean Up on May
7th.
b.
Council Member Updates/Announcements
Mayor Mouton reminded everyone to contact the City Assessor prior to the Local Board
of Appeal and Equalization meeting for the best outcome. She said there were three
applications to be considered at the April 19th City Council meeting, but they were not
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public hearings. She also talked about the update the Council received on the Emerald Ash
Borer at its earlier Workshop meeting. She said a number of trees had been infected and
the City was working on a moderately aggressive plan to mitigate further damage.
AGENDA ITEM 11. Public Forum Continued (if necessary).
There were no comments.
AGENDA ITEM 12. Adjournment.
There being no further business, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr.
Plechash made a motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald to adjourn. Mayor Mouton
adjourned the meeting at 8:14 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Kathy Leervig
City Clerk
Drafted by Sarah Peterson
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.
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WAYZATA BOARD OF APPEAL AND EQUALIZATION
DRAFT - MEETING MINUTES
April 19, 2022
AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order.
Mayor Mouton convened the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization at 5:30 p.m. Mayor
Mouton shared the multiple options for joining remotely and submitting comments or
questions.
AGENDA ITEM 2. Roll Call.
Members present: Mouton, Buchanan, Iverson, MacDonald, and Plechash. Also present:
City Manager Dahl, Wayzata City Assessor Rolf Erickson, Hennepin County Senior
Commercial Assessor Melody Devine, Hennepin County Assistant Assessor Ashley
Gunderson, and City Attorney Schelzel.
AGENDA ITEM 3. Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Hearing.
Mr. Dahl started by sharing that staff was recommending the Board not take any action
tonight based on the number of appeals. The Board would receive appeals tonight,
recess, and take action when it reconvened.
Mayor Mouton asked if there was a deadline for the Board to take action. Mr.
Dahl answered 20 days from tonight’s meeting.
Mr. Dahl provided a summary and discussed the taxation process. He said
Wayzata was a bit different because the City contracted through the County for
commercial and through private for residential. He also discussed the increase in
residential valuations.
Ms. Devine discussed the purpose of the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization.
She also talked about what the Board could and could not do and provided a summary of
the 2022 assessments.
Mr. Erickson discussed the residential summary net growth.
Mr. Dahl asked about the number of calls and process this year. Mr. Erickson
said his office received over 700 calls. He talked briefly about Market Condition
Adjusted Price.
Mayor Mouton read the list of properties that had appealed, but had not come to a
resolution into the record as follows:
1. Roswitha Roberts
1615 Crosby Road
2. Tomas Shiek
215 Barry Avenue South #113
3. Laura and Wayne Lake
117 Edgewood Court (Ferndale Ridge)
4. Carol Alber
401 Gardner Street
5. Fred and Cindy Richter
103 Edgewood Court (Ferndale Ridge)
6. Betsy Driessen
114 Edgewood Court (Ferndale Ridge)
7. Dick Swanson
547 Harrington Road
8. Kevin Liu
453 Waycliffe Drive N
9. Lisa Kinomoto
127 Edgewood Court
10. Jessica Redmond
641 Harmony Circle
11. Charles Yancey
740 Park Street E
12. Robert Reutiman Jr
305 Rice Street E
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13. Margret Stankovsky
14. Gabrielle Rev Liv Trust
15. Sima Kazeminy
16. Kristin Koroloff
17. Dan Gustafson
18. Richard Morris
19. Jon Halvorson
20. Lance Wallin
21. Lance Wallin
22. Bob Singer
23. Nora and Chris Gondeck
24. Roberta Dressen
25. Don and Joann Leavenworth
26. Gary Benson via JJ Furst
27. Rich Demeules
28. Hans and Carolyn Hagen
29. John Nolan
30. Stacy Ludwig
31. Mary Lee Velt
32. Perry Ludwig
33. Deborah McNally
34. Tom Threlkeld
35. Chris Wilke

644 Indian Mound E
215 Barry Avenue S #309
215 Barry Avenue S #119
392 Margaret Circle
1042 Circle Drive E
16013 Holdridge Road W
147 Central Avenue S (Lot property)
972 Shady Lane E
964 Shady Lane E
143 Huntington Avenue S
121 Westwood Lane
310 Peavey Lane
543 Harrington Road
199 Lakeview Avenue
425 Ferndale Woods
570 Harrington Road
557 Harrington Road
140 Highland Lane
350 Ferndale Road N
140 Highland Lane
308 Ferndale Road
353 Park Street E
1840 Crosby Road

Mayor Mouton called the green cards that had been turned in forward one at a time to
speak.
Donald and Joann Leavenworth, 543 Harrington Road, did not come forward to
speak.
Gilles Stassart, 660 Harmony Road, requested to add his property to the list of
appeals.
Scott Mann, 460 Carpenters Point, said his assessment increased by 35% which
was much higher than his neighbors. He talked about the purchase price and how long
the home was on the market when he bought it.
Ellen Peterson, 960 Shady Lane E, asked about the role of the Board in terms of
the process. Mayor Mouton answered when the Board reconvened it would have
information on the property and would consider the assessor’s recommendation. It could
decrease, increase, or keep the assessment the same. Ms. Peterson thought the City
would see people taxed out of their homes. She said her property was limited and she
provided documentation to the City Clerk.
Pat Broyles, 212 Benton Avenue, requested to add his property to the list of
appeals.
Lance Wallin, 964 Shady Lane E and 972 Shady Lane E, said he was appealing
both his home and his rental property. He said there had been no improvements, but had
45% and 40% increases. He thought the whole street was off on their assessments. He
talked about some of the other properties on the street.
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Mayor Mouton asked about the average increase for Wayzata. Mr. Erickson said
17.1% for off-lake residential and 22.2% for residential lake shore. Mayor Mouton asked
if the Board could get a spreadsheet of all residential properties and their increases by lot.
Mr. Erickson said that data came from the County. Mr. Dahl said they could look into it.
Paul Breckner, 928 Shady Lane E, said there were a couple of PIDs that
comprised his property. He talked about the increases and thought 43% was out of line.
He agreed that someone on the street did an incredible remodel and it through off the
algorithm on the entire street.
Matthew Brinza, 315 Park Street E, said he had reached out to Mr. Erickson, but
had not heard back. He said this was the second year in a row he received double digit
increases. He said he was maxed out on buildable square footage.
Lisa Winkey, 310 Ferndale Road W, said they had pulled 45 lake homes and the
increases ranged from 9% - 45%. She said her property was somewhere in the middle;
however, they were paying more than a brand new, slightly larger home.
Mayor Mouton asked if there was anyone else present who wished to add their
name to the list of appeals. Mr. Dahl offered those in attendance via Zoom a chance to
raise their hand. No one came forwards or raised their hand.
Mayor Mouton read the list of commercial appeals into the record as follows:
1. Old National Bank
135 Central Avenue
2. Holiday Station
1325 Wayzata Boulevard E
3. Flagship Bank Property
1415 Wayzata Boulevard E
4. Wayzata Crossings
1515 Wayzata Boulevard
5. Maggie Manor
426 Rice Street E
6. Maggie Manor
217 Minnetonka Avenue S
Mayor Mouton explained the Board had slated a second session for May 3rd and
said a third session may be necessary. She asked what happened if a Homeowner could
not be present at the following meeting. Mr. Dahl said ideally, they would come to an
agreement with the assessor prior to the meeting. The property owner could also attend
via Zoom, otherwise the Board would make a decision based on the information
provided.
Mr. Plechash asked staff to explain the connection between assessments and
taxes. Mr. Dahl said there was a strong correlation between taxes and property values.
He talked about the City’s tax levy and how changes in commercial taxes shifted the
residential burden.
AGENDA ITEM 4. Recess.
There being no further business, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion to recess. Mr.
Buchanan made a motion, seconded by Mr. Plechash, to recess the Local Board of Appeal
and Equalization meeting and reconvene on May 3, 2022 at 4:30 p.m. The motion carried
5/0.
The meeting was adjourned at 6:26 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
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Kathy Leervig
City Clerk
Drafted by Sarah Peterson
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.
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WAYZATA CITY COUNCIL
DRAFT - MEETING MINUTES
April 19, 2022
AGENDA ITEM 1. Call to Order.
Mayor Mouton called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Mayor Mouton shared the multiple
options for joining remotely and submitting comments or questions.
AGENDA ITEM 2. Pledge of Allegiance.
AGENDA ITEM 3. Roll Call.
Council Members present: Mouton, Buchanan, Iverson, MacDonald, and Plechash. Also
present: City Manager Dahl, Community Development Director Goellner, Director of
Public Works/City Engineer Kelly, Planner Zweber, and City Attorney Schelzel.
Mayor Mouton noted that prior to the meeting, the City Council had conducted the Local
Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting, and that the meeting will be reconvened on
May 3, 2022 at 4:30 p.m.
AGENDA ITEM 4. Approve Agenda.
Mr. Buchanan made a motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald, to approve the agenda, as
presented. The motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 5. Public Forum.
a.
Introduction of Wayzata High School Compass Students
Mr. Dahl introduced Max McCollins and Erin Sitrin who were part of the Compass
program for Seniors at Wayzata High School. Only Ms. Sitrin was able to be present. Mr.
Dahl shared that Ms. Citron was interested in government, and the Compass program got
her out in the field.
Ms. Sitrin thanked the Council for having her.
Mr. Plechash asked what college she planned to attend. Ms. Sitrin said University
of Wisconsin-Madison.
Mayor Mouton was pleased to have her and wished her best of luck.
Ms. Iverson said Mr. McCollins had played hockey with her son for six years and
she wished he could have been in attendance.
AGENDA ITEM 6. New Agenda Items.
None.
AGENDA ITEM 7. Consent Agenda.
Mayor Mouton read the items on the consent agenda and asked if any Council member
wished to pull an item for further discussion.
Ms. Iverson, referencing the building activity report of Item 7.d., asked why there
was a decrease in inspections from 2021 to 2022. She said she would also like to see a list
of whether there was a resolution of issues. She, referencing the zoning ordinance
amendment of Item 7.h., asked why all of the detail was removed from Section 4. 991.20

Page 14 of 499

Draft – CC041922-2

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45

of the ordinance on variances. She added that staff could get back to her on those items.
Mr. Schelzel noted that on the Zoning Ordinance, the basic idea was to create one variance
standard for the entire Zoning Ordinance to make it easier to follow and apply.
Mr. Plechash, referencing Item 7.g. on municipal fees, said a fee for water was
being added to the permit fees. He wondered if contractors used more than $150 in water
and whether the City should track it.
There being no further questions or discussion, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Mr. Buchanan made a motion, seconded by
Mr. Plechash, to approve all of the consent agenda as presented:
a.
Approval of Check Register
b.
Approval of Municipal Licenses
c.
Receipt of Police Activity Report
d.
Receipt of Building Activity Report
e.
Adoption of Resolution 13-2022 Electing the Standard Allowance Available Under
the Revenue Loss Provision of the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund
Established Under the American Rescue Plan Act
f.
Adoption of Resolution 18-2022 Approving Funding and Reimbursement Terms
with the State of Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic
Development for $4 Million Bonding Award for Panoway on Wayzata Bay
g.
Adoption of Resolution 14-2022 Amending Municipal Fees
h.
Approval of Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance No. 810 Amending
Definitions, Single-Family Detached Uses, Off-Street Parking Restrictions and
Shoreland Overlay District Sections
The motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 8. Public Hearings.
a.
Consider Applications for the Grant of a Cable Franchise to Operate a Cable
System with Cable Services in the City of Wayzata, and Consider Adoption of
Resolution 15-2022 Confirming the Compliance and Qualifications of Comcast
for a Cable Franchise
Mr. Dahl introduced the City’s cable franchise counsel, Brian Grogan of Moss & Barnett.
Mr. Grogan presented the background, process, and timeline of granting a cable
franchise; and the legal, technical, and financial qualifications of Comcast as a potential
franchisee.
Ms. Iverson asked about Comcast’s customer satisfaction rates. Mr. Grogan said
he did not have any specific statistics with him, but could provide that information at a later
time.
Mayor Mouton asked when Comcast anticipated providing service. Mr. Grogan
answered typically when a company completed construction in a portion of the City, it
would go ahead and light up that portion and begin offering service. Mayor Mouton asked
if services would be provided to the entire City. Mr. Grogan said yes. Mayor Mouton
asked if the financial terms would be fleshed out during the process. Mr. Grogan said yes,
and it was typical of an organization of this size to keep separate financials. If everything
went the wrong direction during a build out, the City would have the necessary security to
restore things, such as a street, to its previous state.
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There being no further questions for counsel or staff, Mayor Mouton opened the
public hearing at 7:28 p.m.
Bill Gleason, 215 Barry Avenue S #215, supported Comcast coming in. He said
the residents were currently held hostage to one company and thought the competition
would be a good thing.
There being no one else wishing to provide further public comment, Mayor Mouton
closed the public hearing at 7:30 p.m.
There being no further Council discussion, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion on
the draft resolution. Mr. Plechash made a motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald, to Adopt
Resolution No. 15-2022 Confirming the Compliance and Qualifications of Comcast for a
Cable Franchise. The motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 9. New Business.
a.
Consider Adoption of Resolution 10-2022 Approving or Denying a Driveway
Setback Variance at 445 Bovey Road
Ms. Goellner presented the development application from 688 Bryant LLC requesting
approval of a variance from the driveway setback requirement of 10 feet from the side yard
within the R-1A District to allow for the construction of a driveway located at 445 Bovey
Road.
She discussed the proposal, the Planning Commission’s findings and
recommendation of approval, the City Council’s review and motions at the meeting on
March 22, 2022, the summary of possible alternative denial findings, and next steps.
Mayor Mouton asked if the Council had questions of staff.
Mr. Buchanan clarified that the applicant did not need a variance to construct a
driveway, but by asking for one they were eliminating the need to remove additional trees
and utilities. He asked staff to share further detail about the utilities.
Mr. Kelly said there was a sanitary sewer force main lift station located on the
southwest corner of the lot which flowed east and up to Bovey Road. The proposed
driveway crossed the force main utility, and the bend was located in the southeast corner
of the lot.
Mr. Buchanan asked if the driveway would impact the utility if the applicant did
not obtain the variance.
Mr. Kelly said potentially. He thought the retaining walls would create a problem
accessing the utility.
There being no further questions for staff, Mayor Mouton invited the applicant to
speak.
Applicant’s representative, Timothy Lovett, Coldwell Banker Realty, said he
appreciated the opportunity to speak. He said the small red area depicted in the map for
the variance was the result of a great deal of study, survey, and feedback. He said it was
true that a variance was not needed for a driveway, but this spot was chosen as the most
ecologically conservative approach. He talked about the character of the neighborhood.
Mayor Mouton asked Mr. Lovett to explain who the applicants were.
Mr. Lovett explained that Janey Baker owned the property and put the lot on the
market, and she along with 688 Bryan LLC, were co-applicants.
Ms. Goellner said it was typical to have an LLC as the applicant but the property
owner’s signature was needed on the application as well, which the City did have in this
case.
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Mayor Mouton invited the Council to weigh in.
Mr. Plechash said he was very familiar with the property. He thought it was
buildable, but not accessible. He said an easement from the north would be a lot simpler,
but without that, he did think this was the best option.
Ms. MacDonald said she agreed with Council Member’s Plechash comments.
Mr. Buchanan said he was in agreement with the Planning Commission’s findings.
He thought the variance was a reasonable request.
Ms. Iverson said she recommended denial at the March 22nd Council meeting due
to the height and scale of the retaining wall, but she understood this request was for the
location of the driveway. She thought relocating the utility could be an issue. She still
preferred the applicant work with the neighbors, but was supportive of the request.
Mayor Mouton said she still had reservations. She was concerned about the amount
of fill removed, and did not think a wall of that length and height was conducive to the
area. She was also concerned that this was the first of many complications for the
development of the property. She was not supportive.
There being no further discussion, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion on the draft
resolution. Mr. Plechash made a motion, seconded by Mr. Buchanan, to Adopt Resolution
No. 10-2022 Approving the Driveway Setback Variance at 445 Bovey Road.
Ms. Iverson asked if the applicant came forward with additional variances, could
they move forward and build without a complete application.
Ms. Goellner said if a new owner needed a variance to build, it would come forward
as an application and go through the public hearing process. She said from the initial study,
the site seemed buildable without variances.
Ms. Iverson asked if they could build the driveway without plans for the home.
Mr. Kelly said they could pull a grading permit, driveway permit, and retaining
wall building permit to construct the driveway.
Mr. Dahl recommended a roll call vote.
Upon roll call vote, the motion carried 4/1 (Mouton, nay).
b.

Consider Adoption of Resolution 16-2022 Denying a Planned Unit
Development Concept Plan at 200 Lake Street East
Ms. Goellner presented the development application from Lake West Development, LLC
for a Planned Unit Development Concept Plan for the property owned by Huntington
Nation Bank at 200 Lake Street East. She discussed zoning, site history, existing
conditions, previous applications, open spaces, impervious surfaces, additional approvals
required, west and east parking, the public review process and comments, the Planning
Commission’s findings of fact and recommendation of denial, and next steps.
Mayor Mouton asked if the Council had questions of staff.
Mr. Plechash asked if there was anything about the application that would not meet
the C4A standard. Ms. Goellner said she would need to do a more thorough review, but at
first glance, the height of the buildings would be a big issue.
There being no further questions for staff, Mayor Mouton invited the applicant to
speak.
Applicant’s representative, Curt Fretham, Lake West Development, LLC, first
talked about the misunderstandings he believed had occurred at the Planning Commission
meeting that resulted in the denial recommendation, including misunderstandings on the
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number of parking stalls, sidewalk removal, handicap access, and the traffic study. He
explained his understanding on those items and asked Ms. Goellner to confirm those were
true.
Ms. Goellner said she was not prepared to confirm those at this time.
Mr. Fretham said those items were provided in plenty of time for staff to review.
He requested that Council table action to allow time for these issues to be examined.
Mayor Mouton stated the Council had had plenty of information to consider the
application.
Mr. Fretham proceeded to talk about his company and their principles. He then
presented new drawings of the proposal.
Mayor Mouton asked if the Council was supposed to consider the new drawings.
Mr. Fretham said it was an alternative to their proposal after attempting to listen to
the community about its concerns.
Mayor Mouton said the Council could not consider alternatives that were not a part
of the application, and had not been presented to the Planning Commission.
Mr. Fretham said the alternative had been submitted last week, and staff had time
to review.
Mr. Dahl clarified that it was submitted late last week, and staff had not had time
to review, and it was not included in the Council’s packet.
Mr. Fretham said he would pass on the alternative and move forward. He talked
about reasonableness and compared similar Planned Unit Development’s lot coverage,
floor area ratio, intensity, tunnel effect, and open space.
Mayor Mouton asked if staff was prepared to discuss the errors alleged by the
applicant.
Mr. Zweber referenced pages 209 and 212 of the packet for the sidewalk removal
information. He said the sidewalk was shrinking from 20 to 17 feet under the proposal.
He referenced page 185 of the packet for parking. He said only 84 of the stalls proposed
were standard. He referenced page 164 of the packet for handicap accessibility. He said
there 15 steps to get to the public open space. He noted that he did agree that the traffic
study showed that the proposal met the standards for a development like this.
Mayor Mouton asked if the applicant would like to respond.
Mr. Fretham said he heard a Planning Commissioner ask if the sidewalk was being
removed, and staff had responded yes.
Applicant’s architect, David Nims, Hobbs+Black Architects, explained that the
sidewalks would be removed for construction. They would then be reconstructed to meet
the standard six-foot width with a two-foot grass buffer strip, and a reduction in the width
of the bike path from ten to eight feet. He noted they had a letter from Three Rivers Park
confirming that eight feet was acceptable.
Mr. Fretham said there was a slide in staff materials that said they had 100 less
stalls that what they have.
Ms. Goellner said the findings of the Planning Commission Report listed the
number of mechanized parking, not overall parking.
Mr. Nims said they would be compliant if they removed the mechanized parking
and went to all standard parking. However, it would decrease the 96 stalls that would be
available.
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At the conclusion of the Applicant’s remarks, Mayor Mouton open it up for public
comments, and reminded those who wished to speak that they were limited to three
minutes.
Darrin Rosha, attorney for Wayzata Bay Car Wash, said the development was
important for the businesses on this end of Lake Street. He said the Council had a tough
job, but asked them to act on this for the silent people.
Tony Navarro, 5201 Eden Avenue #300, Edina, said he was in favor of the project
for a number of reasons. He encouraged the Council to reconsider the changes the applicant
had made.
Luke Shimp, representative of Red Cow restaurant, said he was in favor both as a
resident and also because he would like to bring Red Cow to Wayzata. He thought it
extended the youthfulness and vibrancy changes that Wayzata had been going through.
Robert Meller, 1800 Major Drive, Golden Valley, attorney for neighbors of the
proposed project, talked about public safety and the railroad, and presented documents to
Council. He said the Planned Unit Development standards required the Council to make a
finding on safety.
Bill Gleason, 215 Barry Avenue S #215, said he was also a land developer. He said
if a project met height requirements, then neighboring views were not protected. He
thought the project was viable and should not be stopped because people did not want it.
Lindsay Bashioum, 461 Peavey Lane, said she had been a Planning Commissioner
during the first two applications for this property. She remembered the parking study was
a concern because the study was old. She wondered why the developer was not listening
to some of the strong reasons why the project fell short of meeting critical zoning and
comprehensive criteria. She said the density was overwhelming for this piece of land. She
suggested the current owners of the TCF building donate the land on either side of the
building.
Daniel Andersen, 3540 Montgomery Avenue, shared a petition that he received in
the mail. He said the height that was proposed was lower than what was there currently.
He thought the design was perfect based on his 32 years of service in the industry. He said
the City had done a great job on Lake Street and thought this was a great bookend to all of
that.
Sven Gustafson, 153 Lake Street E, said he had been through the TCF building and
agreed that the building could not be reused. He said he supported the project and loved
the new design.
Mike Palm, 121 Grove Lane E, said he lived directly across from the property, but
was a renter. He said the staff report said notices were sent out to all residents and renters,
but noted he had not received any notices. He asked if renters had the right to speak, and
to sign a petition. He said the petition that was handed out had over 1,600 signatures, but
he doubted that they were all residents. He thought it was wrong if the petition affected
the Planning Commission’s or the City Council’s vote.
Mayor Mouton noted the City did encourage participation from anyone within or
outside of the community who had an interest, including owners, renters, and visitors.
There being no further public comment, Mr. Dahl asked if Ms. Goellner could
address some of the notification process questions.
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Ms. Goellner explained that the State statute required that property owners within
500 feet be notified of public hearings on development applications. The Council and staff
had agreed to try to also notify renters as much as possible with the data that it had.
Mayor Mouton noted the pamphlet and website that were mentioned during the
public comment was not from the City. It was a group of citizens and they were free to do
so. She applauded them for listing their names. She said it was one piece of information
for the Council to consider, and it did not tip the scale either way. She encouraged all
people to have a voice.
Mayor Mouton said a few questions had come up for her during review. She asked
about public space verses open space in the proposal.
Ms. Goellner displayed an exhibit from the applicant. She said they had discussed
how much public access was expected. She recommended the City require and access
easement for use.
Mayor Mouton asked about impervious surface.
Ms. Goellner said impervious surface over 75% of a lot required a Conditional Use
Permit.
Mayor Mouton asked if there was a lot coverage calculation.
Mr. Zweber said lot coverage was 45.8% as proposed.
Ms. Iverson asked about the private boardwalk area on the developer’s plans. She
asked if it was in the middle of what was considered a public benefit area.
Mr. Zweber said it was about the location of where the open space of the TCF
building ended.
Ms. Iverson said she was having a hard time determining the public benefit of that.
Ms. MacDonald asked if the trail on the west end would be two separate trails.
Mr. Zweber said the applicant had made a modification since the Planning
Commission meeting, but in the Council’s packet it was one.
Ms. MacDonald asked if there was any environmental benefit to the parking
system.
Mr. Zweber talked about the stormwater management plan.
Mayor Mouton referenced an email from John Sexter sent on February 7, 2022 that
claimed she had a vested interest in the project. She said she did not have a vested interest
in the project and asked Mr. Sexter to clarify his comment.
Ms. Iverson referenced a Neighborhood Meeting Sign in Sheet dated January 5,
2022. She said she did attend a community meeting, but someone forged her signature
twice on the sign in sheet.
Mayor Mouton said this was a big project in a small town, but at the end of the day
what was important was the record and the facts. She said Council’s work was important
and the City Council did it willingly. She noted the Council made $4,000 and $6,000
annually respectively and they all had full time jobs. She said the community should
understand that they are dealing with people who donate their time and who are bound by
ethics, standards, and oaths. She said calling into question their integrity was not
acceptable. She said she was also disappointed in how the meeting started and the tone
that was taken. She said the Council would deliberate the merits of the recommendation
from the Planning Commission, and would not consider the revised drawings submitted
last week that were not a part of the application.
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Ms. Iverson thanked everyone who was present. She said it had been a long
process. She said she was in agreement with the findings and recommendation of the
Planning Commission. She also talked about the question of public benefit, delivery
trucks, the traffic study, and the petition. She recommended denial.
Mr. Buchanan thanked the community for participating in the process. He also
thanked the applicant. He said it was a tricky parcel, but supported the Planning
Commission’s findings and recommendation. He said he had concerns about safety. He
said Wayzata was a walkable, bikeable community, and he did not want to see that limited.
Ms. MacDonald also thanked the community, the applicant, and the Planning
Commission. She supported the Planning Commission’s findings and recommendation of
denial.
Mr. Plechash said he read the entire packet and noted the misunderstandings. He
found Planning Commissioner Shelby’s comments about retail valid. He thought the
overall concept met the Planned Unit Development requirements. The existing building
was not historic, but possibly iconic. He talked about lake views, height, and mass and
scale. He thought the proposed development would improve the property. He discussed
reasons to deny including public opposition, increased traffic, and tunnel effect created by
the design of the new buildings. He wanted to see the location developed, but said the
Planning Commission raised legitimate points. He said he supported their recommendation
to deny.
Mr. Fretham asked to speak. Mayor Mouton agreed. He said he offered the plaza
as a public park, but the City did not want the burden of caring for it. He said he could not
make 32 residents pay for it. However, he was open to working through a solution. He
asked the Council to allow them to go back to the Planning Commission.
Mayor Mouton asked if that would be an option.
Mr. Dahl said it would be inconsistent with the City’s general process.
Mr. Schelzel said generally the City would ask the applicant to go back to the
Planning Commission with a new application if the applicant wanted to make substantial
modifications to its proposal. He recommended the Council take action on the resolution
before them tonight, but under the Planned Unit Development ordinance the Council did
have the option to send the application back to the Planning Commission for further review.
He said the applicant was also free to withdraw the application and submit a new one.
Mr. Buchanan thought the Council did something similar with Meridian Manor.
Mr. Dahl said it did, but the circumstances were slightly different.
Mr. Plechash said if it came back with a perfectly charming design and a public
plaza, it still would not pass.
Ms. Iverson agreed.
Ms. MacDonald said she thought they should consider the resolution before them.
Mayor Mouton asked for a motion on the draft resolution. Mr. Plechash made a
motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald, to Adopt Resolution No. 16-2022 Denying a PUD
Concept Plan at 200 Lake Street East. The motion carried 5/0.
Mayor Mouton recessed the meeting at 10:10 p.m.
Mayor Mouton reconvened the meeting at 10:25 p.m.
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c.

Consider Adoption of Resolution 17-2022 Denying a Lot Combination,
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Zoning Map Amendment, and Conditional
Use Permit at 1022 Wayzata Boulevard East
Ms. Goellner presented the development application from Reprise Design requesting
approval of a lot combination of two parcels through a preliminary and final plat, a
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, a Zoning Map Amendment, and a Conditional Use
Permit for a project that would include the demolition of the existing building and
construction of a two-tenant retail building with one drive-through, located at 1022
Wayzata Boulevard. She discussed the surrounding neighborhood zoning and land use,
aerial view, existing conditions, drive-through stacking, neighborhood meeting, lot
combination, site plan, Comprehensive Plan Amendment, standards for application
requests, the Planning Commission’s findings, and next steps.
Mayor Mouton invited the applicant to speak after confirming the Council did not
have any questions for staff.
Farhad Akim, applicant’s representative, said he had developed a lot of gas stations.
He said this might be the first property that was not developable as a gas station. Their
proposal had no design deviations from any of the City’s requirements. He talked about
some of the difficulties of the property and project. He thought the emotions of the
neighbors had overwhelmed the issue and was willing to sell the residential property to the
City if the neighbors wanted to keep it as a buffer.
Mayor Mouton said this was a landlocked parcel that was zoned residential. She
asked if the Council had considered a lot combination in the past.
Ms. Goellner said yes.
Mayor Mouton asked about the pros and cons to combining or not combining.
Ms. Goellner said combining the lots eliminated a non-conforming, unbuildable
parcel and brought it back onto the tax roles in a more meaningful way. If it was kept as
is, the setback became 80 feet.
Mr. Akim commented that he had reached out to the neighbors to find out what
they wanted.
Mayor Mouton asked how many cars were anticipated stacking in the drive through.
Mr. Zweber said the traffic study indicated that up to 17 cars could fit before it
spilled over into the access and circulation of the parking lot.
Mayor Mouton asked about the location of the walk-up window.
Mr. Zweber showed on the drawings and explained the location.
Mr. Akim further explained the accessibility from both sides of the building.
Paul Guidera, Director of Real Estate at Caribou Coffee, said he was a native of
Wayzata and talked about pedestrian access.
Mayor Mouton asked about complaints and issues with various municipalities he
had worked with.
Mr. Guidera said he was ahead in the planning process of stores instead of after, so
he was not sure. He commented that Caribou had an average wait time of 180 seconds
while traditional stores were closer to 400 seconds.
Mayor Mouton asked about vehicles that needed to go west.
Mr. Guidera said they would either do a U-turn at Highway 101 or go through the
dry cleaners and make a left turn at the stop light.
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Mr. Kelly said a third option that people would use was to go through the
neighborhood.
Ms. Iverson said there was already significant pass-through traffic on Central
Avenue.
Mr. Akim said if it was a yoga studio or an office which would not need approval,
then there would be groups exiting at the same time doing those same things. He thought
this was best case scenario because one car exited at a time.
There being no further questions of the applicant, Mayor Mouton invited attendees
who wished to address the Council to speak.
Mark Thieroff, Siegel Brill PA, said he represented the owner of the property
located at 1000 Superior Boulevard. He expressed concern with the operation of
Huntington Avenue. He said safety and congestion were big concerns for his client. He
discussed loading, garbage trucks, and stacking issues he saw with the proposal.
Nancy Sloan, 144 Huntington Avenue S, expressed concern about traffic, safety,
U-turns, and noise. She said it was a terrible lot for the proposed uses, and did not lend
itself to a drive through.
Gordy Straka, 130 Huntington Avenue S, said the lots should not be combined. The
neighbors wanted to keep the residential lot as a buffer zone. He thought the commercial
lot was too small for a drive through and if something was built there it should meet City
Code.
Diana Silikowski, 173 Huntington Avenue S, supported keeping the southern parcel
zoned residential. She said the zoning was a known commodity when the owner purchased
the property.
Charles Gustafson, 109 Central Avenue S Apartment 1, said his deck would be eye
level with the proposed drive through. He suggested a unique business with low volume,
but high return.
There being no further public comment, Mayor Mouton invited the Council to
weigh in.
Ms. MacDonald said she had issues with the proposal in regard to the drive through.
She also thought there were flaws in the traffic study. She shared that she owned a business
next to a coffee shop and the traffic associated with it negatively affected her business.
Mr. Plechash appreciated the Planning Commission’s work and though they were
spot on in their report. He suggested that the neighbors buy the lot if they wished to keep
it as a buffer. The property owner had a right to do something with it. However, he was
not supportive of the proposal.
Ms. Iverson thought the residents had legitimate concerns. She encouraged the
applicant to keep trying.
Mr. Buchanan thought there was validity to the lot combination and agreed with
Council Member Plechash. He thought it made sense to change the zoning to C3. He said
there were problems with the drive through. He thought only being able to turn east was a
big issue and was also concerned with pedestrian safety.
Mayor Mouton agreed that the lot combination made sense. She also said the
concept was not bad, but that corner was difficult at the best of times. She agreed with the
applicant that businesses make noise, but speakers, lighting, etc. could all be tweaked. Her
main concern was traffic movement and she was not in favor of the Conditional Use Permit.
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Mayor Mouton asked for a motion on the draft resolution. Mr. Buchanan made a
motion, seconded by Ms. MacDonald, to Adopt Resolution No. 17-2022 Denying a Lot
Combination, Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Zoning Map Amendment, and
Conditional Use Permit at 1022 Wayzata Boulevard East. The motion carried 5/0.
AGENDA ITEM 10. City Manager's Report and Discussion Items.
None.
AGENDA ITEM 11. Public Forum Continued (if necessary).
There were no comments.
AGENDA ITEM 12. Adjournment.
There being no further business, Mayor Mouton asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr.
Plechash made a motion, seconded by Mr. Buchanan to adjourn. Mayor Mouton adjourned
the meeting at 11:40 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Kathy Leervig
City Clerk
Drafted by Sarah Peterson
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.b
TITLE: Approval of Check Register
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Payment of Checks and Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT's) for April
and May 2022
PREPARED BY: Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager, Aurora Yager, Administrative Services Director
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends the approval of checks and EFT's.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Detail Check Register©
2.
Detail EFT Register©
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Detail Check Register©

Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

10100 Old National
05/02/22
123889
E 610-40000-225

AL`S FAN BALANCING SERVICES
Repair & Maint - System
$380.00
Total
$380.00

5389

WTP#2 PARTS

05/02/22
123890
E 640-48500-255

AMERICAN FISH & SEAFOOD, INC
FOODIngredients For Res
$735.20
Total
$735.20

174232

FOOD

05/02/22
123891
E 640-48000-253

ARTISAN BEER COMPANY
Beer For Resale
Total

3533138

BEER RESALE

05/02/22
123892
E 101-42200-499
E 101-42200-499

BERRY COFFEE COMPANY
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous
Total

05/02/22
123893
R 610-00000-37110

05/02/22
123894
E 640-48000-252

05/02/22
123895
E 640-48000-253
E 640-48000-253

05/02/22
123896
E 640-48000-253
E 640-48000-253

05/02/22
123897
G 640-10150

05/02/22
123898
E 640-48500-210
E 640-48500-217

BODIN, ROBERT OR LYNDA
W/S/Storm Sales
Total
BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE MN
Wine For Resale
Total

05/02/22
123900
E 101-41940-409

$73.12

875394

FD SUPPLIES

$103.55

888219

FD SUPPLIES

$176.67

$326.12

425FERNDA OVER PAYMENT ON FINAL UTILITY BILL

$326.12

$656.70

343877155

LIQUOR

343875780
343875781

BEER
BEER

$656.70

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE
Beer For Resale
Beer For Resale
Total

$337.00

CAPITOL BEVERAGE SALES
Beer For Resale

$387.00

2674964

BEER

$306.00

2680505

BEER

Beer For Resale
Total

$192.00
$145.00

$693.00

CASH - OLD NATIONAL
ATM
Total

$9,000.00

CINTAS CORPORATION
Operating Supplies (GEN

$224.71

4117675519 KITCHEN SUPPLIES

$40.23

4117675519 KITCHEN UNIFORMS

Uniforms
Total

05/02/22
123899
E 101-41500-433

$185.00
$185.00

$9,000.00

ATM FILL

$264.94

CIVICPLUS
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

$6,978.25

CMT JANITORIAL SERVICES
Maint services & Improv

$2,725.00

$6,978.25

224443

ANNUAL FEE

3916

MONTHLY CLEANING
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/02/22
123901
E 101-45200-331
E 101-45200-433

05/02/22
123902
E 640-48500-415

05/02/22
123903
E 630-40000-210

COUSIN, SAM
Mileage & Expense Accou

Invoice

$2,725.00

$35.84

MILEAGE, PARKING & LICENSE FEE

$10.00

MILEAGE, PARKING & LICENSE FEE

Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

$45.84

COZZINI BROS., INC.
Other Equipment Rentals
Total

$49.46

CROWN MARKING, INC.
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$77.11

$49.46

$77.11

05/02/22
123904
E 640-48000-253

DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO.
Beer For Resale
$590.00
Total
$590.00

05/02/22
123905
E 101-42100-404

DEPUTY REGISTRAR 126
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

05/02/22
123906
E 640-48000-415

05/02/22
123907
E 233-40000-499
E 101-41500-350

05/02/22
123908
R 610-00000-37110

05/02/22
123909
G 101-20300

05/02/22
123910
E 408-40000-309

DIRECTV
Other Equipment Rentals
Total
ECM PUBLISHERS, INC.
Miscellaneous
Printing & Publishing
Total

Comment

C10920193

KNIFE EXCHANGE

OE-84662

PASSPORT SUPPLIES

1573461

BEER

$14.25

UNMARKED SQUAD TABS

$14.25

$325.96

050852385X2 SERVICE

$325.96

$83.30
$95.20

885918
885919

PANOWAY
PARKS & OPEN SPACES

331PARK

OVER PAYMENT ON FINAL UTILITY BILL

$178.50

FLANNIGAN, GREG
W/S/Storm Sales
Total

$305.90

GIANNI`S
Deposits Payable
Total

$677.50

$305.90

$677.50

REFUND - ENCROACHMENT DEPOSIT

GOPHER ACE TRU VALUE
Contractual Services

$25.16

10554

E 101-42200-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$15.89

10576

FD SUPPLIES

E 101-43100-226

Sign Repair Materials
Total

$29.19

10606

SUPPLIES

05/02/22
123911
G 101-21721

HEIDER, NICK
Flex Plan

05/02/22
123912
E 404-40000-302

$70.24

$340.00
Total

PD SECURITY GATE PROJECT

APRIL 17 & 2 DEP.CARE REIMB.

$340.00

HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULTANT
Consultants
$6,125.00

5876

TREE COUNT
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CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/02/22
123913
E 404-40000-499

Invoice

Comment

$6,125.00

HOME DEPOT
Miscellaneous

$900.77

SUPPLIES

E 408-40000-499

Miscellaneous

$129.95

SUPPLIES

E 101-43100-226
E 101-45200-227

Sign Repair Materials
Plantings
Total

$193.34
$109.22

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

$1,333.28

05/02/22
123914
E 620-40000-210

INGERSOLL RAND INDUSTRIAL TECH
Operating Supplies (GEN
$78.48
Total
$78.48

05/02/22
123915
E 640-48000-253

JJ TAYLOR DISTRIBUTING OF MN_
Beer For Resale
$515.50

E 640-48000-253

05/02/22
123916
E 101-42120-304

05/02/22
123917
E 409-40000-540

05/02/22
123918
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-255

05/02/22
123919
E 101-49200-212
E 101-49200-212

05/02/22
123921
E 404-40000-309

05/02/22
123922
E 101-41940-321
E 101-41940-321

4/25/2022

LEGAL SERVICES

4015867

SERVER SOFTWARE

$168.47

427264

FOOD RESALE

$183.32

427602

FOOD RESALE

$668.19

23200446

FUEL

$2,049.82

23200460

FUEL

$2,556.75

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC.
Equipment
Total

$85.00

MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY
Motor Fuels
Motor Fuels

MARCO
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total
MARINE DOCK & LIFT
Contractual Services
Total
MEDIACOM
Telephone
Telephone
Total

05/02/22
123923
E 610-40000-313
E 610-40000-313

BEER
BEER

JEFFREY W. LAMBERT, P.A.
Legal Fees
Total

Total
05/02/22
123920
E 101-41500-404

3300945

$1,680.90

FOODIngredients For Res
Total

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL
Permit Fees/Gopher State
Permit Fees/Gopher State

SUPPLIES

3307427

Beer For Resale
Total

MAIN STREET BAKERY
FOODIngredients For Res

26051433

$1,165.40

$2,556.75

$85.00

$351.79

$2,718.01

$791.43

INV9882328 COPIER MAINT.

$791.43

$5,891.00

4/19/2022

SPRING INSTALLATION

$5,891.00

$48.07

SERVICE

$279.95

SERVICE

$328.02

$475.00
$475.00

0001138820 WTP PERMITS
0001138821 WTP PERMITS
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*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

05/02/22
123924
E 235-40000-302

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Total

$950.00

Total

$1,900.00

MILLER, FRED
Consultants

$1,900.00

Comment

0210325

WCTV

FD CERTIFICATION

05/02/22
123925
E 101-42200-434

MN FIRE SERVICE CERTIFICATION
Training and schools
$240.00
Total
$240.00

9898

05/02/22
123926
G 101-21715

MN NCPERS LIFE INSURANCE
PERA Term Life
Total

83080005202 LIFE INS.

05/02/22
123927
E 610-40000-433
E 620-40000-433

05/02/22
123928
E 101-41500-140
G 640-39999

05/02/22
123929
E 101-42100-404
E 101-42100-404

05/02/22
123930
E 101-43100-220

05/02/22
123931
E 408-40000-309

05/02/22
123932
E 620-40000-210
E 101-43100-210

05/02/22
123933
E 101-41500-433

05/02/22
123934
E 101-43100-220
E 101-43100-415

123935

05/02/22

$32.00
$32.00

MN RURAL WATER ASSOCATION
Dues, Licensing & Semina
$150.00
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total
MN UC FUND
Unemployment Comp (GE
Prior Period Adjustment
Total

$150.00

$759.08
$23,421.01

15225896
15225896

D.WIEDLER
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 2020 - 2021

$91.14

23650

SQUAD REPAIRS

$238.33

590770

SQUAD REPAIRS

$329.47

NAPA AUTO PARTS-LONG LAKE
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total

$18.70

3270-535652 PARTS

$18.70

NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS
Contractual Services
Total

$191.15

TRFINV0386 PD PARKING LOT PROJECT

$191.15

NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT
Operating Supplies (GEN

$89.98

4061202237 SUPPLIES

($44.47) ACCT97046 SUPPLIES
$45.51

$1,801.64

4781

LASERFICHE USERS ADDED

$1,801.64

OXYGEN SERVICE COMPANY
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Other Equipment Rentals
Total

2022 DUES

$24,180.09

Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

OPG-3, INC.
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

2022 DUES

3/31/2022

$300.00

MORRIE'S MINNETONKA FORD
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq

Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

3/31/2022

$33.00
$283.00

0008527104 SUPPLIES
0008527828 EQUIP.RENTAL

$316.00

PERFORMANCE FOOD GROUP, INC
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*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res

$4,602.43

125382

FOOD

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$68.50

125382

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-254
E 640-48000-251

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Liquor For Resale

$249.81
$140.44

125382
125382

MISC.BEV.
LIQUOR

E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res

$20.11

127595

FOOD

E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-210

FOODIngredients For Res
Operating Supplies (GEN

$4,630.80
$78.42

128043
128043

FOOD
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale

E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-210

FOODIngredients For Res
Operating Supplies (GEN

E 640-48000-254

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$405.30

130734

MISC.BEV.

E 640-48000-251
E 640-48500-255

Liquor For Resale
FOODIngredients For Res

$29.52
$63.25

130734
131465

LIQUOR
FOOD

E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res
Total

$3,972.90

133985

FOOD

$19,045.98

6388761

LIQUOR

05/02/22
123936
E 640-48000-251

$116.75

128043

BAR SUPPLIES

$97.08

128043

LIQUOR

$4,482.70
$87.97

130734
130734

FOOD
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

PHILLIPS WINES & SPIRITS
Liquor For Resale
Total

$654.74

POPP TELECOM
Telephone

$100.00

SERVICE

E 640-48000-321
E 101-41940-321

Telephone
Telephone

$100.00
$284.73

SERVICE
SERVICE

E 610-40000-323

Radio Units

$205.09

SERVICE

E 620-40000-323

Radio Units

$33.78

SERVICE

05/02/22
123937
E 640-47000-321

Total
05/02/22
123938
E 101-43100-226

05/02/22
123939
E 640-47000-404
E 640-48000-404

05/02/22
123940
E 404-40000-499

05/02/22
123941
E 101-45200-433

POTTERS INDUSTRIES LLC
Sign Repair Materials
Total
POWERED AIRE, INC
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total
ROISELAND, KARL
Miscellaneous
Total

$654.74

$723.60

$1,936.00

91366329

PARTS

$1,936.00

$109.61
$109.62

SP04132231 MUNI FILTER PARTS
SP04132231 MUNI FILTER PARTS

$219.23

$86.00

PARKS SUPPLIES - PAINT

$86.00

SAFEASSURE CONSULTANTS INC.
Dues, Licensing & Semina
$874.10

2962-2022

SAFETY TRAINING

E 101-43100-433

Dues, Licensing & Semina

$874.10

2962-2022

SAFETY TRAINING

E 610-40000-433
E 620-40000-433

Dues, Licensing & Semina
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

$874.10
$874.10

2962-2022
2962-2022

SAFETY TRAINING
SAFETY TRAINING

77472

LAKE SHORE EFFECTS

05/02/22
123942
E 233-40000-302

SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.
Consultants

$3,496.40

$327.50
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*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/02/22
123943
E 101-45200-240

05/02/22
123944
G 802-20904

SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Total

Invoice

Comment

$327.50

$57.67

117645762-0 TOOLS

$57.67

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES
301 PEAVEY - WETLAND
$522.00

1911672

301 PEAVEY WETLAND ESCROW

G 802-20358

201 LAKE WETLAND DE

$174.00

1911672

201 LAKE WETLAND ESCROW

E 670-40000-302

Consultants

$87.00

1911672

LASALLE POND

$5,806.50
$10.99

I1560589
I1563186

PD AMMO
PD UNIFORM

$189.97

I1563627

PD UNIFORM

Total
05/02/22
123945
E 101-42100-210
E 101-42100-217
E 101-42100-217

STREICHER'S
Operating Supplies (GEN
Uniforms
Uniforms
Total

05/02/22
123946
E 101-41500-433

05/02/22
123947
E 101-41940-210

05/02/22
123948
E 640-48000-409

05/02/22
123949
E 101-41500-306

05/02/22
123950
E 101-41100-302

$6,007.46

SUBURBAN RATE AUTHORITY
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

$235.00

SUPPLY SOLUTIONS LLC
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$374.71

T.D. ANDERSON INC.
Maint services & Improv
Total

$120.00

THRIVE NUTRITION LLC
Personnel Expense
Total

$350.00

TIME SAVER
Consultants

$721.88
Total

05/02/22
123951
E 640-48000-210
E 101-43100-220

$783.00

TOLL GAS & WELDING SUPPLY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN

$235.00

$374.71

$120.00

$350.00

REPLACEMENT CK FOR LOST CK#123322

36798

BLDG.SUPPLIES

418687

BEER LINE SERVICE

05/09/2022

WELLNESS PROGRAM

M27260

MTG.MINUTES

10444151
10455237

SUPPLIES
PARTS

$721.88

$100.70
$105.99

E 101-43100-220

Repair/Maint Supply (GEN

$28.28

10455883

PARTS

E 640-48000-210
E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Operating Supplies (GEN

$127.72
$160.30

10456346
10456855

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$160.30

10456855

SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$59.44

40148273

SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210
E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$59.44
$69.10

40149814
40154411

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

123952

05/02/22

$871.27

TRIO SUPPLY COMPANY
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Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$119.66

753415

BAR SUPPLIES

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$606.32

753415

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210
E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Operating Supplies (GEN

($119.66) 753767
($606.32) 754910

BAR SUPPLIES
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$78.50

755246

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210
E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Operating Supplies (GEN

$120.57
$1,016.33

758493
758493

BAR SUPPLIES
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$13.76

758800

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$83.22

759147

BAR SUPPLIES

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$167.74

759147

KITCHEN SUPPLIES

46555

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION

05/02/22
123953
E 101-41500-306

05/02/22
123954
E 101-42100-350

TROPHIES BY LINDA
Personnel Expense
Total
UPS STORE
Printing & Publishing

E 404-40000-499

Miscellaneous

E 404-40000-499

Miscellaneous

$46.85
$46.85

$14.21

PD VIDEO

$1,237.95

EAB MAILINGS

$493.95
Total

05/02/22
123955
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-255

$1,480.12

EAB POSTCARDS

$1,746.11

US FOODS
FOODIngredients For Res
FOODIngredients For Res

$986.70
$23.85

E 640-48500-255

FOODIngredients For Res

$1,188.42

3775249

FOOD

E 640-48000-251

Liquor For Resale
Total

$122.36

3775249

LIQUOR

4/12/2022

SQUAD MAINT.

05/02/22
123956
E 101-42100-404

05/02/22
123957
E 101-41500-331
E 101-42100-331

WAYZATA BAY CAR WASH
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

3607974
3676831

FOOD
FOOD

$2,321.33

$192.30
$192.30

WAYZATA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
Mileage & Expense Accou
$175.00
Mileage & Expense Accou
$175.00

STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON
STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON

E 101-42200-331

Mileage & Expense Accou

$175.00

STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON

E 101-41910-331

Mileage & Expense Accou

$105.00

STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON

E 101-42400-331
E 630-40000-331

Mileage & Expense Accou
Mileage & Expense Accou

$70.00
$35.00

STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON
STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON

E 101-43100-331

Mileage & Expense Accou
Total

$70.00

STATE OF THE CITY LUNCHEON

$805.00

WESTSIDE WHOLESALE TIRE
Small Tools and Minor Eq

$190.00

395136

TOOLS

$100.00

903723

SQUAD TIRES BALANCED

7377835
743500-1

WINE
WINE

05/02/22
123958
E 101-43100-240
E 101-42100-404

05/02/22
123959
E 640-48000-252
E 640-48000-252

Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

$290.00

WINE MERCHANT
Wine For Resale
Wine For Resale

$652.15
$292.05
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*Check Detail Register©
Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/09/22
123960
E 101-41500-301
E 101-41500-301

05/09/22
123961
E 101-43100-240

05/09/22
123962
E 101-42200-323

ABDO FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS
Auditing and Acct g Servic

E 101-42200-210

05/09/22
123964
E 101-41940-404

05/09/22
123965
E 101-42200-301

05/09/22
123966
E 101-41940-383

$1,871.25

456626

FINANCIAL SERVICES

$4,083.33

457122

FINANCE MGMT SERVICES

9888934

TOOLS

410883

FD SUBSCRIPTION

$822.80

292530

FD UNIFORMS

$70.80

293074

FD SUPPLIES

P51070903

SUPPLIES

4/29/2022

FIRE RELIEF AUDIT

$5,954.58

ACME TOOLS
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Total

$35.09

ACTIVE 911
Radio Units

$35.09

$520.00

ASPEN MILLS
Uniforms

Comment

$944.20

Auditing and Acct g Servic
Total

Total
05/09/22
123963
E 237-40000-217

Invoice

$520.00

Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$893.60

BATTERIES + BULBS
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

$39.98

BRAKKE, GARY R.
Auditing and Acct g Servic
Total

$6,200.00

CENTERPOINT ENERGY
Fuel, oil and natural gas

$39.98

$6,200.00

$2,321.35

SERVICE

E 610-40000-383

Fuel, oil and natural gas

$126.32

SERVICE

E 640-47000-383
E 640-48000-383

Fuel, oil and natural gas
Fuel, oil and natural gas
Total

$347.51
$1,390.03

SERVICE
SERVICE

05/09/22
123967
E 101-41500-350

ECM PUBLISHERS, INC.
Printing & Publishing
Total

$4,185.21

$59.50

889635

ORDINANCE NOTICE

FD REPAIRS

$59.50

05/09/22
123968
E 101-42200-404

EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
$715.00
Total
$715.00

60610

05/09/22
123969
E 101-43100-229

EROSION PRODUCTS, LLC
Dirt, Sand and gravel
Total

10780/9-749 SUPPLIES

$210.00

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
Permit Fees/Gopher State

$67.50

2040828

MONTHLY LOCATES

$67.50

2040828

MONTHLY LOCATES

05/09/22
123970
E 610-40000-313
E 620-40000-313

Permit Fees/Gopher State
Total

$210.00

$135.00
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Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

05/09/22
123971
E 101-43100-210

05/09/22
123972
G 101-21721

Vendor Name

Amount

GRAINGER, INC.
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total
HEIDER, NICK
Flex Plan

$175.62

HENN.CNTY.INFO.TECH.DEPT.
Radio Units
Total

Comment

9296371009 SUPPLIES

$175.62

$340.00
Total

05/09/22
123973
E 101-42100-323

Invoice

APR29&MAY DEP.CARE REIMB.

$340.00

$1,987.15

1000185644 PD RADIO LEASE

$1,987.15

05/09/22
123974
E 101-41940-499

HENNEPIN COUNTY TAX SERVICES
Miscellaneous
$2,556.84
Total
$2,556.84

05/09/22
123975
G 650-20818

HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
Garbage Tax - Cnty 15.5%
$2,860.73
Total
$2,860.73

05/09/22
123976
E 640-47000-540

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC.
Equipment

$247.50

CW134751

ADDITIONAL LIQ.STORE WORKSTATION

Equipment

$165.00

CW134752

TABLET SETUP

E 409-40000-540

DEPOT PROPERTY TAX - 1ST HALF 2022

APRIL2022

COUNTY REFUSE TAX

E 409-40000-540

Equipment

$1,567.50

CW134932

SERVER PROJECT - BANYON CUTOVER

E 409-40000-540

Equipment

$1,885.00

CW135024

SWITCH PROJECT

P41899

PARTS

23222394

FUEL

Total
05/09/22
123977
E 101-43100-220

05/09/22
123978
E 101-49200-212

05/09/22
123979
E 610-49100-499

MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total
MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY
Motor Fuels
Total
MEDIACOM
Miscellaneous

$3,865.00

$211.80
$211.80

$2,469.62
$2,469.62

$1,620.00
Total

SERVICE

$1,620.00

05/09/22
123980
E 101-42400-309

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVICES
Contractual Services
$2,413.00
Total
$2,413.00

3242

BLDG.INSPECTION SERVICES

05/09/22
123981
E 620-40000-433

MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
Dues, Licensing & Semina
$170.00
Total
$170.00

B.POIRIER

TRAINING REGISTRATION

05/09/22
123982
E 101-42100-404

MORRIE'S MINNETONKA FORD
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

590940

SQUAD REPAIR

123983

05/09/22

$554.18
$554.18

OFFICE DEPOT
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Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

E 101-41500-200

05/09/22
123984
E 101-43100-220

05/09/22
123985
E 650-47500-384
E 650-47500-384
E 650-47500-384

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Office Supplies (GENERA
Total

$217.98

PIRTEK
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total

$291.38

REPUBLIC SERVICES
Refuse/Garbage
Refuse/Garbage
Refuse/Garbage

$217.98

$291.38

Comment

23889196000 SUPPLIES

T00010484

$10,355.84

SUPPLIES

LABOR

$0.00
$0.00

STICKERS
KARTS

$0.00

DRIVEUP

E 650-47500-384

Refuse/Garbage

E 650-47500-386

Other Utilities

$2,614.84

DISPOSAL

E 101-41940-386
E 650-47600-309

Other Utilities
Contractual Services

$782.19
$4,327.53

CH/PW
RECYCLING
ORGANICS

E 650-47800-384

Refuse/Garbage

$6,808.84

E 650-47800-386
E 640-47000-384

Other Utilities
Refuse/Garbage

$0.00
$150.00

E 640-48000-384

Refuse/Garbage
Total

05/09/22
123986
E 101-43100-220

05/09/22
123987
G 101-21721

05/09/22
123988
E 101-42500-409

RIGID HITCH INC.
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total
SCHRUPP, WYATT
Flex Plan
Total

ORGANICS DISPOSAL
STORE

$1,063.58

BAR

$26,102.82

$18.76

1928667604 PARTS

$18.76

$2,059.05

4/15/2022

DEP.CARE REIMB.

$2,059.05

STREICHER'S
Maint services & Improv

$147.75

I1563350

CRIME CONTROL SUPPLIES

E 101-42500-409
E 101-42100-217

Maint services & Improv
Uniforms

$370.00
$179.99

I1563352
I1563390

CRIME CONTROL SUPPLIES
PD UNIFORM

E 101-42100-240

Small Tools and Minor Eq

$124.99

I1564797

PD EQUIPMENT

E 101-42100-240
E 101-42100-217

Small Tools and Minor Eq
Uniforms
Total

$159.98
$129.98

I1564841
I1564951

PD EQUIPMENT
PD UNIFORM

$1,112.69

THRIVE NUTRITION LLC
Personnel Expense
Total

$350.00

05/09/22
123989
E 101-41500-306

05/09/22
123990
E 101-41100-302

TIME SAVER
Consultants

$600.00
Total

05/09/22
123991
E 101-43100-210

123992

05/09/22

$350.00

TOLL GAS & WELDING SUPPLY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

REPLACEMENT CK FOR LOST CK#123949

M27302

MTG.MINUTES

40155246

SUPPLIES

$600.00

$2.33
$2.33

UPS STORE
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Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

E 404-40000-499

Miscellaneous

$110.92

TREE GIVEAWAY EVENT

E 404-40000-499

Miscellaneous

$41.61

TREE GIVEAWAY EVENT

05/09/22
123993
E 101-41500-306

05/09/22
123994
E 101-43100-404

05/09/22
123995
E 101-42100-404

05/09/22
123996
E 101-45200-241

05/09/22
123997
E 670-49100-302
E 430-40000-302

Total

$152.53

VAULT HEALTH
Personnel Expense
Total

$59.38

WAYZATA CHEVROLET
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

$45.04

$59.38

$45.04

WESTSIDE WHOLESALE TIRE
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

$100.00

WILLIAMS, TRAVIS
Safety equip/testings
Total

$199.95

$100.00

FL00507768 DRUG SCREENING

340685

PARTS

904067

SQUAD TIRES BALANCED

$199.95

SAFETY BOOTS

WSB & ASSOCIATES
Consultants

$1,297.00

R-018817-00 LASALLE POND

Consultants

$7,968.50

R-019716-00 2022 STREETS

E 305-40000-302

Consultants

$1,193.50

R-019717-00 FERNDALE RD SIDEWALK

E 404-40000-302

Consultants

$2,149.50

R-019922-00 MARINA DREDGING ANALYSIS

Total
05/09/22
123998
E 101-45203-381
E 101-41940-381

XCEL ENERGY
Electric Utilities
Electric Utilities

$12,608.50

$1,112.33
$4,895.50

SERVICE
SERVICE

E 101-42200-381

Electric Utilities

$723.70

SERVICE

E 610-40000-381
E 640-47000-381

Electric Utilities
Electric Utilities

$5,215.29
$1,450.82

SERVICE
SERVICE

E 640-48000-381

Electric Utilities

$3,385.24

SERVICE

E 620-40000-381

Electric Utilities

$651.90

SERVICE

E 101-41940-381

Electric Utilities

$37.97

SERVICE

Total
05/10/22
123999
E 640-47000-254
E 640-47000-259

AM CRAFT SPIRITS INC
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Freight
Total

05/10/22
124000
E 640-47000-253

$17,472.75

$121.50

14468

MISC.BEV

$1.70

14468

FREIGHT

$123.20

ARTISAN BEER COMPANY
Beer For Resale

$387.75

3532077

BEER RESALE

E 640-47000-253

Beer For Resale

$336.85

3533195

BEER RESALE

E 640-48000-253

Beer For Resale
Total

$179.00

3534447

BEER RESALE

$903.60

BELLBOY BAR SUPPLY CORP.
Liquor For Resale

$760.08

05/10/22
124001
E 640-47000-251

0094544700 LIQ RESALE
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Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

E 640-47000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$258.10

E 640-47000-254

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$157.90

0105058500 MISC.MIX

E 640-47000-259

Freight

$7.94

0105058500 FREIGHT

Total
05/10/22
124002
E 640-47000-252

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE MN
Wine For Resale

0105058500 SUPPLIES

$1,184.02

$2,920.00

343784089

WINE

$2.90

343784089

FREIGHT

$1,252.00

343877198

WINE

$11.00
$314.42

343877198
343877199

FREIGHT
MIX

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-254

Freight
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-48000-251
E 640-48000-252

Liquor For Resale
Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

($508.35) 409264082

WINE

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

($161.45) 409362197

WINE

E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale
Wine For Resale

($48.40) 409502074
($47.03) 409502075

WINE
WINE

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

($12.12) 409583581

WINE

E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale
Wine For Resale

($27.39) 409583584
($30.91) 409583586

WINE
WINE

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

($866.90) 409608321

WINE

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale
Total

($217.45) 409650136

WINE

05/10/22
124003
E 640-48000-253
E 640-48000-253

05/10/22
124004
E 640-47000-253
E 640-47000-254

05/10/22
124005
E 640-48500-210

05/10/22
124006
E 640-47000-253
E 640-47000-253
E 640-48000-253

05/10/22
124007
E 640-47000-540

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE
Beer For Resale
Beer For Resale
Total
CAPITOL BEVERAGE SALES
Beer For Resale
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Total
CULLIGAN-METRO
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total

$4.35

343877199

FREIGHT

$402.00
$151.25

343978046
343978046

LIQUOR
WINE

$3,137.92

$583.00

343976520

BEER

$145.00

343976521

BEER

$728.00

$1,361.95

2680823

BEER

$86.95

2680823

MIX

1519216

SUPPLIES

1572129

BEER

1575680
1576641

BEER
BEER

EPSON TM

$1,448.90

$108.87
$108.87

DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO.
Beer For Resale
$397.45
Beer For Resale
Beer For Resale
Total

$668.45
$105.00
$1,170.90

DAILEY DATA & ASSOCIATES
Equipment

$359.00

105228

E 640-47000-404

Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq

$109.82

105533

REGISTER REPAIR

E 640-47000-433

Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total

$2,200.00

700241

ANNUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT

$2,668.82
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Check #

Check Date

05/10/22
124008
E 640-47000-254

05/10/22
124009
E 640-47000-253

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

GIFTNETWORKS LLC-1
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Total

$194.40

HOHENSTEINS INC.
Beer For Resale
Total

$481.50

$194.40

$481.50

05/10/22
124010
E 640-48000-253
E 640-47000-253

JJ TAYLOR DISTRIBUTING OF MN_
Beer For Resale
$125.00
Beer For Resale
$1,871.25
Total
$1,996.25

05/10/22
124011
E 640-47000-254

JOHNSON BROS.-ST.PAUL
Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

E 640-47000-259

05/10/22
124012
E 640-47000-253

05/10/22
124013
E 640-47000-256

05/10/22
124014
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-255

05/10/22
124015
E 640-47000-409

05/10/22
124016
E 640-47000-253

Freight

9109

MISC.MDSE.RESALE

499632

BEER RESALE

3251731
3281179

BEER
BEER

$370.00

2040046

MIX

$15.40

2040046

FREIGHT

44490

BEER

340659

CIGARETTES

Total

$385.40

LUPULIN BREWING
Beer For Resale
Total

$189.00

M.AMUNDSON LLP
MISC.MDSE.RESALE
Total

Comment

$189.00

$1,216.85
$1,216.85

MAIN STREET BAKERY
FOODIngredients For Res
FOODIngredients For Res

$183.32
$183.32

427784
428121

FOOD RESALE
FOOD RESALE

FOODIngredients For Res
Total

$246.39

428298

FOOD RESALE

$613.03

180203255

BLDG.MAINT.

30989

BEER

MINNEHAHA BLDG.MAINT.INC.
Maint services & Improv
Total

$54.84
$54.84

MODIST BREWING CO. LLC
Beer For Resale
Total

$175.00

PAUSTIS & SONS
Wine For Resale

$511.00

162533

WINE RESALE

$7.00

162533

FREIGHT

PERFORMANCE FOOD GROUP, INC
FOODIngredients For Res
$5,154.59
Operating Supplies (GEN
$189.94

136742
136742

FOOD
KITCHEN SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$17.93

136742

BAR SUPPLIES

E 640-48000-254
E 640-48000-251

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal
Liquor For Resale

$50.49
$416.55

136742
136742

MISC.BEV.
LIQUOR

05/10/22
124017
E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259

Freight
Total

05/10/22
124018
E 640-48500-255
E 640-48500-210

$175.00

$518.00
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Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

Invoice

Comment

$5,829.50

05/10/22
124019
E 640-47000-253

PRYES BREWING COMPANY LLC
Beer For Resale
$121.00
Total
$121.00

05/10/22
124020
E 640-47000-251

SOUTHERN GLAZER`S
Liquor For Resale

W-36168

BEER

$1,448.52

2202957

LIQUOR

$7.89

2202957

FREIGHT

Wine For Resale
Freight

$1,836.00
$10.24

2202958
2202958

WINE
FREIGHT

$280.00

2202959

WINE

$7.68

2202959

FREIGHT
LIQUOR
FREIGHT

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-252
E 640-47000-259
E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

E 640-47000-259

Freight

E 640-47000-251
E 640-47000-259

Liquor For Resale
Freight

$416.25
$1.28

2205625
2205625

E 640-47000-252

Wine For Resale

$222.65

2205626

WINE

E 640-47000-259

Freight

$6.19

2205626

FREIGHT

8440
8457

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

609866-00

SUPPLIES

WINE

Total
05/10/22
124021
E 640-47000-200
E 640-47000-210

05/10/22
124022
E 640-47000-210

05/10/22
124023
E 640-47000-252

SPEEDPRO IMAGING
Office Supplies (GENERA
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total
VAN PAPER COMPANY
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total
WINE MERCHANT
Wine For Resale

$4,236.70

$201.07
$334.13
$535.20

$101.61
$101.61

$4,608.00

7377409

E 640-47000-254

Soft Drinks/Mix For Resal

$156.50

7377409

MIX

E 640-47000-259
E 640-48000-252

Freight
Wine For Resale

$11.20
$200.00

7377409
7377835-1

FREIGHT
WINE

E 640-48000-252

Wine For Resale
Total

$670.50

7378801

WINE

$5,646.20

AIRTECH
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

12209

LIBRARY MAINT.

$1,500.00

15569-2022

M.KELLY MEMBERSHIP

05/11/22
124024
E 437-40000-404

05/11/22
124025
E 101-43300-433

05/11/22
124026
E 101-41500-304
E 101-41500-304
E 101-41500-304

AM.PUBLIC WORKS ASSOC.
Dues, Licensing & Semina
Total
BEST & FLANAGAN
Legal Fees
Legal Fees
Legal Fees

$1,500.00

$462.50
$462.50

$1,155.00

564084

CITY COUNCIL

$385.00
$220.00

564084
564084

LIQUOR LICENSES
CITY CONTRACTS

E 101-41500-304

Legal Fees

$165.00

564084

BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

E 233-40000-304
E 101-41500-304

Legal Fees
Legal Fees

$3,850.00
$605.00

564084
564084

PANOWAY
LOCAL BOARD OF APPEAL
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Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

G 802-20876

200 Lake - TCF Lake Wes

E 101-41500-304

Legal Fees

E 101-41500-304
G 802-20385

Legal Fees
445 BOVEY RD

Invoice

Comment

$1,485.00

564084

$330.00

564084

200 LAKE ESCROW PROJECT
EHLERT & GREENWAY LAWSUIT

$3,325.00
$1,045.00

564084
564084

COMCAST FRANCHISE
445 BOVEY RD ESCROW PROJECT

G 802-20901

301 PEAVEY - BLAKE SC

$2,090.00

564084

BLAKE SCHOOL ESCROW PROJECT

G 802-20896
E 101-41500-304

1022 WAYZATA BLVD Legal Fees

$1,540.00
$1,155.00

564084
564084

1022 WAYZ.BLVD ESCROW PROJECT
HRA

G 802-20855

401 LAKE ST.-LOTHENB
Total

$165.00

564084

401 LAKE ESCROW PROJECT

$17,515.00

CENTERPOINT ENERGY
Fuel, oil and natural gas

$233.10

SERVICE

$255.36
$1,035.12

SERVICE
SERVICE

05/11/22
124027
E 101-41940-383
E 101-41940-383
E 101-42200-383

05/11/22
124028
E 101-45200-241

05/11/22
124029
E 101-42100-404

05/11/22
124030
E 101-41940-404

05/11/22
124031
E 409-43100-540

Fuel, oil and natural gas
Fuel, oil and natural gas
Total
CHET`S SHOES, INC
Safety equip/testings
Total

05/11/22
124033
E 101-43100-220

$195.49

CONVERGINT TECHNOLOGIES
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total
CRYSTEEL
Equipment

SAFETY BOOTS

$21.20

0018364

SQUAD TIRE MOUNT

19544

PW MONITORING

F48203

SNOWPLOW FOR NEW 1 TON

123744

SUPPLIES

$21.20

$651.00
$651.00

$6,485.00

CULLIGAN-BOTTLED WATER
Miscellaneous
Total

21589

$195.49

CHUNK'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE
Repairs/Maint - Machin/Eq
Total

Total
05/11/22
124032
E 101-41940-499

$1,523.58

$6,485.00

$25.62
$25.62

DERSON MANUFACTURING INC.
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN

$175.00

40574

FUEL TANK

E 101-45200-222
E 610-40000-224

Repair & Maint - Equip
Repair & Maint - Motor Eq

$175.00
$175.00

40574
40574

FUEL TANK
FUEL TANK

E 620-40000-224

Repair & Maint - Motor Eq
Total

$175.00

40574

FUEL TANK

$700.00

1308

DOT PHYSICALS - PARKS

05/11/22
124034
E 101-41500-306

05/11/22
124035
E 233-40000-499

FASTEST LABS OF PLYMOUTH
Personnel Expense
Total

$340.00

FUZZY DUCK DESIGN
Miscellaneous
Total

$550.00

$340.00

$550.00

2212157286 PANOWAY TIMELINE
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Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

05/11/22
124036
R 610-00000-37110

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

GLEESON, JANE
W/S/Storm Sales
Total

$23.22

GOPHER ACE TRU VALUE
Operating Supplies (GEN
Operating Supplies (GEN

$41.97
$54.99

10651
10664

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

E 101-42200-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$48.47

10697

SUPPLIES

E 101-45200-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$37.15

10766

SUPPLIES

E 404-40000-309

Contractual Services
Total

$13.97

10793

SUPPLIES

6171266

CHEMICALS

05/11/22
124037
E 101-45200-210
E 101-41940-210

05/11/22
124038
E 610-40000-216

05/11/22
124039
E 101-43100-323

HAWKINS, INC
Chemicals and Chem Pro
Total

$23.22

233BROADW OVERPAYMENT ON FINAL UTILITY BILL

$196.55

$1,388.50
$1,388.50

HENN.CNTY.INFO.TECH.DEPT.
Radio Units

$308.88

1000185636 RADIO LEASE

E 101-45200-323

Radio Units

$296.02

1000185636 RADIO LEASE

E 610-40000-323

Radio Units

$109.39

1000185636 RADIO LEASE

E 620-40000-323
E 409-40000-540

Radio Units
Equipment

$109.39
$786.89

1000185636 RADIO LEASE
1000185636 PW RADIOS

05/11/22
124040
E 404-40000-499

Total

$1,610.57

HOEFKER, TROY
Miscellaneous
Total

$64.47

$64.47

MARINA MAINT.SUPPLIES

05/11/22
124041
E 101-41940-409

JEFF`S S.O.S. DRAIN & SEWER CL
Maint services & Improv
$572.50
Total
$572.50

90678

DEPOT DRAIN CLEANING

05/11/22
124042
E 101-41500-311

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC.
Data Processing
Total

4026244

NETWORK SUPPORT

P42169

PARTS

05/11/22
124043
E 101-43100-220

05/11/22
124044
E 404-40000-309

05/11/22
124045
G 101-20831
R 101-00000-34190

05/11/22
124046
E 404-40000-309

$4,905.00
$4,905.00

MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT
Repair/Maint Supply (GEN
Total

$172.10

MENARD`S - GOLDEN VALLEY
Contractual Services
Total

$635.98

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL
MWCC (SAC)
Charges for Services/Gen
Total

$172.10

$635.98

BEACH PLAYGROUND SUPPLIES

$2,485.00

APRIL 2022 SAC FEES

($24.85)

APRIL 2022 SAC FEES - DISCOUNT

$2,460.15

MINNESOTA WISCONSIN PLAYGROU
Contractual Services
$8,432.00

2022100

BEACH PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT
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Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

E 404-40000-309

05/11/22
124047
E 101-45200-331

05/11/22
124048
E 233-40000-302

Vendor Name

Amount

Contractual Services
Total
MYHRAN, BENNETT
Mileage & Expense Accou
Total
NEW HISTORY
Consultants

E 640-48000-121

PERA
Prior Period Adjustment
PERA
Total

05/11/22
124050
E 101-43100-240

05/11/22
124051
E 101-41550-302
E 101-41550-210

05/11/22
124052
E 101-41940-409

05/11/22
124053
E 404-40000-309

05/11/22
124054
E 640-48000-210

$18,723.77

SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL
Small Tools and Minor Eq
Total
SOUTHWEST ASSESSING
Consultants
Operating Supplies (GEN
Total
SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION
Maint services & Improv
Total
THN ENTERPRISES INC.
Contractual Services
Total

Comment

2022105

$52.00

MILEAGE

$52.00

3295

SECTION FOREMAN HOUSE

$1,628.75

$1,157.88

8308-00 2022 OMITTED DEDUCTIONS

$385.96

8308-00 2022 OMITTED DEDUCTIONS

$1,543.84

$24.50

52514784

TOOLS

$24.50

$4,810.00

MAY 2022

MONTHLY ASSESSING

$788.35

MAY 2022

SUPPLIES

130044870

BEACH BATHROOM REPAIR

2326

DEPOT DOCK REPAIR

RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE
RE-ISSUE FOR CK#123951 - DAMAGED BY
POST OFFICE

$5,598.35

$405.70
$405.70

$1,500.00
$1,500.00

TOLL GAS & WELDING SUPPLY
Operating Supplies (GEN

$100.70

10444151-1

E 101-43100-220

Repair/Maint Supply (GEN

$105.99

10455237-1

E 101-43100-220

Repair/Maint Supply (GEN

$28.28

10455883-1

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$127.72

10456346-1

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$160.30

10456855-1

E 640-48500-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$160.30

10456855-1

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$59.44

40148273-1

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$59.44

40149814-1

E 640-48000-210

Operating Supplies (GEN

$69.10

40154411-1

Total

BEACH PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT

$27,155.77

$1,628.75
Total

05/11/22
124049
G 640-39999

Invoice

$871.27
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Batch: 042822PAY,050922PAY,051022PAY,051122PAY

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

05/11/22
124055
G 802-20883
G 802-20876

Amount

WSB & ASSOCIATES
15419/15429 WAYZ.BLV
200 Lake - TCF Lake Wes

G 802-20896

1022 WAYZATA BLVD -

G 802-20886

520-534 RICE STREET T

Invoice

$387.00
$301.00
$5,419.50
$86.00

R-016906-00 CANTISSIMO ESCROW PROJECT
R-016906-00 200 LAKE ESCROW PROJECT
R-016906-00 1022 WAYZ.BLVD ESCROW PROJECT
R-016906-00 520 RICE ST BROWNSTONES ESCROW
PROJECT
R-016906-00 803 LAKE ESCROW PROJECT

G 802-20889

803 LAKE ST - THE GOO

E 408-40000-302

Consultants

$4,214.00

R-018603-00 ZONING STUDY

E 408-40000-302

Consultants

$2,193.00

R-018603-00 ZONING STUDY

G 802-20901
G 802-20385

301 PEAVEY - BLAKE SC
445 BOVEY RD

$6,929.00
$1,419.00

R-018603-00 BLAKE SCHOOL ESCROW PROJECT
R-018603-00 445 BOVEY RD ESCROW PROJECT

G 802-20379

201 LAKE ST - ZITZLOFF

$129.00

R-018603-00 201 LAKE ESCROW PROJECT

G 802-20905

900 Wayzata Blvd. - Wells
Total

$516.00

R-018603-00 900 WAYZATA BLVD ESCROW PROJECT

05/11/22
124056
E 101-45203-381
E 620-40000-381

$301.00

Comment

$21,894.50

XCEL ENERGY
Electric Utilities
Electric Utilities

$4,256.38
$978.16
Total

SERVICE
SERVICE

$5,234.54

10100 Old National

$362,454.63

Fund Summary
10100 Old National
101 GENERAL FUND

$104,130.84

233 LAKFRONT IMPROVE

$6,439.55

235 CABLE TV

$1,900.00

237 FIRE DEPT PULL TABS
305 DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT 6

$822.80
$1,193.50

404 PARK AND TRAIL CIP

$46,406.89

408 GENERAL CIP
409 EQUIP REVOLVING

$6,753.26
$10,974.39

430 STREET CIP

$7,968.50

437 LIBRARY/COMM.ROOM CIP

$1,500.00

610 WATER FUND
620 SEWER FUND
630 MOTOR VEHICLE
640 LIQUOR
650 SOLID WASTE
670 STORMWATER
802 ESCROW PROJECTS

$11,916.43
$3,378.29
$112.11
$108,097.79
$26,967.78
$1,384.00
$22,508.50
$362,454.63
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Checks 1773-1833

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

Comment

10100 Old National
04/13/22
1773 e
G 630-20300

04/14/22
1774 e
G 630-20300

04/14/22
1775 e
E 640-48000-497

04/14/22
1776 e
G 101-20814

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$134,953.88

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$270,828.89

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Credit Card Fees
Total

$134,953.88

$270,828.89

$28.15

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/12/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/13/2022

AUTHNET CC PAYMENT APRIL 2022

$28.15

MN DEPT. OF REVENUE
Sales Tax - 7.275%

$0.00

SALES TAX APRIL 2022

G 101-20820

Sales Use Tax

$0.00

SALES TAX APRIL 2022

G 610-20814
R 630-00000-37190

Sales Tax - 7.275%
Other Charge/Revenue

$501.56
$375.27

SALES TAX APRIL 2022
SALES TAX APRIL 2022
SALES TAX APRIL 2022

G 640-20814

Sales Tax - 7.275%

$680.39

G 640-20815

Sales Tax - 9.775%

$20,405.26

SALES TAX APRIL 2022

G 640-20816
G 640-20817

Sales tax Bar - 7.275%
Sales tax Bar - 9.775%

$13,406.68
$11,812.01

SALES TAX APRIL 2022
SALES TAX APRIL 2022

G 650-20818

Garbage Tax - Cnty 15.5%

E 640-48000-499

Miscellaneous

04/14/22
1777 e
G 101-21704

04/14/22
1778 e
G 101-21719

04/14/22
1779 e
G 101-21705

04/14/22
1780 e
G 101-20100

04/14/22
1781 e
G 101-20100

04/14/22
1782 e
G 101-20100

$1,797.93
$4.90

Total

$48,984.00

Total

$40,460.92

ICMA
ICMA Deffered Comp
Total

$1,977.50
$1,977.50

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT
Nationwide Retirement
Total

$2,452.50

PERA
PERA

$40,460.92

$2,452.50

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Accounts Payable
Total

$188,263.73

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Accounts Payable
Total

$62,430.95

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Accounts Payable

$10,240.02

Total

$188,263.73

$62,430.95

SALES TAX APRIL 2022
TAX ON MGR.LIQ.COMPS

PR 04/01/2022

PR 04/01/2022

PR 04/01/2022

PAYROLL 04/15/2022

PAYROLL TAXES 4/15/2022

HSA AND CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS
04/15/2022

$10,240.02
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Checks 1773-1833

Check #

Check Date

04/14/22
1783 e
G 101-21704

04/14/22
1784 e
G 101-21719

04/14/22
1785 e
G 101-21705

04/14/22
1786 e
G 101-21706
E 101-42100-130

04/14/22
1787 e
G 101-21717
E 101-42100-130

Vendor Name

Amount

PERA
PERA

Invoice

$41,514.83
Total

$41,514.83

ICMA
ICMA Deffered Comp
Total

$2,852.50

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT
Nationwide Retirement
Total

$2,452.50

HEALTHPARTNERS
Health Insurance
Employer Paid Ins
Total

$2,852.50

$2,452.50

$75,220.00
$2,413.00

PR 04/15/2022

PR 04/15/2022

PR 04/15/2022

APRIL 2022
APRIL 2022

$77,633.00

DELTA DENTAL OF MINNESOTA
Dental Insurance
$3,155.83
Employer Paid Ins
Total

Comment

$99.22

APRIL 2022
APRIL 2022

$3,255.05

04/14/22
1788 e
G 101-21720

SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY
Short Term Disability Ins.
$644.92
Total
$644.92

STD APRIL 2022

04/14/22
1789 e
G 101-21722

FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE
Vision Insurance
Total

VISION INS APRIL 2022

$168.48
$168.48

04/14/22
1790 e
G 101-21711

SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY
Long Term Disability Insur
$742.60
Total
$742.60

04/18/22
1791 e
G 630-20300
G 630-20300

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Deposits Payable

G 630-20812

DNR REG
Total

04/18/22
1792 e
G 630-20300
G 630-20300
G 630-20812

04/18/22
1793 e
G 630-20300

1794 e

04/19/22

$2,687.30
($2,687.30)

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/15/2022
STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/15/2022

$2,687.30

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/15/2022

$2,687.30

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Deposits Payable
DNR REG
Total
STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

LTD APRIL 2022

$50.00

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/15/2022

($50.00)
$50.00

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/15/2022
STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/15/2022

$50.00

$99,658.08

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/14/2022

$99,658.08

MN DEPT.OF LABOR & INDUSTRY
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*Check Detail Register©
Checks 1773-1833

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount

G 101-20813

Surcharge Payable

R 101-00000-39400

Misc.Revenues

04/21/22
1796 e
G 630-20300

04/21/22
1797 e
G 630-20300

04/22/22
1798 e
G 630-20300

04/22/22
1799 e
G 630-20812

04/22/22
1800 e
G 630-20812

04/25/22
1801 e
G 630-20300

04/26/22
1802 e
G 630-20300

04/28/22
1803 e
G 630-20300

04/28/22
1804 e
G 101-21709

04/28/22
1805 e
E 409-40000-540

$277,053.62

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$92,479.98

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$215,357.85

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$36,894.74

MN DNR
DNR REG

G 802-20883

$277,053.62

$92,479.98

$215,357.85

$36,894.74

$2,514.44
Total

$2,514.44

Total

$307.00

MN DNR
DNR REG

$307.00

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$38,360.94

$409,599.01

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$166,709.24

PAYLOCITY
Equipment

1ST QTR.2022
1ST QTR.2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/18/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/19/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/20/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT

DNR EFT 04/22/2022

DNR EFT 04/22/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/22/2022

$38,360.94

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

AFSCME COUNCIL
PW Union dues
Total

Comment

$3,137.69

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$409,599.01

$166,709.24

$788.40

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/25/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/26/2022

APRIL 2022

$788.40

$1,632.25
Total

04/28/22
1806 e
G 101-20300

$3,270.94
($133.25)

Total
04/19/22
1795 e
G 630-20300

Invoice

PAYROLL PROCESSING APRIL 2022

$1,632.25

SIMPLIFILE
Deposits Payable

$51.25

MCCORMIKS RECORDING FEE

15419/15429 WAYZ.BLV

$51.25

CANTISSMO RECORDING FEE
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Checks 1773-1833

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

04/28/22
1807 e
E 630-40000-431
R 610-00000-37110

04/28/22
1808 e
G 101-20100

04/28/22
1809 e
G 101-21704

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Cash Over/Short
W/S/Storm Sales
Total
OLD NATIONAL BANK
Accounts Payable
Total
PERA
PERA

04/28/22
1811 e
G 630-20300

04/29/22
1812 e
G 630-20812

04/29/22
1813 e
G 630-20812

04/29/22
1814 e
G 630-20300

05/02/22
1815 e
G 630-20300

05/03/22
1816 e
E 101-41500-497

($5.59)
$388.92

CHARGEBACKS - BD CKS APRIL 2022

$179,753.99

PAYROLL 04/29/2022

$179,753.99

PR 04/29/2022

$41,568.99

$62,628.91

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$379,962.81

$62,628.91

$379,962.81

$2,581.50
Total

$2,581.50

Total

$112.75

MN DNR
DNR REG

CHARGEBACKS - BD CKS APRIL 2022

$383.33

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Accounts Payable
Total

MN DNR
DNR REG

Comment

$102.50

$41,568.99
Total

04/28/22
1810 e
G 101-20100

Invoice

$112.75

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$48,930.31

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$48,328.09

$48,930.31

$48,328.09

PAYROLL TAXES 4/29/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/27/2022

DNR EFT 04/29/2022

DNR EFT 04/29/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/28/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 04/29/2022

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Credit Card Fees

$1,204.87

CC FEES & BANK FEES APRIL 2022

E 640-47000-497

Credit Card Fees

$4,676.10

CC FEES & BANK FEES APRIL 2022

E 640-48000-497

Credit Card Fees

$8,452.38

CC FEES & BANK FEES APRIL 2022

E 101-41500-433
E 630-40000-433

Dues, Licensing & Semina
Dues, Licensing & Semina

$131.13
$184.15

CC FEES & BANK FEES APRIL 2022
CC FEES & BANK FEES APRIL 2022

E 640-47000-200

Office Supplies (GENERA
Total

$137.28

DEPOSIT SLIP ORDER

$14,785.91

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$238,018.07

05/04/22
1817 e
G 630-20300

$238,018.07

STATE DMV PAYMENT 05/02/2022
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Checks 1773-1833

Check #

Check Date

05/05/22
1818 e
G 630-20300

05/05/22
1819 e
G 630-20300

05/05/22
1820 e
G 101-20814
G 101-20820

Vendor Name

Amount

Invoice

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$223,262.27

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$177,084.98

$223,262.27

$177,084.98

Comment

STATE DMV PAYMENT 05/03/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 05/04/2022

MN DEPT. OF REVENUE
Sales Tax - 7.275%
Sales Use Tax

$419.67
$0.00

SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022
SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022

G 610-20814

Sales Tax - 7.275%

$646.42

SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022

R 630-00000-37190
G 640-20814

Other Charge/Revenue
Sales Tax - 7.275%

$312.14
$703.90

SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022
SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022

G 640-20815

Sales Tax - 9.775%

$21,956.82

SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022

G 640-20816

Sales tax Bar - 7.275%

$13,418.73

SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022

G 640-20817
G 650-20818

Sales tax Bar - 9.775%
Garbage Tax - Cnty 15.5%

$11,415.18
$1,803.47

SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022
SALES TAX PAY MAY 2022

E 640-48000-499

Miscellaneous

05/05/22
1821 e
G 802-20385

05/05/22
1822 e
E 640-48000-497
E 101-41500-497

05/05/22
1823 e
G 101-21706
E 101-42100-130

05/05/22
1824 e
G 101-21717
E 101-42100-130

$6.67
Total

$50,683.00

Total

$51.25

SIMPLIFILE
445 BOVEY RD

$51.25

OLD NATIONAL BANK
Credit Card Fees
Credit Card Fees
Total
HEALTHPARTNERS
Health Insurance
Employer Paid Ins
Total

445 BOVEY RD

$28.40

AUTHNET CC PAYMENT

$22.80

AUTHNET CC PAYMENT

$51.20

$76,104.50
$2,413.00

MAY 2022
MAY 2022

$78,517.50

DELTA DENTAL OF MINNESOTA
Dental Insurance
$3,200.83
Employer Paid Ins
Total

SALES TAX SHORTAGE

$99.22

MAY 2022
MAY 2022

$3,300.05

05/05/22
1825 e
G 101-21720

SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY
Short Term Disability Ins.
$625.06
Total
$625.06

STD MAY 2022

05/05/22
1826 e
G 101-21722

FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE
Vision Insurance
Total

VISION INS MAY 2022

05/05/22
1827 e
G 101-21711

$168.48
$168.48

SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY
Long Term Disability Insur
$787.35

LTD MAY 2022
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05/11/22 8:42 AM
Page 6

CITY OF WAYZATA

*Check Detail Register©
Checks 1773-1833

Check #

Check Date

Vendor Name

Amount
Total

05/05/22
1828 e
E 101-42200-306

THE STANDARD
Personnel Expense

$53.76

Supplemental Life Insuran

G 101-21716

Basic Life Insurance
Total

05/06/22
1830 e
G 630-20812

05/06/22
1831 e
G 630-20300

05/09/22
1832 e
G 630-20300

05/10/22
1833 e
G 630-20300

Comment

$787.35

G 101-21714

05/06/22
1829 e
G 630-20812

Invoice

BASIC & SUPP INS MAY 2022

$1,548.15

BASIC & SUPP INS MAY 2022

$148.46

BASIC & SUPP INS MAY 2022

$1,750.37

MN DNR
DNR REG

$11,264.87
Total

$11,264.87

Total

$101.00

MN DNR
DNR REG

$101.00

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$101,059.22

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$12,864.56

STATE OF MINNESOTA
Deposits Payable
Total

$315,212.20

$101,059.22

$12,864.56

$315,212.20

10100 Old National

DNR EFT 05/06/2022

DNR EFT 05/06/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 05/05/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT 05/06/2022

STATE DMV PAYMENT

$4,231,055.48

Fund Summary
10100 Old National
101 GENERAL FUND
409 EQUIP REVOLVING
610 WATER FUND
630 MOTOR VEHICLE
640 LIQUOR
650 SOLID WASTE
802 ESCROW PROJECTS

$809,946.01
$1,632.25
$1,536.90
$3,307,103.57
$107,132.85
$3,601.40
$102.50
$4,231,055.48
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.c
TITLE: Approval of Municipal Licenses
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the Municipal Licenses as Attached
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of municipal licenses.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
List of Municipal Licenses for City Council Approval and Municipal Licenses Which Received
Administrative Approval (informational only)
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05/17/2022
LIST OF MUNICIPAL LICENSES FOR CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL
Recommended for approval, pending staff review for completeness of application materials
2022 Peddlers, Solicitors, Transient Mechants License
Edward Jones Investments - Jeffrey Doughty
Wayzata, MN
Joshua's Pest Control - Jayden Schouten
Minneapolis, MN
Joshua's Pest Control - Tyran Schouten
Minneapolis, MN
Joshua's Pest Control - Nicholas Larsen
Minneapolis, MN
Joshua's Pest Control - Robert Millard
Minneapolis, MN
Joshua's Pest Control - Jay Herring
Minneapolis, MN
Joshua's Pest Control - Spencer Larsen
Minneapolis, MN

WERE APPROVED ADMINISTRATIVELY

Kraz'd Foodnatik MN

2022 Special Event Food Stand License for the Wayzata Art Experience on 6/25 and 6/26/2022
Mounds View, MN

Faircon Service Company

2022 Gas Fitter's License
St. Paul, MN
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.d
TITLE: Receipt of Police Activity Report
PROPOSED MOTION: N/A
PREPARED BY: Emily Marker, Police Records Supervisor
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager, Marc Schultz, Police Chief
ACTION REQUESTED:
The attached April 2022 Activity Report is for informational purposes only.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Activity Report April 2022.docx
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WAYZATA POLICE DEPARTMENT
ACTIVITY REPORT – April 2022
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-29-2022 0840
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $500.
Addresses Involved
300 block of Harrington Drive, Long Lake, MN 55356

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-28-2022 0748
Report of a damage to property. Loss of less than $500.
Addresses Involved
700 block of Lake St, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Warrant
Reported: 04-28-2022 0726
40-year-old male from Long Lake arrested for probation violation. Male transported to jail.
Addresses Involved
500 block of Willow Drive, Long Lake, MN 55356
Names Involved
(Arrested)Jeske, Adam Joseph (Age:40)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-27-2022 2246
36-year-old female from Orono arrested for DWI. Tested .29.
Addresses Involved
Hwy 12 & Ferndale Rd, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested)Weller, Sara Jane (Age:36)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-27-2022 2148
Report of a damage to property. Unknown loss at this time.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Promenade Ave, Wayzata, MN 55391 US

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Identity Theft
Reported: 04-26-2022 1135
Report of an identity theft. Loss of around $15,000.
Addresses Involved
1200 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-26-2022 1029
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $500.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Promenade Ave, Wayzata, MN 55391

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 53 of 499

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-25-2022 1802
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $100.
Addresses Involved
700 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft from Vehicle
Reported: 04-25-2022 1647
Report of a theft from vehicle. Loss of around $50.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Central Ave, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-25-2022 0753
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $300.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Lake St, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft of Vehicle
Reported: 04-23-2022 0733
Report of a theft of a vehicle. Vehicle was recovered in another jurisdiction.
Addresses Involved
300 block of Glenmoor Lane, Long Lake, MN 55356

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Forgery
Reported: 04-18-2022 1331
Report of a forgery. Forged check made for $2,080.17.
Addresses Involved
300 block of Superior Blvd, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Report of a damage to mailboxes.
Addresses Involved
500 block of Willow Drive, Long Lake, MN

Reported: 04-15-2022 1047

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Burglary-Attempted
Reported: 04-15-2022 0944
Report of an attempted burglary of a business. No loss at this time.
Addresses Involved
1300 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-12-2022 1016
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $300.
Addresses Involved
700 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-12-2022 1005
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $100.
Addresses Involved
700 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-12-2022 0802
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $200.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-11-2022 1316
Report of a damage to property. Unknown loss at this time.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-11-2022 1055
Report of a damage to property. Loss of around $200.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-10-2022 1359
Report of a theft. Total loss of around $2,828.73.
Addresses Involved
1100 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-09-2022 0339
60-year-old male from Hopkins arrested for DWI. Tested .15.
Addresses Involved
Gleason Lake Rd & Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested)Simon, Michael Frank (Age:60)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------DWI
Reported: 04-08-2022 2235
42-year-old male from Orono arrested for DWI. Tested .11.
Addresses Involved
900 block of Co Rd 15, Wayzata, MN 55391
Names Involved
(Arrested)Egan, William Joseph (Age:42)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft from Vehicle
Reported: 04-06-2022 1807
Report of a theft from vehicle. Miscellaneous clothing taken.
Addresses Involved
1200 block of Wayzata Blvd E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Financial Transaction Card Fraud
Reported: 04-04-2022 1547
Report of a financial transaction card fraud. Loss of around $6,665.92.
Addresses Involved
100 block of Promenade Ave, Wayzata, MN 55391

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-04-2022 0742
Report of a damage to property. Unknown loss at this time.
Addresses Involved
600 block of Lake St E, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Damage to Property - Criminal
Reported: 04-02-2022 2035
Report of a damage to property. Unknown loss at this time.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Grove Lane, Wayzata, MN 55391

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Theft
Reported: 04-01-2022 1213
Report of a theft of a trailer. Loss of $7,300. Trailer later recovered in Texas.
Addresses Involved
2300 block of Daniels St, Long Lake, MN 55356

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Identity Theft
Reported: 04-01-2022 0844
Report of an identity theft.
Addresses Involved
200 block of Peavey Lane, Wayzata, MN 55391

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TRAFFIC – April, 2022
CITATIONS
WRITTEN WARNINGS
VERBAL WARNINGS

47
1
129
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Description

Apr 2022

MISSING ANIMAL

1

MISSING/LOST PROPERTY

2

FOUND PROPERTY

5

RECOVERED STOLEN PROPERTY

2

PDMV

7

PDMV & DEER

2

Other Fire/Smoke

5

FIRE ALARM

5

HAZ ROAD CONDITION

3

SUDDEN DEATH

1

OTHER MEDICAL

49

Medical Alarm

3

72 Hour Hold/Emergency Admission

1

WELFARE CHECK - ADULT

7

MENTAL HEALTH ISSUE

8

INFO REC'D

22

VERBAL DOMESTIC

1

CIVIL MATTER

2

DISTURBANCE/FIGHT/LOUD PARTY/HARASSMENT

13

RECEIVE COURT ORDER/OFP

1

SUSPICION

14

DRIVING/TRAFFIC COMPLAINT

13

PARKING COMPL

7

HOUSE/BUSINESS CHECKS

24

RECORD CHECKS

9

FIREARM PERMIT

4

HC SHERIFFS PERMIT TO CARRY

5

LIQUOR LICENSE CHECKS/PERMIT

6

PARKING PERMIT

2

OTHER ORD VIOL (JUNK CARS, ETC)

2

ANIMAL COMPLAINT/CHECK

15

DISPATCH ANIMAL

1

DOG LICENSE ISSUED

1

ADULT PROTECTION ASSIST

3

FINGERPRINTS

8

ASSIST CHILD PROTECTION

1

MOTORIST ASSIST/STALL

6

UTILITY PROBLEM

3
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PUBLIC ASSIST

18

LOCKOUT

4

BUSINESS ALARM

20

HOME ALARM

9

911 HANG-UP

6

ASSIST OTHER DEPT

12

WARRANT/ATTEMPT/ARREST

2

TRAFFIC CONTROL / DIRECT ENFORCEMENT

12

TRANSPORT

1

VEHICLE FORFEITURE/IMPOUND

1

CRIME PREV/OID

1

RIDE-ALONG

1

ASLT 5-MS-INFLICT BD HRM-HANDS-CHLD-FAM

1

DOM ASLT-MS-INFLT BODILY HARM-HANDS-CH-FAM

1

BURG 2-AT FRC NRES-D-UNK WEAP-COM THEFT

1

FORGERY-FE-MAKE-ALT-DEST-CHK-201-2500-PER

1

DRUGS-SM AMT IN MOT VEH-POSS-MARIJ-UNK

2

DRUGS-DRUG PARAPH-POSSESS-UNK-UNK

1

CON SUB 2-UNK ACT-BARBIT-UNK

1

CON SUB 5-POSSESS-MARIJUANA-UNK

1

TRAF-ACC-UN-INF ALC-DRGS-UNK INJ-MV

1

TRAF-AC-GM-3RD DEG DWI-UI ALCOHOL-MV

1

TRAF-AC-GM-3RD DEG DWI-10 OR MORE WIN 2 HRS-MV

1

TRAF-AC-GM-3RD DEG DWI-08 OR MORE-MV

1

TRAF-ACC-M-4TH DEG DWI-UI ALCOHOL-MV

2

TRAF-ACC-M-4TH DEG DWI-10 OR MORE

1

TRAF-ACC-MS-4TH DEG DWI-08 OR MORE -MV

2

JUVENILE USE OF TOBACCO

1

LIQUOR - POSSESSING

1

DISTURB PEAC-MS-VIOL DOM ABUSE NO CONTACT ORD

2

PROP DAMAGE-UNK LVL-PRIVATE-UNK INTENT

2

PROP DAMAGE-MS-PRIVATE-UNK INTENT

7

PROP DAMAGE-MS-PUBLIC-UNK INTENT

5

THEFT-UNK LVL VAL-FRM MOTOR VEHICLE-OTH PROP

1

THEFT-OVER 5000 DLRS FE-MTR VEH-OTH PROP

1

THEFT-500 OR LESS MS-BLDG-OTH PROP

2

FRAUD-UNK-FIN-TRAN-CARD-NO-CONSENT-UNK-LOSS

1

FRAUD-FALSE MISREPRESENT-1000 OR LESS-FELONY

1

FRAUD-FE-FIN-TRAN-CARD-NO CONSENT 501-2500

1
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THEFT-FE-IDENTITY THEFT-UNK LOSS

2

THEFT-FE-IDENTITY THEFT-2501-19999

1

THEFT-GM-IDENTITY THEFT-UNK LOSS

1

THEFT-MS-BY SWINDLE OR TRICK-251-500

1

VEH-MORE 2500-FE-MOT VEH USE-NO CONSENT-AUTO

1

VEH-250 LESSMS-PARTS-MOTOR VEH-AUTO

1
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.e
TITLE: Receipt of Building Activity Report
PROPOSED MOTION: N/A
PREPARED BY: Megan McCrady, Permit Technician
REVIEWED BY: Jason Wagner, Building Official, Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager, Emily Goellner, Community
Development Director
ACTION REQUESTED:
The attached April 2022 Building Report is for informational purposes only.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
N/A
BACKGROUND:
N/A
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
2021-2022 Building Report
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2022
Jan-22

Feb-22

Mar-22

Apr-22

2022-YTD

BUILDING
NUMBER OF BLDG. PERMITS

11

PROJECT VALUE

13

13

25

62

$274,537.00

$2,215,807.00

$3,170,300.00

$3,857,297.00

$9,517,941.00

BUILDING PERMIT FEE

$3,473.25

$17,644.00

$20,130.75

$29,083.50

$

70,331.50

PLAN CHECK FEE

$1,361.10

$8,813.79

$12,067.09

$16,746.39

$

38,988.37

EXTERIOR
NUMBER OF PERMITS

1

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

1

$5,229.00
$

132.75

5

$14,628.00
$

265.50

2

$284,196.00
$

3,213.50

$

9

$26,253.00

330,306

486.75

4,099

MECHANICAL
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

14

16

102,007.00

185,869.00

210,202.00

15

345,826.00

14

843,904

59

2,081.64

3,652.36

4,189.04

6,573.92

16,497

PLUMBING
NUMBER OF PERMITS

8

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

7

17

45

$38,518.00

$123,914.00

$72,000.00

$184,794.00

419,226

$796.36

$2,478.28

$1,466.00

$3,732.88

8,474

TOTAL # OF PERMITS

13

34

43

40

$7,845.10

$32,853.93

$41,066.38

$56,623.44

$138,388.85

BUILDING

30

66

35

42

173

EXTERIOR

2

0

1

2

5

HVAC

29

45

42

22

138

PLUMBING

17

20

23

30

90

78

131

101

96

406

6

37

78

37

158

TOTAL INCOME

58

175

INSPECTIONS

OTHER
TOTAL # OF INSPECTIONS

RENTAL
INSPECTIONS

2021
Jan-21

Feb-21

Mar-21

Apr-21

2021-YTD

BUILDING
NUMBER OF BLDG. PERMITS

19

54

$1,337,913.00

9

$964,800.00

$11,351,717.00

$3,192,683.00

$16,847,113.00

BUILDING PERMIT FEE

$8,620.50

$8,848.75

$52,593.00

$20,794.00

$90,856.25

PLAN CHECK FEE

$5,212.19

$4,813.59

$32,909.77

$12,058.53

$54,994.08

PROJECT VALUE

11

15

EXTERIOR
NUMBER OF PERMITS

1

PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

3

$3,895.00
$

103.25

4

$51,483.00
$

898.50

$552,700.00
$

4,483.50

$

18

26

$287,513.00

$895,591.00

4,801.75

$10,287.00

MECHANICAL
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

12

8

206,482.00

242,992.00

142,301.00

15

903,172.00

11

$1,494,947.00

46

3,909.64

4,091.34

2,862.02

14,683.44

$25,546.44

PLUMBING
NUMBER OF PERMITS
PROJECT VALUE
PERMIT FEE

TOTAL # OF PERMITS

14

6

40

$359,103.00

9

$408,302.49

11

$76,193.00

$211,505.00

$1,055,103.49

$5,958.06

$6,970.25

$1,591.86

$3,750.10

$18,270.27

31

33

48

54

166

$23,803.64

$25,622.43

$94,440.15

$56,087.82

$199,954.04

BUILDING

52

53

52

57

214

EXTERIOR

0

0

0

6

6

HVAC

33

16

28

28

105

PLUMBING

14

16

22

25

77

99

85

102

116

402

0

0

17

5

22

TOTAL INCOME

INSPECTIONS

OTHER
TOTAL # OF INSPECTIONS

RENTAL
INSPECTIONS
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City of Wayzata
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MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.f
TITLE: Adoption of Resolution 20-2022 Accepting Donation from the Wayzata Lions Club
PROPOSED MOTION: To Adopt Resolution 20-2022 Accepting Donation from Wayzata Lions Club
PREPARED BY: Kathy Ovshak, Senior Accountant
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager, Aurora Yager, Administrative Services Director
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 20-2022 as presented.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The $30,000 donation to the Fire Department is part of the Lion's annual contribution to the Fire Department
and will be relayed to the City's Fire Department Pull Tab Fund to be used for future equipment purchases.
BACKGROUND:
The Board of the Wayzata Lions Club voted to award the donation of $30,000 to the Fire Department. State
Statutes mandate that donations such as these must be accepted via resolution.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
RES 20-2022 to Accept Donation from Wayzata Lions Club
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CITY OF WAYZATA
RESOLUTION NO. 20-2022
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DONATION FROM WAYZATA LIONS CLUB
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute §465.03 requires that all gifts and donations of real or personal
property be accepted only with the adoption of a resolution; and
WHEREAS, said donations must be accepted by a resolution adopted by the City Council.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Wayzata to accept
the following donation:
Donor
Wayzata Lions Club

Purpose
Fire Department

Amount
$30,000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Wayzata City Council sincerely thanks the above-named
for their generous donation and commitment to the community.
Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 17th day of May, 2022.

Johanna Mouton, Mayor
Attest: _____________________________________
Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution:
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 20-2022 adopted
by the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on
May 17, 2022.
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
SEAL
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MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.g
TITLE: Approval of Resolution 21-2022 Authorizing a Grant Application to the Legislative-Citizen
Commission on Minnesota Resources (LCCMR) for Panoway on Wayzata Bay
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve Resolution 21-2022 Authorizing a Grant Application to the LegislativeCitizen Commission on Minnesota Resources (LCCMR) for Panoway on Wayzata Bay
PREPARED BY: Nick Kieser, Parks Planner
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
A grant award ranging from $100,000 to $200,000 would contribute to the capital costs for ecological work
planned for future phases of Panoway on Wayzata Bay.
BACKGROUND:
The Wayzata Conservancy is working on a grant application for the shoreline restoration of the Panoway
project from the Legislative-Citizen Commission on Minnesota Resources (LCCMR) that utilizes Minnesota’s
Environment and Natural Resources Trust Fund. While the grant writing process is still underway, staff and
the Conservancy are working on the request to support the installation of the underwater reef, holding pond,
and the shoreline restoration work within the parameters of the Panoway project. The deadline for the grant is
May 26 and grants would be awarded in the spring/summer of 2023. The attached resolution would be
included in the grant application to show the City Council's support of the project and the request for funds.
Specifically, the focus of the grant application would be the Panoway initiative that includes the restoration of
2,000 feet of the shoreline that would help reverse contamination of previous development by reintroducing
native plants, trees, and pollinator habitat. Future phases of the project include installing natural methods to
treat and clean water before it reaches the lake while restoring important missing habitat along the lakeshore.
Restoration of the shoreline includes the addition of native vegetation, pollinator habitat, and restored upland
buffer along the lake edge where, in many places, the lake edge is rock, gravel, or turf and the creation of a
lakeshore marsh and eco–park.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Resolution of Support_21-2022_Final
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CITY OF WAYZATA
RESOLUTION NO. 21-2022
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE
LEGISLATIVE-CITIZEN COMMISSION ON MINNESOTA RESOURCES (LCCMR) FOR PANOWAY
ON WAYZATA BAY
WHEREAS, Panoway on Wayzata Bay is a key strategic priority for the City of Wayzata; and,
WHEREAS, a desired outcome in the 2019-2023 Strategic Plan is a clean, connected, welcoming and
safe lakefront; and,
WHEREAS, the Panoway project creates the opportunity for the City to continue with the vision of Lake
Street and Lake Minnetonka by creating pedestrian, open space and community gathering places
within Panoway; and,
WHEREAS, Panoway supports Wayzata’s vision as a charming, socially connected, and walkable
lakeside community. Wayzata is a multi-generational community at the forefront of sustainability, with a
healthy environment, enticing parks and public spaces. It is a proud steward of its premier natural
asset; Lake Minnetonka; and,
WHEREAS, the Legislative-Citizen Commission on Minnesota Resources (LCCMR) reviews grant
applications and makes funding recommendations to the Minnesota Legislature; and
WHEREAS, the LCCMR is accepting proposals for projects that aim to protect, conserve, preserve, and
enhance Minnesota’s air, water, land, fish, wildlife, and other natural resources for the benefit of current
citizens and future generations; and,
WHEREAS, selected projects are to be granted funds from the Minnesota’s Environment and Natural
Resources Trust Fund upon approval by the Minnesota Legislature; and
WHEREAS, staff has prepared an LCCMR grant proposal that is focused on the restoration of the
2,000 feet of shoreline in the Panoway project which includes the addition of native vegetation,
pollinator habitat, and restored upland buffer along the lake edge where, in many places, the lake edge
is rock, gravel, or turf and the creation of a lakeshore marsh and eco–park in the overall; and,
WHEREAS, the LCCMR Request for Proposals require support by the government body of the City of
Wayzata in order to submit an application requesting funding.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota
supports the application for grant funding to the LCCMR and directs city staff to submit said application.
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Wayzata this 17th day of May, 2022.

___________________________________
Johanna Mouton, Mayor
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Attest: __________________________________
Jeff Dahl, City Manager

ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution:
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 21-2022 adopted by
the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on May 17,
2022.
_________________________________
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
SEAL
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 7.h
TITLE: Approval of the Annual Renewals of the 2022 Sidewalk Cafe Permits
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the 2022 Outdoor Sidewalk Cafe Permits
PREPARED BY: Valerie Quarles, Assistant Planner
REVIEWED BY: Emily Goellner, Community Development Director, Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends approval of the renewals of the 2022 Outdoor Sidewalk Cafe Permits for Ben & Jerry's,
Benedict's, COV Wayzata, Gianni's Steakhouse, the Grocer's Table, and McCormick's Pub.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
A renewal fee of $205 is collected with each application and applied to the City's General Fund.
BACKGROUND:
Ben & Jerry's, Benedict's, COV Wayzata, Gianni's Steakhouse, The Grocer's Table, and McCormick's Pub
have all applied for an annual renewal of their Outdoor Sidewalk Cafe Permits. The permits, which regulate
cafe use on City property, have been executed as Temporary Outdoor Patio Permits for the last two years in
order to grant restaurants expanded seating capacity in the face of the pandemic. Because restrictions on
restaurant capacity have been relaxed, the City is reverting to the Sidewalk Cafe Permits.
The plans meet all the ordinance requirements pertaining to sidewalk cafes. All of the site plans for the
sidewalk cafes are substantially unchanged from prior approvals. CoV Wayzata, The Grocer's Table, and
McCormick's Pub all have existing encroachment agreements. All application documents must be completed
before issuance of a permit.
The approvals do not preclude additional approvals/amendments to these and other patios allowed through
the Outdoor Sidewalk Cafe Permit.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
2022 Outdoor Sidewalk Cafe Applications_Redacted
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 8.a
TITLE: Consider Approval of On-Sale Intoxicating and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor Licenses for Z&H
Boatworks LLC, dba Macana located at 294 Grove Lane Street W180
PROPOSED MOTION: To Approve the On-Sale Intoxicating and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor
Licenses for Z&H Boatworks LLC, dba Macana located at 294 Grove Lane Street W180
PREPARED BY: Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
After opening the Public Hearing and taking feedback, staff recommends approval of the On-Sale Intoxicating
and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor Licenses.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The annual license fee is $11,225, however, the fee will be pro-rated based on the opening date. The police
background fee of $500 was paid.
BACKGROUND:
Z&H Boatworks LLC, dba Macana, has applied for On-Sale Intoxicating and Sunday On-Sale Intoxicating
Liquor Licenses for a restaurant at 294 Grove Lane Street W180. The restaurant has seating for
approximately 200 (112 inside and 100 for outdoor seating). The proposed hours of operations are 3-10 PM,
Monday-Friday and 11 AM-10 PM on Saturday and Sunday. Attached is the floor plan which has been
reviewed by staff, including the Police Department.
A background investigation as it pertains to liquor licensing was conducted on the owners/officers/managers
and was found to be in satisfactory order. Mikael Asp, one of the owners, will be present at the Council
Meeting to answer any questions.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Macana Application
2.
Macana Aerial Floor
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 9.a
TITLE: Consider Acceptance of the City's 2021 Audited Financial Reports
PROPOSED MOTION: To Accept the 2021 Audited Financial Reports from MMKR
PREPARED BY: Aurora Yager, Administrative Services Director
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff recommends acceptance of the 2021 Audited Financial Reports.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
The City budgets approximately $30,000 on auditing services annually.
BACKGROUND:
Each year, State Statutes require the City to have an independent certified public accounting firm audit its
financials by June 30th of the following year. The City retained the firm of Malloy, Montague, Karnowski,
Radosevich & Co., P.A. (MMKR) to perform the 2021 audit.
For the year ending December 31, 2021, the City received an unmodified or "clean" opinion which can be
found on page 3 of the Management Report. There were two findings as a result of the audit and they were:
1. Internal control over financial reporting - Limited segregation of duties due to our small staff size
2. Minnesota legal compliance - Missing payroll declaration forms for some seasonal workers
There are several reports included as part of the audit. Summaries of these reports and recommended areas
to pay special attention to are outlined below.
 Management Report - Provides a high level summary of the audit intended for review by elected
officials and staff charged with management of the City's finances. Audit opinions and findings can be
found on page 3 of this report.
 Financial Statements - Provides detailed financial statements along with narrative overviews of the
entire City's financial activities for fiscal year 2021. The high level financial analysis of the City's funds
can be found on pages 5-14.
 Special Purpose Report - Includes the Auditors report on the City's internal controls as they relate to
financial reporting and the City's legal compliance.
Bill Lauer of MMKR will present a summary of the City's financials along with reported findings at the meeting.
The reports will be available for the public to review on the City's website.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
2021 Wayzata Management Report
2.
2021 Wayzata Financial Statements
3.
2021 Wayzata Special Purpose Report
4.
Wayzata Audit Presentation 2021
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Management Report
for
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
December 31, 2021
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PRINCIPALS
Thomas A. Karnowski, CPA
Paul A. Radosevich, CPA
William J. Lauer, CPA
James H. Eichten, CPA
Aaron J. Nielsen, CPA
Victoria L. Holinka, CPA/CMA
Jaclyn M. Huegel, CPA
Kalen T. Karnowski, CPA

C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota

We have prepared this management report in conjunction with our audit of the City of Wayzata,
Minnesota’s (the City) financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021. We have organized
this report into the following sections:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Audit Summary
Governmental Funds Overview
Enterprise Funds Overview
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Legislative Updates
Accounting and Auditing Updates

We would be pleased to further discuss any of the information contained in this report or any other
concerns that you would like us to address. We would also like to express our thanks for the courtesy and
assistance extended to us during the course of our audit.
The purpose of this report is solely to provide those charged with governance of the City, management,
and those who have responsibility for oversight of the financial reporting process comments resulting
from our audit process and information relevant to city finances in Minnesota. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 10, 2022

M a l l o y, M o n t a g u e , K a r n o w s k i , R a d o s e v i c h & C o . , P. A .
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AUDIT SUMMARY
The following is a summary of our audit work, key conclusions, and other information that we consider
important or that is required to be communicated to the City Council, administration, or those charged
with governance of the City.
OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA AND GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide
you with information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to
the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information to you verbally, in
our audit engagement letter, and in a separate letter dated May 5, 2022. Professional standards also
require that we communicate the following information related to our audit.
PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously discussed and coordinated
in order to obtain sufficient audit evidence and complete an effective audit.
AUDIT OPINION AND FINDINGS
Based on our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021:
•

We have issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s basic financial statements.

•

We reported one matter involving the City’s internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be a significant deficiency. Due to the limited size of the City’s finance department
staff, the City has limited segregation of duties in certain areas.

•

The results of our testing disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

•

We reported one finding based on our testing of the City’s compliance with Minnesota laws and
regulations. For 3 of 25 payroll claims for wages paid on an hourly or daily basis, the City had
not obtained the signed employee declaration required by Minnesota Statutes § 412.271, Subd. 2.
In all three cases, the employees were seasonal employees hired during 2021.

OTHER OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
We discussed the following observations and recommendations with city management during our audit:
•

The City is updating its procurement policies, which currently call for all purchases below $2,500
to be approved by department directors and purchases over $2,500 to be approved by the city
manager. It was noted that there is no procedure in place requiring a second party review of city
manager purchases over $2,500. We recommend the City consider adding such a procedure, in
order to strengthen segregation of duties over purchasing transactions.

•

Minnesota Statutes § 345 requires the City to submit any unclaimed property annually to the
Commissioner of Commerce and file an unclaimed property report. Even when the City is not
holding any unclaimed property, it is required to file the unclaimed property report annually. This
report of zero unclaimed property held was not filed by the City for 2021.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 of the notes to basic financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the
year ended December 31, 2021.
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENTS
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:
•

The City has recorded liabilities and activity for pension benefits and other post-employment
benefits (OPEB). These obligations are calculated using actuarial methodologies described in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 68 and 75. These actuarial
calculations include significant assumptions, including projected changes, healthcare insurance
costs, investment returns, retirement ages, proportionate share, and employee turnover.

•

The City has recorded a liability for compensated absences payable. Management’s estimate is
based on current rates of pay, compensated absence balances, and the likelihood that sick leave
will ultimately be paid at termination.

•

The depreciation of capital assets involves estimates pertaining to useful lives.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management to develop these estimates in
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The disclosures included in the notes to the basic financial statements related to OPEB
and pension benefits are particularly sensitive, due to the materiality of the liabilities, and the large and
complex estimates involved in determining the disclosures.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures that were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.
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DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT
For purposes of this report, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.
MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated May 10, 2022.
MANAGEMENT CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to
our retention.
OTHER MATTERS
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) and the
pension and OPEB-related required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the RSI.
We were engaged to report on the supplemental information accompanying the financial statements,
which is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements
or to the financial statements themselves.
We were not engaged to report on the introductory section, which accompanies the financial statements,
but is not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
it.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS OVERVIEW
This section of the report provides you with an overview of the financial trends and activities of the City’s
governmental funds, which includes the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds.
These funds are used to account for the basic services the City provides to all of its citizens, which are
financed primarily with property taxes. The governmental fund information in the City’s financial
statements focuses on budgetary compliance and the sufficiency of each governmental fund’s current
assets to finance its current liabilities.
PROPERTY TAXES
Minnesota cities rely heavily on local property tax levies to support their governmental fund activities.
For the 2020 fiscal year, local ad valorem property tax levies provided 40.9 percent of the total
governmental fund revenues for cities over 2,500 in population, and 36.5 percent for cities under 2,500 in
population. Total property taxes levied by all Minnesota cities for taxes payable in 2021 increased
4.0 percent compared to the prior year, and 5.9 percent for taxes payable in 2022.
The total tax capacity value of property in Minnesota cities increased about 6.3 percent for the 2021 levy
year. The tax capacity values used for levying property taxes are based on the assessed market values for
the previous fiscal year (e.g., tax capacity values for taxes levied in 2021 were based on assessed market
values as of January 1, 2020), so the trend of change in these tax capacity values lags somewhat behind
the housing market and economy in general.
The City’s taxable market value increased 6.9 percent for taxes payable in 2020 and 6.5 percent for taxes
payable in 2021. The following graph shows the City’s changes in taxable market value over the past
10 years:
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Tax capacity is considered the actual base available for taxation. It is calculated by applying the state’s
property classification system to each property’s market value. Each property classification, such as
commercial or residential, has a different calculation and uses different rates. Consequently, a city’s total
tax capacity will change at a different rate than its total market value, as tax capacity is affected by the
proportion of its tax base that is in each property classification from year-to-year, as well as legislative
changes to tax rates. The City’s tax capacity increased 7.0 percent and 6.1 percent for taxes payable in
2020 and 2021, respectively.
The following graph shows the City’s change in tax capacities over the past 10 years:
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The following table presents the average tax rates applied to city residents for each of the last three levy
years:
Rates Expressed as a Percentage of Net Tax Capacity

2019

City of Wayzata
2020

2021

Average tax rate
City

21.7

21.1

20.6

County

41.9

41.1

38.2

School

24.8

26.7

26.9

Special taxing

10.1

9.7

9.2

Total

98.5

98.6

94.9

The City’s portion of the tax capacity rates for Wayzata residents, as well as the total tax capacity rate,
have slowly been declining in recent years. This is due to the City’s relatively low annual tax levies,
coupled with its high property values and strong commercial tax base.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
The following table summarizes the changes in the fund balances of the City’s governmental funds during
the year ended December 31, 2021, presented both by fund balance classification and by fund:
Governmental Funds Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance
as of December 31,
2021
2020
Fund balances of governmental funds
Total by classification
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total governmental funds
Total by fund
General
Debt Service
Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects
Developer Financed Capital Projects
Nonmajor funds
Total governmental funds

$

1,685,297
1,855,438
122,660
7,929,310
2,044,797

754,668
1,757,102
127,334
8,069,035
3,278,984

$

930,629
98,336
(4,674)
(139,725)
(1,234,187)

$ 13,637,502

$ 13,987,123

$

(349,621)

$

$

4,316,693
1,133,727
703,562
–
7,833,141

$

(304,421)
(2,811)
3,308
1,605
(47,302)

$ 13,987,123

$

(349,621)

4,012,272
1,130,916
706,870
1,605
7,785,839

$ 13,637,502

$

Change

In total, the fund balances of the City’s governmental funds decreased $349,621 during the year ended
December 31, 2021. The majority of the decrease was in General Fund unassigned fund balance, mainly
due to the approved transfer of excess fund balance to other funds to finance capital improvements.
This decrease was partially offset by increases in fund balances restricted for parks and trails, and
nonspendable fund balance related to loans receivable from the Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(HRA) component unit.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
The following table presents the per capita revenue of the City’s governmental funds for the past
three years, along with state-wide averages for cities with comparable populations.
We have included the most recent comparative state-wide averages available from the Office of the State
Auditor to provide a benchmark for interpreting the City’s data. The amounts received from the typical
major sources of governmental fund revenue will naturally vary between cities based on factors such as a
city’s stage of development, location, size and density of its population, property values, services it
provides, and other attributes. It will also differ from year-to-year, due to the effect of inflation and
changes in its operation. Also, certain data on these tables may be classified differently than how they
appear in the City’s financial statements in order to be more comparable to the state-wide information,
particularly in separating capital expenditures from current expenditures.
We have designed this section of our management report using per capita data in order to better identify
unique or unusual trends and activities of the City. We intend for this type of comparative and trend
information to complement, rather than duplicate, information in the MD&A. An inherent difficulty in
presenting per capita information is the accuracy of the population count, which for most years is based
on estimates.
The per capita information presented in this report excludes the Wayzata HRA, the City’s discretely
presented component unit.
Governmental Funds Revenue per Capita
With State-Wide Averages for Population Class

Year
Population
Property taxes
Tax increments
Franchise and other taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other
Total revenue

State-Wide
2019
2020
2,500–10,000 2,500–10,000

2019
4,672

City of Wayzata
2020
4,434

2021
4,434

$

514
30
45
54
40
342
135
89

$

540
34
49
54
36
474
113
83

$

1,018
–
34
53
145
118
302
228

$

1,119
–
36
110
163
496
342
613

$

1,168
–
36
108
147
214
331
142

$

1,249

$

1,383

$

1,898

$

2,879

$

2,146

The City’s total governmental funds revenue for 2021 was $9,509,707, a decrease of $3,256,442
(25.5 percent), or about $733 per capita from the previous year. The majority of the decrease was in
intergovernmental revenues ($282 per capita), and other revenues ($471 per capita). The decrease in
intergovernmental revenues was primarily due to the City receiving $355,531 from a federal Coronavirus
Relief Fund (CRF) grant and a large HRA cash contribution for the Panoway Project in 2020. The
decrease in the “other” revenue category was primarily due to contributions of about $1.3 million
received from private sources and developers in 2020 for the Panoway Project, and recognizing $344,346
less investment income in 2021 than in the prior year, due to a decline in the fair value of the City’s
investment portfolio.
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The expenditures of governmental funds will also vary from state-wide averages and from year-to-year,
based on the City’s circumstances. Expenditures are classified into three types as follows:
•

Current – These are typically the general operating type expenditures occurring on an annual
basis, and are primarily funded by general sources, such as taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

•

Capital Outlay and Construction – These expenditures do not occur on a consistent basis, more
typically fluctuating significantly from year-to-year. Many of these expenditures are
project-oriented, which are often funded by specific sources that have benefited from the
expenditure, such as special assessment improvement projects.

•

Debt Service – Although the expenditures for debt service may be relatively consistent over the
term of the respective debt, the funding source is the important factor. Some debt may be repaid
through specific sources, such as special assessments or redevelopment funding, while other debt
may be repaid with general property taxes.

The City’s expenditures per capita of its governmental funds for the past three years, together with
state-wide averages for cities with comparable populations, are presented in the following table:
Governmental Funds Expenditures per Capita
With State-Wide Averages for Population Class

Year
Population
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
All other
Total
Totalcurrent
expenditures

State-Wide
2019
2020
2,500–10,000 2,500–10,000

$

152
300
146
103
74
775

$

176
315
146
100
95
832

2019
4,672

$

356
506
194
259
59
1,374

City of Wayzata
2020
4,434

$

373
623
216
245
68
1,525

2021
4,434

$

383
642
178
211
82
1,496

Capital outlay
and construction

438

586

689

2,435

551

Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal
Total
Totaldebt
expenditures
service

168
43
211

172
45
217

74
84
158

142
123
265

184
102
286

Total expenditures

$

1,424

$

1,635

$

2,221

$

4,225

$

2,333

The City’s total governmental funds expenditures for 2021 were $10,339,422, a decrease of $8,394,856
(44.8 percent) from the prior year, or $1,892 per capita. The majority of this decrease was in
capital outlay, which was $1,884 per capita lower than last year, primarily due to the majority of the
construction for Phase One of the City’s Panoway Project being completed in 2020.
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GENERAL FUND
The City’s General Fund accounts for the financial activity of the basic services provided to the
community. The primary services included within this fund are the administration of the municipal
operation, police and fire protection, building inspection, streets and highway maintenance, and culture
and recreation. The graph below illustrates the change in the General Fund financial position over the last
five years. We have also included a line representing annual expenditures and transfers out to reflect the
change in the size of the General Fund operation over the same period.

General Fund Financial Position
Year Ended December 31,
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
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$–
Fund Balance
Cash Balance
Exp & Trans Out

2017
$4,258,409
$3,306,531
$5,902,131

2018
$4,095,409
$3,308,723
$6,843,803

2019
$4,074,455
$3,482,533
$6,816,402

2020
$4,316,693
$3,770,875
$7,069,679

2021
$4,012,272
$2,751,726
$7,488,960

The City’s General Fund cash and investments balance at December 31, 2021 was $2,751,726, a decrease
of $1,019,149 from the previous year. Total fund balance at year-end was $4,012,272, which was a
decrease of $304,421 from the prior year, as compared to a break-even budget. The unassigned portion of
fund balance was $2,044,797 at year-end, which represents 27.3 percent of the City’s annual General
Fund expenditures and transfers out, based on 2021 levels. Both the cash balance and the unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund decreased in 2021, due to an increase of about $927,000 in outstanding loans
to the HRA to provide temporary financing for TIF improvement projects.
The City has generally been able to maintain healthy cash and fund balance levels as the volume of
financial activity has grown. This is an important factor because a government, like any organization,
requires a certain amount of equity to operate. A healthy financial position allows the City to avoid
volatility in tax rates, helps minimize the impact of state funding changes, allows for the adequate and
consistent funding of services, repairs, and unexpected costs, and is a factor in determining the City’s
bond rating and resulting interest costs.
A trend that is typical to Minnesota local governments, especially the General Fund of cities, is the
unusual cash flow experienced throughout the year. The City’s General Fund cash disbursements are
made fairly evenly during the year, other than the impact of seasonal services, such as snowplowing,
street maintenance, and park activities. Cash receipts of the General Fund are quite a different story.
Property taxes comprise about 71.8 percent of the fund’s total annual revenue. Approximately half of
these revenues are received by the City at mid-year and the rest at year-end. Consequently, the City needs
to have adequate cash reserves to finance its everyday operations between these payments.
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The following chart reflects the City’s General Fund revenue sources for 2021 compared to budget:

General Fund Revenue
Budget to Actual
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeits
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
All Other

Budget

Actual

General Fund revenue for 2021 totaled $6,680,778, which was $94,380 (1.4 percent) higher than budget.
Revenue from taxes was $33,335 over budget, due to a decrease in delinquencies. Charges for services
were $28,955 over budget, and licenses and permits were $41,103 over budget, both mainly due to more
development-related fees and permits than anticipated.
The following graph presents the City’s General Fund revenues by source for the last five years.
The graph reflects the City’s reliance on property taxes and other local sources of revenue.
General Fund Revenue by Source
Year Ended December 31,
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000

$–
$(1,000,000)
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeits

$4,312,130
$4,263,785
$4,385,718
$4,569,159
$4,794,707

$1,306,099
$276,372
$260,846
$629,065
$306,273

$81,423
$100,118
$77,810
$56,402
$71,557

Charges for
Services
$716,702
$837,538
$817,871
$924,715
$857,171

Licenses and
Permits
$595,372
$683,900
$676,426
$724,557
$651,413

All Other
$141,912
$81,915
$171,990
$74,231
$(343)

Total General Fund revenues decreased $297,351 (4.3 percent) from the previous year. Taxes revenue
was $225,548 higher than the previous year, due to an increase in the levy. Intergovernmental revenue
decreased $322,792, mainly due to the federal CRF grant received last year. Charges for services were
$67,544 lower than last year, and licenses and permits were $73,144 lower, both mainly due to less
development activity within the City in 2021 compared to the previous year. Revenues from all other
sources, as presented above, decreased by $74,574, primarily due a decline in market conditions and
available interest rates on investments.
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The following graph illustrates the components of General Fund spending for 2021 compared to budget:
General Fund Expenditures
Budget to Actual

General Government

Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
All Other

Budget

Actual

Total General Fund expenditures for 2021 of $6,341,972, exceeded budget by $74,799 (1.2 percent).
This variance was mainly in the public safety program area, as police protection expenditures exceeded
budget by $187,889, due primarily to hiring more officers than anticipated.
The following graph presents the City’s General Fund expenditures by function for the last five years:

General Fund Expenditures by Function
Year Ended December 31,
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$600,000
$300,000
$–
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

General
Government
$1,251,354
$1,374,287
$1,548,038
$1,580,956
$1,610,316

Public Safety

Public Works

$2,234,630
$2,311,503
$2,344,625
$2,731,967
$2,850,206

$703,182
$740,013
$738,012
$722,549
$787,898

Culture and
Recreation
$530,460
$566,137
$577,613
$579,740
$730,936

All Other
$214,831
$214,552
$259,752
$294,676
$362,616

Total General Fund expenditures were $432,084 (7.3 percent) higher than the previous year, due to
inflationary increases across all program areas shown above. The largest increases were in public safety
($118,239), due to hiring additional police personnel, and culture and recreation ($151,196), due to the
resumption of recreation programs curtailed in the prior year, due to COVID-19 restrictions.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS OVERVIEW
The City maintains a number of enterprise funds to account for services the City provides that are
financed primarily through fees charged to those utilizing the service. This section of the report provides
you with an overview of the financial trends and activities of the City’s enterprise funds, which include
the Water, Sewer, Licensing, Liquor, Solid Waste, and Stormwater Funds.
ENTERPRISE FUNDS FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table summarizes the changes in the financial position of the City’s enterprise funds during
the year ended December 31, 2021, presented both by classification and by fund:
Enterprise Funds Change in Financial Position

Net Position
as of December 31,
2021
2020
Net position of enterprise funds
Total by classification
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total enterprise funds
Total by fund
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total enterprise funds

Change

$ 13,481,147
1,177,638
3,781,892

$ 13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

$

(59,481)
(129,833)
929,238

$ 18,440,677

$ 17,700,753

$

739,924

$

$

$

233,048
367,636
71,727
153,779
(999)
(85,267)

$

739,924

8,263,339
4,433,124
(207,159)
1,730,233
279,645
3,941,495

$ 18,440,677

8,030,291
4,065,488
(278,886)
1,576,454
280,644
4,026,762

$ 17,700,753

In total, the net position of the City’s enterprise funds increased by $739,924 during the year ended
December 31, 2021. Operating revenues increased in all enterprise funds in 2021, and most funds
generated positive income before contributions and transfers.
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WATER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Water Fund:

Water Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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$400,000
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$200,000
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$(100,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$750,334
$710,647
$39,687

2018
$820,062
$904,319
$(84,257)

2019
$785,225
$810,291
$(25,066)

2020
$900,956
$698,751
$202,205

2021
$1,077,649
$810,395
$267,254

The Water Fund ended 2021 with a total net position of $8,263,339, which was an increase of $233,048
from the prior year. The Water Fund had a net investment in capital assets of $5,826,492, net position
restricted for debt service of $873,244, and unrestricted net position of $1,563,603 at year-end.
Water Fund operating revenues for fiscal 2021 were $1,077,649, an increase of $176,693 (19.6 percent)
from the prior year, due to increases in both water rates and water consumption in 2021.
Operating expenses for 2021 were $810,395, an increase of $111,644 (16.0 percent) from the previous
year, mainly in maintenance, supplies, and depreciation.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses (such as interest revenue and interest expense), the Water Fund
had income (before contributions and transfers), of $160,807.
The Water Fund received capital contributions of $141,809 from special assessments and access charges
to finance the water portion of street improvement projects. The Water Fund also transferred out $38,568
to finance equipment purchases, and $31,000 to support the General Fund.
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SEWER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Sewer Fund:

Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2017
$950,007
$963,435
$(13,428)

2018
$1,026,386
$1,055,052
$(28,666)

2019
$1,050,037
$1,214,010
$(163,973)

2020
$1,239,184
$997,027
$242,157

2021
$1,451,684
$1,035,525
$416,159

The Sewer Fund ended 2021 with a total net position of $4,433,124, an increase of $367,636 from the
prior year. The Sewer Fund had a net investment in capital assets of $2,862,297, net position restricted for
debt service of $304,394, and unrestricted net position of $1,266,433 at year-end.
Sewer Fund operating revenue for fiscal 2021 was $1,451,684, an increase of $212,500 (17.1 percent)
from the prior year, due to increases in rates and usage from the prior year.
Operating expenses for 2021 were $1,035,525, an increase of $38,498 (3.9 percent), mainly due to
increases in Metropolitan Council Environmental Services disposal charges ($29,816), and contracted
maintenance services.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses, the Sewer Fund had income before contributions and transfers
of $399,526.
The Sewer Fund received $57,543 of contributed capital from special assessments and access charges to
finance the sewer portion of street improvement projects. The Sewer Fund also transferred out $58,433 to
finance equipment purchases, and $31,000 to support the General Fund.
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LICENSING FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Licensing Fund:

Licensing Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2017
$521,062
$390,442
$130,620

2018
$544,247
$445,935
$98,312

2019
$576,066
$477,605
$98,461

2020
$486,862
$497,307
$(10,445)

2021
$646,473
$493,355
$153,118

The Licensing Fund ended 2021 with an unrestricted deficit net position of $207,159, an improvement of
$71,727 from the prior year.
Licensing Fund operating revenues for 2021 were $646,473, an increase of $159,611 (32.8 percent) from
the prior year, which primarily reflects a recovery from the impact of COVID-19 restrictions in the prior
year.
Operating expenses for 2021 were $493,355, a small decrease of $3,952 (0.8 percent), from last year,
mainly in salaries and benefits.
After nonoperating revenues, the Licensing Fund had net income before transfers of $152,727.
The Licensing Fund transferred out $25,000 to finance general construction projects, and $56,000 to
support the General Fund.
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LIQUOR FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Liquor Fund:

Liquor Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2017
$6,184,891
$3,127,367
$2,625,555
$3,057,524
$431,969

2018
$6,395,736
$3,198,367
$2,636,737
$3,197,369
$560,632

2019
$6,551,840
$3,241,073
$2,954,045
$3,310,767
$356,722

2020
$5,300,300
$3,064,216
$2,112,067
$2,236,084
$124,017

2021
$6,325,674
$3,296,647
$2,671,831
$3,029,027
$357,196

The Liquor Fund ended 2021 with a total net position of $1,730,233, an increase of $153,779 from the
prior year. The Liquor Fund’s net investment in capital assets was $1,279,516, leaving unrestricted
net position of $450,717 at year-end.
Liquor Fund gross sales for 2021 were $6,325,674, an increase of $1,025,374 from the prior year, due
primarily, to the easing of COVID-19 restrictions on the bar and grill. Gross sales for the liquor store
decreased $56,438 (1.7 percent), while increasing by $1,081,812 (57.4 percent) for the bar and grill.
Gross profits for 2021 increased $792,943 (35.5 percent), overall.
Operating expenses of $2,671,831 represented an increase of $559,764 (26.5 percent) from the prior year,
with personal service costs up by $533,284, due to the bar and grill being closed or at reduced capacity
for much of the previous year.
After nonoperating revenues and expenses, the Liquor Fund had income before contributions and
transfers of $328,779.
The Liquor Fund transferred out $175,000 to support the General Fund.
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SOLID WASTE FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Solid Waste Fund:

Solid Waste Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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$359,495
$(8,038)

2018
$347,048
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2019
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$356,087
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2020
$361,003
$374,985
$(13,982)

2021
$363,556
$379,117
$(15,561)

The Solid Waste Fund ended 2021 with an unrestricted net position of $279,645, a decrease of $999 from
the prior year.
Operating revenues for 2021 were $363,556, an increase of $2,553 (0.7 percent) from last year.
Operating expenses for 2021 were $379,117, an increase of $4,132 (1.1 percent) from the previous year,
mainly in recycling fees.
After nonoperating revenues, including a county recycling grant of $16,314, the Solid Waste Fund had a
decrease in net position of $999.
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STORMWATER FUND
The following graph presents five years of operating results for the Stormwater Fund:

Stormwater Fund
Year Ended December 31,
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2021
$346,557
$363,297
$(16,740)

The Stormwater Fund ended 2021 with a total net position of $3,941,495, a decrease of $85,267 from the
prior year. The Stormwater Fund’s net investment in capital assets was $3,512,842 at year-end, leaving an
unrestricted net position of $428,653.
Stormwater Fund operating revenue for 2021 was $346,557, an increase of $19,795 (6.1 percent) from
last year, mainly due to a 5.0 percent increase in rates.
Operating expenses for 2021 were $363,297, an increase of $109,164 (43.0 percent) from last year,
mainly in contracted maintenance services.
After nonoperating revenues, the Stormwater Fund had a net loss before contributions and transfers of
$20,267.
The Stormwater Fund transferred out $55,000 to finance street improvement construction projects, and
$10,000, to support the General Fund.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In addition to fund-based information, the current reporting model for governmental entities also requires
the inclusion of two government-wide financial statements designed to present a clear picture of the City
as a single, unified entity. These government-wide financial statements provide information on the total
cost of delivering services, including capital assets and long-term liabilities.
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
The Statement of Net Position essentially tells you what your city owns and owes at a given point in time,
the last day of the fiscal year. Theoretically, net position represents the resources the City has leftover to
use for providing services after its debts are settled. However, those resources are not always in spendable
form, or there may be restrictions on how some of those resources can be used. Therefore, net position is
divided into three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.
The following table presents the City’s components of net position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:
As of December 31,
2021
2020

Change

Net position – primary government
Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities

$ 40,102,438
4,936,452
8,703,230
53,742,120

$ 38,314,544
5,141,057
8,755,748
52,211,349

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities

13,481,147
1,177,638
3,781,892
18,440,677

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654
17,700,753

$ 72,182,797

$ 69,912,102

$

$

2,092,900
762,116
(1,611,940)

$

2,092,900
62,588
(773,640)

$

–
699,528
(838,300)

$

1,243,076

$

1,381,848

$

(138,772)

Total net position – primary government
Net position – HRA component unit
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position – HRA component unit

$

1,787,894
(204,605)
(52,518)
1,530,771

(59,481)
(129,833)
929,238
739,924
2,270,695

The City (excluding the HRA), ended 2021 with a combined total net position of $72,182,797, an
increase of $2,270,695 from the prior year. The City’s net investment in capital assets increased
$1,728,413 between the governmental and business-type activities, primarily due to capital contributions
from the HRA, and other sources that financed a significant portion of the governmental activity
capital assets constructed in 2021. The increase in the unrestricted net position of the business-type
activities was due to the positive operating results in the City’s enterprise fund operations, as previously
discussed.
The City’s HRA discretely presented component unit ended the year with a total net position of
$1,243,076, a decrease of $138,772.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
The Statement of Activities tracks the City’s yearly revenues and expenses, as well as any other
transactions that increase or reduce total net position. These amounts represent the full cost of providing
services. The Statement of Activities provides a more comprehensive measure than just the amount of
cash that changed hands, as reflected in the fund-based financial statements. This statement includes the
cost of supplies used, depreciation of long-lived capital assets, and other accrual-based expenses.
The following table presents the change in net position of the City (primary government), and the
HRA (discretely presented component unit) for the year ended December 31, 2021:
`

Expenses
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater

$

Net Change
Primary
Government

Program
Revenues

2,202,811
2,856,299
2,192,961
1,675,930
379,829

$ (1,429,711)
(1,743,750)
205,717
(884,858)
(379,829)

902,015
1,043,863
493,355
6,005,401
379,117
363,297

1,219,721
1,509,490
646,941
6,341,700
379,890
346,617

317,706
465,627
153,586
336,299
773
(16,680)

–
–
–
–
–
–

Total – primary government

$ 18,494,878

$ 15,519,758

(2,975,120)

–

Component unit – HRA

$

$

–

$

–
–
–
–
–

773,100
1,112,549
2,398,678
791,072
–

3,888,563

$

Net Change
Component
Unit – HRA

–

General revenues
Property taxes and tax increments
Franchise taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings (charges)
Other revenues
Total general revenues

(3,888,563)

5,097,764
157,679
106,406
(116,127)
93
5,245,815
$

Change in net position

2,270,695

3,754,156
–
–
(4,365)
–
3,749,791
$

(138,772)

One of the goals of this statement is to provide a side-by-side comparison to illustrate the difference in the
way governmental and business-type operations are financed. The table clearly illustrates the dependence
of the City’s governmental operations and those of the HRA on general revenues, such as property taxes,
tax increments, and unrestricted grants. It also shows that, for the most part, the City’s business-type
activities are generating sufficient program revenues (service charges and program-specific grants) to
cover expenses.
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LEGISLATIVE UPDATES
As the first year of the fiscal biennium, the primary focus of the 2021 Minnesota legislative session would
typically have been the development of the state’s fiscal year (FY) 2022–2023 biennial budget. Positive
news on the state’s budget forecast entering the session, with projections for the end of the FY 2020–2021
biennium improving from a $2.4 billion shortfall predicted in a May 2020 special pandemic budget
projection to a $940.0 million surplus predicted in the February 2021 budget and economic forecast, was
expected to ease the budget process and relieve the pressure to make budget cuts during an already
uncertain time. However, given the significant events of the preceding year, including the COVID-19
pandemic and death of George Floyd, the focus of the regular session shifted to legislation responding to
the pressing issues that resulted from those events. The business of setting a biennial budget was
ultimately not addressed until a June special session that ended in the early morning hours of July 1st.
The following is a brief summary of legislative changes from the 2021 session or previous legislative
sessions potentially impacting Minnesota cities.
American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act – The federal ARP Act, signed into law in March 2021, provided
federal economic recovery funding for federal, state, and local government responses to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Minnesota local governments received approximately $2.1 billion in funding under
the ARP Act, including $644.0 million awarded to 21 large cities (over 50,000 population) and
$377.0 million awarded to cities and towns with a population below 50,000, with half distributed in
FY 2021 and half in FY 2022. Local governments can use ARP Act funding in four broad
categories: responding to public health and economic impacts; providing premium pay to essential
workers; providing general government services to the extent of revenue loss; or investments in water,
sewer, and broadband infrastructure.
Potential State Aid Enhancements – The 2021 Legislature increased state general fund base spending
by approximately $1.3 billion. Included are funding increases for several programs potentially of benefit
to Minnesota cities, Including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

A one-time appropriation of $5.5 million for supplemental aid to cities for FY 2022, to offset
losses of local government aid (LGA) for 96 cities under the current formula. It is expected the
Legislature will review and consider updating the LGA formula during the 2022 session.
Annual appropriations of $1.8 million for the Greater Minnesota Business Development Public
Infrastructure Grant Program, intended to bolster local economic growth by providing grant
assistance to cities for public infrastructure needed to create and retain jobs.
Annual appropriations of $2.5 million for local community childcare grants, intended to assist
local communities to increase the number of childcare providers to support economic
development.
Allocating a total of $70.0 million from the state’s ARP Act funds over the biennium
($35.0 million per year) to fund the Border-to-Border Broadband Grant Program, which provides
grants to local governments for enhancing broadband availability.
Annual allocations of $4.5 million for reimbursements to local governments for firefighter
training and education costs.
Annual allocations of $2.9 million for reimbursement to local governments for peace officer
training costs.
A one-time appropriation of $18.0 million for FY 2022 to the small cities assistance account to
provide additional road repair funding for cities under 5,000 population.

Truth-in-Taxation Changes – Effective for property taxes payable in 2023 and thereafter, county
auditors will be required to prepare a new statement for inclusion in its parcel-specific truth-in-taxation
notices that contains summary budget information for the county, cities, and school districts for which
they spread and collect tax levies. Cities with a population greater than 500 will be required to compile
and provide current and proposed summary budget information to the county auditor, based on the
summary budget information cities are required to submit each year to the Minnesota state auditor.
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Tax Base Change for Low-Income Rental Property – Effective for assessment years 2022 and 2023,
the first-tier limit for class 4d low-income rental property is reduced from $174,000 to $100,000, with
class rates remaining at 0.75 percent on the first $100,000 and 0.25 percent on the remaining balance. The
tier limit will once again be adjusted annually after assessment year 2023.
Local Sales Tax Projects Defined – Minnesota cities are authorized to include up to five capital projects
in proposals for local sales taxes. The definition of a capital project for this purpose was updated to
include: a single building or structure, including associated infrastructure; improvements within a
single park or recreation area, or; a contiguous trail.
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Flexibility – The Legislature enacted several measures that provide
additional flexibility for TIF spending, including:
• Allowing unobligated TIF to be used to provide loans, interest rate subsidies, or other assistance
to private developers for the construction or substantial rehabilitation of buildings and ancillary
facilities, if doing so will create jobs. Transfer authority expires on December 31, 2022, and all
transferred increment must be spent by December 31, 2025, or returned to the TIF district.
• Allowing TIF districts that have elected to increase pooling by 10 percent to use the increment for
owner-occupied housing that meets the requirements of a housing TIF district, in addition to
current low-income rental housing.
• Providing three-year extensions of the five-year and six-year rules for redevelopment districts
created after December 31, 2017, but before June 30, 2020, thereby extending their duration.
• Creating a three-city pilot program, giving temporary authority to transfer unobligated housing
TIF district increment to the cities affordable housing trust funds.
Sales and Use Tax Refund Process – Effective for purchases made after June 30, 2021, cities and other
local governments are allowed to utilize a streamlined process to secure a sales tax refund on construction
materials purchased by a contractor on behalf of the city for construction, remodeling, expansion, or
improvement of public safety facilities owned by local governments, such as police and fire stations. The
process also applies to materials used in related facilities, such as access roads, lighting, sidewalks, and
utility components. Under the process, local governments would continue to initially pay sales tax on
these materials, but would then be allowed to file for a refund of the sales tax paid. Contractors would be
required to provide the local government with the information necessary to file for the refund.
Fire Protection Special Taxing District Authority – Effective for property tax levies payable in 2023
and thereafter, the current law giving emergency medical districts taxing authority is expanded to include
fire protection districts. Two or more local units of government are now permitted to establish a special
taxing district to provide fire protection, emergency medical services, or both. The special taxing district
will have authority to levy property taxes to finance district operations, spread either across the entire
district at a set rate, or allocated to each participating jurisdiction based on factors, such as population or
service calls. Districts will also have authority to issue debt related to the function of the district. The
property tax and debt issuance authority also apply to existing districts established prior to June 30, 2021.
Open Meeting Law – The Legislature made several pandemic-related changes to the Open Meeting Law,
including removing the statutory cap of three times per year for elected officials to utilize a medical
exception for attending meetings remotely between January 1, 2021, and July 1, 2021, and removing the
requirement for elected officials participating in public meetings remotely, due to military service or
medical exceptions, to disclose their remote locations. The law changes also updated the definition of
“interactive technology” to replace “interactive television” throughout the text of the Open Meeting Laws,
and added requirements for public bodies meeting remotely to enable remote participation by the public
free of charge and enable public comment from remote locations, when practical.
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ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING UPDATES
The following is a summary of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards expected
to be implemented in the next few years. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the GASB has delayed the
original implementation dates of these and other standards as described below.
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases
A lease is a contract that transfers control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset as
specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Examples of
nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any contract that meets this
definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically excluded in this
statement.
Governments enter into leases for many types of assets. Under the previous guidance, leases were
classified as either capital or operating depending on whether the lease met any of the four tests. In many
cases, the previous guidance resulted in reporting lease transactions differently than similar nonlease
financing transactions.
The goal of this statement is to better meet the information needs of users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on
the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This statement increases the
usefulness of financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.
Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use lease
asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
To reduce the cost of implementation, this statement includes an exception for short-term leases, defined
as a lease that, at the commencement of the lease term, has a maximum possible term under the lease
contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being
exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short-term lease payments as outflows of resources or
inflows of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the lease contract. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
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GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations
The primary objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by
issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This
statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation;
establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for
accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by
issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note
disclosures.
A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument having all of the following characteristics:
•
•
•
•
•

There are at least three parties involved: (1) an issuer, (2) a third party obligor, and (3) a debt
holder or a debt trustee.
The issuer and the third party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity.
The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross-collateralized with other debt
of the issuer.
The third party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from the debt
issuance.
The third party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all amounts
associated with the debt obligation (debt service payments).

This statement also addresses arrangements, often characterized as leases, that are associated with conduit
debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the proceeds of a
conduit debt obligation and used by third party obligors in the course of their activities.
This statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.
The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
Earlier application is encouraged.

-24Page 175 of 499

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020
The objectives of this statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This statement addresses a variety of
topics and includes specific provisions about the following:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases,
for interim financial reports.
Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other post-employment benefit
(OPEB) plan.
The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets
accumulated for post-employment benefits.
The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
post-employment benefit arrangements.
Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations in a
government acquisition.
Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess
insurers.
Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative
literature.
Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.

The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier
application is encouraged.
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This statement
(1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires
note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the
standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.
An SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (an SBITA
vendor’s) information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the
underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. Under this statement, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription
asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability.
This statement provides an exception for short-term SBITAs with a maximum possible term under the
SBITA contract of 12 months, including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being
exercised. Subscription payments for short-term SBITAs should be recognized as outflows of resources.
This statement requires a government to disclose descriptive information about its SBITAs other than
short-term SBITAs, such as the amount of the subscription asset, accumulated amortization, other
payments not included in the measurement of a subscription liability, principal and interest requirements
for the subscription liability, and other essential information.
The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter.
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GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plans—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB
Statement No. 32
The primary objectives of this statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB
plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements;
and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the
definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.
The requirements of this statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a
government board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans, and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of
Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered
through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74,
respectively, are effective immediately.
The requirements of this statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for
Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining
whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements
of this statement that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated
the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government
performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by
requirement as specified within this statement.
GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
This statement establishes the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. That
new term and acronym replace instances of comprehensive annual financial report and its acronym in
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments. This statement was developed
in response to concerns raised by stakeholders that the common pronunciation of the acronym for
comprehensive annual financial report sounds like a profoundly objectionable racial slur. This statement’s
introduction of the new term is founded on a commitment to promoting inclusiveness. The requirements
of this statement are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2021. Earlier application is
encouraged.
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota

OPINIONS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as
of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
BASIS FOR OPINIONS
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a
going concern within 12 months beyond the financial statements date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
(continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:
•

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information (RSI), as listed in the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
(continued)
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Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purpose of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory section, but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we
do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 10, 2022 on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 10, 2022
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31, 2021

As management of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) we have provided readers of the City’s
financial statements with this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information provided in this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City (primary government) exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $72,182,797 (net position) at the close of the most recent
fiscal year. Of this amount, $12,485,122 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

•

The City’s (primary government) total net position increased by $2,270,695 in 2021, including a
$1,530,771 increase in governmental activities net position, and a $739,924 increase in business-type
net position.

•

The City’s total bonded debt decreased $1,323,882, or 5.9 percent, in 2021, due to scheduled bond
principal payments and no new debt issued during the year.

•

The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $13,637,502 as of
December 31, 2021, a decrease of $349,621 from last year. Of this amount, $2,044,797
(15.0 percent), is unassigned.

•

As of December 31, 2021, the total fund balances of the General Fund equaled $4,012,272, which
represents 63.3 percent of General Fund expenditures for 2021. Total fund balances decreased
$304,421 during the year, compared to a break-even budget. The variance was due to the City
transferring $324,095 more than originally budgeted out to other City funds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s
basic financial statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information.
Government-Wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector
business.
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also the Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA). The HRA is a legally
separate entity for which the City is financially accountable, which provides community redevelopment
assistance through the administration of various programs. Financial information for this component unit
is presented discretely, separate from the financial information presented for the primary government.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused personal leave time).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities include general government, public safety, public
works, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include water, sewer, licensing,
liquor, solid waste, and stormwater activities.

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE
The analysis of the City as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “is the City as a whole
better or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer
this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless
of when cash is received or paid.
These statements report the City’s net position and changes in them. The City’s net position can be used as
a way of measuring the City’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the City’s net position are indicators of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will
need to consider other nonfinancial factors; however, such as changes in the City’s tax base or the condition
of the City’s infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the City.
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REPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the City
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law or by bond covenants. However, the City
Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to
show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other revenues. The City’s
two types of funds each use different accounting approaches.
Governmental Funds – Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual, which measures
cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund financial
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or less
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance city programs. We describe the relationship
(or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation to each of the fund financial statements.
Proprietary Funds – When the City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside
customers or units of the City, these services are generally reported in the proprietary funds. These funds
are reported in the same manner that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities
reported in the government-wide financial statements, but provide more detailed and additional
information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.
Notes to Basic Financial Statements – The notes to basic financial statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.
Other Information – Required supplementary information (RSI) on the pension and other
post-employment benefits plans, in which city employees participate is presented following the notes to
basic financial statements. Supplemental information, consisting of combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules and other city information, is presented immediately following the RSI.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Position – Net position may over time serve as a useful indicator of a city’s financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $72,182,797 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. The City’s total net position increased
$2,270,695 from the previous year-end. The following is a summary of the City’s net position:
Governmental Activities
2021
2020
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Deferred charges on refunding
Total deferred outflows
of resources
Liabilities
Other liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Net position
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Business-Type Activities
2021
2020

Total
2021

2020

$ 18,087,036
55,345,326
73,432,362

$ 19,582,601
54,425,426
74,008,027

$ 7,144,321
19,399,947
26,544,268

$ 6,233,911
19,915,316
26,149,227

$ 25,231,357
74,745,273
99,976,630

$ 25,816,512
74,340,742
100,157,254

2,266,865
46,503
–

904,897
32,623
–

1,001,494
22,613
40,183

200,467
16,293
44,202

3,268,359
69,116
40,183

1,105,364
48,916
44,202

2,313,368

937,520

1,064,290

260,962

3,377,658

1,198,482

1,345,296
17,643,592
18,988,888

2,108,817
19,489,743
21,598,560

320,297
7,552,870
7,873,167

184,024
8,402,748
8,586,772

1,665,593
25,196,462
26,862,055

2,292,841
27,892,491
30,185,332

2,935,841
78,881

1,043,293
92,345

1,256,354
38,360

76,538
46,126

4,192,195
117,241

1,119,831
138,471

3,014,722

1,135,638

1,294,714

122,664

4,309,436

1,258,302

40,102,438
4,936,452
8,703,230

38,314,544
5,141,057
8,755,748

13,481,147
1,177,638
3,781,892

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

53,583,585
6,114,090
12,485,122

51,855,172
6,448,528
11,608,402

$ 53,742,120

$ 52,211,349

$ 18,440,677

$ 17,700,753

$ 72,182,797

$ 69,912,102

A large portion of the City’s net position (74.2 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (land,
buildings, and machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. A portion (8.5 percent) of the City’s
net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remainder of the City’s net position (17.3 percent) is unrestricted.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories of
net position, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. This was also the case at the previous year-end.
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The following is a summary of the City’s changes in net position:
Governmental Activities
2021
2020
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Unrestricted grants and
contributions
Other general revenues
Unrestricted investment
earnings (charges)
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total revenues
Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid waste
Stormwater
Total expenses
Changes in net position
before transfers
Transfers
Change in net position
Net position – beginning
Net position – ending

Business-Type Activities
2021
2020

Total
2021

2020

$ 2,264,993

$ 2,600,549

$ 10,225,334

$ 8,631,060

$ 12,490,327

$ 11,231,609

369,499

354,627

19,673

21,359

389,172

375,986

2,440,907

3,851,771

199,352

176,204

2,640,259

4,027,975

5,097,764
157,679

5,025,302
158,017

–
–

–
–

5,097,764
157,679

5,025,302
158,017

106,406
93

382,029
9,865

–
–

–
–

106,406
93

382,029
9,865

(78,741)
–
10,358,600

265,605
77,940
12,725,705

(37,386)
–
10,406,973

101,734
–
8,930,357

(116,127)
–
20,765,573

367,339
77,940
21,656,062

2,202,811
2,856,299
2,192,961
1,675,930
379,829
–
–
–
–
–
–
9,307,830

2,479,040
3,095,691
1,634,301
1,260,678
517,009
–
–
–
–
–
–
8,986,719

–
–
–
–
–
902,015
1,043,863
493,355
6,005,401
379,117
363,297
9,187,048

–
–
–
–
–
797,198
1,006,198
497,307
5,300,652
374,985
254,133
8,230,473

2,202,811
2,856,299
2,192,961
1,675,930
379,829
902,015
1,043,863
493,355
6,005,401
379,117
363,297
18,494,878

2,479,040
3,095,691
1,634,301
1,260,678
517,009
797,198
1,006,198
497,307
5,300,652
374,985
254,133
17,217,192

1,050,770

3,738,986

1,219,925

699,884

2,270,695

4,438,870

480,001

763,254

1,530,771

(480,001)

(763,254)

–

–

4,502,240

739,924

(63,370)

2,270,695

4,438,870

52,211,349

47,709,109

17,700,753

17,764,123

69,912,102

65,473,232

$ 53,742,120

$ 52,211,349

$ 18,440,677

$ 17,700,753

$ 72,182,797

$ 69,912,102

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $1,530,771 in 2021, while business-type
activities increased net position by $739,924.
Charges for services were $1,258,718 higher than last year, mainly due to Liquor Fund sales increasing by
$1,025,374, rebounding from prior year COVID-19 restrictions on the bar and grill. Capital grants and
contributions in 2021 were $1,387,716 lower than last year, mainly due to contributions from the City’s
HRA and others for the Lake Effect Panoway Project in 2020. Unrestricted investment earnings (charges)
were $483,466 lower than last year, due to a decline in market conditions and available interest rates.
Expenses were $1,277,686 (7.4 percent) higher than last year, with the majority of the increase in
business-type activities, primarily due to reduced COVID-19 restrictions on bar and grill operations.
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Governmental Activities – The following graphs further depict the revenue and expenses related to the
City’s governmental activities for 2021:
Expenses and Program Revenue – Governmental Activities
$3,000,000
$2,750,000
$2,500,000
$2,250,000

$2,000,000
$1,750,000
$1,500,000
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$500,000
$250,000
$–
General
Government

Public Safety

Expenses

Public Works

Culture and
Recreation

Interest on
Long-Term
Debt

Program Revenues

Revenue by Source – Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $1,530,771 in 2021, compared to an increase
of $4,502,240 in 2020. The change was mainly related to a $2,367,105 reduction in governmental activities
revenue from last year to the current year, primarily in capital grants and investment income, as previously
discussed.
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Business-Type Activities – The following graphs further depict the revenue and expenses related to the
City’s business-type activities for 2021:
Expenses and Program Revenue – Business-Type Activities
$6,500,000
$6,000,000
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$5,000,000
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$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$–
Water

Sewer
Expenses

License

Liquor

Solid Waste Storm Water

Program Revenues

Revenue by Source – Business-Type Activities

The City’s business-type net position increased $739,924 during 2021, as compared to a decrease of
$63,370 in 2020. Improved operating results in the City’s water, sewer, license, and liquor operations in
2021 contributed to this change. Transfers of $480,001 were made to the governmental activities during the
year to support general city operations and various capital improvement plan initiatives.
HRA Component Unit – At the end of the fiscal year, the HRA reported total net position of $1,243,076,
a decrease of $138,772 from the previous year, which is primarily the result of increased contributions of
tax increment revenue from the Downtown TIF 6 Tax Increment District to the City for a parking ramp
construction project.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds – At the end of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $13,637,502, a decrease of $349,621 in comparison with the prior year. The use of
$1,855,438 of fund balance is restricted by various externally imposed constraints. The use of $122,660 of
fund balance is internally committed for particular purposes. An additional $7,929,310 is assigned for
internally imposed spending constraints. Fund balance of $1,685,297 represents assets, such as long-term
receivables and prepaid items, that are not considered to be in spendable form. Finally, the remaining
$2,044,797 of fund balance is unassigned and may be used for any approved public purpose.
General Fund – The total fund balances of the General Fund decreased by $304,421 to $4,012,272 at
December 31, 2021, as compared to a break-even budget. Total fund balances equal 63.3 percent of 2021
General Fund expenditures, which puts the General Fund in an excellent financial position.
Debt Service Fund – Fund balances decreased by $2,811 in 2021, as debt service requirements exceeded
current year collections of taxes, special assessments, intergovernmental revenue (from the HRA
component unit), and investment earnings.
Lakefront Improvement Capital Project Fund – Fund balances increased by $3,308 in 2021, as current
year contributions and investment earnings exceeded improvement project expenditures.
Developer Financed Capital Project Fund – This fund is used to account for deposits received from
developers constructing projects within the City. Fund balance increased $1,605 in the current year.
Nonmajor Funds – Total fund balances of the City’s other “nonmajor” governmental funds decreased
$47,302, ending the year at $7,785,839.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The City Council adopted a balanced budget for the General Fund, which was not amended during the year.
Some of the more significant variances are summarized as follows:
Revenue was more than anticipated by $94,380:
•
•
•
•

Property taxes exceeded budget by $32,045, due to collections of delinquencies.
Licenses and permits were $41,103 higher than the City’s conservative budget.
Intergovernmental revenue was $35,773 over budget, due to several small unbudgeted grants.
Investment earnings were $28,419 under budget, due to unrealized losses from declines in the
fair value of investments.

Expenditures were $74,799 over budget in total:
•
•

Public safety expenditures exceeded budget by $111,278, mainly in police salaries and benefits.
Public works expenditures were $47,060 less than anticipated, mainly in salaries and supplies for
street maintenance.

Excess fund balance from the prior year enabled the City to make unbudgeted transfers of $324,095 to
support various capital projects.
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Capital Assets – The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
amounted to $74,745,273 (net of accumulated depreciation) at year-end. The investment in capital assets
includes: land, buildings, park facilities, equipment, streets, storm sewers, and water and sanitary sewer
lines. The total increase in the City’s net capital assets for the current fiscal year was $404,531 (a 1.7 percent
increase for governmental activities and a 2.6 percent decrease for business-type activities).
•

Major governmental activity additions included: $1,270,313 for the City’s Lake and Barry
Parking Lot construction, $442,637 for street sealcoating, $516,934 for Hollybrook Road trail
and Circle A sidewalk project, and various other purchases.
Governmental Activities
2021
2020

Business-Type Activities
2021
2020

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Land improvements

$ 7,663,994
2,682,854
20,998,689
21,256,267
2,530,636
212,886

$ 7,663,994
1,315,585
21,592,453
21,077,681
2,548,612
227,101

$

973,048
689,684
6,890,784
10,562,551
283,880
–

Total capital assets

$ 55,345,326

$ 54,425,426

$ 19,399,947

Total
2021

2020

973,048
788,867
7,081,355
10,725,593
346,453
–

$ 8,637,042
3,372,538
27,889,473
31,818,818
2,814,516
212,886

$ 8,637,042
2,104,452
28,673,808
31,803,274
2,895,065
227,101

$ 19,915,316

$ 74,745,273

$ 74,340,742

$

Additional details of the City’s capital asset activity for the year can be found in Note 4 of the notes to basic
financial statements.
Long-Term Debt – The City has $21.2 million in outstanding bonded debt at December 31, 2021,
compared to $22.5 million last year.
•
•

The City did not issue any new debt in 2021.
The City made scheduled debt service principal payments of $1,250,000 on outstanding bonds.
Governmental Activities
2021
2020

G.O. bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
G.O. tax increment bonds
G.O. revenue bonds
Unamortized bond premium
Total

$

455,000
3,310,000
10,900,000
–
577,888

$ 15,242,888

$

680,000
3,630,000
11,170,000
–
630,882

$ 16,110,882

Business-Type Activities
2021
2020
$

–
1,180,000
–
4,510,000
228,800

$ 5,918,800

$

–
1,290,000
–
4,835,000
249,688

$ 6,374,688

Total
2021
$

455,000
4,490,000
10,900,000
4,510,000
806,688

$ 21,161,688

2020
$

680,000
4,920,000
11,170,000
4,835,000
880,570

$ 22,485,570

Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 6 of the notes to basic
financial statements.
In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of
3 percent of the estimated market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from
ad valorem taxes and, therefore, excludes debt financed partially or entirely by special assessments,
enterprise fund revenues, or tax increments. The City’s estimated market value of taxable property in 2021
was $2,364,463,881, resulting in a legal debt limit was $70,933,916. At year-end, $455,000 of the City’s
debt was applicable to the limit.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when they developed the 2022 budget
and tax levy and when they set the appropriate fees that will be charged for business-type activities. These
factors include:
•

Preliminary market values for the 2022 tax year continue to be strong and improving over the
prior year despite the continued economic impacts of the COVID-19 global pandemic. Residential
valuations have increased approximately 16.4 percent over 2021. The overall market value
increased 13.1 percent over 2021, due to the combination of new development and increase in
values.

•

The City will evaluate and continue to enhance the planning for capital-related items. This
includes a more extensive review of anticipated projects and a complete matching of resources to
costs.

•

The City continues to evaluate the impact of COVID-19, but anticipated a return to operations
more similar to pre-pandemic levels. Therefore, the 2022 budget reflects increases in some
revenues, such as General Fund intergovernmental revenue (the City’s American Rescue Plan Act
allocation) and sales for the bar and grill operation.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2022 fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those interested in the
government’s finances. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact
the City’s Finance Department at 600 Rice Street, Wayzata, Minnesota 55391; or (952) 404-5300.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021

Primary Government

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Interest
Taxes and tax increments
Accounts
Notes
Special assessments
Due from component unit
Due from other governmental units
Prepaid items
Inventories
Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$ 12,984,157

$

5,725,202

$ 18,709,359

71,175
51,824
40,261
–
3,224,268
1,681,860
30,054
3,437
–

–
–
248,730
–
626,982
–
7,929
550
534,928

71,175
51,824
288,991
–
3,851,250
1,681,860
37,983
3,987
534,928

5,400
38,122
–
10,000
–
–
–
–
–

10,346,848
44,998,478
73,432,362

1,662,732
17,737,215
26,544,268

12,009,580
62,735,693
99,976,630

2,092,900
–
3,964,036

2,266,865
46,503
–
2,313,368

1,001,494
22,613
40,183
1,064,290

3,268,359
69,116
40,183
3,377,658

–
–
–
–

$ 75,745,730

$ 27,608,558

$ 103,354,288

$

3,964,036

$

$

$

$

1,029,977
8,420
–
–
1,681,860
703
–
–
–

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Deferred charges on refunding
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued interest payable
Due to primary government
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Bonds, premiums, and compensated absences payable
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Economic development
Parks and trails
Public safety police expenses
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position

See notes to basic financial statements

Total

Component Unit
Housing and
Redevelopment
Authority

128,580
11,365
202,177
143,254
–
605,456
254,464
1,767,588
260,033

58,919
71,030
139,448
14,072
–
36,828
–
1,386,194
126,452

187,499
82,395
341,625
157,326
–
642,284
254,464
3,153,782
386,485

$

1,817,614

1,199,138
14,416,833
18,988,888

519,273
5,520,951
7,873,167

1,718,411
19,937,784
26,862,055

–
–
2,720,960

2,935,841
78,881
3,014,722

1,256,354
38,360
1,294,714

4,192,195
117,241
4,309,436

–
–
–

40,102,438

13,481,147

53,583,585

2,092,900

4,211,930
–
706,450
18,072
8,703,230
53,742,120

1,177,638
–
–
–
3,781,892
18,440,677

5,389,568
–
706,450
18,072
12,485,122
72,182,797

–
762,116
–
–
(1,611,940)
1,243,076

$ 75,745,730

$ 27,608,558

$ 103,354,288

$

3,964,036
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Functions/Programs
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total business-type activities
Total primary government
Component unit
Housing and Redevelopment Authority

Charges for
Services

Expenses

$

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

2,202,811
2,856,299
2,192,961
1,675,930
379,829
9,307,830

$

759,557
801,593
305,844
397,999
–
2,264,993

$

13,543
310,956
45,000
–
–
369,499

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

$

902,015
1,043,863
493,355
6,005,401
379,117
363,297
9,187,048

1,077,649
1,451,684
646,473
6,339,415
363,556
346,557
10,225,334

$ 18,494,878

$ 12,490,327

$

389,172

$

2,640,259

$

$

–

$

–

$

–

3,888,563

263
263
468
2,285
16,334
60
19,673

–
–
2,047,834
393,073
–
2,440,907

141,809
57,543
–
–
–
–
199,352

General revenues
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Tax increment
Franchise fees
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs
Other general revenues
Unrestricted investment earnings (charges)
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position – beginning
Net position – ending

See notes to basic financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Component Unit
Housing and
Governmental
Business-Type
Redevelopment
Activities
Activities
Total
Authority

$

(1,429,711)
(1,743,750)
205,717
(884,858)
(379,829)
(4,232,431)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(4,232,431)

$

–
–
–
–
–
–

$

(1,429,711)
(1,743,750)
205,717
(884,858)
(379,829)
(4,232,431)

$

–
–
–
–
–
–

317,706
465,627
153,586
336,299
773
(16,680)
1,257,311

317,706
465,627
153,586
336,299
773
(16,680)
1,257,311

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

1,257,311

(2,975,120)

–

–

–

–

4,851,724
246,040
–
157,679

–
–
–
–

4,851,724
246,040
–
157,679

–
–
3,754,156
–

(3,888,563)

106,406
93
(78,741)
480,001
5,763,202

–
–
(37,386)
(480,001)
(517,387)

106,406
93
(116,127)
–
5,245,815

–
–
(4,365)
–
3,749,791

1,530,771

739,924

2,270,695

(138,772)

52,211,349

17,700,753

69,912,102

$ 53,742,120

$ 18,440,677

$ 72,182,797

1,381,848
$

1,243,076
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2021

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Interest
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue
Property taxes
Special assessments
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statements

101

300’s

General

Debt
Service

$ 2,751,726

$ 1,131,416

71,175
51,824
22,580
–
1,681,860
30,054
3,437

–
–
–
3,224,268
–
–
–

$ 4,612,656

$ 4,355,684

$

719,641

$

$

$

12,771
–
–
–
–

60,137
9,204
199,774
53,581
254,464

233
Lakefront
Improvement
Capital Projects

500
–
–
–
–

$

719,641

802
Developer
Financed
Capital Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

553,470

$ 7,827,904

$ 12,984,157

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
17,681
–
–
–
–

71,175
51,824
40,261
3,224,268
1,681,860
30,054
3,437

$

553,470

$ 7,845,585

$ 18,087,036

$

–
–
–
551,865
–

$

$

$

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

55,172
2,161
2,403
10
–

128,580
11,365
202,177
605,456
254,464

577,160

500

12,771

551,865

59,746

1,202,042

23,224
–

–
3,224,268

–
–

–
–

–
–

23,224
3,224,268

23,224

3,224,268

–

–

–

3,247,492

1,685,297
–
–
282,178
2,044,797

–
1,130,916
–
–
–

–
–
–
706,870
–

–
–
–
1,605
–

–
724,522
122,660
6,938,657
–

1,685,297
1,855,438
122,660
7,929,310
2,044,797

4,012,272

1,130,916

706,870

1,605

7,785,839

13,637,502

$ 4,612,656

$ 4,355,684

553,470

$ 7,845,585

$ 18,087,036

$

719,641

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2021

Total fund balances – governmental funds

$

13,637,502

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as assets in governmental funds.
Cost of capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

72,296,104
(16,950,778)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Bonds principal payable
Unamortized bond premiums
Accrued interest payable

(373,083)
(1,767,588)
(260,033)
(14,665,000)
(577,888)
(143,254)

Due to availability, certain revenues are not recognized under the governmental fund statements
until received; however, under full accrual in the government-wide Statement of Activities,
revenues are recorded when earned regardless of when received.
Delinquent property taxes
Delinquent and deferred special assessments

23,224
3,224,268

Governmental funds do not report certain long-term amounts related to pensions and OPEB that
are included in governmental activities net position.
Deferred outflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred outflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments

2,266,865
(2,935,841)
46,503
(78,881)

Total net position – governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements

$

53,742,120
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Investment earnings (charges)
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements
Other
Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures

101

300’s

General

Debt
Service

$ 4,708,417
86,290
651,413
306,273
857,171
71,557
–
(8,419)

$

233
Lakefront
Improvement
Capital Project

246,040
–
–
543,107
–
–
480,884
(7,347)

$

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(11,482)

802
Developer
Financed
Capital Project

$

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$ 5,177,246
157,679
651,413
946,944
1,468,040
71,557
480,884
(78,741)

222,789
71,389
–
97,564
610,869
–
–
(51,493)

–
–
8,076

–
–
–

387,372
–
–

–
1,605
–

163,934
73,698
–

551,306
75,303
8,076

6,680,778

1,262,684

375,890

1,605

1,188,750

9,509,707

1,608,375
2,846,507
787,898
730,936
362,616

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
106,896
–

–
–
–
–
–

89,093
–
–
96,010
–

1,697,468
2,846,507
787,898
933,842
362,616

1,941
3,699
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
247,334

–
–
–
–

194,180
226,222
1,004,486
767,149

196,121
229,921
1,004,486
1,014,483

–
–

815,000
450,495

–
–

–
–

–
585

815,000
451,080

6,341,972

1,265,495

354,230

–

2,377,725

10,339,422

21,660

1,605

(1,188,975)

(829,715)

93
1,832,657
(1,352,656)

338,806

(2,811)

Other financing sources (uses)
Insurance recovery
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

93
503,668
(1,146,988)

–
–
–

–
131,316
(149,668)

–
–
–

–
1,197,673
(56,000)

Total other financing
sources (uses)

(643,227)

–

(18,352)

–

1,141,673

Net change in fund balances

(304,421)

Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

See notes to basic financial statements

(2,811)

4,316,693

1,133,727

$ 4,012,272

$ 1,130,916

$

3,308

1,605

703,562

–

7,833,141

13,987,123

1,605

$ 7,785,839

$ 13,637,502

706,870

$

(47,302)

480,094
(349,621)
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Reconciliation of the Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Total net change in fund balances – governmental funds

$

(349,621)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.
Capital outlays
Capital asset contributions
Depreciation expense

1,872,638
1,230,925
(2,183,663)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Other long-term adjustments
are also made between the governmental funds and the Statement of Activities for debt
premiums, compensated absences, pension liabilities, and OPEB obligations.
Principal payments for bonds
Debt premiums
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability

815,000
52,994
18,344
991,619
(31,806)

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however,
interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

18,257

Governmental funds do not report additions or deletions to certain long-term amounts related to
pensions that are included in the change in governmental activities net position.
Deferred outflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – pension plan deferments
Deferred outflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments
Deferred inflows of resources – OPEB plan deferments

1,361,968
(1,892,548)
13,880
13,464

Certain revenues (including delinquent taxes and special assessments) are included in the change
in net position, but are excluded from the change in fund balances until they are available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Delinquent property taxes
Delinquent and deferred special assessments

(79,482)
(321,198)

Change in net position – governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements

$

1,530,771
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund – Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Original
Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings (charges)
Miscellaneous

$

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over
expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Insurance recovery
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

$

Final Budget

4,676,372
85,000
610,310
270,500
828,216
91,000
20,000
5,000

$

4,676,372
85,000
610,310
270,500
828,216
91,000
20,000
5,000

Actual

$

$

32,045
1,290
41,103
35,773
28,955
(19,443)
(28,419)
3,076

6,586,398

6,586,398

6,680,778

94,380

1,636,986
2,735,229
834,958
727,500
327,000

1,636,986
2,735,229
834,958
727,500
327,000

1,608,375
2,846,507
787,898
730,936
362,616

(28,611)
111,278
(47,060)
3,436
35,616

3,000
2,500

3,000
2,500

1,941
3,699

(1,059)
1,199

6,267,173

6,267,173

6,341,972

74,799

319,225

319,225

338,806

19,581

–
503,668
(822,893)

–
503,668
(822,893)

93
503,668
(1,146,988)

93
–
(324,095)

(319,225)

(319,225)

(643,227)

(324,002)

–

$

–

(304,421)

Fund balances
Beginning of year

$

(304,421)

4,316,693

End of year

See notes to basic financial statements

4,708,417
86,290
651,413
306,273
857,171
71,557
(8,419)
8,076

Over (Under)
Final Budget

$

4,012,272
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2021

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Special assessments
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Deferred charges on refunding
Total deferred outflows
of resources
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources

See notes to basic financial statements

610
Water

620
Sewer

$ 2,209,343

$ 1,341,944

64,184
34,403
2,607
–
18,832
2,329,369

280,984

630
Licensing

$

640
Liquor

96,786

$ 1,376,135

119,515
61,478
5,322
–
–
1,528,259

–
–
–
550
–
97,336

155
–
–
–
516,096
1,892,386

250,117

–

–

650
Solid Waste

670
Stormwater

$

$

263,597

Total

437,397

$ 5,725,202

33,380
–
–
–
–
296,977

31,496
–
–
–
–
468,893

248,730
95,881
7,929
550
534,928
6,613,220

–

–

531,101

3,975
6,077,906
5,021,738
194,878
682,812
(2,908,661)

8,495
30,830
4,202,366
388,886
6,872
(1,515,373)

–
–
–
–
–
–

679,550
3,439,095
110,149
851,323
–
(1,387,736)

–
–
–
–
–
–

281,028
–
5,343,934
–
–
(2,112,120)

973,048
9,547,831
14,678,187
1,435,087
689,684
(7,923,890)

9,072,648

3,122,076

–

3,692,381

–

3,512,842

19,399,947

9,353,632

3,372,193

–

3,692,381

–

3,512,842

19,931,048

11,683,001

4,900,452

97,336

5,584,767

296,977

3,981,735

26,544,268

78,279
2,959
40,183

78,331
2,959
–

138,600
6,130
–

682,024
9,717
–

6,132
244
–

18,128
604
–

1,001,494
22,613
40,183

121,421

81,290

144,730

691,741

6,376

18,732

1,064,290

$11,804,422

$ 4,981,742

242,066

$ 6,276,508

303,353

$ 4,000,467

$27,608,558

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Net Position (continued)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2021

610
Water
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences payable
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities

$

8,920
640
14,412
7,683
5,646
15,942
260,000
313,243

620
Sewer

$

15,348
123
14,641
638
–
15,942
40,000
86,692

630
Licensing

$

290
5,613
20,079
–
–
14,755
–
40,737

640
Liquor

$

31,225
59,843
85,905
5,751
31,182
27,634
145,000
386,540

650
Solid Waste

$

–
4,811
1,081
–
–
–
–
5,892

670
Stormwater

$

3,136
–
3,330
–
–
–
–
6,466

Total

$

58,919
71,030
139,448
14,072
36,828
74,273
445,000
839,570

.
Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Compensated absences payable
Unamortized bond premium
Bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

108,600
16,548
13,340
121,156
2,865,000
3,124,644

109,039
16,548
13,340
4,779
215,000
358,706

182,823
34,278
6,065
–
–
223,166

952,009
54,335
14,406
102,865
2,165,000
3,288,615

8,323
1,367
–
–
–
9,690

25,400
3,376
–
–
–
28,776

1,386,194
126,452
47,151
228,800
5,245,000
7,033,597

Total liabilities

3,437,887

445,398

263,903

3,675,155

15,582

35,242

7,873,167

98,176
5,020

98,200
5,020

174,924
10,398

854,637
16,483

7,711
415

22,706
1,024

1,256,354
38,360

103,196

103,220

185,322

871,120

8,126

23,730

1,294,714

5,826,492
873,244
1,563,603

2,862,297
304,394
1,266,433

–
–
(207,159)

1,279,516
–
450,717

–
–
279,645

3,512,842
–
428,653

13,481,147
1,177,638
3,781,892

8,263,339

4,433,124

(207,159)

1,730,233

279,645

3,941,495

18,440,677

$11,804,422

$ 4,981,742

303,353

$ 4,000,467

$27,608,558

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan deferments
OPEB plan deferments
Total deferred inflows
of resources
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statements

$

242,066

$ 6,276,508

$
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2021

610
Water
Operating revenue
Sales
Charges for services
Total operating revenue

$

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Personal services
Supplies
Professional fees
Utilities
Other services and charges
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating income (expense)
Investment earnings (charges)
Intergovernmental
Other income
Interest and fiscal charges
Total nonoperating
income (expense)

–
1,077,649
1,077,649

$

630
Licensing

–
1,451,684
1,451,684

$

640
Liquor

–
646,473
646,473

$ 6,325,674
–
6,325,674

650
Solid Waste

$

–
363,556
363,556

670
Stormwater

$

Total

–
346,557
346,557

$ 6,325,674
3,885,919
10,211,593

–

–

–

3,296,647

–

–

3,296,647

1,077,649

1,451,684

646,473

3,029,027

363,556

346,557

6,914,946

252,615
66,200
79,776
77,589
42,404
42,450
249,361
810,395

249,008
23,987
48,203
539,567
23,471
27,896
123,393
1,035,525

466,497
14,011
2,130
–
7,093
3,624
–
493,355

1,912,198
138,028
80,075
87,992
256,130
82,821
114,587
2,671,831

21,267
–
287,170
58,487
12,193
–
–
379,117

59,447
356
174,044
–
1,235
1,182
127,033
363,297

2,961,032
242,582
671,398
763,635
342,526
157,973
614,374
5,753,520

267,254

416,159

153,118

357,196

(15,561)

(16,740)

1,161,426

(15,090)
–
263
(91,620)

(8,558)
–
263
(8,338)

(859)
–
468
–

(7,520)
–
16,026
(36,923)

(1,772)
16,314
20
–

(3,587)
–
60
–

(37,386)
16,314
17,100
(136,881)

(106,447)

(16,633)

(391)

(28,417)

14,562

(3,527)

(140,853)

160,807

399,526

152,727

328,779

141,809
(69,568)

57,543
(89,433)

–
(81,000)

–
(175,000)

233,048

367,636

71,727

153,779

8,030,291

4,065,488

$ 8,263,339

$ 4,433,124

Income (loss) before
contributions and transfers
Capital contributions
Transfers (out)
Changes in net position
Net position
Beginning of year
End of year

620
Sewer

See notes to basic financial statements

$

(278,886)

1,576,454

(207,159)

$ 1,730,233

(999)
–
–
(999)

$

(20,267)

1,020,573

–
(65,000)

199,352
(480,001)

(85,267)

739,924

280,644

4,026,762

17,700,753

279,645

$ 3,941,495

$ 18,440,677
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Other operating receipts
Receipts from (payments to) customer deposits
Payments to vendors
Payments to employees
Net cash flows from operating activities

610
Water

620
Sewer

$ 1,122,387
263
2,066
(297,268)
(281,669)
545,779

$ 1,487,181
263
–
(647,815)
(278,223)
561,406

39,165
(69,568)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Increase in due from component unit
Transfers to other funds
Net cash flows from noncapital financing
activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Special assessments
Connection fees
Receipt from (payment on) interfund loan
Interest paid on long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Net cash flows from capital and related
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received (charged)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
flows from operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities
Other income related to operations
Depreciation
Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources
Accounts receivable, net
Special assessments receivable
Due from other governmental units
Prepaid items
Inventories
Deferred outflows of pension resources
Deferred outflows of OPEB resources
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued salaries payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Deferred inflows of pension resources
Deferred inflows of OPEB resources
Net cash flows from operating activities

$

640
Liquor

650
Solid Waste

646,473
468
–
(23,038)
(511,582)
112,321

$ 6,325,519
16,026
3,970
(3,860,482)
(1,753,472)
731,561

–
(89,433)

–
(81,000)

–
(175,000)

(30,403)

(89,433)

(81,000)

–
59,860
81,949
–
(100,300)
(255,000)

(6,872)
25,543
32,000
–
(9,350)
(40,000)

(213,491)

1,321

(14,437)

(8,558)

$ 10,290,407
33,414
6,036
(5,382,007)
(2,911,877)
2,035,973

–
–

–
(65,000)

39,165
(480,001)

(175,000)

–

(65,000)

(440,836)

–
–
–
–
–
–

(5,000)
–
–
(11,500)
(45,911)
(140,000)

–
–
–
–
–
–

(87,133)
–
–
–
–
–

(99,005)
85,403
113,949
(11,500)
(155,561)
(435,000)

–

(202,411)

–

(87,133)

(501,714)

(1,772)

(3,587)

(36,733)

(11,006)

(61,580)

1,056,690

274,603

498,977

4,668,512

(7,520)

$

464,736

30,462

346,630

1,921,895

877,208

66,324

1,029,505

$ 2,209,343

$ 1,341,944

$

96,786

$ 1,376,135

$

263,597

$

437,397

$ 5,725,202

$

$

$

153,118

$

$

(15,561)

$

(16,740)

$ 1,161,426

267,254

416,159

263
249,361

263
123,393

(7,116)
39,572
12,282
–
6,184
(58,303)
(905)
4,886
81
7,585
2,066
261
(69,630)
2,175
90,559
(796)

(17,770)
52,635
632
–
–
(58,261)
(905)
15,301
8
7,814
–
261
(70,051)
2,175
90,548
(796)

468
–

–
–
–
(550)
–
(106,545)
(1,909)
(547)
4,917
4,455
–
(3,508)
(103,507)
4,745
162,736
(1,552)

357,196

16,026
114,587

16,334
–

60
127,033

33,414
614,374

(155)
–
–
–
33,514
(559,773)
(2,316)
28,679
19,018
54,177
3,970
(1,376)
(137,947)
2,557
807,872
(4,468)

(287)
–
–
–
–
(4,620)
(107)
–
(8,515)
1,081
–
–
(5,126)
409
7,131
27

(979)
–
–
–
–
(13,525)
(178)
(10,222)
–
3,330
–
–
(15,827)
399
20,970
(181)

(26,307)
92,207
12,914
(550)
39,698
(801,027)
(6,320)
38,097
15,509
78,442
6,036
(4,362)
(402,088)
12,460
1,179,816
(7,766)

$

545,779

$

561,406

$

112,321

$

731,561

$

Noncash capital financing activities
Amortization of bond premiums

$

12,105

$

912

$

–

$

7,871

$

Amortization of deferred charge

$

4,019

$

–

$

–

$

–

Capital contributions from developers

$

141,809

$

57,543

$

–

$

–

See notes to basic financial statements

363,269
16,334
–
(366,365)
(22,472)
(9,234)

Total

345,578
60
–
(187,039)
(64,459)
94,140

(859)

$

670
Stormwater

287,448

Cash and cash equivalents – beginning
Cash and cash equivalents – ending

630
Licensing

(9,234)

$

94,140

$ 2,035,973

–

$

–

$

20,888

$

–

$

–

$

4,019

$

–

$

–

$

199,352
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity
The City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) operates under the “Optional Plan A” form of government as
defined in Minnesota Statutes. Under this plan, the government of the City is directed by a City Council
composed of an elected Mayor and four elected City Council members. The City Council exercises
legislative authority and determines all matters of policy. The City Council appoints personnel responsible
for the proper administration of all affairs relating to the City.
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements include all funds, departments, agencies, boards, and commissions of the City (the primary
government) and any component units. The City has considered all potential units for which it is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that
organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the primary government. The City has one component unit.
Discretely Presented Component Unit – The Wayzata Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(HRA) assists the City Council in addressing the City’s housing and redevelopment goals and
objectives in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. It is a legally separate entity, of which the
governing body consists of a five-member Board of Commissioners approved, but not selected, by
the City Council. With the exception of the City Council approving boardmembers and the HRA’s
budget, the HRA has complete control over its own duties. However, all HRA administrative and
financial functions are performed by city staff, and the HRA is fiscally dependent upon the City. It is
these criterion that result in the HRA being reported as a discretely presented component unit. The
HRA does not prepare separate financial statements. Information on the HRA’s governmental funds
is presented as supplementary schedules elsewhere in this report.
B. Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. The City does not allocate indirect expenses. Program revenues
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes and special assessments
are recognized as revenues in the fiscal year for which they are certified for levy. Grants and similar items
are recognized when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. However, charges between the City’s enterprise funds and other functions are not eliminated,
as that would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in those functions. Depreciation
expense is included in the direct expenses of each function. Interest on long-term debt is considered an
indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.
C. Fund Financial Statement Presentation
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
fund balances or net position, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government
resources are allocated to, and accounted for in, individual funds based upon the purposes for which they
are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements, while
aggregated information for the remaining nonmajor governmental funds is reported in a single column.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, transactions are recorded
in the following manner:
1. Revenue Recognition – Revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days after year-end. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.
Grants and similar items are recognized when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.
Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include property taxes, special assessments,
intergovernmental revenue, charges for services, and interest earned on investments. Major revenue
sources not susceptible to accrual include licenses and permits, fees, and miscellaneous revenue,
which are recorded only when received because they are not measurable until collected.
2. Recording of Expenditures – Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgements, and other long-term
liabilities, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset
acquisitions are reported as capital outlay expenditures in the governmental funds.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. The operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – This is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Debt Service Fund – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.
Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated
and payments made for lakefront improvement capital projects.
Developer Financed Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for deposits from private developers
and the reimbursement of city services provided for developer financed capital projects.
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
Water Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the municipal water
utility.
Sewer Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the municipal sewer
utility.
Licensing Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the licensing
service center.
Liquor Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the City’s off-sale
liquor store and on-sale municipal bar and grill operations.
Solid Waste Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the City’s solid
waste collection programs.
Stormwater Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses to operate the City’s
stormwater system.
D. Budgets
An annual budget is legally adopted for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Appropriations are authorized by
the City Council at the fund level, which is the legal level of budgetary control. Appropriations lapse at
year-end; however, the City Council may approve the carryover of specific amounts. Actual expenditures
exceeded budget by $74,799 in the current year; the excess was financed with revenue and other financing
sources in excess of budget.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
E. Cash and Investments
Cash balances from all funds are combined and invested to the extent available in short-term investments.
Earnings from the pooled investments are allocated to the individual funds based on the average monthly
cash and investment balances of the respective funds.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an
original maturity at the time of purchase of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The proprietary
funds’ portion of the government-wide cash and investment pool is considered to be cash equivalent.
The City generally reports investments at fair value, except for certain investment pools reported at
amortized cost. Fair value measurements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy established by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. See Note 2 for the City’s recurring fair value measurements at
year-end.
F.

Receivables

Utility and miscellaneous accounts receivable are reported at gross. The City is generally able to certify
delinquent amounts for collection as special assessments; however, an allowance for uncollectible accounts
is recorded for utility receivables that remain delinquent after certification to the county.
G.

Interfund Balances and Transfers

In the fund financial statements, activity between funds that is representative of lending or borrowing
arrangements is reported as “advances to/from other funds.” All other outstanding balances between funds
are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Interfund balances and transfers reported in the fund financial
statements are eliminated to the extent possible in the government-wide financial statements. Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
H. Property Taxes
Property tax levies are set by the City Council prior to December 31 of each year and are certified to
Hennepin County for collection in the following year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection agents for
all property taxes. Property tax levies are based on property values assessed on January 1 of the preceding
year. The county spreads levies over all taxable property in the City.
Such taxes become a lien on January 1 of the current year. Real property taxes may be paid by taxpayers in
two equal installments on May 15 and October 15. Personal property taxes may be paid on February 28 and
June 30. The county provides tax settlements to cities three times a year.
Revenues are accrued and recognized in the government-wide financial statements in the year levied. In the
governmental fund financial statements, taxes that remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as
delinquent taxes and are fully offset by deferred inflows of resources because it is not known when they
will be available to finance current expenditures.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I. Special Assessments
Special assessments are levied against the benefited properties for the assessable costs of improvement
projects in accordance with state statutes. The City usually adopts the assessment rolls when the individual
projects are complete or substantially complete. The assessments are collectible over a term of years
generally consistent with the term of years of the related bond issue. Collection of annual installments
(including interest) is handled by the county in the same manner as property taxes. Property owners are
allowed to prepay total future installments without interest or prepayment penalties.
The City recognizes special assessment revenue in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements when the assessment rolls are levied. In the governmental fund financial statements, the City
recognizes special assessment revenue when it becomes both measurable and available. Current
assessments which remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as delinquent receivables and, together
with deferred assessments, are fully offset by deferred inflows of resources because it is not known when
they will be available to finance current expenditures.
J. Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are reported as prepaid
items in both the government-wide and financial statements. Prepaid items are reported in governmental
funds using the consumption method.
K. Inventories
Proprietary fund inventories consist of water meters and liquor, which are valued at the lower of cost using
the first-in, first-out method, or replacement value.
L. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with
an estimated useful life of more than one year and an initial individual cost of more than $5,000.
The City reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis. Accordingly, the amounts spent
for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the
government-wide financial statements regardless of their amount.
In the case of initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental
activities) the City elected to report only those infrastructure assets added since January 1, 2004. As the
City constructs or acquires capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized
and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs, which are
essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the
item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the case of donations, the City values these
capital assets at the acquisition value of the item at the date of its donation.
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: land improvements 5–30 years;
buildings, 20–50 years; infrastructure 5–50 years; and machinery and equipment 2–20 years. Land and
construction in progress are not depreciated.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets and liabilities, statements of financial position, or balance sheets, will sometimes report
separate financial statement elements called deferred outflows or inflows of resources, which represent a
consumption or acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) or an inflow of financial resources (revenue) until then.
Deferred inflows from unavailable revenue arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting and,
therefore, is only reported in the governmental fund financial statements. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenue from two sources, property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as inflows of resources in the period they become available.
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions or other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
are reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. These deferred outflows and inflows result
from differences between expected and actual experience, changes in proportion, changes of assumptions,
differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, and contributions to the
plans subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the reporting period. These amounts are
deferred and amortized as required under pension and OPEB standards.
Deferred charges on refunding are reported as a deferred outflow of resources in both the proprietary fund
financial statements and the government-wide financial statements. This item represents the difference
between the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price, which is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
N. Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities. If they are material, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
In the governmental fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities when due and payable. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums or discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources or uses, respectively.
O. Compensated Absences
The City policy permits certain employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned, but unused vacation
and sick leave. The accrued compensated absences will be paid upon termination or when used.
Compensated absences are recognized when they mature in the governmental fund financial statements,
but accrued when earned in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The General Fund
is typically used to liquidate governmental compensated absences payable.
P. State-Wide Pension Plans
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association
(PERA) and additions to/deductions from the PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the PERA. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of
employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments, and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Q. Net Position
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position represents the difference
between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. Net position
is displayed in three components:
•

Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by any outstanding debt attributable to acquire capital assets.

•

Restricted Net Position – Consists of net position restricted when there are limitations imposed
on its use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments.

•

Unrestricted Net Position – All other elements of net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available.
R. Fund Balance Classifications
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in classifications that disclose
constraints for which amounts in those funds can be spent. These classifications are as follows:
•

Nonspendable – Consists of amounts that are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items,
inventory, and other long-term assets.

•

Restricted – Consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors,
grantors, or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory provisions.

•

Committed – Consists of internally imposed constraints that are established by resolution of the
City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City
Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to
previously commit those amounts.

•

Assigned – Consists of internally imposed constraints on amounts intended to be used by the City
for specific purposes, but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In
governmental funds, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the governing body
itself or by an official to which the governing body delegates the authority. Pursuant to City Council
resolution, the city manager is authorized to establish assignments of fund balance.

•

Unassigned – The residual classification for the General Fund, which also reflects negative residual
amounts in other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to first use
restricted resources, then use unrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned, or
unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use resources in the following
order: 1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) unassigned.
The City has formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund. The City’s policy is to maintain
an unassigned fund balance of 40 percent of the next year’s budgeted expenditures.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
S. Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City participates in the League of Minnesota Cities
Insurance Trust (LMCIT), a public entity risk pool for its general property and casualty, workers’
compensation, and other miscellaneous insurance coverage. The LMCIT operates as a common risk
management and insurance program for a large number of cities in Minnesota. The City pays an annual
premium to the LMCIT for insurance coverage. The LMCIT agreement provides that the trust will be
self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in
excess of certain limits. The City also carries commercial insurance for certain other risks of loss. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the current year.
T. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
A. Components of Cash and Investments
Cash and investments are presented in the financial statements as follows:
Primary government
Statement of Net Position

$

Component unit – HRA
Statement of Net Position

18,709,359

1,817,614

Total – reporting entity

$

20,526,973

$

6,216,405
14,291,133
19,435

$

20,526,973

Cash and investments at year-end consisted of the following:
Deposits
Investments
Cash on hand
Total cash and investments
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
B. Deposits
In accordance with applicable Minnesota Statutes, the City maintains deposits at depository banks
authorized by the City Council, including checking accounts and certificates of deposit. The following is
considered the most significant risk associated with deposits:
Custodial Credit Risk – In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may be lost.
Minnesota Statutes require that all deposits be protected by federal deposit insurance, corporate surety
bond, or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not
covered by federal deposit insurance or corporate surety bonds. Authorized collateral includes treasury
bills, notes, and bonds; issues of U.S. government agencies; general obligations rated “A” or better;
revenue obligations rated “AA” or better; irrevocable standard letters of credit issued by the Federal
Home Loan Bank; and certificates of deposit. Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as
collateral be held in safekeeping in a restricted account at the Federal Reserve Bank or in an account at
a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution that is not owned or controlled
by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. The City has no additional deposit policies
addressing custodial credit risk.
At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $6,216,405, while the balance on the bank
records was $6,376,027. At December 31, 2021, all deposits were fully covered by federal deposit
insurance, surety bonds, or by collateral held by the City’s agent in the City’s name.
C. Investments
The City had the following investments at year-end:

Investment Type
State and local government securities
State and local government securities
State and local government securities
Negotiable certificates of deposit
UBS Select Prime Institutional Fund
4M Fund
4M Plus Fund

Credit Risk
Rating
Agency

Fair Value
Measurements
Using

A
Moody’s
Aa
Moody’s
AA
S&P
Not Rated
AAA
Moody’s
Not Rated
Not Rated

Level 2
Level 2
Level 2
Level 2
NAV
N/A
N/A

Total investments

Interest Risk –
Maturity Duration in Years
Less Than 1
1 to 5
6 to 10
$
$
$
$

–
–
–
737,667
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ 598,978
$
–
$ 2,672,778
$ 2,244,316
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ 599,381
$ 2,750,679
$ 3,956,054
$ 724,125
N/A
N/A
N/A

Total
$ 1,198,359
2,750,679
6,628,832
3,706,108
2,151
1,573
3,431
$ 14,291,133

N/A – Not Applicable
NAV – Net Asset Value

All mutual funds currently held by the City reported at net asset value, have no unfunded commitments,
and have daily redemption frequencies with no redemption notice required. The Minnesota Municipal
Money Market (4M) Fund and 4M Plus Fund are external investment pools regulated by Minnesota Statutes
that are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but follow the regulatory rules
of the SEC. The City’s investments in these funds are measured at the value per share provided by the pool,
which is based on an amortized cost method that approximates fair value. There are no limitations or
restrictions on withdrawals for the 4M Fund. The 4M Plus Fund requires an initial 14-day investment
period, subject to a penalty equal to 7 days of interest on funds withdrawn prior to the 14-day restriction
period.
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments are subject to various risks, the following of which are considered the most significant:
Custodial Credit Risk – For investments, this is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty
to an investment transaction (typically a broker-dealer) the City would not be able to recover the value
of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does
not have a formal investment policy addressing this risk, but typically limits its exposure by purchasing
insured or registered investments, or by the control of who holds the securities.
Credit Risk – This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Minnesota Statutes limit the City’s investments to direct obligations or obligations
guaranteed by the United States or its agencies; shares of investment companies registered under the
Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 that receive the highest credit rating, are rated in one of the
two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and all of the investments have a final
maturity of 13 months or less; general obligations rated “A” or better; revenue obligations rated “AA”
or better; general obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or better; bankers’
acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System; commercial
paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, rated of the highest quality
category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less;
Guaranteed Investment Contracts guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, domestic branch of
a foreign bank, or a United States insurance company, and with a credit quality in one of the top
two highest categories; repurchase or reverse purchase agreements and securities lending agreements
with financial institutions qualified as a “depository” by the government entity, with banks that are
members of the Federal Reserve System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000; that are a primary
reporting dealer in U.S. government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; or certain
Minnesota securities broker-dealers. The City’s investment policies do not further address credit risk.
Concentration Risk – This is the risk associated with investing a significant portion of the City’s
investment (considered 5.0 percent or more) in the securities of a single issuer, excluding
U.S. guaranteed investments (such as treasuries), investment pools, and mutual funds. The City’s
investment policies do not limit the concentration of investments. As of December 31, 2021, the City
had 6.2 percent invested in New York, NY City Transit Authority Bonds, 7.0 percent invested in Chino,
CA Public Financing Authority Bonds, and 6.3 percent in University of Hawaii Bonds.
Interest Rate Risk – This is the risk of potential variability in the fair value of fixed rate investments
resulting from changes in interest rates (the longer the period for which an interest rate is fixed, the
greater the risk). The City’s investment policy limits investment maturities to a maximum of 10 years.
NOTE 3 – NOTES RECEIVABLE
At year-end, the HRA has a loan receivable from a local business with an outstanding balance of $10,000.
The loan has an annual interest rate of 3.0 percent, is secured by real property belonging to the business,
and matures when the underlying property is sold.
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:
A. Changes in Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities – Primary Government
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$ 7,663,994
1,315,585
8,979,579

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Land improvements
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation on
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Land improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets, being depreciated
Net capital assets

Additions

$

Completed
Construction

Deletions

–
1,367,269
1,367,269

–
–
–

$

$

Ending
Balance

–
–
–

$ 7,663,994
2,682,854
10,346,848

27,970,149
25,528,416
6,430,090
284,307
60,212,962

–
1,305,597
430,697
–
1,736,294

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

27,970,149
26,834,013
6,860,787
284,307
61,949,256

(6,377,696)
(4,450,735)
(3,881,478)
(57,206)
(14,767,115)

(593,764)
(1,127,011)
(448,673)
(14,215)
(2,183,663)

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

(6,971,460)
(5,577,746)
(4,330,151)
(71,421)
(16,950,778)

(447,369)

–

–

44,998,478

–

$ 55,345,326

45,445,847
$ 54,425,426

$

919,900

–

$

$

B. Changes in Capital Assets Used in Business-Type Activities – Primary Government
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

Additions

973,048
788,867
1,761,915

–
6,872
6,872

$

Completed
Construction

Deletions
–
–
–

$

$

–
(106,055)
(106,055)

Ending
Balance

$

973,048
689,684
1,662,732

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

9,547,831
14,484,999
1,430,087
25,462,917

–
87,133
5,000
92,133

–
–
–
–

–
106,055
–
106,055

Less accumulated depreciation on
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

(2,466,476)
(3,759,406)
(1,083,634)
(7,309,516)

(190,571)
(356,230)
(67,573)
(614,374)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

18,153,401

(522,241)

–

106,055

17,737,215

–

$ 19,399,947

Net capital assets, being depreciated
Net capital assets

$ 19,915,316

$

(515,369)

–

$

$

9,547,831
14,678,187
1,435,087
25,661,105

(2,657,047)
(4,115,636)
(1,151,207)
(7,923,890)

C. Changes in Capital Assets – Component Unit HRA
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land

Additions

$ 2,092,900

$

Completed
Construction

Deletions
–

$

–

$

–

Ending
Balance

$ 2,092,900
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
D. Depreciation Expense by Function – Primary Government
Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions:
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense – governmental activities
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Liquor
Stormwater
Total depreciation expense – business-type activities

$

253,501
238,228
1,608,233
83,701

$

2,183,663

$

249,361
123,393
114,587
127,033

$

614,374

NOTE 5 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
A. Due To/From Component Unit
The HRA component unit – Downtown TIF 6 Capital Projects Fund has borrowed $1,681,860 (out of an
approved maximum of loan $2,000,000) from the primary government – General Fund to provide
temporary financing for qualified improvement project costs approved in the TIF Plan. The loan will be
repaid from tax increment revenue generated by the improvements through annual principal and interest
payments due each December 31, commencing the first year the TIF District generates available tax
increment as defined by the loan agreement. Loan activity during the current year was as follows:
Loan

Beginning
Balance

Additions

TIF 6 Loan from the City’s General Fund

$ 623,352

$ 1,058,508

Deletions
$

–

Ending
Balance
$ 1,681,860
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)
B. Interfund Transfers
The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:
Transfers In
Lakefront
Nonmajor
Improvement
Governmental

Transfers Out
Fund
General
Lakefront Improvement
Nonmajor Governmental
Water Enterprise
Sewer Enterprise
Licensing Enterprise
Liquor Enterprise
Stormwater Enterprise

General

Total

$

–
149,668
51,000
31,000
31,000
56,000
175,000
10,000

$

131,316
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

$ 1,015,672
–
5,000
38,568
58,433
25,000
–
55,000

$ 1,146,988
149,668
56,000
69,568
89,433
81,000
175,000
65,000

$

503,668

$

131,316

$ 1,197,673

$ 1,832,657

The City annually budgets transfers for specific purposes. Annual transfers include transfers made to cover
costs of operation, and transfers made as part of capital improvement plans.
NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Changes in the City’s long-term liabilities during the year were as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
G.O. tax increment bonds
Premium
Total bonds
Compensated absences payable
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
G.O. revenue bonds
G.O. improvement bonds
Premium
Total bonds
Compensated absences payable
Total business-type activities
Total government-wide

$

680,000
3,630,000
11,170,000
630,882
16,110,882

Additions
–
–
–
–
–

$

Ending
Balance

Reductions

$

225,000
320,000
270,000
52,994
867,994

$

455,000
3,310,000
10,900,000
577,888
15,242,888

Due Within
One Year

$

225,000
335,000
405,000
–
965,000

391,427

363,879

382,223

373,083

234,138

16,502,309

363,879

1,250,217

15,615,971

1,199,138

4,835,000
1,290,000
249,688
6,374,688

–
–
–
–

325,000
110,000
20,888
455,888

4,510,000
1,180,000
228,800
5,918,800

330,000
115,000
–
445,000

125,786

122,012

126,374

121,424

74,273

6,500,474

122,012

582,262

6,040,224

519,273

485,891

$ 1,832,479

$ 21,656,195

$ 1,718,411

$ 23,002,783

$
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
B. Bonds Payable
The components of the City’s outstanding bonded debt at year-end were as follows:
Authorized
and Issued

Interest Rate

Original
Issue

Maturity

$
370,000
$ 1,885,000

3.00–3.88%
2.00–3.00%

05/19/2009
09/15/2012

12/01/2023
12/01/2023

General obligation improvement bonds
G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2019A
G.O. Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B
Total general obligation improvement bonds

$ 1,980,000
$ 1,650,000

1.75–2.10%
1.15–2.00%

05/30/2019
11/10/2020

02/01/2030
02/01/2035

1,810,000
1,500,000
3,310,000

General obligation tax increment bonds
G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2016A
G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2020A
Total general obligation tax increment bonds

$ 7,725,000
$ 3,710,000

1.10–4.00%
2.00–3.00%

12/29/2016
05/28/2020

02/01/2041
02/01/2040

7,190,000
3,710,000
10,900,000

Description
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds
G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds, Series 2009B
G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A
Total general obligation bonds

Total governmental activities

Balance
at Year-End

$

60,000
395,000
455,000

14,665,000

Business-type activities
General obligation revenue bonds
G.O. Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A
G.O. Liquor and Restaurant Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B
Total general obligation bonds
General obligation improvement bonds
G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2012B
G.O. Improvement Bonds, Series 2012C
Total general obligation improvement bonds

$ 2,775,000
$ 2,450,000

3.00%
1.15–2.00%

12/28/2017
11/10/2020

12/01/2031
12/01/2035

2,200,000
2,310,000
4,510,000

$ 1,520,000
$
545,000

2.00–3.00%
2.00–3.00%

09/05/2012
09/05/2012

12/01/2032
12/01/2027

925,000
255,000
1,180,000

Total business-type activities

5,690,000

Total government-wide

$ 20,355,000

C. Minimum Debt Payments
Minimum annual payments required to retire bonds are as follows:
Governmental Activities
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027–2031
2032–2036
2037–2041

Business-Type Activities
Principal
Interest

$

965,000
1,080,000
875,000
900,000
920,000
4,575,000
2,540,000
2,810,000

$

408,189
381,704
352,416
328,929
304,391
1,133,596
678,190
249,747

$

445,000
460,000
470,000
485,000
500,000
2,520,000
810,000
–

$

140,105
128,768
116,655
104,243
91,443
258,713
28,498
–

$

14,665,000

$

3,837,162

$

5,690,000

$

868,425
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
D. Descriptions of Long-Term Liabilities
•

General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds – The City issues G.O. bonds to provide funds for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and projects, or to refund previous bond
issues. These bonds will be repaid primarily with ad valorem tax levies. G.O. bonds are backed by
the full faith and credit of the City.

•

G.O. Improvement (Special Assessment) Bonds – G.O. improvement bonds are issued to finance
various improvements to be repaid primarily from special assessments levied on the properties
benefitting from the improvements and net revenues pledged by the enterprise funds.
G.O. improvement bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

•

G. O. Tax Increment Bonds – The City issues G.O. tax increment bonds to provide funding for
projects within a tax increment financing district that will be repaid primarily with tax increment
financing. G.O. tax increment bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
The City has pledged tax increment revenues generated by Tax Increment District No. 5 to the debt
service requirements related to the G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2016A, through maturity of
the bond. There was $496,348 of pledged revenue from tax increments and $496,348 of debt service
principal and interest requirements for the year ended December 31, 2021. It is anticipated tax
increment revenues will be sufficient to provide not less than 105 percent of principal and interest
on the bonds as required by Minnesota state law.

•

General Obligation Revenue Bonds – The City issues general obligation revenue bonds to finance
capital improvements in the enterprise funds. Along with G.O. special assessment bonds, they will
be repaid from future net operating revenues pledged from enterprise funds and are backed by the
taxing power of the City. Annual net operating revenues, principal and interest payments, and
percentage of revenue required to cover the principal and interest payments is disclosed below:
Water
Net operating revenues
Principal and interest
Percentage of revenues

$
$

1,077,649
355,300
33%

Sewer
$
$

1,451,684
49,350
3%

Liquor
$
$

3,029,027
185,911
6%

•

Compensated Absences – This liability represents vested benefits earned by employees through
the end of the year, which will be paid or used in future periods. The General, Water, Sewer,
Licensing, and Liquor Funds will be used to liquidate this liability.

•

Total OPEB and Net Pension Liabilities – The City also provides OPEB and pension benefits to
employees as described later in these notes. The General Fund and enterprise funds will be used to
liquidate these liabilities.
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NOTE 7 – FUND EQUITY
A. Components of Fund Balances
The components of the City’s fund balances at year-end were as follows:

General
Nonspendable
Prepaid items
Due from component unit
Total nonspendable

$

Debt Service

3,437
1,681,860
1,685,297

$

–
–
–

Lakefront
Developer
Improvement
Financed
Capital Projects Capital Projects

$

–
–
–

$

–
–
–

Nonmajor
Funds

$

Total
–
–
–

$

3,437
1,681,860
1,685,297

Restricted
Debt service
Parks and trails
Public safety police
Total restricted

–
–
–
–

1,130,916
–
–
1,130,916

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
706,450
18,072
724,522

1,130,916
706,450
18,072
1,855,438

Committed
Cemetery
Cable TV
Comprehensive plan
Total committed

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

22,061
35,161
65,438
122,660

22,061
35,161
65,438
122,660

282,178
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
706,870
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
1,454,158
2,414,246
821,689

282,178
706,870
1,454,158
2,414,246
821,689

–
–
282,178

–
–
–

–
–
706,870

–
1,605
1,605

406,962
1,841,602
6,938,657

406,962
1,843,207
7,929,310

2,044,797

–

–

–

–

2,044,797

7,785,839

$ 13,637,502

Assigned
Insurance
Lakefront improvement
Street improvements
Capital equipment
Parks and trails
Community room/
library improvement
Other capital projects
Total assigned
Unassigned
General Fund
Total

$

4,012,272

$

1,130,916

$

706,870

$

1,605

$

B. Deficit Fund Equity
The City’s Licensing Enterprise Fund had a deficit net position of $207,159 at year-end, which is expected
to be eliminated through future charges for services.
The HRA component unit’s Downtown TIF 6 Capital Projects Fund had a fund balance deficit at year-end
of $1,611,940, which is expected to be eliminated with future tax increments.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE
A. Plan Descriptions
The City participates in the following cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by the PERA of Minnesota. The PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. The PERA’s defined benefit
pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
1. General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF)
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by the GERF. The GERF
members belong to the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social
Security.
2. Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF)
The Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF), originally established for police officers and
firefighters not covered by a local relief association, now covers all police officers and firefighters
hired since 1980. Effective July 1, 1999, the PEPFF also covers police officers and firefighters
belonging to local relief associations that elected to merge with and transfer assets and
administration to the PERA.
The following table summarizes the net pension liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and
pension expense related to these plans as of and for the City’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2021:

Pension Plans
PERA – GERF
PERA – PEPFF
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Net Pension
Liabilities

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

Pension
Expense

$

2,340,206
813,576

$

1,711,830
1,556,529

$

2,149,891
2,042,304

$

118,478
(39,786)

$

3,153,782

$

3,268,359

$

4,192,195

$

78,692

B. Benefits Provided
The PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state
statutes and can only be modified by the State Legislature. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled
to benefits, but are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last
terminated their public service.
1. GERF Benefits
Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable
service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to compute
benefits for the PERA’s Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive
the higher of Method 1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after
June 30, 1989. Under Method 1, the accrual rate for Coordinated Plan members is 1.2 percent for
each of the first 10 years of service, and 1.7 percent for each additional year. Under Method 2, the
accrual rate for Coordinated Plan members is 1.7 percent for all years of service. For members
hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 90, and
normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is
the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at age 66.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The post-retirement increase is
equal to 50.0 percent of the cost of living adjustment (COLA) announced by the Social Security
Administration, with a minimum increase of at least 1.0 percent and a maximum of 1.5 percent.
Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least a full year as of the June 30
before the effective date of the increase, will receive the full increase. Recipients receiving the
annuity or benefit for at least one month, but less than a full year as of the June 30 before the
effective date of the increase, will receive a reduced prorated increase. For members retiring on
January 1, 2024 or later, the increase will be delayed until normal retirement age (age 65 if hired
prior to July 1, 1989, or age 66 for individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retiring
under Rule of 90 are exempt from the delay to normal retirement.
2. PEPFF Benefits
Benefits for the PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2010 but before July 1, 2014, vest on a
prorated basis from 50.0 percent after five years, up to 100.0 percent after 10 years of credited
service. Benefits for the PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2014 vest on a prorated basis
from 50.0 percent after 10 years, up to 100.0 percent after 20 years of credited service. The annuity
accrual rate is 3.0 percent of average salary for each year of service. For Police and Fire Plan
members who were first hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years
of service equal at least 90.
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The post-retirement increase is
fixed at 1.0 percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least 36 months
as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase, will receive the full increase. Recipients
receiving the annuity or benefit for at least 25 months, but less than 36 months as of the June 30
before the effective date of the increase, will receive a reduced prorated increase.
C. Contributions
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates
can only be modified by the State Legislature.
1. GERF Contributions
Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered salary
in fiscal year 2021, and the City was required to contribute 7.50 percent for Coordinated Plan
members. The City’s contributions to the GERF for the year ended December 31, 2021, were
$334,639. The City’s contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statutes.
2. PEPFF Contributions
Police and Fire Plan members were required to contribute 11.80 percent of their annual covered
salary in fiscal year 2021, and the City was required to contribute 17.70 percent for Police and Fire
Plan members. The City’s contributions to the PEPFF for the year ended December 31, 2021, were
$226,636. The City’s contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statutes.

-44Page 235 of 499

NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
D. Pension Costs
1. GERF Pension Costs
At December 31, 2021, the City reported a liability of $2,340,206 for its proportionate share of the
GERF’s net pension liability. The City’s net pension liability reflected a reduction, due to the state
of Minnesota’s contribution of $16.0 million. The state of Minnesota is considered a nonemployer
contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation.
The state of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City
totaled $71,499. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions
received by the PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1,
2020 through June 30, 2021, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of the
PERA’s participating employers. The City’s proportionate share was 0.0548 percent at the end of
the measurement period and 0.0536 percent for the beginning of the period.
The amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct
aid, and total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the City were as follows:
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the City

$

2,340,206

$

71,499

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $112,709 for its
proportionate share of the GERF’s pension expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional
$5,769 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the state of
Minnesota’s contribution of $16.0 million to the GERF.
At December 31, 2021, the City reported its proportionate share of the GERF’s deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual economic experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Net collective difference between projected and actual
investment earnings
Changes in proportion
Contributions paid to the PERA subsequent to the
measurement date
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

$

13,617
1,428,881

71,436
50,122

–
93,374

2,028,333
–

175,958

–

$ 1,711,830

$ 2,149,891
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
A total of $175,958 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
city contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Pension
Expense
Amount

Year Ending
December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025

$
$
$
$

(48,952)
7,692
(19,967)
(552,792)

2. PEPFF Pension Costs
At December 31, 2021, the City reported a liability of $813,576 for its proportionate share of the
PEPFF’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s
contributions received by the PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates
from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, relative to the total employer contributions received from
all of the PERA’s participating employers. The City’s proportionate share was 0.1054 percent at
the end of the measurement period and 0.1012 percent for the beginning of the period.
The state of Minnesota contributed $18.0 million to the PEPFF in the plan fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021. The contribution consisted of $9.0 million in direct state aid that does meet the
definition of a special funding situation and $9.0 million in supplemental state aid that does not
meet the definition of a special funding situation. The $9.0 million direct state aid was paid on
October 1, 2020. Thereafter, by October 1 of each year, the state will pay $9.0 million to the PEPFF
until full funding is reached or July 1, 2048, whichever is earlier. The $9.0 million in supplemental
state aid will continue until the fund is 90.0 percent funded, or until the State Patrol Plan
(administered by the Minnesota State Retirement System) is 90.0 percent funded, whichever occurs
later. Strong asset returns for the fiscal year ended 2021 will accelerate the phasing out of these
state contributions, although we do not anticipate them to be phased out during the fiscal year
ending 2022.
The state of Minnesota is included as a nonemployer contributing entity in the Police and Fire
Retirement Plan Schedule of Employer Allocations and Schedule of Pension Amounts by
Employer, Current Reporting Period Only (pension allocation schedules) for the $9.0 million in
direct state aid. Police and Fire Plan employers need to recognize their proportionate share of the
state of Minnesota’s pension expense (and grant revenue) under GASB 68 special funding situation
accounting and financial reporting requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City
recognized negative pension expense of $46,445 for its proportionate share of the Police and Fire
Plan’s pension expense. The City recognized $6,659 as grant revenue for its proportionate share of
the state of Minnesota’s pension expense for the contribution of $9.0 million to the PEPFF.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
The amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct
aid, and total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the City were as follows:
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the City

$

813,576

$

36,563

The state of Minnesota is not included as a nonemployer contributing entity in the Police and Fire
Pension Plan pension allocation schedules for the $9.0 million in supplemental state aid. The City
recognized $9,486 for the year ended December 31, 2021 as revenue and an offsetting reduction of
net pension liability for its proportionate share of the state of Minnesota’s on-behalf contributions
to the PEPFF.
At December 31, 2021, the City reported its proportionate share of the PEPFF’s deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Net collective difference between projected and actual
investment earnings
Changes in proportion
Contributions paid to the PERA subsequent to the
measurement date
Total

$

$

158,045
1,222,860

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources
$

6,039
457,044

–
63,779

1,558,546
20,675

111,845

–

1,556,529

$

2,042,304

A total of $111,845 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
city contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Pension
Expense
Amount

Year Ending
December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

$
$
$
$
$

(523,888)
(98,517)
(85,965)
(151,021)
261,771
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
E. Long-Term Expected Return on Investments
The Minnesota State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of the PERA, prepares an
analysis of the reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by
weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation
and best-estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:
Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Domestic equity
International equity
Fixed income
Private markets

33.50 %
16.50
25.00
25.00

Total

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
5.10
5.30
0.75
5.90

%
%
%
%

100.00 %

F. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using an individual
entry-age normal actuarial cost method. The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments used in
the determination of the total liability is 6.50 percent. This assumption is based on a review of inflation and
investments return assumptions from a number of national investment consulting firms. The review
provided a range of return investment return rates deemed to be reasonable by the actuary. An investment
return of 6.50 percent was deemed to be within that range of reasonableness for financial reporting purposes.
Inflation is assumed to be 2.25 percent for the General Employees Plan and 2.25 percent for the Police and
Fire Plan. Benefit increases after retirement are assumed to be 1.25 percent for the General Employees Plan.
The Police and Fire Plan benefit increase is fixed at 1.00 percent per year and that increase was used in the
valuation.
Salary growth assumptions in the General Employees Plan range in annual increments from 10.25 percent
after one year of service to 3.00 percent after 29 years of service, and 6.00 percent per year thereafter. In
the Police and Fire Plan, salary growth assumptions range from 11.75 percent after one year of service to
3.00 percent after 24 years of service.
Mortality rates for the General Employees Plan are based on the Pub-2010 General Employee Mortality
Table. Mortality rates for the Police and Fire Plan are based on the Pub-2010 Public Safety Employee
Mortality tables. The tables are adjusted slightly to fit the PERA’s experience.
Actuarial assumptions for the General Employees Plan are reviewed every four years. The most recent
four-year experience study for the General Employees Plan was completed in 2019. The assumption
changes were adopted by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation. The
most recent four-year experience study for the Police and Fire Plan was completed in 2020, adopted by the
Board, and became effective with the July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2021:
1. GERF
CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•

The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to
6.50 percent, for financial reporting purposes.
The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.

2. PEPFF
CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to
6.50 percent, for financial reporting purposes.
The inflation assumption was changed from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent.
The payroll growth assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the
RP-2014 table to the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality table. The mortality improvement scale
was changed from MP-2019 to MP-2020.
The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 healthy
annuitant mortality table (with future mortality improvement according to Scale MP-2019) to
the Pub-2010 Public Safety disabled annuitant mortality table (with future mortality
improvement according to Scale MP-2020).
Assumed rates of salary increase were modified as recommended in the July 14, 2020
experience study. The overall impact is a decrease in gross salary increase rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the July 14, 2020 experience
study. The changes result in slightly more unreduced retirements and fewer assumed early
retirements.
Assumed rates of withdrawal were changed from select and ultimate rates to service-based
rates. The changes result in more assumed terminations.
Assumed rates of disability were increased for ages 25–44 and decreased for ages over 49.
Overall, proposed rates result in more projected disabilities.
Assumed percent married for active female members was changed from 60.00 percent to
70.00 percent. Minor changes to form of payment assumptions were applied.

G. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2021 was 6.50 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and
employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net
positions of the GERF and the PEPFF were projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – STATE-WIDE (CONTINUED)
H. Pension Liability Sensitivity
The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it
participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:
1% Decrease in
Discount Rate
5.50%

1% Increase in
Discount Rate
7.50%

Discount Rate
6.50%

City’s proportionate share of
the GERF net pension liability

$

4,772,825

$

2,340,206

$

344,093

City’s proportionate share of
the PEPFF net pension liability

$

2,582,967

$

813,576

$

(636,886)

I. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued
PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained on the internet at www.mnpera.org.
NOTE 9 – DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN – FIRE RELIEF ASSOCIATION
The City contributes to the Wayzata Fire Department Relief Association (the Association), a
single-employer defined contribution lump sum service pension plan. Volunteer firefighters of the City are
members of the Association and its pension plan. Partial vesting of retirement benefits occurs at year 10
and continues based on years of service up to 20 years of service, at which time participants are 100 percent
vested for retirement benefit purposes. On termination of service, a vested participant receives a single,
lump sum distribution.
The City passes through state aids allocated to the plan in accordance with Minnesota Statutes. The City’s
payroll for members of the Association for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $74,252, compared to a
total city payroll of $6,308,294. The Association issues a publicly available financial report, which may be
obtained at Wayzata City Hall.
Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 424 and 424A, authorize pension benefits for volunteer fire relief
associations. A firefighter who completes as least 20 years as an active member of the fire department and
the Association, after age 50, is entitled to a full service pension upon retirement.
Total contributions to the Association’s Pension Fund for 2021 amounted to $127,110, of which $80,110
was state aid passed through the City for the Association. The contributions are apportioned to the accounts
of active members in equal shares.
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN
A. Plan Description
The City provides post-employment insurance benefits to certain eligible employees through its OPEB
Plan, a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by the City. All post-employment benefits are
based on contractual agreements with employee groups. Eligibility for these benefits is based on years of
service and/or minimum age requirements. These contractual agreements do not include any specific
contribution or funding requirements. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. No plan
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
B. Benefits Provided
All retirees of the City upon retirement have the option under state law to continue their medical insurance
coverage through the City. For police or firefighters disabled in the line-of-duty, Minnesota Statutes require
the City to continue to pay the employer contribution toward health insurance coverage for the police officer
or firefighter and their spouse, if the spouse was covered at the time of disability, until age 65. Retirees not
eligible for these city-paid premium benefits must pay the full city premium rate for their coverage.
The City is legally required to include any retirees for whom it provides health insurance coverage in the
same insurance pool as its active employees until the retiree reaches Medicare eligibility, whether the
premiums are paid by the City or the retiree. Consequently, participating retirees are considered to receive
a secondary benefit known as an “implicit rate subsidy.” This benefit relates to the assumption that the
retiree is receiving a more favorable premium rate than they would otherwise be able to obtain if purchasing
insurance on their own, due to being included in the same pool with the City’s younger and statistically
healthier active employees.
C. Contributions
The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with additional
amounts to prefund benefits as determined periodically by the City. The City’s current year required
pay-as-you-go contributions to finance the benefits described in the previous section totaled $29,856.
D. Membership
Membership in the Plan consisted of the following as of the latest actuarial valuation:
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total members

5
50
55

E. Total OPEB Liability of the City
The City’s total OPEB liability of $386,486 was measured as of December 31, 2020 and was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020.
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
F. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020, using the entry-age
normal level percent of pay method, and the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Discount rate
Inflation rate
Payroll growth rate
Medical trend rate

2.12%
2.50%
3.25%
7.33% decreasing to 5.00% over 7 years

The discount rate used was decreased to 2.12 percent from 2.74 percent used in the previous valuation.
Mortality rates used in the valuation, as listed below, are based on the PERA plan of which the employee,
retiree, or beneficiary is a participant. All mortality rates in the current valuation were updated to use
RP-2014 mortality tables adjusted for white collar and/or mortality improvements using projection
Scale MP-2018 from a base year of 2014, from the RP-2014 mortality tables adjusted for white collar and/or
mortality improvements using projection Scale MP-2016 from a base year of 2014 used in the previous
valuation.
Coordinated
Healthy Pre-Retirementt
RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table adjusted for white collar and mortality improvements using
projection Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2014. Rates are set forward one year for males and set
back one year for females.
Healthy Post-Retirement
RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, adjusted for white collar and mortality improvements
using projection Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2014. Rates are set forward two years for males.
Female rates are multiplied by a factor of 0.90.
Disabled
RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table, adjusted for mortality improvements using projection
Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2014. Rates are set forward one year for males and set forward
six years for females.
Police and Fire, Correctional
Healthy Pre-Retirement
RP-2014 Employee Generational Mortality Table projected with Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2006.
Healthy Post-Retirement
RP-2014 Annuitant Generational Mortality Table projected with Mortality Improvement
Scale MP-2018, from a base year of 2006. Male rates are adjusted by a factor of 0.96.
Disabled
RP-2014 Annuitant Generational Mortality Table projected Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018,
from a base year of 2006. Male rates are adjusted by a factor of 0.96.
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
G. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB
Liability
Beginning balance – January 1, 2021

$ 342,219

Changes for the year
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments – employer-financed
Total net changes

36,808
10,135
6,879
8,671
(18,227)
44,266

Ending balance – December 31, 2021

$ 386,485

H. Total OPEB Liability Sensitivity to Discount and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Changes
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current discount rate:
1% Decrease in
Discount Rate

Discount Rate

1.12%

OPEB discount rate
Total OPEB liability

$

1% Increase in
Discount Rate
3.12%

2.12%

412,448

$

386,485

$

361,631

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using medical healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or
1 percentage point higher than the current medical healthcare cost trend rates:
1% Decrease in
Medical Trend Rate
6.33% decreasing to
4.00% over 7 years

OPEB medical trend rate

Total OPEB liability

Medical Trend Rate

$

344,711

1% Increase in
Medical Trend Rate

7.33% decreasing to
5.00% over 7 years
$

386,485

8.33% decreasing to
6.00% over 7 years
$

435,141
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NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
I. OPEB Expense and Related Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $32,693. As of year-end, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

$

5,974
33,286

–

29,856
$

69,116

106,576
10,665

$

117,241

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $29,856 related to OPEB resulting from the City’s contributions to
the plan subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB
liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year Ending
December 31,

OPEB Expense
Amount

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

$
$
$
$
$
$

(14,251)
(14,251)
(14,251)
(14,447)
(14,901)
(5,880)

NOTE 11 – OPERATING LEASES
A. Antenna and Ground Space Lease
The City leases space on its new monopole and the ground surface located under the pole to three companies
that use the space for their antennas and equipment. The leases are five-year leases with three additional
five-year renewal periods and are cancellable by either party by giving 60 days’ written notice. In 2019,
new agreements were negotiated with each of the tenants using a base dollar amount. The lease amount is
adjusted each January 1 by the greatest of 5 percent, or the percentage increase of the Consumer Price
Index. Antenna and ground space rent received in 2021 totaled $289,764. The monopole is located on
Wayzata School District property, which the City leases for an annual amount of $24,000.
B. Library Lease
The City leases space to Hennepin County, which expired and was renegotiated on April 30, 2018, with an
automatic renewal for the next 10 years. The initial negotiated base rate is $65,915 with a 2.5 percent
increase each year for four years, and a 3.0 percent increase for the last five years. The lease is cancelable
by either party by giving 180 days’ written notice. The cost of the building being leased is $4,253,125, and
the accumulated depreciation is $1,616,188 as of December 31, 2021. A portion of the base rent
(25.0 percent) reimburses the City for building and grounds operating costs. The library pays for its own
utility service. Library rent of $70,406 was received in 2021.
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NOTE 12 – TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENTS
A. Primary Government
Boulevard Apartments
The City entered into a tax abatement agreement on December 7, 2010, with a developer in which the
developer incurs costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some
costs as the City collects future taxes paid by said developer for the increased property value and tax
capacity related to the economic development. The agreement has a maximum return to the developer of
$11,040 over the life of the agreement (15 years). The agreement was negotiated under state law (Minnesota
Statutes § 469.1813). The taxes abated during the fiscal year are noted below.
Village Apartments
The City entered into a tax abatement agreement on June 20, 2006, with a developer in which the developer
incurs costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as
the City collects future taxes paid by said developer for the increased property value and tax capacity related
to the economic development. The agreement has a maximum return to the developer of $14,400 over the
life of the agreement (15 years), and $736 per year. The agreement was negotiated under state law
(Minnesota Statutes § 469.1813). The taxes abated during the fiscal year are:
Amount of
Taxes Abated
During the
Fiscal Year
Boulevard Apartments
Village Apartments

$
$

1,024
480

B. Component Unit
The HRA entered into a tax increment financing agreement with a developer in which the developer incurs
costs for property improvements. In return, the City will reimburse the developer for some costs as the City
collects future tax increment for the increased property value and tax capacity related to the economic
development. The agreement has a maximum return to the developer of $22,910,879 over the life of the
agreement (maximum 25 years). The agreement was negotiated under state law (Minnesota Statutes
§ 469.175). The calculation of taxes abated during the fiscal year is noted below:
Original
Tax Capacity
Rate
Tax Increment District 5 (Bay Center)

20.308%

Captured
Tax
Capacity
$

3,167,524

Amount of
Taxes Abated
During the
Fiscal Year
$

2,012,825
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NOTE 13 – TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND COMPONENT UNIT
The City conducts routine transactions with its component unit for services provided. The City provides
administrative and financial services for the HRA’s activities. The HRA contributed $45,000 to the City
during 2021 for these administrative services, $543,107 for debt service costs, and $1,230,925 for capital
improvement projects.
NOTE 14 – COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
A. Legal Claims
The City generally follows the practice of recording liabilities resulting from claims and legal actions only
when they become fixed or determinable in amount. Management does not anticipate any significant losses
that would not be covered by insurance.
B. Federal and State Receivables
Amounts recorded or receivable from federal and state agencies are subject to agency audit and adjustment.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of claims which may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined
at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
C. Tax Increment Districts
The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the Office of the State Auditor. Any disallowed
claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the applicable fund. City management is not
aware of any instances of noncompliance that would have a material effect on the financial statements.
D. Construction Commitments
The City is committed to various construction contracts for improvement of city property. The City’s
remaining commitment under these contracts was approximately $181,375 at year-end.
E. Conduit Debt Obligations
The City entered into a Cooperative Agreement with the City of Minnetonka to issue a Housing Revenue
Note for $6,250,000. Conduit debt obligations are certain limited-obligation revenue bonds or similar debt
instruments issued for the express purpose of providing capital financing for a specific third party. The City
of Minnetonka has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private sector entities for projects
deemed to be in the public interest. Although these bonds bear the name of the City of Minnetonka, the
City, the state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
In addition, the City entered into a Cooperative Agreement with Hammer Residence to issue a Housing
Revenue Note for $5,500,000. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2021 is $802,947. The City, the
state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
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NOTE 14 – COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(CONTINUED)
F. New Accounting Standards
A new standard has been issued by GASB that will result in significant changes in the reporting of lease
transactions once it becomes effective for governmental entities. This standard will be adopted by the City
beginning in 2022, and will require the restatement of certain balances reported as of December 31, 2021.
The effects of this change have not yet been determined and are not reflected in these financial statements.
G. COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic has had significant financial and operational impacts on the City for the last
two fiscal years. Any potential impact it may have on the City’s future operations and finances cannot be
determined at this time and has not been reflected in these financial statements.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
PERA – General Employees Retirement Fund
Schedule of City’s and Nonemployer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Year Ended December 31, 2021

City Fiscal
Year-End Date

PERA Fiscal
Year-End Date
(Measurement
Date)

12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020
12/31/2021

06/30/2015
06/30/2016
06/30/2017
06/30/2018
06/30/2019
06/30/2020
06/30/2021

City’s
Proportion
of the Net
Pension
Liability
0.0492%
0.0471%
0.0496%
0.0516%
0.0519%
0.0536%
0.0548%

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,549,799
3,824,286
3,166,431
2,862,556
2,869,435
3,213,565
2,340,206

–
49,931
39,785
93,910
89,329
99,179
71,499

Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability and
the City’s
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,549,799
3,874,217
3,206,216
2,956,466
2,958,764
3,312,744
2,411,705

City’s
Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,889,952
2,907,012
3,192,942
3,413,642
3,668,748
3,820,117
3,878,623

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
as a
Percentage
of the Total
Pension
Liability

88.23%
131.55%
99.17%
83.86%
78.21%
84.12%
60.34%

78.20%
68.90%
75.90%
79.50%
80.20%
79.10%
87.00%

PERA – General Employees Retirement Fund
Schedule of City Contributions
Year Ended December 31, 2021

City Fiscal
Year-End Date
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020
12/31/2021

Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contributions
in Relation to
the Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

221,233
226,098
245,260
267,307
288,235
271,112
334,639

221,233
226,098
245,260
267,307
288,235
271,112
334,639

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,949,778
3,014,640
3,270,133
3,564,093
3,842,870
3,609,248
4,469,736

Contributions
as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.51%
7.49%

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 in fiscal 2015 (using a June 30, 2015 measurement date). This schedule is intended to present
10-year trend information. Additional years will be added as they become available.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
PERA – Public Employees Police and Fire Fund
Schedule of City’s and Nonemployer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Year Ended December 31, 2021

City’s
Proportion
of the Net
Pension
Liability

PERA Fiscal
Year-End Date
City Fiscal
(Measurement
Year-End Date
Date)
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020
12/31/2021

06/30/2015
06/30/2016
06/30/2017
06/30/2018
06/30/2019
06/30/2020
06/30/2021

0.1020%
0.1020%
0.1010%
0.0981%
0.1010%
0.1012%
0.1054%

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,158,959
4,093,437
1,363,620
1,045,645
1,075,247
1,333,924
813,576

–
–
–
–
–
31,430
36,563

Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability and
the City’s
Share of the
State of
Minnesota’s
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,158,959
4,093,437
1,363,620
1,045,645
1,075,247
1,365,354
850,139

City’s
Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

936,215
982,601
1,033,368
1,033,534
1,065,638
1,143,195
1,245,238

City’s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
as a
Percentage
of the Total
Pension
Liability

123.79%
416.59%
131.96%
101.17%
100.90%
116.68%
65.33%

86.60%
63.90%
85.40%
88.80%
89.30%
87.20%
93.70%

PERA – Public Employees Police and Fire Fund
Schedule of City Contributions
Year Ended December 31, 2021

City Fiscal
Year-End Date
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020
12/31/2021

Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contributions
in Relation to
the Statutorily
Required
Contributions

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

153,685
164,719
164,989
173,672
183,640
208,688
226,636

153,685
164,719
164,989
173,672
183,640
208,688
226,636

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Covered
Payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

948,675
1,016,784
1,018,451
1,072,049
1,085,584
1,179,002
1,280,433

Contributions
as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
16.20%
16.20%
16.20%
16.20%
16.92%
17.70%
17.70%

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 in fiscal 2015 (using a June 30, 2015 measurement date). This schedule is intended to present
10-year trend information. Additional years will be added as they become available.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan
Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability

$

Total OPEB liability – beginning of year

33,826
15,107

$

37,028
14,958

2020

$

30,537
18,187

2021

$

36,808
10,135

–
8,276
(24,770)
32,439

–
(17,311)
(25,706)
8,969

(144,604)
29,464
(10,991)
(77,407)

6,879
8,671
(18,227)
44,266

378,218

410,657

419,626

342,219

Total OPEB liability – end of year

$

Covered-employee payroll

$ 3,300,000

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

2019

410,657

12.44%

$

419,626

$ 3,400,000

12.34%

$

342,219

$ 3,800,000

9.01%

$

386,485

$ 3,900,000

9.91%

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 75 in fiscal 2018. This schedule is intended to present 10-year trend
information. Additional years will be added as they become available.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2021

PERA – GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
2021

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•

2020

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

2020

The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to
6.50 percent, for financial reporting purposes.
The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.

The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent.
The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.
Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25 percent less than previous rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90
and early retirements.
Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous rates for
years two through five, and slightly higher thereafter.
Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience
study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females.
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014
Table to the Pub-2010 General Mortality Table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for
disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table to the
Pub-2010 General/Teacher Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table, with adjustments.
The mortality improvement scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.
The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year
older.
The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100.00 percent joint and
survivor option changed from 35.00 percent to 45.00 percent. The assumed number of married
female new retirees electing the 100.00 percent joint and survivor option changed from
15.00 percent to 30.00 percent. The corresponding number of married new retirees electing the
life annuity option was adjusted accordingly.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.00 percent for the period
July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2023, and zero percent thereafter. Augmentation was
eliminated for privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information (continued)
December 31, 2021

PERA – GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
2019

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2019

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

2018

The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from
$31.0 million to $21.0 million per year. The state’s special funding contribution was changed
prospectively, requiring $16.0 million due per year through 2031.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•

2018

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017.
The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044, and
2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.25 percent per year.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period
starting July 1, 2019, resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024.
Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent,
beginning July 1, 2018.
Deferred augmentation was changed to zero percent, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation
that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.
Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed.
Post-retirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00 percent per year with a provision to
increase to 2.50 percent upon attainment of 90.00 percent funding ratio to 50.00 percent of the
Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00 percent and not more than
1.50 percent, beginning January 1, 2019.
For retirements on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the retiree
reaches normal retirement age; does not apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability benefit
recipients, or survivors.
Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions.

-62Page 255 of 499

CITY OF WAYZATA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (continued)
December 31, 2021

PERA – GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
2017

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

•

2017

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•
•

2016

•
•

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2035, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year for all years.
The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent. The single
discount rate changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.
Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study June 30, 2015. The assumed
future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to
3.25 percent for payroll growth, and 2.50 percent for inflation.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2015

The state’s contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals $16.0 million
in 2017 and 2018, and $6.0 million thereafter.
The Employer Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund
changed from $21.0 million to $31.0 million in calendar years 2019 to 2031. The state’s
contribution changed from $16.0 million to $6.0 million in calendar years 2019 to 2031.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2015

The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.80 percent for active
members and 60.00 percent for vested and nonvested deferred members. The revised CSA
loads are now zero percent for active member liability, 15.00 percent for vested deferred
member liability, and 3.00 percent for nonvested deferred member liability.
The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year for
all years, to 1.00 percent per year through 2044, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter.

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2030, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year through 2035, and
2.50 percent per year thereafter.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General
Employees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increased the
fiduciary plan net position by $892.0 million. Upon consolidation, state and employer
contributions were revised; the state’s contribution of $6.0 million, which meets the special
funding situation definition, was due September 2015.
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PERA – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND
2021

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

2020

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2019

The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to
6.50 percent, for financial reporting purposes.
The inflation assumption was changed from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent.
The payroll growth assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014
Table to the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality Table. The mortality improvement scale was
changed from MP-2019 to MP-2020.
The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table (with future mortality improvement according to Scale MP-2019)
to the Pub-2010 Public Safety Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table (with future mortality
improvement according to Scale MP-2020).
Assumed rates of salary increase were modified as recommended in the July 14, 2020
experience study. The overall impact is a decrease in gross salary increase rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the July 14, 2020 experience
study. The changes result in slightly more unreduced retirements and fewer assumed early
retirements.
Assumed rates of withdrawal were changed from select and ultimate rates to service-based
rates. The changes result in more assumed terminations.
Assumed rates of disability were increased for ages 25–44 and decreased for ages over 49.
Overall, proposed rates result in more projected disabilities.
Assumed percent married for active female members was changed from 60 percent to
70 percent. Minor changes to form of payment assumptions were applied.

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.
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PERA – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND (CONTINUED)
2018

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2018

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2017

The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017.

Post-retirement benefit increases were changed to 1.00 percent for all years, with no trigger.
An end date of July 1, 2048 was added to the existing $9.0 million state contribution.
New annual state aid will equal $4.5 million in fiscal years 2019 and 2020, and $9.0 million
thereafter, until the plan reaches 100.00 percent funding, or July 1, 2048, if earlier.
Member contributions were changed from 10.80 percent to 11.30 percent of pay, effective
January 1, 2019, and 11.80 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2020.
Employer contributions were changed from 16.20 percent to 16.95 percent of pay, effective
January 1, 2019, and 17.70 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2020.
Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent,
beginning July 1, 2018.
Deferred augmentation was changed to zero percent, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation
that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.
Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience
study. The net effect is proposed rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements.
The CSA load was 30.00 percent for vested and nonvested deferred members. The CSA has
been changed to 33.00 percent for vested members, and 2.00 percent for nonvested members.
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 Fully
Generational Table to the RP-2014 Fully Generational Table (with a base year of 2006), with
male rates adjusted by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from
Scale AA to Scale MP-2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed
from the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees.
Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.00 percent for the first three years of service.
Rates beyond the select period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected
terminations overall.
Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from 65.00 percent to
60.00 percent.
Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives
assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years
older) to the assumption that males are two years older than females.
The assumed percentage of female members electing joint and survivor annuities was
increased.
The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent for all years,
to 1.00 percent per year through 2064, and 2.50 percent thereafter.
The single discount rate was changed from 5.60 percent per annum to 7.50 percent per annum.
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PERA – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND (CONTINUED)
2016

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•
•

2015

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2015

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2037, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year for all future years.
The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.
The single discount rate changed from 7.90 percent to 5.60 percent.
The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by
0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll growth, and 2.50 percent for inflation.

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year
through 2030, and 2.50 percent per year thereafter, to 1.00 percent per year through 2037, and
2.50 percent per year thereafter.

CHANGES IN PLAN PROVISIONS
•

The post-retirement benefit increase to be paid after attainment of the 90.00 percent funding
threshold was changed from inflation up to 2.50 percent, to a fixed rate of 2.50 percent.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
2021

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2020

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•
•
•

2019

The discount rate was changed from 4.09 percent to 2.74 percent.
The payroll growth rate was changed from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent.
The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2018.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

2018

The discount rate was changed from 2.74 percent to 2.12 percent.

The discount rate was changed from 3.44 percent to 4.09 percent.

CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
•

The discount rate was changed from 4.50 percent to 3.44 percent.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2021

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other governments
Deposits payable

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

$

$

7,702,450

$

–

17,681

7,827,904
17,681

$

143,135

$

7,702,450

$

7,845,585

$

–
2,403
–
–

$

55,172
–
2,161
10

$

55,172
2,403
2,161
10

Total liabilities
Fund balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

125,454

Total

$

2,403

57,343

59,746

18,072
122,660
–

706,450
–
6,938,657

724,522
122,660
6,938,657

140,732

7,645,107

7,785,839

143,135

$

7,702,450

$

7,845,585
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Special Revenue
Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Charges for services
Investment earnings (charges)
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements

$

–
71,389
5,060
(690)
–

Capital Projects

$

222,789
–
605,809
(50,803)
97,564

Total

$

222,789
71,389
610,869
(51,493)
97,564

13,543
–

150,391
73,698

163,934
73,698

89,302

1,099,448

1,188,750

89,093
–

–
96,010

89,093
96,010

–
–
–
–

194,180
226,222
1,004,486
767,149

194,180
226,222
1,004,486
767,149

–

585

585

89,093

2,288,632

2,377,725

(1,189,184)

(1,188,975)

–
(5,000)

1,197,673
(51,000)

1,197,673
(56,000)

Total other financing sources (uses)

(5,000)

1,146,673

1,141,673

Net change in fund balances

(4,791)

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

209

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

(42,511)

145,523
$

140,732

(47,302)

7,687,618
$

7,645,107

7,833,141
$

7,785,839
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Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts

$

232

235

Cemetery

Cable TV

22,658

$

19,286

–

236/240
Police
Forfeiture

$

239
Comprehensive
Plan

18,072

$

–

17,681

65,438

Totals

$

–

125,454
17,681

Total assets

$

22,658

$

36,967

$

18,072

$

65,438

$

143,135

Liabilities
Accrued salaries payable

$

597

$

1,806

$

–

$

–

$

2,403

Fund balances
Restricted
Committed
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and
fund balances

$

–
22,061

–
35,161

18,072
–

–
65,438

18,072
122,660

22,061

35,161

18,072

65,438

140,732

22,658

$

36,967

$

18,072

$

65,438

$

143,135
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Revenue
Taxes
Franchise fees
Charges for services
Investment earnings (charges)
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations

$

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures
Other financing (uses)
Transfers (out)

235

Cemetery

Cable TV

–
5,060
(164)

$

Fund balances
Beginning of year
$

236/240
Police
Forfeiture

71,389
–
1

–

–

4,896

71,390

9,326

79,767

(4,430)

(8,377)

–

Net change in fund balances

End of year

232

(13,377)

26,491

48,538
$

35,161

–
–
(117)

$

–
(117)

–

(117)

–

(5,000)

(4,430)

22,061

$

239
Comprehensive
Plan

(117)

18,189
$

18,072

–
–
(410)

Totals

$

13,543

13,543

13,133

89,302

–

89,093

13,133

209

–

(5,000)

13,133

(4,791)

52,305
$

71,389
5,060
(690)

65,438

145,523
$

140,732
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237
Fire
Department
Pull Tabs
Assets
Cash and investments
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other governments
Deposits payable

404

408

Internally
Financed

Parks
and Trails

General
Improvement

$ 1,535,068

$ 1,341,227

$

$

$

319,607

$

523,659

$

–
–
–

$

–
–
–

Fund balances
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances
$

6,919
–
10

23,284
–
–

–

–

6,929

23,284

–
319,607

–
523,659

706,450
821,689

–
1,317,943

319,607

523,659

1,528,139

1,317,943

523,659

$ 1,535,068

$ 1,341,227

Total liabilities

Total liabilities and fund balances

401

319,607

$
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409

430

437

Equipment
Revolving

Street
Improvement

Community
Room/Library

$ 2,121,522

$ 1,454,225

$

407,142

$

$

–
67
–

$

180
–
–

24,789
2,094
–

Totals

$ 7,702,450

$

55,172
2,161
10

26,883

67

180

57,343

–
2,094,639

–
1,454,158

–
406,962

706,450
6,938,657

2,094,639

1,454,158

406,962

7,645,107

$ 2,121,522

$ 1,454,225

407,142

$ 7,702,450

$
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Year Ended December 31, 2021

237
Fire
Department
Pull Tabs
Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Charges for services
Investment earnings (charges)
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Contributions and donations
Refunds and reimbursements

$

–
–
(2,040)
–

$

401

404

408

Internally
Financed

Parks
and Trails

General
Improvement

–
–
(3,688)
–

$

–
322,451
(11,765)
–

$

–
14,476
(7,646)
–

55,000
–

90,730
–

4,661
1,040

–
72,658

52,960

87,042

316,387

79,488

–

–

83,157

–

–
23,391
–
–

–
–
3,455
–

–
–
–
706,096

–
–
523,203
12,610

–

475

–

–

Total expenditures

23,391

3,930

789,253

535,813

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

29,569

83,112

(472,866)

(456,325)

–
–

–
–

120,000
(51,000)

380,779
–

–

–

69,000

380,779

29,569

83,112

(403,866)

(75,546)

290,038

440,547

1,932,005

1,393,489

523,659

$ 1,528,139

$ 1,317,943

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

$

319,607

$
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$

409

430

437

Equipment
Revolving

Street
Improvement

Community
Room/Library

$

$

–
–
(12,720)
–
–
–

222,789
217,385
(10,878)
97,564

–
51,497
(2,066)
–

Totals

$

222,789
605,809
(50,803)
97,564

–
–

–
–

150,391
73,698

526,860

49,431

1,099,448

–

–

12,853

96,010

194,180
202,831
35,301
48,443

–
–
442,527
–

–
–
–
–

194,180
226,222
1,004,486
767,149

–

110

–

585

480,755

442,637

12,853

2,288,632

(493,475)

84,223

36,578

(1,189,184)

641,894
–

55,000
–

–
–

1,197,673
(51,000)

641,894

55,000

–

1,146,673

148,419

139,223

36,578

1,946,220

1,314,935

370,384

7,687,618

$ 2,094,639

$ 1,454,158

406,962

$ 7,645,107

(12,720)

$

(42,511)
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CITY OF WAYZATA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

2021

2020

Budget

Over (Under)
Budget

Original

Final

Actual

$ 4,676,372
85,000
4,761,372

$ 4,676,372
85,000
4,761,372

$ 4,708,417
86,290
4,794,707

Licenses and permits
Business
Nonbusiness
Total licenses and permits

232,810
377,500
610,310

232,810
377,500
610,310

221,573
429,840
651,413

(11,237)
52,340
41,103

203,080
521,477
724,557

Intergovernmental
State
Federal
Component unit
Total intergovernmental

225,500
–
45,000
270,500

225,500
–
45,000
270,500

237,401
23,872
45,000
306,273

11,901
23,872
–
35,773

228,534
355,531
45,000
629,065

Charges for services
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Total charges for services

366,000
437,676
24,540
828,216

366,000
437,676
24,540
828,216

412,197
420,923
24,051
857,171

46,197
(16,753)
(489)
28,955

496,529
404,243
23,943
924,715

Fines and forfeitures

91,000

91,000

71,557

(19,443)

56,402

Investment earnings (charges)

20,000

20,000

(8,419)

(28,419)

57,678

5,000

5,000

8,076

3,076

16,553

6,586,398

6,586,398

6,680,778

94,380

6,978,129

25,836
200
20,300
46,336

25,836
200
20,300
46,336

25,836
964
18,336
45,136

–
764
(1,964)
(1,200)

25,836
196
16,108
42,140

571,122
8,500
334,400
914,022

571,122
8,500
334,400
914,022

505,527
11,951
373,840
891,318

(65,595)
3,451
39,440
(22,704)

616,655
10,353
305,522
932,530

4,000
73,000
77,000

4,000
73,000
77,000

2,953
73,350
76,303

(1,047)
350
(697)

4,120
69,732
73,852

Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Total taxes

Miscellaneous
Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
General government
Mayor and council
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total mayor and council
Administration and finance
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total administration and finance
Assessing
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total assessing
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$

32,045
1,290
33,335

Actual

$ 4,483,073
86,086
4,569,159
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CITY OF WAYZATA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

2021

2020

Budget
Original
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
General government (continued)
Planning and zoning
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total planning and zoning

Final

Actual

Over (Under)
Budget

Actual

316,018
–
14,500
330,518

316,018
–
14,500
330,518

300,357
283
11,837
312,477

(15,661)
283
(2,663)
(18,041)

235,520
1
45,915
281,436

46,610
8,000
214,500
269,110

46,610
8,000
214,500
269,110

49,215
6,078
227,848
283,141

2,605
(1,922)
13,348
14,031

46,696
8,195
195,838
250,729

1,636,986

1,636,986

1,608,375

(28,611)

1,580,687

1,880,511
44,700
135,200
2,060,411

1,880,511
44,700
135,200
2,060,411

2,033,041
59,674
155,585
2,248,300

152,530
14,974
20,385
187,889

1,871,831
39,812
127,573
2,039,216

Fire protection
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total fire protection

111,033
43,000
205,500
359,533

111,033
43,000
205,500
359,533

83,391
48,380
200,579
332,350

(27,642)
5,380
(4,921)
(27,183)

83,084
42,024
205,551
330,659

Building inspections
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total building inspections

182,585
900
85,500
268,985

182,585
900
85,500
268,985

181,545
1,220
42,412
225,177

(1,040)
320
(43,088)
(43,808)

154,030
612
36,736
191,378

–
–
5,300
5,300

–
–
5,300
5,300

–
3,521
2,503
6,024

–
3,521
(2,797)
724

71,247
63,221
3,421
137,889

41,000

41,000

34,656

(6,344)

30,927

2,735,229

2,735,229

2,846,507

509,118
79,100
31,250
619,468

509,118
79,100
31,250
619,468

485,278
70,088
31,135
586,501

General government buildings
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total general government buildings
Total general government
Public safety
Police protection
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total police protection

Emergency management
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total emergency management
Health inspections
Other current expenditures
Total public safety
Public works
Streets
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total streets
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111,278

(23,840)
(9,012)
(115)
(32,967)

2,730,069

427,765
57,972
29,512
515,249
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CITY OF WAYZATA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

2021

2020

Budget
Original

Final

Actual

Over (Under)
Budget

Actual

Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Public works (continued)
Street lighting
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total street lighting

14,000
65,000
79,000

14,000
65,000
79,000

13,739
61,231
74,970

(261)
(3,769)
(4,030)

13,319
58,824
72,143

Engineering
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total engineering

128,990
1,100
6,400
136,490

128,990
1,100
6,400
136,490

120,218
718
5,491
126,427

(8,772)
(382)
(909)
(10,063)

130,049
958
4,150
135,157

Total public works

834,958

834,958

787,898

(47,060)

722,549

Culture and recreation
Parks, recreation, and forestry
Personnel services
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total culture and recreation

590,500
57,100
79,900
727,500

590,500
57,100
79,900
727,500

619,631
53,296
58,009
730,936

29,131
(3,804)
(21,891)
3,436

502,885
40,254
36,601
579,740

Miscellaneous
Unallocated
Supplies
Other current expenditures
Total miscellaneous

–
327,000
327,000

–
327,000
327,000

–
362,616
362,616

–
35,616
35,616

1,576
293,100
294,676

6,261,673

6,261,673

6,336,332

74,659

5,907,721

3,000
2,500
5,500

3,000
2,500
5,500

1,941
3,699
5,640

6,267,173

6,267,173

6,341,972

74,799

5,909,888

319,225

319,225

338,806

19,581

1,068,241

–
–
503,668
(822,893)

–
–
503,668
(822,893)

–
93
503,668
(1,146,988)

–
93
–
(324,095)

14,940
9,865
308,983
(1,159,791)

(319,225)

(319,225)

(643,227)

(324,002)

(826,003)

(304,421)

242,238

Total current expenditures
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Total capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of capital assets
Insurance recovery
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

$

–

Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

$

–

(304,421)

(1,059)
1,199
140

$

269
1,898
2,167

4,316,693

4,074,455

$ 4,012,272

$ 4,316,693
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Debt Service Fund
Balance Sheet by Account
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Special assessments
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue –
special assessments
Fund balances (deficits)
Restricted
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances

307
Wayzata Blvd
Superior

310
Superior/Lake
Realignment

311
2009 Street
Improvements

$

$

$

397,987

469,186

21,628

315

Parking Ramp
Big Woods

$

–

243,880
–

1,644,268

1,580,000

$ 2,042,255

$ 2,049,186

$

21,628

$

243,880

–

$

–

$

500

–

$

$

1,644,268

1,580,000

–

–

397,987

469,186

21,628

243,380

$ 2,042,255

$ 2,049,186

$

21,628

$

243,880
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317
Parking Ramp
Tax Increment

$

(825)

318
Panoway

$

–
$

$

(825)

–

$

$

(440)

–

–

(825)

(825)

(440)

$ 1,131,416

–

–

$

Totals

$

3,224,268
$ 4,355,684

$

500

3,224,268

(440)

1,130,916

(440)

$ 4,355,684
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances by Account
Year Ended December 31, 2021

307
Wayzata Blvd
Superior
Revenue
Taxes
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Special assessments
Investment earnings (charges)
Total revenue

$

Expenditures
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficits)
Beginning of year
End of year

$

–
–
244,727
(440)
244,287

310
Superior/Lake
Realignment

$

–
–
236,157
(3,696)
232,461

170,000
57,325
227,325

150,000
35,400
185,400

16,962

47,061

381,025

422,125

397,987

$

469,186

311
2009 Street
Improvements

$

33,340
–
–
(236)
33,104

315

Parking Ramp
Big Woods

$

30,000
3,338
33,338

195,000
18,200
213,200

(234)

(3,035)

21,862
$

21,628

212,700
–
–
(2,535)
210,165

246,415
$

243,380
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317
Parking Ramp
Tax Increment

$

–
496,348
–
–
496,348

318
Panoway

$

–
109,884
109,884

270,000
226,348
496,348
–

(63,565)

(825)
$

(825)

–
46,759
–
(440)
46,319

63,125
$

(440)

Totals

$

246,040
543,107
480,884
(7,347)
1,262,684

815,000
450,495
1,265,495
(2,811)

1,133,727
$ 1,130,916
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2021

Special
Revenue
440
Housing
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Interest
Tax increments
Notes
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to primary government
Due to other governments
Deposits payable

$

$

5,400
–
10,000

1,086

$ 1,653,269

–
19,825
–

–
15,654
–
$ 1,668,923

$

$

28,334

$

20,911

$

–
–
–
703

$

–
–
1,440
–

Total liabilities
Fund balances (deficits )
Restricted for economic
development
Unassigned
Total fund balances (deficits)
Total liabilities and
fund balances

12,934

Debt
Service
Capital Projects
314
316
305
Widsten
Bay Center
Downtown
Tax Increment Tax Increment
TIF 6

$

948,266
–
5,643
–

$

Total

150,325

$ 1,817,614

–
2,643
–

5,400
38,122
10,000

$

152,968

$ 1,871,136

$

81,711
1,681,860
1,337
–

$ 1,029,977
1,681,860
8,420
703

703

1,440

953,909

1,764,908

2,720,960

27,631
–

19,471
–

715,014
–

–
(1,611,940)

762,116
(1,611,940)

27,631

19,471

715,014

(1,611,940)

(849,824)

20,911

$ 1,668,923

28,334

$

$

152,968

Total fund balances reported above

$ 1,871,136

$ (849,824)

Amounts reported for the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:
Capital assets used in the Housing and Redevelopment Authority are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as assets in the funds.
Cost of capital assets
Total net position – Housing and Redevelopment Authority

2,092,900
$ 1,243,076
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Special
Revenue
440

Debt
Service
Capital Projects
314
316
305
Widsten
Bay Center
Downtown
Tax Increment Tax Increment
TIF 6

Housing
Revenue
Tax increment
Investment earnings (charges)

$

Total revenue

$

(734)

Expenditures
Current
Housing and economic development
Debt service
Interest and fiscal fees
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances

$ 2,906,589
(3,141)

$

367,996
212

$ 3,754,156
(4,365)

2,903,448

368,208

3,749,791

–

355,424

2,222,419

1,305,636

3,883,479

–

4,608

238

238

5,084

–

360,032

2,222,657

1,305,874

3,888,563

118,837

680,791

(937,666)

(138,772)

(99,366)

34,223

(674,274)

(711,052)

715,014

$ (1,611,940)

$ (849,824)

28,365
$

479,571
(702)
478,869

(734)

Fund balances (deficits)
Beginning of year
End of year

–
(734)

Total

27,631

$

19,471

$
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 10, 2022.
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify one deficiency
in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as
finding 2021-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
(continued)
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COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
CITY’S RESPONSE TO FINDING
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s response
to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 10, 2022
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C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

To the City Council and Management
City of Wayzata, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 10, 2022.
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE
In connection with our audit, we noted that the City failed to comply with provisions of the claims and
disbursements section of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, promulgated by the
State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 6.65, insofar as they relate to accounting matters as
described in the Schedule of Findings and Responses as finding 2021-002. Also, in connection with our
audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City failed to comply with the
provisions of the contracting – bid laws, depositories of public funds and public investments, conflicts of
interest, public indebtedness, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing sections of the
Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance.
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention
regarding the City’s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions, insofar as they relate to
accounting matters.
CITY’S RESPONSE TO FINDING
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s response
to the legal compliance finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

(continued)
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PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 10, 2022
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended December 31, 2021

A. SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
2021-001

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES
Criteria – Internal control over financial reporting.
Condition – The City of Wayzata, Minnesota (the City) has limited segregation of duties in a
number of areas, including controls over cash disbursements, investments, and payroll.
Context – This is a current year and prior year finding.
Cause – The limited segregation of duties is primarily caused by the limited size of the City’s
business office staff.
Effect – One important element of internal accounting controls is an adequate segregation of
duties such that no one individual has responsibility to execute a transaction, have physical
access to the related assets, and have responsibility or authority to record the transaction. A
lack of segregation of duties subjects the City to a higher risk that errors or fraud could occur
and not be detected in a timely manner in the normal course of business.
Recommendation – We recommend that the City continue to segregate duties as best it can
within the limits of what it considers to be cost-beneficial.
Management Response – The City agrees with the finding. The City reviews and makes
improvements to its internal control structure on an ongoing basis, and attempts to maximize
the segregation of duties in all areas within the limits of the staff available. However, the City
does not consider it cost-beneficial at this time to increase the size of its staff in order to
further segregate accounting functions.
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CITY OF WAYZATA
Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2021

B. MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE FINDING
2021-002

PAYROLL DECLARATION
Criteria – Minnesota Statutes § 412.271, Subd. 2.
Condition – Minnesota Statutes § 412.271, Subd. 2 requires that when claims are made for
wages paid on an hourly or daily basis, the employee shall sign a declaration, in the form
prescribed in this statute, to the effect that the employee has received the wages and done the
work for which the wages have been paid. This declaration was not obtained for
three employees tested during the year.
Context – The City had not obtained the required declaration for 3 of 25 employee payroll
claims tested. This is a current year finding.
Cause – The City changed payroll systems in 2021, and the required disclosure is no longer
included on each payroll check or direct deposit remittance as it had been with the previous
payroll system. In order to comply with this requirement, the City adopted a new procedure
requiring each employee paid wages on an hourly or daily basis to sign the required
declaration once when they are hired. However, due to an oversight, this was not done for
some seasonal employees hired during the year.
Effect – The City did not obtain the signed declaration required to comply with this statute
for some seasonal employees hired in 2021.
Recommendation – We recommend the City obtain the required signed claim disclosure for
all employees making claims for wages on an hourly or daily basis in the future, including all
seasonal employees to which this requirement applies.
Management Response – The City agrees with the finding. The City’s Administrative
Services Director will verify that appropriate internal controls and procedures are in place to
assure the signed declaration necessary to comply with this requirement is obtained for all
applicable employees, including seasonal employees, in the future. Appropriate corrective
action will be completed by June 30, 2022.
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City of Wayzata
Audit Report
Year Ended December 31, 2021
Malloy Montague, Karnowski,
Radosevich, & Co., P.A.
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Auditor’s Role
Opinion on Financial Statements
– Financial Statements are Fairly Presented In
Accordance with U.S. GAAP

Test Internal Controls and Compliance
– Financial Statement Audit
– State Statutes
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Audit Summary
Basic Financial Statements
– Unmodified “Clean” Opinion

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
– Limited Segregation of Duties

Compliance – Financial Statement Audit
– No Findings for 2021

Minnesota Legal Compliance
– Payroll Declaration – Signed payroll declarations not
obtained for some seasonal employees tested
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Audit Summary – Other
Recommendations
Review of Transactions
– City is in the process of updating procurement policies
– Recommend adding a second party review of larger
transactions initiated by the City Manager

Unclaimed Property Report
– Outstanding checks greater than 3 years old, or payroll
checks greater than 1 year old, must be turned over to
the state Commissioner of Commerce along with a
report of unclaimed property
– An unclaimed property report is required to be filed
annually, regardless of whether the City is holding any
unclaimed property
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Governmental Funds
Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances as of December 31,
2021
2020
Fund balances of governmental funds
Total by classification
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total governmental funds
Total by fund
General
Debt Service
Lakefront Improvement Capital Projects
Developer Financed Capital Projects
Nonmajor funds
Total governmental funds

Change

$

1,685,297
1,855,438
122,660
7,929,310
2,044,797

$

754,668
1,757,102
127,334
8,069,035
3,278,984

$

930,629
98,336
(4,674)
(139,725)
(1,234,187)

$

13,637,502

$

13,987,123

$

(349,621)

$

4,012,272
1,130,916
706,870
1,605
7,785,839

$

4,316,693
1,133,727
703,562
–
7,833,141

$

(304,421)
(2,811)
3,308
1,605
(47,302)

$

13,637,502

$

13,987,123

$

(349,621)
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General Fund Financial
Position
General Fund Financial Position
Year Ended December 31,
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$–
Fund Balance
Cash Balance
Exp & Trans Out

2017
$4,258,409
$3,306,531
$5,902,131

2018
$4,095,409
$3,308,723
$6,843,803

2019
$4,074,455
$3,482,533
$6,816,402

2020
$4,316,693
$3,770,875
$7,069,679

2021
$4,012,272
$2,751,726
$7,488,960

Page 295 of 499

General Fund Revenues –
Budget to Actual
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeits
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
All Other

Budget

Actual
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General Fund Expenditures
– Budget to Actual
General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Culture and Recreation

All Other

Budget

Actual
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Enterprise Funds Change
in Net Position
Net Position as of December 31,
2021
2020
Net position of enterprise funds
Total by classification
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total enterprise funds
Total by fund
Water
Sewer
Licensing
Liquor
Solid Waste
Stormwater
Total enterprise funds

Change

$

13,481,147
1,177,638
3,781,892

$

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654

$

(59,481)
(129,833)
929,238

$

18,440,677

$

17,700,753

$

739,924

$

8,263,339
4,433,124
(207,159)
1,730,233
279,645
3,941,495

$

8,030,291
4,065,488
(278,886)
1,576,454
280,644
4,026,762

$

233,048
367,636
71,727
153,779
(999)
(85,267)

$

18,440,677

$

17,700,753

$

739,924
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Water Fund
Water Fund
Year Ended December 31,

$1,100,000
$1,000,000
$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$750,334
$710,647
$39,687

2018
$820,062
$904,319
$(84,257)

2019
$785,225
$810,291
$(25,066)

2020
$900,956
$698,751
$202,205

2021
$1,077,649
$810,395
$267,254
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Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$1,500,000
$1,400,000
$1,300,000
$1,200,000
$1,100,000
$1,000,000
$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
$(200,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$950,007
$963,435
$(13,428)

2018
$1,026,386
$1,055,052
$(28,666)

2019
$1,050,037
$1,214,010
$(163,973)

2020
$1,239,184
$997,027
$242,157

2021
$1,451,684
$1,035,525
$416,159
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Solid Waste Fund
Solid Waste Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$–
$(50,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$351,457
$359,495
$(8,038)

2018
$347,048
$358,758
$(11,710)

2019
$360,373
$356,087
$4,286

2020
$361,003
$374,985
$(13,982)

2021
$363,556
$379,117
$(15,561)
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Stormwater Fund
Stormwater Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$–
$(100,000)
$(200,000)
$(300,000)
$(400,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$283,696
$178,786
$104,910

2018
$294,936
$628,207
$(333,271)

2019
$314,307
$231,015
$83,292

2020
$326,762
$254,133
$72,629

2021
$346,557
$363,297
$(16,740)
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Liquor Fund
Liquor Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$–
Sales
Cost of Sales
Oper Exp
Gross Profit
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$6,184,891
$3,127,367
$2,625,555
$3,057,524
$431,969

2018
$6,395,736
$3,198,367
$2,636,737
$3,197,369
$560,632

2019
$6,551,840
$3,241,073
$2,954,045
$3,310,767
$356,722

2020
$5,300,300
$3,064,216
$2,112,067
$2,236,084
$124,017

2021
$6,325,674
$3,296,647
$2,671,831
$3,029,027
$357,196
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Licensing Fund
Licensing Fund
Year Ended December 31,
$650,000
$600,000
$550,000
$500,000
$450,000
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$–
$(50,000)
Oper Rev
Oper Exp
Oper Inc (Loss)

2017
$521,062
$390,442
$130,620

2018
$544,247
$445,935
$98,312

2019
$576,066
$477,605
$98,461

2020
$486,862
$497,307
$(10,445)

2021
$646,473
$493,355
$153,118
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Government-Wide Net
Position
As of December 31,
2021
2020
Net position – primary government
Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities

$

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities
Total – primary government
Net position – HRA component unit
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total – HRA component unit

40,102,438
4,936,452
8,703,230
53,742,120

$

13,481,147
1,177,638
3,781,892
18,440,677

38,314,544
5,141,057
8,755,748
52,211,349

Change

$

13,540,628
1,307,471
2,852,654
17,700,753

1,787,894
(204,605)
(52,518)
1,530,771
(59,481)
(129,833)
929,238
739,924

$

72,182,797

$

69,912,102

$

2,270,695

$

2,092,900
762,116
(1,611,940)

$

2,092,900
62,588
(773,640)

$

–
699,528
(838,300)

$

1,243,076

$

1,381,848

$

(138,772)
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 9.b
TITLE: Consider Adoption of Resolution 22-2022 Approving a Site Alteration Permit and Schematic Design
for Section Foreman House at 738 Lake Street East
PROPOSED MOTION: To Adopt Resolution 22-2022 Approving a Site Alteration Permit and Schematic
Design for Section Foreman House at 738 Lake Street East
PREPARED BY: Nick Kieser, Parks Planner, Valerie Quarles, Assistant Planner
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager, Emily Goellner, Community Development Director
ACTION REQUESTED:
Planning Commission and staff recommend adoption of Resolution 22-2022 Approving a Site Alteration Permit
and Schematic Design for Section Foreman House at 738 Lake Street East.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
Private donations facilitated by the Wayzata Conservancy as well as grant funding will support the
rehabilitation of the Section Foreman House. The rehabilitation is estimated to cost $1,325,000 with 10 years
of operations and maintenance included. As part of the schematic design review, staff is recommending the
incorporation of a fire suppression system. This is estimated to cost an additional $22,000 in capital costs and
$16,000-$25,000 in design costs.
BACKGROUND:
The Section Foreman House is a City-owned historic home located at 738 Lake Street East (to the south and
across the railroad tracks from Stalk and Spade). The building is on the National Register of Historic Places
and locally designated as a Heritage Preservation Site. Changes to Heritage Preservation Sites require a Site
Alteration Permit to be reviewed by the Heritage Preservation Board and Planning Commission and approval
from the City Council. The City is proposing to rehabilitate and reuse the home as a lakeshore learning center,
build an accessibility ramp, and make landscaping improvements. The Heritage Preservation Board and
Planning Commission recommend approval of the Site Alteration Permit and Schematic Design.
A Design Review Committee for the Section Foreman House Rehabilitation was established in fall 2021. The
Committee includes members of City Council (Iverson and Plechash), volunteers from partnering
organizations (YMCA, Wayzata Community Education, Sailing Center), city staff, and historic consultants from
local firm New History. Staff and consultants will walk the through the design at the meeting. An important note
is that staff is recommending the installation of a fire sprinkler system in the building which is detailed in the
attached report. This item would add to the overall costs associated with the restoration of the House.
If the Schematic Design, also commonly known as 30% level design, is approved by City Council, the Design
Review Committee and the consultant team will work to create the building's final design and construction
documents (100% level design). Final plans require review and approval by City Council prior to a public
bidding process for construction.
Community meetings about the Section Foreman House design were hosted in July 2021 and March 2022.
Most comments received were related to building materials, lighting, landscaping, and final design finishes.
Community members in attendance were largely in support of the schematic design. Thus far, no written
public comments regarding this agenda item have been received regarding the Site Alteration Permit or
schematic design.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
SFH_All Attachments_City Council_05-17-2022
2.
SFH_Fire Suppression Recommendation
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CITY OF WAYZATA

Resolution No. 22-2022

Page 1

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. 22-2022
RESOLUTION APPROVING SITE ALTERATION PERMIT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FOR SECTION FOREMAN HOUSE AT 738 LAKE STREET EAST
WHEREAS, the City of Wayzata has submitted an application (the “Application”)
for a Site Alteration Permit in accordance with Sec. 911.05.C of the Wayzata City Code
for the building known as the “Section Foreman House” located on 738 Lake Street East
(the “Site Alteration Permit”) for rehabilitation and reuse of the house; and
WHEREAS, the Application included the proposed 2022 schematic design
package and architectural set prepared by Cushing Terrel (the “Schematic Design”);
and
WHEREAS, the Wayzata Planning Commission, pursuant to the Zoning
Ordinance, held a public hearing on the Application and adopted a Report and
Recommendation to the City Council on April 18, 2022 (the “PC Report and
Recommendation”) to approve the Site Alteration Permit based on the Schematic
Design.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Wayzata,
Minnesota as follows:
A.
Based on the foregoing, and the findings and recommendations of the PC
Report and Recommendation, all of which are incorporated by reference in this
Resolution, the City Council of the City of Wayzata hereby finds, confirms and
memorializes that the Site Alteration Permit meets the standards of Section 911.05.C of
the Zoning Ordinance.
B.
Based on the foregoing, the Site Alteration Permit requested and the
Schematic Design provided in the Application are hereby APPROVED.
Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 17th day of May 2022.

Johanna Mouton, Mayor
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CITY OF WAYZATA

Resolution No. 22-2022

Page 2

ATTEST:

Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution adopted.
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by
the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on
May 17, 2022.
__________________________________
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
SEAL
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WAYZATA PLANNING COMMISSION
April 18, 2022
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF APPROVAL OF
SITE ALTERATION PERMIT FOR
THE SECTION FOREMAN HOUSE AT 738 LAKE STREET E
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION
Approval of Site Alteration Permit for Section Foreman House

REPORT
Section 1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

Section Foreman House. The City of Wayzata has submitted an application (the
“Application”) for a Site Alteration Permit in accordance with Sec. 911.05.C of the
Wayzata City Code for the building known as the “Section Foreman House” located
on 738 Lake Street East (the “Section Foreman House”). The Section Foreman
House was designated locally as a Heritage Preservation Site in 2020 and joined
the National Register of Historic Places in 2021. The house is currently owned by
the City of Wayzata. The Section Foreman House and surrounding landscape is
proposed to be rehabilitated and reused as outlined in the Schematic Design and
Architectural Set attached hereto as Attachment 1 (the “Site Alterations”).

1.2

Site Alteration Permit. The City of Wayzata is requesting a site alteration permit
for Site Alterations to the Section Foreman House under Sec. 911.05.C of the
Wayzata City Code (the “Site Alteration Permit”).

1.3

Notice and Public Hearing. Notice of the public hearing on the Application was
published in the Wayzata Sun Sailor on March 29, 2022 and mailed to all property
owners located within 500 feet of the Property on April 5, 2022. The public hearing
on the Application was held at the April 18, 2022 Planning Commission meeting.
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CITY OF W AYZATA
Section 2.
2.1

PC Report and Recommendation

Page 2

STANDARDS

Site Alteration Permit. Once a property has been designated as a Heritage
Preservation Site, the owners of said property must apply for a site alteration
permit from the City Council in order to (i) remodel, alter or repair in any manner
which will change the exterior appearance of the Heritage Preservation Site, or (ii)
involve new exterior construction. Sec. 911.05.C.
A.

The Secretary of Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation, as set forth in 36
CFR 67, are the basis for a Site Alteration Permit application, and those
standards that are applicable to the Section Foreman House are:
1.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.

7.

B.

A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a
new use that requires minimal change to the defining
characteristics of the building and its site and environment.
The historic character of a property shall be retained and
preserved. The removal of historic materials or alteration of
features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.
Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time,
place, and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical
development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural
elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.
Most properties change over time; those changes that have
acquired historic significance in their own right shall be retained and
preserved.
Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or
examples of craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be
preserved.
Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than
replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires replacement
of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in
design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where
possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be
substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.
New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall
not destroy historic materials that characterize the property. The
new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be
compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features
to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment.

The Site Alterations will not materially impair the historical integrity of the
specific criteria that was used to justify the designation of the respective
site.
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CITY OF W AYZATA

Section 3.

PC Report and Recommendation

Page 3

FINDINGS

Based on the Application materials, staff report, the Heritage Preservation Board
discussion, public comment presented at the public hearing, and Wayzata’s Zoning
Ordinance, the Planning Commission of the City of Wayzata makes the following findings
of fact:
3.1

Site Alteration Permit.
A.

B.

Section 4.

The Site Alterations would comply with the Secretary of Interior's Standards
for Rehabilitation, as set forth in 36 CFR 67, in that:
1.

The new use of the Section Foreman House as a learning center
requires minimal changes to the defining characteristics of the
building and environment, as detailed by the attachment “Design
Standards for Reuse”, created in 2019 by New History. Interior
changes are focused upon the 1940s and 1960s additions and the
vestibule proposed for the 1902 portion could be removed in the
future.

2.

Changes to the Section Foreman House are intentionally designed
to avoid a false sense of historical development. The Site Alterations
do not purport to be historic.

3.

While the period of significance of the Section Foreman House ends
before the 1963 addition was built, the principal change that may
have acquired historical significance in its own right it is retained in
the Site Alterations.

4.

Where possible, historic features, finishes, and construction
techniques will be preserved and repaired rather than replaced in
whole.

The Site Alterations will not materially impair the historical integrity of the
specific criteria that was used to justify the designation of the Section
Foreman House as a Heritage Preservation Site.
RECOMMENDATION

Based on the Findings of this Report, the Planning Commission recommends that the
Site Alteration Permit requested in the Application be APPROVED and issued for the
Section Foreman House in accordance with Section 911.05.C of Wayzata City Code.
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CITY OF W AYZATA

PC Report and Recommendation

Page 4

Adopted by the Wayzata Planning Commission the 18th day of April 2022.
Attachment 1
Section Foreman House Schematic Design Package (Cushing Terrell and co., 2022)
Section Foreman House Architectural Set (Cushing Terrell and co., 2022)
Additional Attachments
Design Standards for Reuse (New History, 2019)
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Staff Report
Wayzata Heritage Preservation Board
April 18, 2022

Address:

738 Lake Street East – Section Foreman House

Requests:

Heritage Preservation Site Alteration Permit

Property Owner:

City of Wayzata

Prepared by:

Valerie Quarles, Assistant Planner

Background
One of the seven responsibilities and duties of the Heritage Preservation Board is to survey
historically significant sites to advise property owners on ways to preserve, restore and
rehabilitate such a site that is found to be historical. The Section Foreman House represents an
essential part of Wayzata’s history with the railroad. The site was designated locally as a
Heritage Preservation Site in 2020 and joined the National Register of Historic Places in 2021.
The house is currently owned by the City of Wayzata. As the home and surrounding landscape
is proposed to be rehabilitated and reused as a lakeshore learning center, the City as owner is
requesting a Site Alteration Permit in accordance with §911.05.C of the Wayzata City Code. In
addition to consideration by the Heritage Preservation Board, the permit also requires a public
hearing with Planning Commission and approval by City Council.
Property Information
The property identification number and owner of the property are as follows:
Address
738 Lake St E

PID
06-117-22-42-0032

Owner
City of Wayzata

The 36,040 square foot parcel includes the home, immediate landscape, and detention pond to
the east. The house is located on the west side of the parcel. Access to the site comes from the
west, on a City easement over property that is owned by Burlington Northern Santa Fe.
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Access

Burlington Northern
Santa Fe property

Section Foreman House

Stormwater detention pond

Sources: Hennepin County, Wayzata Historical Society
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Zoning
The current zoning and comprehensive plan land use designation for the property are as follows:
Current Zoning:
Proposed Zoning:
Comprehensive Plan Designation:
Overlay Districts:
Design District:

R-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential
Parks and Open Space
Parks
Shoreland Overlay District
Bluff District (outside designated Design District)

The proposed use for the home as a lakeshore learning center is not compatible with R-2
zoning. The property is intended to be re-zoned as part of a broad proposal to rezone much of
the City’s public open space to a new Parks and Open Space District. This action would also
bring the property in line with its Comprehensive Plan designation (Parks). However, the rezoning is not part of this application as the Site Alteration Permit approval criteria do not include
zoning compatibility.
The building is a legal, non-conforming structure under the Shoreland Overlay District due to its
close proximity to Lake Minnetonka. Structures of this type are limited in the type of changes
that can be made, especially to the building footprint, without becoming subject to current
setbacks and other regulations. The only proposed change to the building footprint that needs to
be evaluated under the rules of the Shoreland Overlay District is the proposed accessibility
ramp on the south and east sides of the building. §991.15.A.2 allows for deck additions to a
structure without a variance.
The proposed changes to the structure do not meet the threshold to be considered under the
Design Standards. The Design Standards do not apply to repair or replacement of existing
windows with those of a similar size or design; replacement, repair, or modification of roofs with
the same or equivalent quality materials; exterior painting; exterior renovations; or site
alterations limited to the repaving or repair of the existing site. The scope of the proposal falls
within these activities.
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House
The Section Foreman House was built
as a home for the Section Foreman of
the Great Northern Railroad c. 1902.
The Section Foreman was the person
responsible for maintaining portions of
railroad track. To serve this purpose,
the house is located immediately
adjacent to the railroad track.
The original 1902 home was
significantly smaller than the building
that exists today. In the 1940s, the
original building was lifted to construct
a cast-in-place basement and in the
same time period a one-story addition
was constructed to the south. In c.
1963, the 1940s addition was modified
to create a larger living room and add
a porch. Modifications since that time
have been maintenance-oriented,
including repairs to address storm
damage in the 1980s. The entire home
is of wood construction.

From "Wayzata Section Foreman House: Design Framework for Reuse",
created by New History in 2019.

The occupancy and purpose of the structure has changed over time. Though the home
originally housed Section Foremen and their families, the Great Northern Railroad sold the
house to a private party in 1962 for residential use. The house changed owners multiple times,
and was bought by the City in 1992. The City struggled to decide what use was feasible for the
deteriorating house during this time, so the home was generally used for storage. The house
was also often subject to vandalism.
After strong advocacy from community members, the house was designated as a Heritage
Preservation Site in 2020. It then gained a place on the National Register of Historic Places in
2021. The process of these two designations increased community interest in the property and
helped to spur a significant amount of research and documentation about the home, of which
much is attached to this report. The resulting materials massively informed the design and
rehabilitation plan.
Design and Community Engagement
As the owner of the property, the City of Wayzata released a Request for Proposals (RFP) in
2021 to solicit services to rehabilitate the Section Foreman House. The Selection Committee,
comprised of members of City staff, City Council, New History, the Heritage Preservation Board
and the Wayzata Historical Society, selected Cushing Terrell as the lead architectural firm.
Cushing Terrell’s group of subcontractors include Kimley-Horn, Victus Engineering, and NorSon Construction. New History was retained in a historic advisory capacity.
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The project was advertised in the bidding process as a lakefront learning center that retains its
historic nature. This concept was shaped by a community survey conducted in July 2021, as
well as the larger context of the Panoway project along much of Wayzata’s publicly accessible
shoreline. The project is funded by the Wayzata Conservancy’s fundraising efforts, and a
Legacy Grant from the Minnesota Historical Society.
In order to create a collaborative design process with maximum community buy-in, a Design
Committee was formed. The Design Committee includes City staff, City Council, the Heritage
Preservation Board, the Wayzata Historical Society, the Wayzata Conservancy, the Sailing
Center, Wayzata Community Education, and the YMCA. These stakeholders were chosen due
to their historic expertise, involvement in funding, and anticipated involvement in programming
the space. The learning-oriented part of the project is meant to focus on science, technology,
engineering, arts, and math (STEAM) and outdoor activities, which drove the selection of the
programming stakeholders.
The Design Committee set guiding principles for the project, refined the overall vision, evaluated
floor plans and exterior landscaping options, and provided valuable input on balancing the
usability of the space with its historic nature over the course of seven meetings, with more to
come as of March 2022. Please refer to the Schematic Design Package attached to this report
for detailed information.
The schematic design created by Cushing Terrell and their team, in collaboration with the
Design Committee, was also reviewed by the community in a city-wide meeting conducted on
March 15, 2022. About 15 people were in attendance.
Proposal
The rehabilitation of the Section Foreman House will include interior improvements on all floors
to replace damaged and deteriorated building elements to match existing materials in-kind.
Historically compatible modifications will be made to interior gathering and utility spaces.
Exterior work will include new structural support for foundation walls where required, the
addition of a ramp to provide accessibility, replacement of deteriorated and missing wood siding
and trim, and the repair of existing windows. The exterior paint will be restored to the original
gray commonly used on homes for Section Foremen. Additions to existing building systems will
be concealed within the existing structure to the greatest extent possible. Where required, soffits
or other new built elements will be a minimal size and located at the periphery of rooms
accessible to the public. All work will conform to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the
Rehabilitation of Historic Properties.
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The principal changes to the interior layout are
on the first floor, and are intended to increase the
usability of the space for larger groups (10-15)
and facilitate the building’s use as a learning
center. They include reconfiguration to create an
ADA-accessible bathroom, removal of the kitchen
(remodeled in the 1960s), the addition of a
vestibule at the east entrance, and removal of
two closets. No new building additions are
planned. The basement will be utilized for
storage and operation of mechanical equipment.
The second floor will not be designed as ADAaccessible space (no elevator), so no
programming is planned for the second floor.
While it is possible that it could be utilized as a
small office or meeting space in the future, that is
not currently anticipated due to lack of ADA
accessibility and its limited size.

First floor diagram of the Section Foreman House.

The principal changes to the broader site include an ADA-accessible path to the home from the
railroad crossing at the Broadway Avenue plaza of Panoway, a landscaped path to support city
vehicle access to the on-site lift station, and grading changes. The entire scope of work is
detailed in the attached Schematic Design Package.

From “Schematic Design Package”, attached.

A rendering of the proposed exterior shown at the March 15, 2022 community meeting.
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Site Alteration Permit (§911.05.C) Process and Analysis
The modification of Heritage Preservation Sites requires a Site Alteration Permit. The
application for a Site Alteration Permit is reviewed by the City Planner, recommended for
approval or denial by the Heritage Preservation Board and Planning Commission, and approved
or denied by the City Council. Modifications that trigger this requirement are listed below and the
relevant activities are bolded.
1. Remodel, alter or repair in any manner, including paint color, which will change
the exterior appearance of the Heritage Preservation Site.
2. New exterior construction.
3. Signs.
4. Moving of buildings.
5. Demolition in whole or in part. This does not apply to structures required to be
demolished in accordance with Minn. Stats. Ch. 463.
Applications for a Site Alteration Permit must be accompanied by detailed plans including a site
plan, building elevations, and design details and materials as deemed necessary by City staff to
evaluate the request. Besides the Site Alteration Permit the regular City Permits shall be
required. Plans are attached to this report. Regular City permits will be sought before
construction begins.
The Secretary of Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation as set forth in 36 CFR 67 will be the
basis for a Site Alteration Permit application. The Building Official will not issue a Site Alteration
Permit if the City Council finds that the change(s) will materially impair the historical integrity of
the specific criteria that was used to justify the designation of the respective site. The Standards
are listed below and the most relevant criteria for the Heritage Preservation Board’s evaluation
are bolded.
1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that
requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site
and environment.
2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of
historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall
be avoided.
3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.
Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be
undertaken.
4. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic
significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved.
5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship
that characterize a property shall be preserved.
6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the
severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature
shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where
possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by
documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.
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7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic
materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be
undertaken using the gentlest means possible.
8. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and
preserved. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be
undertaken.
9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic
materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from
the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural
features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment.
10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a
manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic
property and its environment would be unimpaired.
Historic consulting firm New History continues to review the plans for rehabilitation and reuse to
ensure compliance with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards due to the National Register
designation, but also due to conditions of Legacy Grant funding from the Minnesota Historical
Society. See the attached documents for more information.
Heritage Preservation Board
The Heritage Preservation Board met on Thursday, April 14 to discuss the Site Alteration
Permit. A summary of their comments will be included in the presentation at the April 18
Planning Commission meeting.
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the Site Alteration Permit for the Section Foreman House,
located at 738 Lake Street East, based on the following findings:
1. The new use as a learning center requires minimal changes to the defining
characteristics of the building and environment, as detailed by the attachment “Design
Standards for Reuse”, created in 2019 by New History. Interior changes are focused
upon the 1940s and 1960s additions and the vestibule proposed for the 1902 portion
could be removed in the future.
2. Changes to the building are intentionally designed to avoid a false sense of historical
development. The new work, when not based in repair or restoration, does not purport to
be historic.
3. While the period of significance ends before the 1963 addition was built, as the principal
change that may have acquired historical significance in its own right it is retained.
4. Where possible, historic features, finishes, and construction techniques are preserved
and repaired rather than replaced in whole.
Action Steps
After considering the information and staff recommendation outlined in this report and
attachments, the Planning Commission should consider adoption of the attached Draft Report
and Recommendation.
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Attachments
Section Foreman House 100% Schematic Design Package prepared by Cushing Terrell and co.
(2022)
Section Foreman House Architectural Set prepared by Cushing Terrell and co. (2022)
Historic Assessment prepared by Miller Dunwiddie Architecture (2015)
Wayzata Section Foreman House: Design Framework for Reuse prepared by New History
(2019)
Updated Land Survey (2022)
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Section Foreman House - Schematic Design 100%
01.31.2022
Update 2.04.2022
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Design Process
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Guiding Principles
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Restoring the home's signiﬁcance
Telling the unique story of the history and place
Inspiring past, present and future community advancements
A distinctive place for year round indoor and outdoor learning
Flexible and adaptable for diversity of community ages and activities
Vibrant, safe, accessible and welcoming to all
Celebrating connections to the community, railroad, lake and pond
Environment, ecology and energy friendly
Simple, classy, charming, elegant and easy to maintain
Strong bookend of the overall community pathway
Reinforces Wayzata’s authentic inviting small town feel
Point to other signiﬁcant places in Wayzata

Page 326 of 499

Guiding Framework
Historic Standards
- 1902 building and 1944 addition are historic
- No addition
- Limited removals
Programming
- Flexible interior learning environment
- 12-15 people groups most common size
- Indoor/Outdoor connections for learning
- Four season use
Code requirements
- ADA accessible entrance
- ADA accessible restroom
- Energy eﬃcient equipment upgrades
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Project Narratives
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Project Narratives
Architecture
Codes and Standards
This facility will be designed in accordance with the Minnesota Building Codes as well as other industry recognized codes
and standards. The applicable codes and standards include, but are not limited to, the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Section
House
2020 Minnesota Foreman
Building Code
2020 Minnesota Energy Conservation Code: 2018 IECC Compliance Path

01.24.2021
2020 Minnesota Plumbing Code
2020 Minnesota Conservation Code for Existing Buildings
2020 Minnesota Accessibility Code
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Rehabilitation of Historic Properties.

Programming and Design Intent
The intended adaptive reuse of the former residence is a learning center. The building will be used all seasons during
regular business hours with after-hour use by appointment only. The building will not have a full-time staff person and will
have multiple programmatic user groups utilizing the space throughout the year.
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Project Narratives
Architecture - Continued…
The main ﬂoor is where the programmatic areas are focused as this can be made accessible to the public with minor
adjustments to the existing structure. An accessible ramp will be provided to the east entry and up to the existing porch.
The two east doors will be slightly widened to allow an accessible means into the building. This creates an opportunity to
have a circular pattern from east entry, through the building, to the porch and back to the east entry.

Section Foreman House

The existing restroom will be slightly increased in dimension, updated with new lavatory and water closet, provided with
grab bars and become fully ADA compliant.

01.24.2021

The Collaborative Learning rooms will be located at the western half of the house where the former dining and living room
were. The former kitchen will be removed, reduced in size and relocated back to its approximate original location. This
reduction and relocation allows for a Support Room that is placed at the center of the house next to the Collaborative
Learning environments, near the restroom and storage room and south of the Study Library. This support room will have a
counter at ADA height with a sink, undercounter refrigerator and upper cabinet, coat hooks, and ﬁre extinguisher. There will
be a small storage room accessed from this support space which was the former laundry room. This will have a pocket
door and storage for miscellaneous chairs, carts and other items needing to be stowed away to allow ﬂexibility within the
Collaborative Learning Environments.
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Project Narratives
Architecture - Continued…
There will be a small Study/Library space a the northeast corner of the house. This space will be largely used as the ﬁrst
impression to the Section Foreman House as you ﬁrst come into it off the east entry. It will be historic in character with the
1902 original building and include interpretive and program information.

Section Foreman House

The upper ﬂoor and basement ﬂoor will primarily be used as storage as needed. Additionally, the basement will act as the
main utility hub, housing several MEP systems (furnace, water heater, electrical panels). A sprinkler system will be added
to the building which will enter into the basement and be piped throughout the three levels. Discreet sprinkler heads will be
01.24.2021
placed throughout as required and piping will be located as sensitively as possible to avoid a negative impact on the
historic character of the building’s interior.
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Project Narratives
Architecture - Continued…
Rehabilitation Scope
General
The rehabilitation of the Section Foreman House will include interior improvements on all ﬂoors to replace damaged and
deteriorated building elements to match existing materials in-kind. Historically compatible modiﬁcations will be made to
interior gathering and utility spaces. Exterior work will include new structural support for foundation walls where required,
01.24.2021
the addition
of a ramp to provide accessibility, replacement of deteriorated and missing wood siding and trim, and the
repair of existing windows. Additions to existing building systems will be concealed within the existing structure to the
greatest extent possible. Where required, soﬃts or other new built elements will be a minimal size and located at the
periphery of rooms accessible to the public. This building is individually listed in the National Register of Historic Places. All
work will conform to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Rehabilitation of Historic Properties.

Section Foreman House

Exterior
The wood landing and stair on the north side of the building’s exterior will be replaced by a code-compliant wood landing
and stair. Ipe, a species likely to withstand the moisture that degraded the older stair, will be used on the new stair and
landing’s horizontal surfaces. The older stair’s date of construction is unknown. The existing non-historic concrete stoop
and concrete stairs on the home’s east side will be removed. Non-historic railings and shutters will also be removed. Two
non-historic openings will be widened to create accessible entrances to the home.
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Project Narratives
Architecture - Continued…
The home’s wood siding is historic on most of the east and west façades and on the entirety of the north façade. Galvanic
rot is ubiquitous on all façades, but less so on the north side. The siding will be retained to the greatest extent possible.
Where replacement is required, new wood siding will match the existing. Where structurally sound siding is loose it will be
reset.

Section Foreman House

A new ADA compliant Ipe wood ramp will be installed adjacent to the east façade. An Ipe porch will extend the non-historic
porch01.24.2021
on the south façade towards Lake Minnetonka. This porch will wrap around the building to meet the top of the ramp
on the east façade.
Basement
This project includes the removal of wood in the basement area that has been rotted by water intrusion events over the
years. Structural posts and columns will be replaced in kind and a simple wood wall partition will be removed. The door in
that wood wall may be original to the home and will be retained and salvaged for reuse; its destination has yet to be
determined. The basement windows will be repaired and window components beyond repair will be replaced in kind.
Repairs will be guided by NPS Preservation Brief # 9, The Repair of Historic Wooden Windows. Lastly, the chimney in the
basement will be repointed where joints are deteriorated. Repointing will be guided by NPS Preservation Brief #2,
Repointing Mortar Joints in Historic Masonry Buildings.
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Project Narratives
Architecture - Continued…
First Floor
On the home’s ﬁrst ﬂoor interior, items to be removed include bathroom ﬁxtures, non-historic walls, non-historic doors and
the non-historic kitchen. Some historic walls immediately adjacent to the Laundry and Toilet areas will be removed to
accommodate an ADA compliant restroom and the widening of a non-historic entry on the east side of the building. The
ﬁberboard ﬁnish that predominates on those walls to remain will be removed in only one lower-wall location. In that
01.24.2021
location,
the ﬁberboard is already missing on the upper portion of the wall. Repairs to the ﬁberboard, wall base and quarter
round will be made to match those existing, adjacent features. Historic ceilings will be removed only where demolition or
new building systems make their retention impossible.

Section Foreman House

The ﬁrst ﬂoor windows will be repaired and window components beyond repair will be replaced in kind. Repairs will be
guided by NPS Preservation Brief # 9, The Repair of Historic Wooden Windows. The existing historic and non-historic wood
ﬂoor will be patched, repaired, and reﬁnished to match the existing ﬂoor. Walls and doors will be added where required for
the learning center program. At the east entry, a glass wall and door will be added to create an interior vestibule.
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Project Narratives
Architecture - Continued…
Second Floor
The second ﬂoor windows will be repaired and window components beyond repair will be replaced in kind. Repairs will be
guided by NPS Preservation Brief # 9, The Repair of Historic Wooden Windows. Repairs to the ﬁberboard, wall base and
quarter round will be made to match those existing, adjacent features. The historic wood ﬂoor will be patched, repaired, and
reﬁnished to match the existing ﬂoor.

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021
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Project Narratives
Civil & Landscape Architecture
Access Path
· The Project site is connected by a path that originates at the Panoway Plaza along Lake Street.
· This path will be enhanced to accommodate emergency vehicles and pedestrian access alike.

Section Foreman House

· Site lighting will be provided along one side of the path.

· The access path materials are intended to provide ADA compliant access from the Panoway Plaza to the Section
Foreman House.

01.24.2021

· The majority of the access path exists on land owned by BNSF Railway (with 16’ wide access easement in place) and
the project improvements will require coordination with and approval from BNSF.
Building Site
· The Section Foreman House does not include any on-site parking areas.
· An accessible ramp will be added to the exterior of the Section Foreman House with built-in seating as appropriate for
outdoor STEM learning activities or a place to sit and relax.
· New pathways will be provided connecting from the access path to the porch steps and ramp.
· A vehicle access path (for City access to the sanitary sewer lift station) will be provided via a reinforced turf system or
similar material to provide a durable and sustainable solution.
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Project Narratives
Civil & Landscape Architecture
· Yet to be conﬁrmed with the City, the adjacent stormwater pond (East of the House) edge may be modiﬁed to improve
access to the lift station.
· Some existing trees and vegetation around the House will be removed, while new groundcover vegetation and plants will
be added around the House.

Section Foreman House

· The project is not anticipated to require any stormwater modeling or new stormwater management features (BMPs) due
to the limited amount of added impervious surfaces.

01.24.2021

Site Utilities
· The existing water service is anticipated to be replaced with a new water service for domestic water and possibly for ﬁre
suppression (to be conﬁrmed by the City and MEP).
· The project may include a new ﬁre hydrant (to be conﬁrmed by the City).
· The existing sanitary sewer line will likely be replaced depending on it’s existing condition and capacity (to be conﬁrmed
by the City and MEP).
· The project is going to include upgraded or new dry utilities such as electric, gas and communications/data (to be
conﬁrmed by the City and MEP)
·

The project is not expected to include any storm sewer or stormwater management features.
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Project Narratives
Structural
Existing Structure:
The existing 2 story building above grade consists of wood framing for the walls, ﬂoors and sloping roofs. The basement
consists of concrete walls and ﬂoor slab.

Section Foreman House

Basement:

The structural
modiﬁcations to the basement include a replacement of the stair framing and the support columns in the
01.24.2021
basement. Due to previous water damage and dry rot at the column bases, the 4 columns should be replaced with wood
posts of similar size along with a base-plate attachment.
The exterior foundations at the front entrance addition are also showing signs of settlement. To prevent future settlement,
helical piers are recommended to be installed around the perimeter at about 5’-0” on center. The footings are assumed to
be at frost depth and will require excavation at the perimeter. The piers are installed in the soils below and then support
brackets are applied below the wall foundation.
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Project Narratives
Structural - Continued…
First Floor:
At the ﬁrst ﬂoor a variety of new and wider openings are proposed for the new interior layout. New headers and jamb studs
will be needed to support the new openings. New partition wall framing will also be needed for the revised bathroom
layout.

Section Foreman House

A new handicap access ramp will also be added to the east entrance. The ramp framing will be of wood or steel and
supported
by helical piers.
01.24.2021

Second Floor:
Structural modiﬁcations are not currently required.
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Project Narratives
Mechanical + Plumbing
Codes and Standards
All mechanical systems for this facility will be designed in accordance with the Minnesota Building Codes as well as other
industry recognized codes and standards. The applicable codes and standards include, but are not limited to, the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Section
House
2020 Minnesota Foreman
Building Code
2020 Minnesota Energy Conservation Code: 2018 IECC Compliance Path

01.24.2021
2020 Minnesota Plumbing Code
2020 Minnesota Conservation Code for Existing Buildings

HVAC System Design Conditions
1.

Outdoor Design Conditions:
a.

Summer: 95°F DB/73°F WB

b.

Winter: -20°F DB

2.
Minimum Outside Air Ventilation (non-residential spaces): Per ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 62.1-2010, “Ventilation for
Acceptable Indoor Air Quality,” addendum N, Appendix G, and Table 6.1
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Mechanical + Plumbing - Continued…
3.
Minimum Exhaust Air Rates: Per ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 62-2010, “Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality,”
addendum N, and Table 6.4.
4.
Maximum sound levels in private oﬃces and conference rooms will not exceed NC-30, and maximum sound levels in
corridors and open oﬃces will not exceed NC-40 per ASHRAE Handbook Chapter 48.

Section Foreman House

Basic01.24.2021
Mechanical Materials and Methods
Emphasis in equipment and systems selection will be placed on manufacturers readily available to and serviceable from
the city of Minneapolis and Metropolitan Area. Equipment used will be manufacturer’s standard where possible.
General Provisions
A.
Provide all work and materials as required herein in full accordance with National, State, and local Codes, Ordinances
and/or regulations having jurisdiction over this work.
B.
Contractor shall be responsible for all necessary permits, licenses, and certiﬁcates and pay all fees connected
therewith.
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Project Narratives
Mechanical + Plumbing - Continued…
C.
At the completion of the work, Contractor shall remove all rubbish, dirt, and stains caused by their work and shall
thoroughly clean all mechanical work including equipment, appliances, ﬁxtures, ductwork, piping, etc.
D.

Contractor shall touch up or reﬁnish the factory ﬁnish of equipment marred during shipment or installation.

Section Foreman House

E.
Hangers and Supports: Comply with requirements of state and local building codes, amendments, and referenced
standards if more restrictive than MSS SP-69 and SP-89.

01.24.2021

F.
Mechanical Identiﬁcation: Provide identiﬁcation of mechanical piping and duct systems. Comply with ASME A13.1 for
lettering size, length of color ﬁeld, colors, and viewing angles of identiﬁcation devices. Provide standard stencils of prepared
letter sizes conforming to recommendations of ASME A13.1
G. Mechanical Motors: All motors provided with mechanical equipment shall meet or exceed the Energy Independence &
Security Act of 2007 criteria for energy eﬃcient motors.
H. Mechanical Insulation: Type and thickness of insulation as required by the International Energy Code with Minnesota
Amendments.
I.

Should any asbestos be present in the area of work, this will be abated by the owner in a separate contract.
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Mechanical + Plumbing - Continued…
J.
Contractor shall disconnect and remove all existing ductwork, plumbing, ﬁre protection, hydronic piping, and all
associated terminals, accessories, supports, and controls.
K.

Disconnect and remove existing domestic water back to water meter.

Section Foreman House

L.
Disconnect and remove existing hot and cold domestic water system including existing gas water heater and
associated ﬂue.

01.24.2021

M. Disconnect and remove existing waste line back to 4” wye ﬁtting at basement wall penetration. Terminate piping for
reconnection to new.
N.

Disconnect and remove existing sump pump. Terminate piping for reconnection to new.

O.

Disconnect and remove existing vent line up to vent stack in the attic. Terminate piping for reconnection to new.

P.
Disconnect and remove all existing ductwork, diffusers, grilles, registers, gas furnace, ﬂue pipe, combustion air
ductwork, and gas piping back to gas meter.
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Mechanical + Plumbing - Continued…
Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning
Design Criteria
A. Typical Collaborative
Learning, House
Study/Library
Section
Foreman
a. Provide ﬂoor supply register at perimeter zone.
B. Toilet
01.24.2021

a. Provide a ﬂoor supply register at perimeter.
b. Provide a ceiling exhaust grille from ERV.
c.
Space pressure shall be negative to adjacent space.
C. Support
a. Provide a ﬂoor supply register.
b. Provide a ceiling exhaust grille from ERV.
D. Vestibule
a. Provide a wall mounted electric unit heater.
E. Typical Storage
a. Provide a ﬂoor supply register at perimeter.
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Mechanical + Plumbing - Continued…
F. Air Distribution
a. All ductwork will be galvanized steel, constructed according to SMACNA standards.
b. Insulated ﬂexible duct with inner lining will be used for runouts to all lay-in type diffusers.
c.
Flexible duct runouts will be a maximum of 5 feet in length.
d. All return air shall be plenum.
G. HVAC Piping Material
a. Schedule 40 steel piping
01.24.2021
H. HVAC Piping Insulation
a. Fiberglass insulation
I.
Duct Insulation
a. All supply ductwork will be fully insulated.

Section Foreman House

Temperature Controls
Design Criteria
A. Smart wi-ﬁ enabled thermostat to control the furnace.
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Mechanical + Plumbing - Continued…
HVAC System Testing, Start-up and Training
Design Criteria
A.

Gas ﬁred furnace

Section
Foreman
House
a.
98% eﬃciency 80,000 BTUH modulating up-ﬂow.
01.24.2021b.

B.

Variable speed motor.

c.

MERV 8 ﬁlter

d.

3-ton outdoor condensing unit with variable speed compressor.

Energy Recovery Ventilator
a.

315 CFM capacity.

b.
Summer total effectiveness of 59%, total winter effectiveness of 76% non-frosting core under
normal operating conditions (deﬁned as outside temperature above -10 degrees F and inside relative
humidity below 40%).

Page 346 of 499

Project Narratives
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C.

Electric Unit Heater
a.

1.5KW electric wall mounted.

b.

Automatic fan delay circuit.

Section
Foreman
House
c.
Automatic reset thermal unit.
01.24.2021d.
e.

Power coated 18-gauge steel grille with extruded aluminum front frame.
Built-in tamper proof thermostat.

D. Testing and Balancing
a. HVAC air and water systems will be tested, adjusted, and balanced by an AABC certiﬁed agency
independent of the Mechanical Contractor.
b. The T&B contractor is under the general contractor’s contract.
E. Equipment Start-up and Training
a. Equipment startup and testing will be accomplished by the Mechanical Contractor.
b. Each piece of equipment will be started and checked out according to manufacturer’s
recommendation to assure proper operation.
c.
Limited commissioning will be done by Owner’s independent commissioning agent.
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F. Owner Training
a. The Mechanical Contractor will demonstrate the operation and maintenance procedures of each
mechanical system or equipment item for the Owner’s representative.
Plumbing

Section Foreman House

Design Criteria
A. Gas ﬁred water heater
01.24.2021
a. 40-gallon capacity, with recirculating pump.
b. Power vent
c.
Hot-surface ignitor
d. Blue diamond glass coating
B. Sump pump
a.

¾ HP submersible with PSC motor.

b.

Heavy-duty cast iron.

c.

Corrosion resistant stainless-steel fastener and powder coated epoxy ﬁnish.
Page 348 of 499

Project Narratives
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C. Plumbing Fixtures
a. Plumbing ﬁxtures and their installation will meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA) for accessibility.
b. Toilets will be porcelain wall-mounted ﬂush valve. Single lever faucet with 4” faucet centers.
c.
Lavatories in the toilet room will be porcelain undermount with manual single handle faucets.
d. Freezeless lockable hose bib
e. Utility sink with stainless steel ﬁnish faucet, 19-gallon capacity.
f.
Single bowl drop-in 18-gauge 304 stainless steel sink for Collaborative Learning and Support
01.24.2021
space. Gooseneck faucet with wrist blade handles, 4” faucet centers.
D. Sanitary Piping
a. Sanitary waste systems include waste and vent piping, cleanouts, and ﬂoor drains/sinks.
b. All waste and vent piping located in plenum ceilings shall be Schedule 40 cast iron.
E. Piping Material
a. Domestic water piping will be type ‘L’ copper with silver solder joints; no type ‘M’ copper will be
allowed on this project.
F. Piping Insulation
a. Domestic cold water, hot water, and recirculated hot water piping will have pre-formed ﬁberglass
insulation with an all-service vapor barrier jacket.

Section Foreman House
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Electrical
Codes and Standards
All electrical systems for this facility will be designed in accordance with the Minnesota Building Codes as well as other
industry recognized codes and standards. The applicable codes and standards include, but are not limited to, the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Section
Foreman House
2020 Minnesota Building Code

2020 Minnesota Energy Conservation Code: 2018 IECC Compliance Path
01.24.2021
2020 NFPA 70: National Electrical Code
2021 NFPA 101: Life Safety Code
Illuminating Engineering society of North America Handbook, 10th Ed.

Basic Electrical Materials and Methods

Emphasis in equipment and systems selection will be placed on manufacturers readily available to and serviceable
from the city of Minneapolis and Metropolitan Area. Equipment used will be manufacturer’s standard where possible.
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Electrical - Continued…
General Provisions
Provide all work and materials as required herein in full accordance with National, State, and local Codes, Ordinances
and/or regulations having jurisdiction over this work.

Section Foreman House

Contractor shall be responsible for all necessary permits, licenses, and certiﬁcates and pay all fees connected therewith.
At the
completion of the work, Contractor shall remove all rubbish, dirt, and stains caused by their work and shall
01.24.2021
thoroughly clean all electrical work including equipment, ﬁxtures, conduit, boxes, etc.
Equipment startup and testing shall be performed by the Electrical Contractor. Each piece of equipment shall be started
and checked out according to manufacturer’s recommendation to assure proper operation.
Lighting control system startup and testing shall be performed by a factory-authorized service representative.
The Electrical Contractor shall demonstrate the operation and maintenance procedures of each electrical system or
equipment item for the Owner’s representative.
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Electrical - Continued…
Electrical Power Distribution
The electrical power distribution system within the Section Foreman House will be replaced in its entirety. The existing
panelboard, branch circuits, and devices will be removed and replaced with new. A new service disconnect switch will be
provided on the exterior of the building, and a new 120/240 V panelboard sized for the new anticipated loads will be
provided in the northeast corner of the basement. A new grounding electrode system will be established with a new ground
rod and
a new bond to the water service piping.
01.24.2021

Section Foreman House

Options for connecting the new site lighting to the new Section Foreman House and the existing street/boardwalk lighting
services will be explored, and the most practical solution selected. All exterior conductors operating at 50 V or greater will
be installed in rigid metal or PVC conduit.
Emergency Power
No central emergency power source (e.g., generator) is anticipated. Battery backup ballasts will provide emergency power
for exit and egress lighting. Battery modules will provide emergency power for the ﬁre alarm system. A stand-alone UPS
unit will provide emergency power to data network and security equipment.
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Interior Lighting
New lighting ﬁxtures will be provided throughout the house and the site. Where practical and appropriate, existing interior
light ﬁxtures will be replaced with similar. Where new lighting applications are needed, such as illumination of exhibits or
collaboration spaces, new light ﬁxtures suitable for the task will be provided. Examples include adjustable recessed
downlights for illuminating exhibits or under-cabinet lighting at the kitchenette.

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

The lighting design team will perform all photometric modeling of the new lighting system. New LED light ﬁxtures with
sophisticated optics and precise beam distributions will be used to illuminate the many beautiful, historic architectural
elements of the building while also providing comfortable and functional general lighting throughout the building. Rather
than attempting to create a false sense of history by mimicking the lighting ﬁxtures of the building’s vintage, lighting
elements in architecturally signiﬁcant areas will be selected that illuminate the building without drawing attention to
themselves. Preliminary lighting selections intended to communicate the design intent are included as an attachment (E1)
to this report.
Color temperature and color rendering index (CRI) ratings of the LED engines will be thoughtfully speciﬁed to assure
decorative architectural elements are highlighted in vivid color. Similar thoughtfulness will be applied to ensure interior
spaces are illuminated by comfortable, glare-free lighting. New interior lighting controls, including scheduled switching,
daylight harvesting, and occupancy/vacancy sensing, will further increase the potential energy savings of the new system.
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New architectural and site LED lighting will be carefully modeled to ensure the design highlights the building without
contributing to night sky light pollution. Uniform, pedestrian-scale lighting will be provided where appropriate to create
well-illuminated, secure exterior environments. LED color temperature and control strategies that minimize the negative
impact on Minnesota’s wildlife will be speciﬁed.

Section Foreman House

Exterior Lighting

New 01.24.2021
LED site lighting elements will be provided along pedestrian pathways in the Eco-Park and linking the Section Foreman
House to downtown Wayzata. Exterior lighting will be carefully modeled using photometric modeling software to ensure
the design safely illuminates pedestrian walkways and site elements without contributing to night sky light pollution. LED
color temperature and control strategies that minimize the negative impact on Minnesota’s wildlife will be speciﬁed.
Site lighting will be designed in layers, each appropriate for a particular application: wayﬁnding, visitor safety, and facility
security. Wayﬁnding lighting will typically consist of step lighting or concealed LED strip lighting installed below
waist-height to illuminate walkways and support wayﬁnding. In areas where people might gather or use is expected to be
more intense, an additional layer of pedestrian-scale lighting supplied by illuminated bollards or pole-mounted area lights
will be provided to enhance visitor safety. Selectively applied ﬂood or area lighting solutions will be provided in areas where
facility security or vandalism are a concern.
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General Power
As a part of the new work, new convenience power receptacles will be provided throughout the building in a layout and
concentration appropriate for the building’s current and future use. Care will be taken to route electrical raceways in a
manner that respects signiﬁcant architectural elements.

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

Fire Alarm

A new ﬁre alarm system will be provided that notiﬁes emergency services in the event of ﬁre sprinkler or manual pull
station operation. The ﬁre alarm control panel (FACP) will be provided in the basement. A ﬁre alarm remote annunciator
(FARA) will be provided near the main entrance at a location coordinated with the local ﬁre department. Audible and visible
ﬁre alarm notiﬁcation appliances will be provided if and where required by the building code.
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Project Narratives
Electrical - Continued…
Voice and Data
Voice and data systems have become as important to the functionality of a building as its plumbing, power, and HVAC
systems. The telecom entrance facility (EF) is anticipated to be in the northeast corner of the basement level, near the
electrical power service entrance. No telephone services is planned for the building. Data network infrastructure is
anticipated to consist of a cable modem or other interface with the service provider, a gigabit network switch, Category 6
horizontal
cabling, wireless access points for Wi-Fi throughout the building and the site. Hardwired telecom outlets will be
01.24.2021
provided for select equipment (e.g., security cameras, wireless access points). Wireless access points and security
cameras will be power-over-ethernet (PoE) devices powered by the network switch.

Section Foreman House
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Project Drawings
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Schematic Floor Plan - 3D Perspective

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

Southeast PerspectivePage 360 of 499

Schematic Floor Plan - 3D Perspective

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

South Elevation
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Schematic Floor Plan - 3D Perspective

01.24.2021

Southwest PerspectivePage 362 of 499

Schematic Site Plan - Trail

01.24.2021
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Schematic Site Plan - House

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021
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Schematic Floor Plan - Main Level

01.24.2021
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Schematic Floor Plan - Basement Level

01.24.2021
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Schematic Floor Plan - Upper Level

01.24.2021

ROOF BELOW
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Schematic Floor Plan - Elevations

01.24.2021

SOUTH

WEST
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Schematic Floor Plan - Elevations

NORTH

EAST
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Schematic Floor Plan - Interior Perspectives

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

Plan Perspective
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Schematic Floor Plan - Interior Perspectives

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

Page 371 of 499
View of Study/Library

Schematic Floor Plan - Interior Perspectives

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021

View of Study/Library
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Schematic Floor Plan - Interior Perspectives

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021
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View of Collaboration Room

Schematic Floor Plan - Interior Perspectives

Section Foreman House
01.24.2021
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View of Collaboration Room

Schematic Floor Plan - Interior Perspectives

01.24.2021

View of Support Room
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Project Speciﬁcations
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DIVISION 00 - PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS
000107

SEALS PAGE

002113

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

003113

PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE

EXISTINGForeman
HAZARDOUS MATERIALHouse
INFORMATION
Section

003126
003132

GEOTECHNICAL DATA
01.24.2021

004113

BID FORM - STIPULATED SUM (SINGLE-PRIME CONTRACT)

DIVISION 01 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
011000

SUMMARY

012500

SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES

012600

CONTRACT MODIFICATION PROCEDURES

012900

PAYMENT PROCEDURES

013100

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION
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013200

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS DOCUMENTATION

013233

PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

013300

SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

015000

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

TEMPORARY
TREE AND PLANT PROTECTION
Section
Foreman
House

015639
017300

EXECUTION
01.24.2021

017419

CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL

017700

CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

017839

PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

DIVISION 02 - EXISTING CONDITIONS
024119

SELECTIVE DEMOLITION

DIVISION 03 - CONCRETE
003300

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE
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DIVISION 04 - MASONRY
040120.64

BRICK MASONRY REPOINTING

DIVISION 05 - METALS
051200

STRUCTURAL STEEL FRAMING

Section Foreman House

DIVISION 06 – WOOD, PLASTICS, AND COMPOSITES
061715

ENGINEERED STRUCTURAL WOOD
01.24.2021

061000

ROUGH CARPENTER

062013

EXTERIOR FINISH CARPENTRY

062023

INTERIOR FINISH CARPENTRY

064300

WOOD STAIRS AND RAILINGS

DIVISION 07 – THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION
072100

THERMAL INSULATION

074624

WOOD SHINGLE AND SHAKE SIDING
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079200

JOINT SEALANTS

DIVISION 08 – OPENINGS
080152.93

HISTORIC TREATMENT OF WOOD WINDOWS

081433

STILE AND RAIL WOOD DOORS

ACCESS DOORS
AND FRAMES House
Section
Foreman

083113
085200

WOOD WINDOWS
01.24.2021

087100

DOOR HARDWARE

DIVISION 09 - FINISHES
092900

GYPSUM BOARD

096400

WOOD FLOORING

099113

EXTERIOR PAINTING

099123

INTERIOR PAINTING

099300

STAINING AND TRANSPARENT FINISHING
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DIVISION 10 - SPECIALTIES
102600

WALL AND DOOR PROTECTION

102800

TOILET, BATH, AND LAUNDRY ACCESSORIES

104416

FIRE EXTINGUISHERS

Section Foreman House

DIVISION 22 - PLUMBING
220513

COMMON MOTOR REQUIREMENTS FOR PLUMBING EQUIPMENT
01.24.2021

220517

SLEEVES AND SLEEVE SEALS FOR PLUMBING PIPING

220518

ESCUTCHEONS FOR PLUMBING PIPING

220523.12

BALL VALVES FOR PLUMBING PIPING

220529

HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR PLUMBING PIPING AND EQUIPMENT

220553

IDENTIFICATION FOR PLUMBING PIPING AND EQUIPMENT

220719

PLUMBING PIPING INSULATION

221116

DOMESTIC WATER PIPING
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221123.21

INLINE, DOMESTIC-WATER PUMPS

221316

SANITARY WASTE AND VENT PIPING

221429

SUMP PUMPS

223400

FUEL-FIRED, DOMESTIC-WATER HEATERS

RESIDENTIAL
PLUMBING FIXTURES
Section
Foreman
House

224100

DIVISION 23 – HEATING VENTILATING AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC)

01.24.2021

230513

COMMON MOTOR REQUIREMENTS FOR HVAC EQUIPMENT

230529

HANGERS AND SUPPORTS

230553

IDENTIFICATION FOR HVAC PIPING & EQUIPMENT

230593

TESTING, ADJUSTING AND BALANCING

230713

DUCT INSULATION

231123

FACILITY NATURAL-GAS PIPING

233113

METAL DUCTS
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233300

AIR DUCT ACCESSORIES

233713.23

REGISTERS, AND GRILLES

235416.13

GAS-FIRED FURNACES

237223.19

PACKAGED INDOOR FIXED PLATE ENERGY RECOVERY UNITS

REFRIGERANT
AIR COILS
Section
Foreman
House

238216.13
238239.19

WALL AND CEILING UNIT HEATERS
01.24.2021

DIVISION 26 - ELECTRICAL
260010

SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL

260519

LOW-VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL POWER CONDUCTORS AND CABLES

260523

CONTROL-VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL POWER CABLES

260526

GROUNDING AND BONDING FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

260529

HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

260533

RACEWAYS AND BOXES FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

Page 383 of 499

Project Speciﬁcations - Table of Contents
260543

UNDERGROUND DUCTS AND RACEWAYS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

260553

IDENTIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

260923

LIGHTING CONTROL DEVICES

262416

PANELBOARDS

ELECTRICITY
METERING
Section
Foreman
House

262713
262726

WIRING DEVICES
01.24.2021

262816

ENCLOSED SWITCHES AND CIRCUIT BREAKERS

262913.03

MANUAL AND MAGNETIC MOTOR CONTROLLERS

265119

LED INTERIOR LIGHTING

265613

LIGHTING POLES AND STANDARDS

265619

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

DIVISION 27 - COMMUNICATIONS
270528

PATHWAYS FOR COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS
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270529

HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS

271116

COMMUNICATIONS RACKS, FRAMES, AND ENCLOSURES.

271513

COMMUNICATIONS COPPER HORIZONTAL CABLING

DIVISION 28 – ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY
CONVENTIONAL
FIRE-ALARM SYSTEMS
Section
Foreman
House

284621.13

DIVISION 31 - EARTHWORK

01.24.2021

316613

HELICAL PIERS

311000

SITE CLEARING AND DEMOLITION

312000

EARTHWORK

312500

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

321313

CONCRETE PAVEMENT
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DIVISION 32 – EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS
323223

SEGMENTAL RETAINING WALLS

329200

TURF AND GRASSES

329300

PLANTINGS

Section Foreman House
DIVISION 33 – EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

01.24.2021

330000

SITE UTILITIES
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Section Foreman House

City of Wayzata

2022

2023

Duration
(Days)

Start Date

19.00

10/26/21

11/19/21

51.00

11/22/21

1/31/22

Entitlement Start
30% Milestone Deliverable to
City/Conservancy/New History

45.00

2/1/22

4/4/22

6.00

2/4/22

2/11/22

30% Review: Arch, Larch Dwgs. All team:
Spec TOC, Arch Div 1 language

CT Team comment pickup
30% Milestone Deliverable to
MNHS
City Held Community Mtg
Review MNHS 30% Deliverable
Comments/Pickup
Heritage Preservation Board

3.00

2/14/22

2/16/22

Update to New History 2/15/22 4:00 p.m.

3.00

2/16/22

2/18/22

2.00

3/15/22

3/16/22

16.00

3/18/22

4/8/22

2.00

3/31/22

4/1/22

Planning Commission Public
Hearing

2.00

4/18/22

4/19/22

Hold: Design Review Meeting
City Council Meeting

2.00

4/18/22

4/19/22

2.00

5/17/22

5/18/22

45.00

5/23/22

7/22/22

6.00

7/18/22

7/25/22

3.00

7/25/22

7/27/22

2.00

7/28/22

7/29/22

39.00

9/2/22

10/26/22

Review MNHS 60% Deliverable
Comments/Pickup
90% Milestone Deliverable to
City/Conservancy/New History
CT Team comment pickup

5.00

9/2/22

9/8/22

6.00

10/17/22

10/24/22

90% Review: All team: Dwgs and Spec draft
sections

3.00

10/24/22

10/26/22

Update to New History 10/25/22 4:00 p.m.

90% Milestone Deliverable to
MNHS
Review MNHS 90% Deliverable
Comments/Pickup

23.00

11/4/22

12/6/22

5.00

12/7/22

12/13/22

20.00

1/23/23

2/17/23

25.00

2/20/23

3/24/23

14.00

3/13/23

3/30/23

176.00

4/3/23

12/4/23

Activity Name

60% Milestone Deliverable to
City/Conservancy/New History
CT Team comment pickup
60% Milestone Deliverable to
MNHS

Addendum 1

Finish Date
J

F

M

A

M

J

J

A

S

O

N

D

J

F

M

A

M

J

J

A

S

O

N

D

60% Review: All team: Dwgs and Spec draft
sections
Update to New History 7/26/22 4:00 p.m.

J

F

M

A

M

J

J

A

S

O

N

D

J

F

M

A

M

J

J

A

S

O

N

D
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SHEET INDEX

SECTION FOREMAN HOUSE
REHABILITATION
30% SUBMISSION
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

OW NER

ARCHITECT

Contact: Emily Goellner
City of W ayzata, MN
600 Rice St E
W ayzata, MN 55391
952.404.5312

Rebecca Muchow
Cushing Terrell
226 N W ashington Ave, Ste 200
Minneapolis, MN 55401
612.213.2188

CIVIL
C400
C401
C402

OVERALL SITE PLAN
SITE PLAN
LIFT STATION ACCESS PLAN

LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT MECH/PLUMB ENGINEER
Mitchell Cookas
Kimley-Horn
767 N Eustis St, Ste 100
St. Paul, MN 55114
612.294.7250

Som Boualaphanh
Victus Engineering
2327 W ycliff St, Ste 230
St. Paul, MN 55114
612.889.2807

STRUCTURAL

ARCHITECTURAL
AD101 DEMOLITION PLAN - BASEMENT
AD102 DEMOLITION PLAN - FIRST FLOOR
AD103 DEMOLITION PLAN - SECOND FLOOR
AD104 DEMOLITION RCP - FIRST FLOOR
A101 FLOOR PLAN - BASEMENT
A102 FLOOR PLAN - FIRST FLOOR
A103 FLOOR PLAN - SECOND FLOOR
A201 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - NORTH & WEST
A202 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - SOUTH & EAST
A401 STAIR PLANS AND DETAILS
A601 DOOR SCHEDULE
A602 WINDOW SCHEDULE
A701 ENLARGED PLANS AND DETAILS
A801 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - TOILET
A802 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - STUDY & SUPPORT
A803 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - COLLAB LEARNING
A901 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - FIRST FLOOR

PLUMBING

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

FIRE PROTECTION

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER ELECTRICAL ENGINEER
Bradley Severson
Kimley-Horn
767 N Eustis St, Ste 100
St. Paul, MN 55114
612.294.9735

W illow Nichols
Victus Engineering
2327 W ycliff St, Ste 230
St. Paul, MN 55114
612.461.3173

PROJECT LOCATION:
738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

VICINITY MAP:

Locator

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

GENERAL
G001 COVER
G002 ADA STANDARDS
G003 ADA STANDARDS
G004 ADA STANDARDS
G005 LIFE SAFETY PLAN

CITY OF W AYZATA

CITY OF W AYZATA

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

02.04.2022

GENERAL PROJECT NOTES
A. THIS BUILDING IS INDIVIDUALLY LISTED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES. ALL W ORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE SECRETARY OF
INTERIOR'S STANDARDS FOR THE REHABILITATION OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES.
B. DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTOR TO FULLY PROTECT ALL SURFACES AND ITEMS TO REMAIN. ALL COMPONENTS AND
FINISHES DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF W ORK ARE TO BE RESTORED BY CONTRACTOR TO MATCH ORIGINAL CONSTRUCTION.
C. ALL W ORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT SHALL COMPLY W ITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES, ORDINANCES, AND REGULATIONS INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE.
D. DO NOT SCALE THE DRAW INGS. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS IN THE FIELD.
E. CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUB-CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. NOTIFY THE
ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY OF ANY INCONSISTENCIES OR DISCREPANCIES IN THE DRAW INGS AND/OR SPECIFICATIONS COMPARED TO EXISTING
CONDITIONS.
F. PROVIDE DEMOLITION AND PATCHING NOT SHOW N BUT REQUIRED FOR THE INSTALLATION OF NEW DETAILS OR AS REQUIRED FOR THE W ORK.
G. ALL W ORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A MANNER SO AS NOT TO INCREASE/CAUSE A FIRE HAZARD.
H. ALL W ORK SHOW N ON THESE DRAW INGS IS NEW UNLESS OTHERW ISE INDICATED.
I. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE PROTECTION W HERE NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC AND ADJACENT AREAS OF THE BUILDING DURING
CONSTRUCTION AS DIRECTED BY THE OW NER.
J. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY STRUCTURAL BRACING AS REQUIRED DURING W ORK.
K. W HERE INSTRUCTED TO MATCH EXISTING MATERIALS, DUPLICATE DAMAGED AND DETERIORARTED BUILDING ELEMENTS IN ALL RESPECTS
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MATERIAL, FINISH, DIMENSION, AND PROFILE.
L. UTILIZE APPROPRIATE REPLACEMENT AND REPAIR TECHNIQUES TO ENSURE HISTORICALLY COMPATIBLE MODIFICATIONS. REPAIR OR IN-FILL
ITEMS ARE TO MATCH AND BLEND W ITH ADJACENT SURFACES AND FEATURES.

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

COVER

SHEET

G001
2/4/2022 1:33:11 PM | Project# W AYZATA_FORE | L:\W AYZATA_FORE\BIMCAD\Revit
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X > 24"

(a) FORW ARD APPROACH IN AN ALCOVE

(b) PARALLEL APPROACH IN AN ALCOVE

SECTION 305 CLEAR FLOOR SPACE
1/4" = 1'-0"

(a) OBSTRUCTED
HIGH FORW ARD REACH

>20-25 MAX

CITY OF W AYZATA

60" MIN.

48" MAX.

UNOBSTRUCTED
FORW ARD REACH

* 60"x60" PASSING
SPACE EVERY
200 FEET.

CLEAR W IDTH OF AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

10" MAX.
UNOBSTRUCTED
SIDE REACH

2'-0"
MAX.

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

3'-0"
MIN.
48" MAX

48" MAX

15"
MIN.

48" MAX

15"
MIN.

20"
MAX.

4'-0"
MIN.

32"
MIN.

2'-0"
MAX.

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

(b) PARALLEL APPROACH

3'-0"
MIN.

G002

(a) FORW ARD APPROACH

60"
MIN.

36"
MIN.

32"
MIN.

1

48"
MIN.
48"
MIN.

30"
MIN.
CLEAR FLOOR SPACE

30"
MIN.
X > 15"

30"
MIN.

30"
MIN.

48"
MIN.

48"
MIN.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

46" MAX.

34" MAX.

48" MAX.

34" MAX.

44" MAX

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

42" MIN.
10" MAX.
(b) OBSTRUCTED
HIGH FORW ARD REACH

2
G002

< 10"-24" MAX.

(a) OBSTRUCTED
HIGH SIDE REACH

SECTION 308 REACH RANGES
1/4" = 1'-0"

(b) OBSTRUCTED
HIGH SIDE REACH

3
G002

42" MIN.

36" MIN.

36" MIN.

X < 48"

X < 48"

(a) 180 DEGREE TURN

(b) 180 DEGREE TURN
(Exception)

SECTION 403 W ALKING SURFACES

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

ADA
STANDARDS

1/4" = 1'-0"

SHEET

G002
2/4/2022 1:33:12 PM | Project# W AYZATA_FORE | L:\W AYZATA_FORE\BIMCAD\Revit
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MANEUVERING CLEARANCE AT SLIDING AND FOLDING DOORS

MANEUVERING CLEARANCE AT MANUAL SW INGING DOORS

(b) POCKET OR HINGE APPROACH

3'-6"
MIN.

3'-6"
MIN.

(a) FRONT APPROACH, PULL SIDE

3'-0" MIN.

24"
MIN.

(b) FRONT APPROACH, PUSH SIDE

3'-6" MIN.

4'-6"

MANEUVERING CLEARANCE AT DOORW AYS W ITHOUT DOORS

5'-0"

(a) FRONT APPROACH

4'-0"
MIN.

12"
MIN W /LATCH
&CLOSER

X < 36"
(b) SIDE APPROACH

(c) STOP OR LATCH APPROACH

(c) HINGE APPROACH, PULL SIDE

(d) HINGE APPROACH, PULL SIDE

1'-0" MIN.*

4'-0" MIN.
48" w/ CLOSER

3'-6" MIN.
4'-0" **
4'-0"
MIN.

X > 8", MUST BE
FORW ARD
APPROACH

4'-0"
MIN.

X > 8"

(a) PULL SIDE

12"
MIN.

22"
MIN.

* IF BOTH LATCH & CLOSER ARE PROVIDED
**48" MIN. IF BOTH CLOSER & LATCH PROVIDED
(e) HINGE APPROACH, PUSH SIDE

(b) PUSH SIDE

(c) PUSH SIDE, DOOR
PROVIDED w/ BOTH
CLOSER AND LATCH

24"
MIN.

* 48" MIN. IF CLOSER IS PROVIDED
1
G003

SECTION 404 DOORS AND DOORW AYS
1/4" = 1'-0"

24"
MIN.

(f) LATCH APPROACH, PULL SIDE

3'-6" MIN.*

1'-6"
MIN.

X > 8", MUST BE
FORW ARD APPROACH

5'-0"
MIN.

MANEUVERING CLEARANCE AT RECESSED DOORS

CITY OF W AYZATA

(a) FRONT APPROACH

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

X < 36"

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

22"
MIN.

18"
MIN.

4'-0"
MIN.

5'-0"
MIN.

3'-6"
MIN.

4'-0"
MIN.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

ADA
STANDARDS

(g) LATCH APPROACH, PUSH SIDE

SHEET

G003
2/4/2022 1:33:13 PM | Project# W AYZATA_FORE | L:\W AYZATA_FORE\BIMCAD\Revit
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CLEAR W IDTH OF DOORS
32" MIN.

4" MAX.

32" MIN.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

(b) SLIDING DOOR

X > 27

X > 80

(a) HINGED DOOR

(c) FOLDING DOOR

(d) DOORW AY
W ITHOUT DOORS

TW O DOORS IN A SERIES

DOOR
W IDTH

LIMITS OF PROTRUDING OBJECTS

(a) POST MOUNTED PROTRUDING OBJECTS
(b)

(a)
4"
MAX.

CITY OF W AYZATA

4"
MAX.

DOOR
W IDTH

4"
MAX.

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

4'-0"
MIN.

5'-0"
MIN.
5'-0"
MIN.

> 27" - 80"

5'-0"
MIN.

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

90

°

SIGN OR
OBSTRUCTION

36" MIN.

32" MIN.

4"
MAX.

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

1/2" MAX
X >12

5'-0"
MIN.

THRESHOLD HEIGHT

(b) POST MOUNTED PROTRUDING OBJECTS

(c)
1
G004

SECTION 307 PROTRUDING OBJECTS
1/4" = 1'-0"

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

DOOR
W IDTH

27" MAX.

X >12

4'-0"
MIN.

4"
MAX.
80" MIN.

4"
MAX.

2
G004

ADA
STANDARDS

SECTION 404 DOORS AND DOORW AYS 2
1/4" = 1'-0"

SHEET

G004
2/4/2022 1:33:14 PM | Project# W AYZATA_FORE | L:\W AYZATA_FORE\BIMCAD\Revit

Page 392 of 499

CODE PLAN LEGEND
OCCUPANCY TAG:
ROOM / AREA NAME

COLLABORATIVE
LEARNING
258 SF =
5.17
50

STUDY / LIBRARY
137 SF =
0.91
150

ROOM / AREA NUMBER
ROOM NAME
88888 SF
= ###
###

SPACE AREA
NUMBER OF OCCUPANTS
OCCUPANT LOAD FACTOR

EXIT 1:
REQ'D W IDTH: 32"
ACTUAL W IDTH: 34"
ALLOW ED DISTANCE: 300'
ACTUAL DISTANCE: 44'

CLOSET
3 SF =
0.01
300

FEC

DI D
ST IA
AN G O
CE NA
:4 L
6'3"

STORAGE / UTILITY
863 SF =
2.88
300

OCCUPANCY TYPE 'B-2'
SEE PLAN FOR SEATING TYPES

FARA S3

CE
N "
A
ST 1/2
DI '-3
L 2
NA S: 2
O
G IT
IA EX

COLLABORATIVE
LEARNING
272 SF =
5.44
50

D

ALLOW ED DISTANCE: 300'
ACTUAL DISTANCE: 27'

OCCUPANCY TYPE 'B'
LIBRARY - 50 NET

VESTIBULE
30 SF

OCCUPANCY TYPE 'B'
KITCHEN - 200 GROSS

TOILET
55 SF

OCCUPANCY TYPE 'S-1'
STORAGE - 300 GROSS

S1

1
G005

NO ACCESS

LIFE SAFETY PLAN - BASEMENT

2
G005

1" = 10'-0"

STORAGE
223 SF =
0.74
300

EXIT 2:
REQ'D W IDTH: 32"
ACTUAL W IDTH: 34"

STORAGE
36 SF =
0.12
300

EXIT PATH
1 HOUR FIRE BARRIER - SEAL
PERMIETER AND PENETRATIONS
PER DETAILS ON THIS SHEET

LIFE SAFETY PLAN - FIRST FLOOR
1" = 10'-0"

60M

CRAW L SPACE

SUPPORT
100 SF =
0.50
200

SUMMARY CODE REVIEW
FEC

STORAGE
14 SF =
0.05
300

UL RATED FIRE DOOR AND FRAME
W ITH RATING AS INDICATED
- SEE SHEET A601

EXIT

STORAGE
12 SF =
0.04
300

STORAGE
166 SF =
0.55
300

FE
S#

ALLOW ED DISTANCE: 300'
ACTUAL DISTANCE: 37'

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET AND
EXTINGUISHER - SEE SPECS

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

ALLOW ED DISTANCE: 300'
ACTUAL DISTANCE: 43'

STAIR:
OCCUPANTS: 6
REQ'D W IDTH: 36"
ACTUAL W IDTH: 36"

CITY OF W AYZATA

FACP

STAIRS
27 SF

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

EXIT 3: NOT
REQUIRED EXIT
ACTUAL W IDTH: 30"

VEST.
11 SF

SURFACE MOUNTED FIRE
EXTINGUISHER - SEE SPECS
SURFACE MOUNTED SIGN
S1
OCCUPANT CAPACITY
S2
LIVE LOAD
S3
ACCESSIBLE RESTROOM
PICTOGRAPH

FARA

FIRE ALARM ANNUNCIATOR,
SEE ELEC.

FACP

FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL,
SEE ELEC.

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

NOTE: SEE ELECTRICAL FOR ILLUMINATED
EXIT SIGNS.
3
G005

LIFE SAFETY PLAN - SECOND FLOOR
1" = 10'-0"

LIFE SAFETY
PLAN

SHEET

G005
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DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES

X

XX

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE
ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

101-1

NAME
101

1
______________
A101

SIM

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE
DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE
CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)

1

#

2

3

1
2
3

DEMOLITION KEYNOTES
REMOVE DETERIORATED STRUCTURAL POST. REF STRUCTURAL.
REMOVE DETERIORATED WALL.
REMOVE DOOR. PROTECT AND RETAIN FOR REUSE.

001-2

STAIRS
B

1

4
1

2
002-4

CITY OF W AYZATA

001-1

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

1

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

PLAN LEGEND

3

STORAGE /
UTILITY
001

001-3
© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

5

DEMOLITION
PLAN BASEMENT

1
AD101

DEMOLITION PLAN - BASEMENT
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

AD101
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DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES

XX

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE
ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N

A101

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE
CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)

1

#

2

2
3

3
DN

102-3

102-2

KITCHEN
102

104-1

VESTIBULE
103
UP

1

ROOM
104

CLOSET
111
9
STAIRS
1A

3
102-1

3

CLOSET
105
104-2

3

7
5

7

7
9

11

8
3

7
CLOSET
110 7
3
101-2

LIVING
ROOM
101

CLOSET
7
109
7
9

ROOM
108

REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC KITCHEN CABINETS, SINK, AND STOVE.
REMOVE EXISTING WOOD EXTERIOR STAIRS AND LANDING.
REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC WINDOW SHUTTERS.
REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC CONCRETE STEPS.
REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC CONCRETE STOOP.
REMOVE ALL NON-HISTORIC BATHROOM FIXTURES INCLUDING SINK,
CABINETS, TOILET, AND SHOWER.
7 REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC DOOR.
8 REMOVE EXISTING DOOR AND WIDEN EXISTING NON-HISTORIC OPENING
TO ACCOMODATE 36" DOOR.
9 REMOVE EXISTING WALLS.
10 REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC RAILING.
11 REMOVE FIBERBOARD ON LOWER HALF OF FRAMED WALL. SALVAGE
WOOD BASE FOR REUSE.

106-1

4
© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

7

LAUNDRY
107

107-1

3
4

8

1
2
3
4
5
6

DN

TOILET
6
106

9

6'-2"

101-3

4

DEMOLITION KEYNOTES

CITY OF W AYZATA

101-1

NAME
101

1
______________

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE

SIM

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

X

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

PLAN LEGEND

108-2

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

DN

108-1

3

5
101-1

10

3
DEMOLITION
PLAN - FIRST
FLOOR

1
AD102

DEMOLITION PLAN - FIRST FLOOR
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

AD102
2/4/2022 1:33:06 PM | Project# W AYZATA_FORE | L:\W AYZATA_FORE\BIMCAD\Revit

Page 395 of 499

DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES

XX

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE
ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N

A101

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE
CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)

1
1

CLOSET
204

BEDROOM
201

201-2

1

1

CLOSET
203

201-1

1

#

2

202-1

STAIRS
1A

BEDROOM
202

202-2

1

4
1

1

REMOVE EXISTING NON-HISTORIC WINDOW SHUTTERS.

3

DN

201-3

DEMOLITION KEYNOTES

CITY OF W AYZATA

101-1

NAME
101

1
______________

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE

SIM

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

X

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

PLAN LEGEND

202-3

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

5

DEMOLITION
PLAN - SECOND
FLOOR

1
AD103

DEMOLITION PLAN - SECOND FLOOR
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

AD103
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DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES

CEILING MATERIAL
CEILING HEIGHT

00'-00 00/00"

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

ADDITIONAL NOTES

NOTES

ACT

1X1 ACOUSTICAL
CEILING

CEILING MATERIAL
ACT1
GYP

GYPSUM BOARD
CEILING - PAINT

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

1X1 ACOUSTICAL TILE
GYPSUM BOARD - PAINT

CEILING HEIGHT
VAR

VARIES

ADDITIONAL NOTES
LIGHTING SEE ELECTRICAL

HVAC REGISTERS SEE MECHANICAL

1.
2.

1

NOT USED.
NOT USED.

#

2

1
2

VESTIBULE
103

DEMOLITION KEYNOTES
REMOVE EXISTING GYP CEILING.
REMOVE EXISTING ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING.

3

CLOSET
111

2
STAIRS
1A
1

1

CLOSET
105

CLOSET
110

4
1
LIVING
ROOM
101

1

ROOM
108

2

CITY OF W AYZATA

KITCHEN
102

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

ROOM
104

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

REFLECTED CEILING LEGEND

1
TOILET
106
© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

CLOSET
109

LAUNDRY
1
107
DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

1'-0 1/2"

5

DEMOLITION
RCP - FIRST
FLOOR

1
AD104

DEMOLITION RCP - FIRST FLOOR
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

AD104
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X

XX

GENERAL NOTES

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE

NAME
101

ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

1
______________

SIM

A101

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE
DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE

101-1

CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)

A201

1

#

2

1

1
2
3

32'-6"

3

CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTES
REPAIR EXISTING WINDOW. SEE A600s FOR SCHEDULE AND DETAILS.
INSTALL STRUCTURAL WOOD POST. REF STRUCTURAL.
REPOINT DETERIORATED MORTAR JOINTS AT HISTORIC BRICK
CHIMNEY. ASSUME 25% OF JOINTS ON ALL SIDE REQUIRE
REPOINTING.

001-2

1

29'-9 1/2"

1

A201

STAIRS
B

2

4
3

2
STORAGE /
UTILITY
001

002-4

1

001-3
© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

2

1

A202

5'-10"

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

5

1
A202
16'-2"

2
A101

ADDITIONS TO EXISTING BUILDING SYSTEMS W ILL BE CONCEALED W ITHIN
EXISTING STRUCTURE TO THE GREATEST EXTENT POSSIBLE. W HERE
REQUIRED, SOFFITS OR OTHER NEW BUILDING ELEMENTS W ILL BE A
MINIMAL SIZE AND LOCATED AT THE PERIPHERY OF ROOMS ACCESSIBLE
TO THE PUBLIC.

2

CITY OF W AYZATA

001-1

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

2

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

PLAN LEGEND

16'-4"

FLOOR PLAN BASEMENT

FLOOR PLAN - BASEMENT
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

A101
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X

GENERAL NOTES

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE

XX

NAME
101

ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

1
______________

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE

SIM

DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N

A101

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE

101-1

CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)
32'-6"

1

A201

______________

16'-8"

1

3'-10"

12'-0"

VEST.
103

16'-4 7/8"

102-3

102-2

102-1

A201

6

2

3

STUDY /
LIBRARY
3
2 104

UP

4
5

2
4
4

A803

4

3

3
STAIRS
1A

4

1

A802
3

3

VESTIBULE
105

104

19'-2 5/8"

3

3

2

______________

4

108
3

COLLABORATIVE
LEARNING
101
4
1

106-1

1

A701

1
101-2

TOILET
106

4

3

101

1

108-2
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1

107

2

3

108-1

1

______________

A701

A202

107-1

STORAGE
107
5'-11 1/4"

101-3

1

A803

SUPPORT
108

ADDITIONS TO EXISTING BUILDING SYSTEMS W ILL BE CONCEALED W ITHIN
EXISTING STRUCTURE TO THE GREATEST EXTENT POSSIBLE. W HERE
REQUIRED, SOFFITS OR OTHER NEW BUILDING ELEMENTS W ILL BE A
MINIMAL SIZE AND LOCATED AT THE PERIPHERY OF ROOMS ACCESSIBLE
TO THE PUBLIC.

105

106

109

3

REPAIR EXISTING WINDOW. SEE A600s FOR SCHEDULE AND DETAILS.
INSTALL SINK.
PATCH, REPAIR AND PAINT FIBERBOARD, WALL BASE AND QUARTER
ROUND.
PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING WOOD FLOOR. REFINISH WITH CLEAR
FINISH.
INSTALL GYPSUM BOARD WHERE MISSING AT EXPOSED WALL
FRAMING MATCHING EXISTING ADJACENT GYPSUM BOARD. INSTALL
SALVAGED WALL BASE AND QUARTER ROUND.

104-2

CLOSET
5
109

2

CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTES

1

3

7

1
2
3

1

104-1

1
3
COLLABORATIVE
LEARNING
102
5
1

#

2

CITY OF W AYZATA

1

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

A401

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

PLAN LEGEND

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

5

1
101-1

A202
16'-2 3/4"

1
A102

16'-3 1/4"

FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR

FLOOR PLAN - FIRST FLOOR
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

A102
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X

XX

GENERAL NOTES

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE
ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

101-1

NAME
101

1
______________

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE

SIM

DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N

A101

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE
CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)

A201

14'-0 1/4"
201-1

202-1

1

3

A201

4
1

3

4

1

STORAGE
204
201-2

1
3

11'-10 3/8"

STORAGE
203
3

STORAGE
201

2

3

DN

STORAGE
202

1

202-2

3

1

ADDITIONS TO EXISTING BUILDING SYSTEMS W ILL BE CONCEALED W ITHIN
EXISTING STRUCTURE TO THE GREATEST EXTENT POSSIBLE. W HERE
REQUIRED, SOFFITS OR OTHER NEW BUILDING ELEMENTS W ILL BE A
MINIMAL SIZE AND LOCATED AT THE PERIPHERY OF ROOMS ACCESSIBLE
TO THE PUBLIC.

1

4
201-3

202-3

16'-10 3/4"
3'-8 7/8"

REPAIR EXISTING WINDOW. SEE A600s FOR SCHEDULE AND DETAILS.
PATCH, REPAIR AND PAINT FIBERBOARD, WALL BASE AND QUARTER
ROUND.
PATCH AND REPAIR EXISTING WOOD FLOOR. REFINISH WITH CLEAR
FINISH.

3

4

STAIRS
2A

CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTES

CITY OF W AYZATA

1

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

2'-10 1/2"

#

2

3'-8 7/8"

16'-4 7/8"

1

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

PLAN LEGEND

11'-10 3/8"
© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

2

A202

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW
1
A202

1
A103

5

FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR

FLOOR PLAN - SECOND FLOOR
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

A103
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GENERAL NOTES

REPAIR FASCIA
AND MOLDING TO
MATCH EXISTING SEE DETAIL #/A###

CONCRETE STOOP
AND STAIR

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

#
1

2
3
4

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

KEYNOTES
UNIT PRICING: REMOVE AND REPLACE ROTTED WOOD SIDING BACK
TO EXISTING FRAMING. MATCH EXISTING ADJACENT SIDING. UNIT
PRICE PER L.F.
PAINT EXTERIOR SIDING AND VERTICAL TRIM. COLOR TO BE XXX.
SEE SPEC SECTION 099113 FOR SURFACE PREPARATION.
PAINT FASCIA, MOLDING, SOFFIT AND DOOR TRIM. COLOR TO BE
XXX. SEE SPEC SECTION 099113 FOR SURFACE PREPARATION.
RESET INTACT AND STRUCTURALLY SOUND LOOSE WOOD SIDING.

ROOF PLAN
121'-7 1/2"

ROOF PLAN
121'-7 1/2"

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

REPLACE DECKING,
STAIR, AND RAIL TO
MATCH EXISTING

CITY OF W AYZATA

REPLACE SIDING TO
MATCH EXISTING SEE DETAIL #/A###

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

MATERIALS LEGEND

© 2021 | ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

3

3

3
2
4

SECOND FLOOR
109'-7"

SECOND FLOOR
109'-7"
3

2

2

2
3

2

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

A201

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH
1/8" = 1'-0"

2
FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"
EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS NORTH & W EST

1
1

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

2
A201

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - W EST
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

A201
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GENERAL NOTES

REPAIR FASCIA
AND MOLDING TO
MATCH EXISTING SEE DETAIL #/A###

CONCRETE STOOP
AND STAIR

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

KEYNOTES

#
2

PAINT EXTERIOR SIDING AND VERTICAL TRIM. COLOR TO BE XXX.
SEE SPEC SECTION 099113 FOR SURFACE PREPARATION.
PAINT FASCIA, MOLDING, SOFFIT AND DOOR TRIM. COLOR TO BE
XXX. SEE SPEC SECTION 099113 FOR SURFACE PREPARATION.
REPLACE FASCIA BOARD WHERE ROTTED.
REPLACE MOLDING WHERE ROTTED.

3
4
5

ROOF PLAN
121'-7 1/2"

ROOF PLAN
121'-7 1/2"

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

REPLACE DECKING,
STAIR, AND RAIL TO
MATCH EXISTING

CITY OF W AYZATA

REPLACE SIDING TO
MATCH EXISTING SEE DETAIL #/A###

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

MATERIALS LEGEND

5
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3

2

2

3

3

2

SECOND FLOOR
109'-7"

2

3

4

2

2

SECOND FLOOR
109'-7"
2

DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

2

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"
EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS SOUTH & EAST

1
A202

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH
1/8" = 1'-0"

2
A202

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET

A202
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GENERAL NOTES

REBUILD LANDING AND STAIR TO MATCH EXISTING DETERORATED
LANDING AND STAIR

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

1

CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTES

CITY OF W AYZATA

#

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

SECTION FOREM AN HOUSE REHABILITATION

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
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1
DRAW N BY
MCCOY
CHECKED BY
MUCHOW

3
STAIR PLANS
AND DETAILS
1
A401

NORTH STAIRS ENLARGED PLAN
1/4" = 1'-0"

SHEET

A401
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DOOR & FRAME SCHEDULE
ROOM
NUMBER

101

101

104
105
106
107
108
109

105

COLLABORATIVE
LEARNING
VESTIBULE

106
108
108
109

TOILET
SUPPORT
SUPPORT
CLOSET

ROOM NAME
W
3'-0"

SIZE
H
7'-5"

T
1 3/4"

3'-0"
3'-0"
3'-0"
3'-0"
5'-8"
1'-5"

6'-8"
7'-5"
6'-8"
6'-8"
7'-5"
6'-8"

1/2"
1 3/4"
1 3/4"
1 3/8"
1 3/8"
1 3/4"

MTL

TYPE

GLAZE

NOTES

MTL

FRAME
DETAIL
HEAD
JAMB

TYPE

SILL

NOTES

FIRE RATING

DOOR HARDWARE SCHEDULE
101

101

104
105
106
107
108
109

105

COLLABORATI
VE LEARNING
VESTIBULE

106
108
108
109

TOILET
SUPPORT
SUPPORT
CLOSET

ROOM NAME

THRES

HINGE

LOCK

PUSH PULL

HARDWARE
CLOSE

STOP HOLD

MISC

WTHR

NOTES

DOOR HARDW ARE
ABBREVIATIONS

LOCKS

MISCELLANEOUS

AL
HM
IN
T
WD
CLAD

1.

1.

ALUMINUM
HOLLOW METAL
1" INSULATED TEMPERED GLAZING
1/4" TEMPERED GLAZING
W OOD
ALUMINUM CLAD W OOD

DOOR NOTES
1.

NOT USED

PUSH/PULLS

W EATHERSTRIPPING

1.

1.

NOT USED

NOT USED

CLOSERS

HARDW ARE NOTES

1.

1.

NOT USED

NOT USED

NOT USED

FRAME NOTES
1.

NOT USED

NOT USED

STOPS/HOLDS

GENERAL NOTES

1.

1.

NOT USED
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MINNEAPOLIS, MN
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WINDOW SCHEDULE
GLAZING
TYPE

W INDOW REMARKS
1.

FINISH

HARDWARE

HEAD

JAMB

REMARKS
SILL
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LOCATION (ROOM #)
STORAGE / UTILITY 001
STORAGE / UTILITY 001
STORAGE / UTILITY 001
STORAGE / UTILITY 002
COLLABORATIVE LEARNING 101
COLLABORATIVE LEARNING 101
COLLABORATIVE LEARNING 101
COLLABORATIVE LEARNING 102
COLLABORATIVE LEARNING 102
COLLABORATIVE LEARNING 102
STUDY / LIBRARY 104
STUDY / LIBRARY 104
TOILET 106
STORAGE 107
SUPPORT 108
SUPPORT 108
STORAGE 201
STORAGE 201
STORAGE 201
STORAGE 202
STORAGE 202
STORAGE 202

DETAILS

CITY OF W AYZATA

WINDOW
#
001-1
001-2
001-3
002-4
101-1
101-2
101-3
102-1
102-2
102-3
104-1
104-2
106-1
107-1
108-1
108-2
201-1
201-2
201-3
202-1
202-2
202-3

FRAME
STORM FRAME
BOTH FRAME
TYPE
FINISH
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XX

ASSEMBLY TYPE (SEE ASSEMBLIES SHEET)
ASSEMBLY MODIFIER, PER TYPE
ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

X

W INDOW TYPE (SEE A600s)

X

KEYNOTE

101-1

NAME
101

1
______________

SIM

A101

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

DIRECTION OF VIEW , IF APPLICABLE
DRAW ING NUMBER
SHEET W HERE DRAW N
DIMENSION TO FACE OF FRAMING
DIMENSION TO GRID LINE

CL

DIMENSION TO CENTER LINE

DOOR NUMBER (SEE SHEET A601)

#

2
1

2'-0"

8

A802

7'-6"

TOILET
106

5
7'-4"

4

7

SUPPORT
108
100 SF

ENLARGED PLAN - SUPPORT
1/4" = 1'-0"

4

1
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1'-6"

A701

INSTALL WALL-MOUNTED COAT RACK.
INSTALL WALL-MOUNTED SOAP DISPENSER.
INSTALL SINK.
INSTALL WALL-MOUNTED PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER.

4

6

2'-8"

3

6'-3"

3'-0"

4
2
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PLAN LEGEND

2
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4'-9"

1'-3"

ENLARGED PLAN - TOILET
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A
B
D
E
F
G
G
H
J
K
L
M
N
O
P
Q
R

N

MOUNTING HEIGHT
6" TO CENTER FROM ADJACENT W ALL
18" TO CENTER FROM ADJACENT W ALL
34" MAX TO SINK RIM ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
9" HIGH X 6" DEEP TOE CLEARANCE
27" MIN X 8" DEEP KNEE CLEARANCE
14" TO TOP OF SEAT
17" - 19" TOP OF SEAT
12" TO CENTER FROM ADJACENT W ALL
7" - 9" TO CENTERLINE FROM TOILET
33" - 36" TO TOP A.F.F.
36" OUTSIDE TO OUTSIDE
42" OUTSIDE TO OUTSIDE
40" MAX TO BOT OF MIRROR SURFACE
19" MIN. TO CENTER ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
1 1/2" MIN. FROM BOTTOM OF GRAB BAR
39" - 41" FROM W ALL
39" - 41" FROM FLOOR
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DIM#

GRAB BAR
TOILET (ADA)
SINK (ADA)
SINK (ADA)
SINK (ADA)
TOILET
TOILET (ADA)
GRAB BAR (ADA)
TOILET PAPER HOLDER
GRAB BAR
GRAB BAR
GRAB BAR
MIRROR
TOILET PAPER HOLDER
TOILET PAPER HOLDER
18" VERTICAL GRAB BAR
18" VERTICAL GRAB BAR
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FIXTURE
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TOILET 106 NORTH ELEVATION
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TOILET 106 EAST ELEVATION
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3
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TOILET 106 SOUTH ELEVATION
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TOILET 106 W EST ELEVATION
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STUDY 104 - EAST ELEVATION

1
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1/4" = 1'-0"
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STUDY 104 NORTH ELEVATION
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SUPPORT 108 EAST ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"

6
A802

SUPPORT 108 NORTH ELEVATION
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SUPPORT 108 SOUTH ELEVATION
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COLLAB LEARNING 101 EAST ELEVATION
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COLLAB LEARNING 101 NORTH ELEVATION
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GENERAL NOTES

CEILING MATERIAL
CEILING HEIGHT

00'-00 00/00"

A. SEE GENERAL PROJECT NOTES ON COVER SHEET.
B. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN THIS SET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

ADDITIONAL NOTES

NOTES

ACT

1X1 ACOUSTICAL
CEILING

CEILING MATERIAL
ACT1
GYP

GYPSUM BOARD
CEILING - PAINT

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
p 612.284.5697

1X1 ACOUSTICAL TILE
GYPSUM BOARD - PAINT

CEILING HEIGHT
VAR

VARIES

ADDITIONAL NOTES
1.
2.

ACT1

1

NOT USED.
NOT USED.

#

2

EXIST HT

3

1
2
3

CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTES
INSTALL GYP CEILING TO MATCH ADJACENT EXISTING CONDITION.
INSTALL GYP CEILING TO MATCH PREVIOUS EXISTING CONDITION.
INSTALL ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING TO MATCH ADJACENT EXISTING
CONDITION. ALIGN WITH ADJACENT HEIGHT AND GRID LINES.

3

4

1
GYP

1

2

GYP

ADDITIONS TO EXISTING BUILDING SYSTEMS W ILL BE CONCEALED W ITHIN
EXISTING STRUCTURE TO THE GREATEST EXTENT POSSIBLE. W HERE
REQUIRED, SOFFITS OR OTHER NEW BUILDING ELEMENTS W ILL BE A
MINIMAL SIZE AND LOCATED AT THE PERIPHERY OF ROOMS ACCESSIBLE
TO THE PUBLIC.

CITY OF W AYZATA

HVAC REGISTERS SEE MECHANICAL

738 LAKE ST N, W AYZATA, MN 55391

LIGHTING SEE ELECTRICAL
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REFLECTED CEILING LEGEND

EXIST HT

EXIST HT
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REFLECTED
CEILING PLAN FIRST FLOOR

2
A901

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - FIRST FLOOR
1/8" = 1'-0"

SHEET
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to update the conditions assessment report developed by Miller
Dunwiddie Architecture in 2015 to reflect current site conditions in advance of the stabilization scope
development and construction documents 1. The exposure of the building to extreme weather, adjacent site
elements such as the lake and railroad, and vandalism may have accelerated the deterioration of the building.
This report is an update of the 2015 report section entitled Description, Assessment and Recommendations (see
2015 report pp. 7-27). This report format is developed based on the 2015 conditions assessment and updated
with on-site observations performed by Quentin Collette and Lauren Anderson on August 15, 2019.

The plain text in the following section of this report has been copied verbatim from the 2015
Miller Dunwiddie Architecture report. For each exterior and interior building feature, the section
beginning with “Current Condition” was developed by New History to reflect any changes in the
existing conditions since 2015. New History’s text is differentiated in bold and italic throughout this
document. Unless noted otherwise, all photographs were taken by New History and reflect current
conditions.
Major findings of this report include:
•

•

•

•

•

•
•

The CMU (concrete block) foundation walls at the crawlspace are generally in fair to poor condition
with large cracks at two locations where the foundation has most likely settled in the southwest
corner of the house.
The wood columns at the basement level are in fair condition with notable wood deterioration at the
base due to standing water. The wood joists of the first-floor framing are in fair condition with
evidence of joist rotation and lack of connectivity at the supports.
Based on observations made from the ground, the asphalt shingles appear to be in good to fair
condition with warping where metal flashing is deteriorated or fascia is loose at the north end of the
1940s roof addition and along the west and east ends of the 1902 building. The wood fascia is in fair
to poor condition at the north, west and east sides of the 1902 building where it is loose or missing.
The wood shiplap siding is generally in fair condition in most locations with some checking,
warping, holes, loose or missing boards, recessing nails, peeling paint, and staining and surface
deterioration caused by moisture and corroded fasteners. A few boards are missing or rotten at the
east and south façades.
All windows and exterior doors are boarded up with plywood sheathing at the exterior. Doors are
generally in good to fair condition. Windows are typically in poor condition at the lower level, fair
condition at the first level, and fair to poor condition at the second level. Some door and window
sills are in poor condition with evidence of rot.
Floor finishes are typically in good to fair condition at the wood flooring and fair to poor condition
at the linoleum or vinyl sheet flooring.
Wall finishes are generally in good condition, and fair condition where cracking was observed.

1

Christenson Ekman M., Kelly E., and Liddy C., “Historic Structures Report for the Wayzata Section House,” April 27, 2015,
prepared by Miller Dunwiddie Architecture, Inc. for the Wayzata Historical Society and the City of Wayzata.
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•
•

Ceiling finishes are in good to fair condition with minor cracking, holes, and missing acoustic
ceiling tiles.
The lower-level stair is in poor condition with wood splitting and wood deterioration at the stair
base due to standing water.

4
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DESCRIPTION AND CONDITION
General Building Description:
The Section House is rectangular in plan and originally faced the
railroad tracks to the north. Based on investigation at the interior, it is
evident that there were three significant phases of construction. The
first was the original one-and-one-half story house built in 1902, the
second, a 1940’s era one-story addition to the south, and the third an
extension of the one-story addition to the south, enlarging the living
room and adding a porch.

The northern section of the house is one-and-one-half stories tall
with a side gable roof. The southern section of the house is a singlestory with a front gable facing south towards Lake Minnetonka.
The original front entrance faces the railroad tracks to the north,
which is slightly off center with two stacked single windows flanking
each side. The east and west ends of the building also have centrally
located windows on each level of the taller northern section. On the
Fig. 1.1 Portion of north façade showing the
original, two-story house

east side, there is a centrally located door with two additional
windows to the south at the main level. There are two pairs of double
windows located at the main level on the west side. The south side
has two small windows located in the corners of the second level,
directly below the roof eave, in addition to a pair of windows at the
main level porch on the east end and a row of four windows on the
west end.
The description of the interior as stated by one of the Section House’s
occupants, Mr. Gustave Frederick Ehrreich, is that section houses
were all identical, “the paint color was always grey, inside and out,
and the layout was austere, simple with two rooms upstairs and two

Fig. 1.2 East façade showing addition on left
and original house on right

down.” 2 The original layout was simple: a main entrance opening
directly to stairs. To the west of the stairs was the kitchen and on the

2

Roise, Charlene, “Great Northern Section House 738 East Lake Street, Wayzata,” A National Register Assessment, June
2011, prepared by Hess, Roise and Company for the Wayzata Historical Society. p. 14
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east end, a living room or bedroom. Upstairs were two more
bedrooms. This description accurately describes the current room
layout within the north section of the house, where there are two
rooms upstairs, likely bedrooms, and two rooms on the main level
with a stair hall, in line with the front entry door, separating the two
spaces. At the main level, the room on the west currently has a
kitchen and dining room. The kitchen was likely updated in the 60’s,
after the house was purchased by Dr. Brooks, and retains much of the
original equipment from that era.
Fig. 1.3 South façade of house (addition) as
seen from Lake Minnetonka

There is a hallway that runs from east-west along the south side of
the northern section, in line with the door on the east side. This
hallway separates the original two rooms on the north from the added
rooms to the south. There is a living room at the southwest corner, a
bedroom at the center, and bath and laundry rooms on the east end.
The living room was further extended to the south on the west end
and a covered porch added to the east end. This work was likely done
as part of the permitted work in 1963 after the railroad sold the house.

Fig. 1.4 Portion of west façade showing the
original, two-story house

Fig. 1.5 View of house from approaching
driveway
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Exterior Elevation Drawings:

Fig. 1.6 Existing north elevation (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)

Fig. 1.7 Existing south elevation (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)
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Fig. 1.8 Existing east elevation (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)

Fig. 1.9 Existing west elevation (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)
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Exterior Foundation:
Description:

The poured concrete foundation walls are not original to the
building. In the 1940’s the house was lifted and the concrete
foundation was poured below at the same time of the construction of
the first addition. The walls are partially exposed above grade about
one to three feet, with four half windows to allow light into the

basement; two windows on the east and west walls each. There is an
Fig. 1.10 CMU block foundation at porch and
south end addition. Note crack at
porch.

exterior concrete stair and landing at the east entrance.

At the second addition on the south end, the foundation walls are
concrete masonry unit (CMU) blocks with three vents to the crawl
space below. The east exterior porch is poured concrete slab that also
sits on CMU blocks.

Current Condition :

Fig. 1.11 Poured concrete foundation

intersection with CMU block
foundation on the east end at the
1960’s addition

The condition at the concrete has changed; it is in good to fair
condition with minor cracking at the east exterior concrete
stair. The condition at the CMU blocks has mostly remained
the same. It is generally in fair to poor condition with large
cracks at two locations where the foundation has most likely
settled in the southwest corner of the house. There are also
cracked and spalled CMU blocks at the east exterior stair. The
west foundation wall could not be assessed due to the
vegetation.

Exterior Siding and Trim:
Description:

The wood shiplap siding is painted dark green with 5” corner boards.
The starter board at the rim joist is 10” particleboard or plywood.
Because the siding is continuous from the 1902 and 1940’s era
addition, it is likely the whole house was re-sided at the time of
construction and new windows were added. There is a vertical board
Fig. 1.12 Missing shiplap on east façade

marking the location of the 1960’s era addition on the west façade
(see Figure 1.9). At this addition, there are also three vents in the
lower starter board to ventilate the crawlspace below.

9
Page 419 of 499

Current Condition:

Fig. 1.13 Southern wood clapboard siding with
significant peeling paint and
weathering

The condition has mostly remained the same. The painted
surface is however more significantly weathered. Overall the
wood shiplap siding is in fair condition with checking,
warping, holes, loose or missing boards, recessing nails, and
staining and surface deterioration caused by moisture and
corroded fasteners. Peeling paint can be found on all facades,
but is most prominent on the east and south-facing facades. In
some areas the paint is completely worn away. The northern
façade facing the tracks and the western façade are generally in
the best condition. A few boards are missing or rotten at the
east and south façades. Nails are typically corroded. The starter
board in the southwest corner is sagging or missing, most likely
due to settlement after the 1960’s addition.
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Exterior Doorways and Doors:
Description:

There is a wood stair and landing with railing leading to the
north entrance. There is a wood railing at the south porch.
At the north and east entrances, the interior wood paneled doors with
glass and wood trim appear to be original to the 1902 structure. It
appears that the original divided lights on the north interior door
were replaced with a single pane of glass. The wood storm door with
glass at the east side may also be original; however, it is unlikely the
glass would have been that large and would have been divided
similarly to the windows and door. The storm door to the north
appears to be a replacement aluminum door and frame within the
original wood trim.
The interior door at the south porch is wood with 15 glass panels.
The door appears to be original to the date of the 1960’s construction.
Fig. 1.14 East entrance original opening

Current Condition:
The condition has changed. At the north entrance, the wood
stair and landing are in fair condition with wood deterioration.
The wood railing failed and is damaged. The wood railing at
the east entrance is missing. The wood railing at the south
porch is in fair condition with failed connections, staining, and
surface deterioration.
All doors are boarded up with plywood sheathing at the
exterior. The north wood door appears to be in good condition
with minor peeling paint. The east and south wood doors
appear to be in fair condition with broken glass, peeling paint,
and minor surface deterioration. One muntin is missing at the
east door. The condition of the north aluminum storm door
could not be assessed due to be plywood sheathing. The east and
south storm doors are missing. These doors were likely removed
for the installation of the plywood sheathing.

Fig. 1.15 South addition entrance at porch
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The wood sill at the east door is in poor condition with signs of
rot. The condition of other wood trim and sill at the north and
east doors could not be assessed due to the plywood sheathing.
The wood trim and sill at the south door is in good condition.

Windows:
Description:
Fig. 1.16 Interior view of smaller wood window
in upstairs east bedroom

There are four multi-divided lite wood windows with storms at
the basement.
There is a mix of wood, double-hung, single glazed, three-over-three
windows at the north and south facades of the second level, and sixover-six windows at the main level and east & west facades of the
second level. Based on the metal springs used for operating the
windows, it is assumed that these windows are not original, but later
added during the 1940’s when this operating type commonly
replaced the former pulley operators using rope sash cords and
counterweights. All of the wood is painted at the interior and

Fig. 1.17 Deteriorating glazing compound at
window in upstairs west bedroom

exterior. At the first level, the windows have lower interior wood
shutters at the lower sash that are likely not original.
There is a pair of windows on the west façade that likely replaced a
former single window at the time the windows were replaced.
Selective demolition was done by Miller Dunwiddie Architecture in
2015 to determine if the original framing held a single window
instead of a double at one time, however evidence was inconclusive
as it appears framing was also modified.
There are also two wood, 6-pane, double hung windows on the east
elevation of the assumed 1940’s era addition at the current bathroom
and laundry rooms. The windows on the west side of the south

Fig. 1.18 Window at south addition – bedroom

façade at the living room are a set of four single pane, fixed casement
wood windows that appear to be original to the 1960’s era addition.
At the original southern façade, which is now the wall south of the
hallway, the wall was opened up by Miller Dunwiddie Architecture
in 2015 to find evidence of original window and/or door framing. It
appears that there were perhaps one or two tall windows to the east of
the chimney. There may also have been a window to the west of the
chimney that was expanded into a larger opening between the dining
and living room areas. There is framing at the same heights and

Fig. 1.19 Window at south addition – living
room

similar widths as the remaining windows at the northern section of
the house. It is possible that the current door frame for the bathroom
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was also once a window (see Figure 1.22 for speculation of original
1902 southern façade).
All of the double-hung windows have a wood storm with divided
light patterns matching the interior window patterns. There are metal
exterior shutters at all windows that are not original to the building.

Current Condition:

Fig. 1.20 Selective demolition below west
kitchen window

Fig. 1.21 Selective demolition at original south
wall

The condition has changed. All windows are boarded up with
plywood sheathing at the exterior. Based on interior
observations, the windows are generally in fair condition with
peeling paint, deteriorated glazing compound, broken glass,
surface deterioration, and missing or broken hardware. The
windows at the basement level are in poor condition with
broken glass, wood deterioration, and missing wood
components. The windows at the second level on the west and
east facades are in fair to poor condition where the
frame/muntin is deteriorated or missing. Most of the interior
shutters at the first level are broken. The condition of the
exterior wood storm windows could not be assessed due to the
exterior plywood sheathing. Some windows are stored in the
basement.
There is rot and deterioration at most sills with peeling paint.
The second level windows on the north façade appear to be
replacement sills.

Fig. 1.22 Speculation of original 1902 southern
façade. Current openings highlighted
with solid dark line. (Miller
Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)
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Roof:

Description:
The building has two levels of gabled roofs currently covered with
asphalt shingles. Based on the spacing between the roof decking
boards at the second level roof as visible from within the attic space,
the roof was likely originally covered with wood shingles. This
spacing was important for air flow to dry the wood shingles from
below and extend their useful life. There are also attic vents at both
Fig. 1.23 Image of roof over addition looking
east

east and west gabled ends.
It is unknown how the 1940’s era addition roof was constructed
originally. It appears the roof framing may have been modified as part
of the work to add the southern addition and porch in the 1960’s.
There is a large triangular louver at the south gabled end and vents
near the ridge for air circulation in the attic space.
It is possible that the entire roof was re-shingled in the 1980’s after a
damaging storm, as that was also when the chimney was repaired. It
is likely that the current shingles were more recently replaced at an
unknown date as they appear to be generally in fair condition.
The wood fascia, soffit and cornice boards appear to be original on
the northern section. At the 1940’s and 1960’s era additions, it is likely
original to the 1960’s remodel.

Current Condition:

Fig. 1.24 Roof intersects with original southern
façade

Fig. 1.25 Attic of original structure with
vermiculite insulation

The condition appears to have remained unchanged. (The
condition of the asphalt shingles was assessed from the ground.)
Overall, the asphalt shingles appear to be in good to fair
condition with warping at deteriorated metal flashing and loose
fascia. Deteriorated shingles were observed at the north end of
the 1940s roof addition and along the west and east ends of the
1902 building. Additional site investigations should be
performed by a roofing contractor to assess the condition of the
asphalt shingles.
Overall the wood fascia, soffit and cornice boards appear to be
in good to fair condition with minor areas of wood
deterioration and peeling paint. The wood fascia is in fair to
poor condition at the north, west and east sides of the 1902
building where it is loose or missing. The triangular louver at
the south gable is in fair condition with peeling paint, surface
deterioration, and missing trim. Metal flashing is in fair
condition with warping and surface corrosion.
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Chimney:

Description:

Fig. 1.26 Replaced chimney

There is a masonry chimney adjacent to the original south exterior
wall of the original northern section that extends above the lower
roof. From the basement up to the attic level the chimney is made of
cream-colored Chaska-style brick. Above the roof level it transitions
to red brick. Based on the good condition of the red brick, it is
possible that the full chimney might have been constructed of Chaska
brick, which is significantly softer and more susceptible to damage,
and the exposed brick was later replaced with red brick as a part of
the 1980’s repair work.
Additional evidence that the chimney was originally against the
exterior of the south side of the house was discovered through
selective demolition performed by Miller Dunwiddie Architecture in
2015. Within the wood frame and gypsum board chase created at the
closet, clean struck joints are visible. At the inside of the hallway wall,
the joints were not struck, indicating that access was restricted by the
building.

Current Condition:
Fig. 1.27 Interior Chaska cream brick chimney
at the closet demolition area showing
struck joints

The condition has mostly remained the same. The masonry is
in generally good condition and fair condition at the chimney
base at the basement level where mortar joints are deteriorated
due to standing water.

Fig. 1.28 Interior Chaska cream brick chimney
at hallway demolition area with
unfinished joints
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Interior:

Existing Floor Plans – Basement Level:
The basement has one large space for storage, a smaller storage room
below the 1940’s addition and a crawl space below the 1960’s
addition.
There is one entrance to the basement from the central staircase.
There is no accessible access to this level.

Fig. 1.29 Basement Level Floor Plan (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)
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Fig. 1.30 Basement stairs below 1902 structure

Fig. 1.31 Smaller storage room below 1943 addition

Fig. 1.32 Wood columns and beam in center of basement
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Existing Floor Plans – First Level:
The first level was originally rectangular in shape and had two rooms;
a kitchen on one side of the central stairs, and a living room or
bedroom on the other side. The stairs are directly in line with the
front entrance, and the east-west hallway behind the stairs is in line
with the secondary east entrance.
The first addition enclosed the chimney and added the living room,
another bedroom, a laundry room and a bathroom. The second
addition extended the living room and added the southern porch
with a third entrance.
The areas numbered below correspond with the locations where
selective demolition was performed by Miller Dunwiddie
Architecture in 2015 in order to determine the original construction
of the wall assemblies.

Fig. 1.33 First Level Floor Plan (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)
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Fig. 1.34 Kitchen and Dining Room

Fig. 1.35 Bedroom 1

Fig. 1.36 Living Room

Fig. 1.37 Bathroom

Fig. 1.38 Bedroom 2

Fig. 1.39 Laundry Room
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Existing Floor Plans – Second Level:
The second level, both originally and currently, had bedrooms with
one on either side of the stairs. Each bedroom has three windows and
a closet. Access to the attic is located in the west bedroom (#3). After
the south addition, a knee wall door was added to the top of the stairs
for access to the attic above the addition. From here, the original
Chaska-style brick chimney is visible.

Fig. 1.40 Second Level Floor Plan (Miller Dunwiddie Architecture 2015)
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Fig. 1.41 Bedroom #4

Fig. 1.42 Bedroom #3

Fig. 1.43 Attic above bedrooms

Fig. 1.44 Attic above additions

Fig. 1.45 Stairs to second level
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Walls:

Description:
Selective demolition was previously used by Miller Dunwiddie
Architecture to reveal the composition of the exterior walls to
determine what may have been the original construction and what
was added later. A portion of the walls were previously opened in
various locations including: the north wall of Bedroom #4, the north
wall of Bedroom #1, the south wall of Bedroom #2 and closet, the
Fig. 1.46 Selective demolition on first level
exterior wall

west wall of the Living Room, the west Dining Room wall, and the
south wall of the main level hallway. The demolition in these areas
helped Miller Dunwiddie Architecture to reveal the changes made to
the finishes as well as the building materials used for the original
versus the addition walls.
The original exterior walls of the 1902 building are composed of
wood shiplap siding, (no sheathing), 4”x4” wood stud framing, and 1”
thick tongue & groove horizontal wood planks in varying depths
painted green on the interior side. The interior planks are covered
with felt and wallpaper and there is no insulation. At a later,
unknown date, the wallpapered exterior walls were covered with

Fig. 1.47 Wallpaper on first level

non-adhesive foil and either a ¾” fiberboard or ¾” gypsum board.
The fiberboard is only located in the upstairs rooms and the gypsum
board is on the main level and stairway. Since the selective
demolition was only done from the interior, it is not certain if there is
sheathing, but based on overall measurements and what is visible
from the interior demolition, Miller Dunwiddie Architecture assumed
that there was no sheathing.
The exterior walls of the additions are similar to the original walls
with some minor differences. The walls consist of shiplap siding,
(possibly no sheathing), wood stud framing, tar paper attached to the

Fig. 1.48 Cross section of tongue and groove
wallboard with felt and wallpaper
attached

interior side of the wood framing, 1” lapped wood wallboards, foil,
and ¾” gypsum board. Demolition performed by Miller Dunwiddie
Architecture only removed up to the tar paper, so it is only a
speculation that there is no insulation or sheathing.
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Current Condition:
The condition has mostly remained the same. Walls are
generally in good condition and fair condition with holes,
cracking, and missing shiplap siding. Cracking was observed at
the southwest corner of the 1960s addition, which likely results
from the differential settlement observed. Cracking is also
present at the chimney at the main level, and some window and
door openings throughout the house. Shiplap siding is missing
at locations where selective demolition was performed.
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Wall and Ceiling Finishes:
Description:

Fig. 1.49 Exterior wall composition at south
Living Room first and second
additions

Fig. 1.50 Fiberboard wall and ceiling at second
level

Fig. 1.51 Acoustic ceiling tile in kitchen

It is likely that the original interior appearance at the 1902 building
was the green painted tongue and grove wood planks or wallpaper,
and later, the foil and gypsum board were added. The gypsum board
at the main level is continuous from the 1902 building to the 1960’s
era addition and likely completed at the same time.
With the exception of the tile wainscot in the bathroom, all walls
have painted fiberboard finish on the second level, and a gypsum
board finish on the first level. The basement is unfinished concrete
and CMU walls at the crawl space. The small storage room in the
basement has two walls of 1’-0” wide horizontal wood planks on the
interior only. The exposed wood framing is outside of the storage
room.
As discussed in the previous section, it appears the original interior
finish was painted wood planks followed by wallpaper, which was
later covered with gypsum or fiber boards.
The ceilings on the first level are approximately 8’-0” above the finish
floor (AFF) and consist of flush acoustic ceiling tile throughout the
original 1902 section and bedroom of the 1940 addition, and
gypsum board ceilings elsewhere . The ceilings of the second level
are sloped at the north and south walls and are approximately 7’-5”
AFF in the center of the room and 5’-5” AFF at the lowest ceiling
point. The ceilings are assumed to be of similar construction as the
exterior second level walls. The basement ceiling has exposed wood
floor joists and the underside of the main level wood sub-floor is also
exposed. The height to the bottom of the joist is approximately 6’7¾” AFF and 7’- 4¼” AFF to the top of the joists.

Current Condition:

Fig. 1.52 Ceiling of Laundry Room

The condition has mostly remained the same. Wall finishes are
generally in good condition and fair condition where cracking
was observed (see Walls section for more details). The wood
planks of the storage room are in poor condition at the base due
to water damage.
Ceiling finishes throughout the building are in good to fair
condition with minor cracking, holes, and missing acoustic
ceiling tiles. The laundry room ceiling has some peeling paint.

Fig. 1.53 (left) crack at second addition
Fig. 1.54 (right) cracks in gypsum board around
chimney
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Floors:

Description:
The house has hardwood floors throughout, with the exception of
carpeted stairs to the second level, which likely have hardwood treads
below; the concrete basement floor; and linoleum or vinyl sheet in
the laundry room and bathroom.
At the first level, the hardwood floor is continuous from the 1902
building into the 1940’s addition and is therefore likely a replacement
Fig. 1.55 Hardwood floor upstairs bedroom

hardwood from the 1940’s. There is a prominent butt joint in the
living room floor at the area of the second addition indicating that
the hardwood floor in only that area is likely original to the 1960’s era
construction date.
The second level hardwood floors do not match the first level
hardwood flooring and could be original to the 1902 building. The
in-floor metal heat transfer grates at the second level may also be
original to the 1902 building.
The original subflooring can be seen from the basement. Below the

Fig. 1.56 Linoleum in laundry room

original building the floorboards run horizontally, but below the
addition the floor boards are narrower and run diagonally. Floor

boards are supported by wood joists, beams, and columns at the
basement. Floor boards are painted white in areas and likely

reclaimed wood from an unknown source. It is possible these might
have originally been exterior siding.

The basement is unfinished with exposed concrete at the floors or dirt
in the crawl spaces. The laundry room and bathrooms are covered
with linoleum or vinyl.

Current Condition:
Fig. 1.57 Transition line in hardwood floor in

living room at area of second addition

Fig. 1.58 Horizontal floor boards of original
building as seen from basement

Additional conditions were observed at the basement. The
concrete basement floor is in fair condition with evidence of
standing water, dirt, and cracking. The wood columns at the
basement level are in fair condition with wood deterioration at
the base due to standing water. The wood joists of the first-floor
framing are in fair condition with evidence of joist rotation and
lack of connectivity at the supports. Additional investigations
should be performed by a Structural Engineer to assess the
structural integrity and capacity of the floor framing.
The condition of floor finishes has mostly remained the same.
Overall the wood floors are in good to fair condition with
staining and minor areas of wear. The linoleum or vinyl sheet
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flooring is in fair to poor condition with staining, water
damage, and deterioration. The carpeted areas are in fair
condition with visible wear.

Doorways and Doors:
Description:
Fig. 1.59 Diagonal floor boards of addition as
seen from basement

The basement door to the small storage room is a wood paneled door
painted green then white. This may date from the 1902 construction
and may have been relocated from another location on the house.
The first level has stained wood or possibly manufactured doors
throughout. The bathroom door is painted on the inside and stained
facing the hallway. Addition doors match the doors in the original
section indicating they may have all been replaced at a later date.
At the second level, the solid wood stile and rail doors and 4” wood
trim are painted white. The west bedroom has a folding door to the
closet which is not original. There is a wood knee-wall door added

Fig. 1.60 Painted wood door at second level

during the 1940’s addition which leads to the attic above the first level
addition.

Current Condition:
The condition has mostly remained the same; however, the
door is missing at the kitchen and laundry room. The wood
doors and associated trim are typically in good condition with
some minor areas of peeling paint or other worn surfaces. Most
doorknobs appear to be contemporary brass knobs. The
basement storage door has water damage from standing water.
Fig. 1.61 Folding wood door at second level

Fig. 1.62 Stained/painted wood doors on first
level

Fig. 1.63 Original painted solid wood door in basement may have been
relocated
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Stairways:

Description:
There are two interior stairways in the house. One is centrally located
at the first level and faces the main north entrance. It is covered with
green carpeting which is assumed to be covering the original wood
treads and risers. It does not meet current code requirements for riser
and tread dimensions nor does it meet requirements for handrails, as
they are not the correct height and do not have adequate extensions
Fig. 1.64 Stair at basement level

at the top and bottom.
The second stair is located directly below to access the basement
level. This stair was added during the 1940’s era addition when the
basement was built. The stair has a straight run of open wood stringer
and tread construction with two square posts at the bottom. The
treads are very narrow and almost equal to the rise. This stair also
does not meet current code requirements.

Current Condition:

Fig. 1.65 Stair looking up to the second level

landing from the first level entrance

The good condition of the first-level stair has remained the
same with evidence of wear at carpeted treads. However, the
lower-level stair is in poor condition with wood splitting and
wood deterioration at the stair base due to standing water.

Decorative Features and Trim:
Description:

There is simple wood base with quarter round trim at the floor. All
base is solid wood and painted white.
Door and window trim in the 1902 section is a simple squared 1x
while the trim in the additions is more contemporary, appearing to
Fig. 1.66 Baseboard in second level bedrooms

have a “ranch” profile. All wood trim is painted white.

Current Condition:
The condition has mostly remained the same. The majority of
the wood trim is in good to fair condition with staining, minor
surface deterioration, and holes, and poor condition where it is
loose.

Fig. 1.67 Baseboard at living room near
chimney
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May 12, 2022

Dear Emily and Nick,

Currently the Section Foreman House does not have a fire suppression or fire alarm system. After several
conversations with the design team and including stakeholders representing City departments of Inspections,
Fire, Parks and Rec, and Maintenance, the recommendation is to add in these systems for the following reasons:
-

Safety of visitors
Protection of the building/cultural asset
Increase in building value
Code requirement (see below abbreviated reference)

Minnesota Statutory Authority: 1306.0030 REQUIREMENTS.
 Subp. 2. Existing and new buildings.
• Automatic sprinkler systems for new buildings, buildings increased in total floor
area (including the existing building), or buildings in which the occupancy
classification has changed, must be installed and maintained in operational
condition within the structure.
*Section Foreman House is a change from R to B occupancy.
 Sub. B.
• Group B, F, M, and S occupancies with 2,000 or more gross square feet of floor
area or with three or more stories in height.
*Section Foreman House is approximately 2,100 existing SF.
The following budget for these systems is based on the Schematic Design drawings dated 2-4-22, narrative dated
1-31-22 and multiple conversations with the design team and cost estimator. All Pricing was done in 2022 costs
and contractor fees and a 7% rate of inflation was added to reflect work being performed in 2023. With that
said, construction pricing is incredibly volatile, and materials prices fluctuate rapidly. This should be considered
when understanding the preliminary budgets noted below.
o

Construction Cost Budget:
-

Fire Alarm: $9,511.00
Fire Sprinkler: $12,681.00

Additionally, there are engineering design costs related to implementing these systems into the project. The cost
range for the design costs is $16,000 - $25,000. If the recommendation is approved to forward Cushing Terrell
will promptly provide an updated fee proposal.
Regards,
Rebecca Muchow,
Senior Architect, Cushing Terrell
cushingterrell.com
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City of Wayzata
City Council Agenda Report

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2022
AGENDA ITEM: 9.c
TITLE: Consider Adoption of Resolution 19-2022 and Approve First Reading of Ordinance 812 Approving
Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Create New Parks and Open Space Zoning District and to Rezone Certain
Properties to Such District
PROPOSED MOTION: To Adopt Resolution 19-2022 and Approve the First Reading of Ordinance 812
Approving Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Create New Parks and Open Space Zoning District and to
Rezone Certain Properties to Such District
PREPARED BY: Nick Kieser, Parks Planner
REVIEWED BY: Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager, Emily Goellner, Community Development Director
ACTION REQUESTED:
Planning Commission and staff recommend adoption of Resolution 19-2022 and approval of the first reading
of Ordinance 812.
FINANCIAL OR BUDGET CONSIDERATION:
There is no direct financial or budget impact associated with this proposal.
BACKGROUND:
In order to implement the goals of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan, staff is recommending that the City establish
a new zoning district for Parks and Open Space. In addition to introducing a new district, staff recommends
amending the Zoning Map to rezone nearly all city-owned parks and open spaces to the newly created district.
Currently, all subject properties are zoned for residential use, commercial use, or a Planned Unit
Development. The goal of these text and map amendments is to protect and preserve the parcels from any
future development and to create a new zoning district that fits the current and future use of the properties.
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the new Parks and Open Space district and their Report
and Recommendation of Approval is attached for the Council to review as a part of the draft resolution.
A community open house was hosted in March 2022. This proposal has received support from the Parks and
Trails Board as well as the Zoning Study Task Force. Two members of the public spoke at the public hearing
about this item. The first public comment is attached to the packet. The second resident was in support of the
new zoning district overall and felt that there was an opportunity for more opportunities with the zoning
district.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
Parks Rezoning CC Meeting All Attachments
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CITY OF W AYZATA

Resolution No. 19-2022

Page 1

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. 19-2022
RESOLUTION APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
TO CREATE NEW PARKS AND OPEN SPACE ZONING DISTRICT AND TO REZONE
CERTAIN PROPERTIES TO SUCH DISTRICT
WHEREAS, City planning staff has recommended the addition of a new Zoning
District in the Zoning Ordinance for parks and open spaces in the City, and the rezoning
of certain properties to such new Zoning District, (the “Zoning Ordinance Amendments”)
to better implement the City’s Parks and Trails Master Plan, and the goals and guidance
of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan; and
WHEREAS, the Wayzata Planning Commission, pursuant to the Zoning
Ordinance, held a public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Amendments and adopted a
Report and Recommendation to the City Council on April 18, 2022 (the “PC Report and
Recommendation”) to approve the Zoning Ordinance Amendments, a copy of which is
attached to the PC Report and Recommendation.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Wayzata,
Minnesota as follows:
A.
Based on the foregoing, and the findings and recommendations of the PC
Report and Recommendation, all of which are incorporated by reference in this
Resolution, the City Council of the City of Wayzata hereby finds, confirms and
memorializes that the Zoning Ordinance Amendments meet the standards of the Zoning
Ordinance.
B.
Based on the foregoing, the Zoning Ordinance Amendments are hereby
APPROVED.
Adopted by the Wayzata City Council this 17th day of May, 2022.

Johanna Mouton, Mayor
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CITY OF W AYZATA

Resolution No. 19-2022

Page 2

ATTEST:

Jeffrey Dahl, City Manager
ACTION ON THIS RESOLUTION:
Motion for adoption:
Seconded by:
Voted in favor of:
Voted against:
Abstained:
Absent:
Resolution adopted.
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by
the City Council of the City of Wayzata, Minnesota, at a duly authorized meeting held on
May 17, 2022.
__________________________________
Kathy Leervig, City Clerk
SEAL
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CITY OF WAYZATA
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA
DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 812
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE
TO ADD A NEW PARKS AND OPEN SPACE ZONING DISTRICT AND
TO REZONE CERTAIN PROPERTIES TO SUCH ZONING DISTRICT
WHEREAS, City planning staff and the Planning Commission have recommended the
addition of a new Zoning District in the Zoning Ordinance for parks and open space areas within
the City, and the rezoning of certain properties within the City to such new Zoning District, all as
detailed in the Report and Recommendation of the Planning Commission dated April 18, 2022
(the “PC Report”); and
WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to Resolution No. 19-2022 (the “Resolution”),
has adopted the findings and recommendation of the PC Report.
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WAYZATA ORDAINS:
Section 1. Amendment Zoning Ordinance. A new Chapter 960 is hereby added to the
Zoning Ordinance, Part IX of City Code, to read in its entirety as follows:

CHAPTER 960 - P PARKS AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT
960.01 Purpose.
The purpose of the P Parks and Open Space District is to provide a district for public parks,
open spaces, natural areas, and recreational uses.
960.02 Permitted Uses.
Subject to applicable provisions of this Ordinance, the permitted uses in the P District are:
A. Public parks, open spaces, playgrounds, swimming pools, natural and recreational
areas
B. Park buildings
C. Public docks
D. Public service and water treatment structures
E. Utility substations
960.03 Interim Uses.
No interim uses are allowed in the P District.
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960.04 Accessory Uses.
Subject to applicable provisions of this Ordinance, the accessory uses allowed in the P
District are:
A. Uses customarily and incidental to the uses permitted in Sections 960.02
B. Off-street parking and loading areas
960.05 Conditional Uses.
No Conditional Uses are allowed in the P District.
960.06 Lot Size and Setbacks.
The following minimum requirements must be met for all lots and structures in the P
District, subject to additional requirements, exceptions, and modifications set forth in this
Ordinance:
A. Minimum Lot Size:
1. Lot Area: No minimum
2. Lot Width: No minimum
3. Lot Depth: No minimum
B. Minimum Setbacks for Principal and Accessory Structures:
1. Front Yard: 10 feet
2. Side Yard: 10 feet
3. Rear Yard: 10 feet
960.07 Building Height.
All buildings in the P District may not exceed a height of one story or 20 feet.

Section 2.
Rezoning. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Wayzata is hereby
amended to change the Zoning District designation of the properties identified on Attachment A
of this Ordinance to P Parks and Open Space District.
Section 3.
publication.

Effective Date. This Ordinance will become effective upon passage and

Adopted by the City Council this 17th day of May, 2022.
______________________________
Johanna Mouton
Mayor
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ATTEST:
______________________________
Jeffrey Dahl
City Manager
First Reading:
Second Reading:
Publication:
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Attachment A
Properties Rezoned P Parks and Open Space District
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Wayzata
Parks Map
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City of Wayzata

Address
699 Lake St W
599 Lake St W
499 Lake St W
220 Grove La E
228 Minnetonka Ave S
340 Park St E
320 Margaret Cir
550 Ridgeview Dr E
552 Ridgeview Dr E
550 Broadway Ave N
570 Broadway Ave N
600 Broadway Ave N
821 Wayzata Blvd E
508 Broadway Ave N
831 Superior Blvd
738 Lake St E
998 Lake St E
330 Central Ave S
330 Reno St
1115 Lasalle St
1106 Wayzata Blvd E
120 Central Ave S
120 Central Ave S
1225 Wayzata Blvd E
1223 Wayzata Blvd E
380 Broadway Ave N

PID
0111723130005
0111723140047
0111723410029
0611722320007
0611722240063
0611722240060
3111822340027
0611722120023
0611722120055
0611722120007
3111822440004
0611722110010
0611722140020
0611722120012
0611722420048
0611722420032
0611722440004
0511722330038
0511722330054
0511722320078
0511722320054
0511722320059
0511722320060
0511722230025
0511722230023
0611722120010
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Wayzata-Owned Parkland Parcels for Re-zoning (B&F File no 000043-204032)

PID
Address
0111723130005 699 Lake St W
Wayzata, MN 55391

Legal Description
That part of the South 405.6 feet of Lot 62, and that part of Lot 55, Auditor's Subdivision No.
184 Hennepin County, Minnesota, lying west of Westlake.

2.

0111723140047 599 Lake St W
Wayzata, MN 55391

Outlot C, Westlake

3.

0111723410029 499 Lake St W
Wayzata, MN 55391

Outlot A, Westlake

4.

0611722320007 220 Grove La E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lot 35, Auditor's Subdivision No. 184, according to the recorded plat thereof, Hennepin County,
Minnesota;

1.

And,
Lot 26, Auditor’s Subdivision No 184, according to the recorded plat thereof, Hennepin County,
Minnesota, except that part described as follows: Beginning at the most Southerly corner of
Tract D, Registered Land Survey No. 959, files of the Registrar of Titles, Hennepin County,
Minnesota; thence south along the East line of said Lot 26 to the Southeast corner thereof;
thence West along the South line thereof 17 feet; thence Northeasterly to the point of
beginning;
And,
Lot 14, Davies Addition to Wayzata Lake Minnetonka, according to the plat thereof, except that
part described as follows:
Those parts of Lots 12 and 14, and that part of adjoining vacated Grove Lane (formerly known
as Willow Lane), all in Davies Addition to Wayzata Lake Minnetonka, described as beginning at
the intersection of the North line of said Lot 14 with a line drawn parallel with and 20 feet
Southeasterly, measured at right angles to the Northwesterly line of said Lot 14, from the
Northwesterly line of said Lot 14 and its extension; thence Southwesterly along said parallel
line a distance of 33 feet; thence Southwesterly to a point on the Easterly extension of the
Southerly line of said Lot 12 distant 20 feet Easterly from the Southeasterly corner of said Lot
12; thence Westerly along said extension and along said Southerly line a distance of 41.35 feet,
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Wayzata-Owned Parkland Parcels for Re-zoning (B&F File no 000043-204032)

PID

Address

Legal Description
more or less, to a line drawn parallel with and 20 feet Northwesterly, measured at right angles
to the Southeasterly line of said Lot 12, from the Southeasterly line of said Lot 12 and its
extension; thence Northeasterly along said parallel line to the North line of said Lot 12; thence
Easterly along said North line and its extensions to the point of beginning, according to the
recorded plat thereof;
And,
The right of way of Grove Street, as dedicated by said plat of Davies Addition to Wayzata Lake
Minnetonka, except that part described as follows:

5.
6.

All that part of Grove Street vacated lying Easterly of a line drawn from the Southeast corner of
Tract A, Registered Land Survey No. 959, files of the Registrar of Titles, Hennepin County,
Minnesota, to the most Northerly corner of Tract B, said Registered Land Survey No. 959, and
there ending, according to the recorded plat thereof.
0611722240063 228 Minnetonka Ave S Northeasterly 55 feet of Lots 3 and 4, Block 5, Wayzata “Revised”, Hennepin County,
Wayzata, MN 55391
Minnesota.
0611722240060 340 Park St E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 184 Hennepin County, Minnesota;
And,

7.

3111822340027 320 Margaret Cir
Wayzata, MN 55391

That certain Public Park dedicated upon the plat of Wayzata Addition, bounded on the North
by Gardner Street, on the South by Garrison Street, on the East by Minnetonka Avenue and on
the West by Outlot 13 of Wayzata “Revised”.
That certain Park dedicated to the Public upon the plat of Fazendin’s Addition, and situated in
Block 2 of such addition, Hennepin County, Minnesota.

8.

0611722120023 550 Ridgeview Dr E
Wayzata, MN 55391

That part of Outlot 9, Wayzata "Revised" Hennepin County Minnesota, lying South of the right
of way of the Electric Short Line Railway Company.

9.

0611722120055 552 Ridgeview Dr E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Outlot A, Wayzata Countryside Second Addition
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10. 0611722120007 550 Broadway Ave N
Wayzata, MN 55391

That certain Park dedicated to the Public upon the plat of Wayzata Countryside, Hennepin
County, Minnesota

11. 0611722120016 550 Broadway Ave N
Wayzata, MN 55391

Outlot 6, Wayzata “Revised”

12. 3111822440004 570 Broadway Ave N
Wayzata, MN 55391

That part of the SE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 lying Southeasterly of R.R. right of way and Westerly of
Way Woods, Section 31, Township 118, Range 22, in the City of Wayzata.

13. 0611722110010 600 Broadway Ave N
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lots one (1) to fourteen (14), inclusive, Block four (4), and Lots one (1) to fourteen (14),
inclusive, Block five (5), all in Minnetonka Arlington Heights.

14. 0611722140020 821 Wayzata Blvd E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Parcel 1:
Lot 8, Dean’s Park Outlots to Wayzata except those portions of said Lots embraced in the plat of
“Glenbrook” and all that part of Lot 15, Dean’s Park Outlots to Wayzata lying Northerly of State
Highway Number 12 and Westerly of the West line of “Glenbrook”, except that part thereof
embraced in Registered Land Survey No. 350, Files of Registrar of Titles, County of Hennepin.
Parcel 2:
Lot 7, Dean’s Park Outlots to Wayzata, except those portions of said Lots embraced in the plat of
“Glenbrook”, except that part which lies within a distance of 134 feet Northerly and 100 feet
Southerly of the following described line: Beginning at a point on the East line of Section 6,
Township 117 North, Range 22 West, distant 888.28 feet South of the Northeast corner thereof;
thence run Westerly at an angle of 90 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds with said East section line
(when measured from South to West) for 1386.3 feet and there terminating; and except that
part of the above described tract adjoining and Northerly of the above described strip, which lies
Southerly of the following described line: Beginning at a point distant 130 feet Northwesterly
(measured at right angles) from a point on Line A described below, distant 439.77 feet
Northeasterly of its point of termination; thence run Southwesterly parallel with said Line A for
439.77 feet (when measured along Line A); thence run Southwesterly to a point distant 134 feet
Northerly (measured at right angles) from a point on the first above described line distant 200
feet Easterly of its point of termination and there terminating. Line A: Beginning at a point on
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15. 0611722120012 508 Broadway Ave N
Wayzata, MN 55391
16. 0611722420048 831 Superior Blvd
Wayzata, MN 55391
17. 0611722420032 738 Lake St E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Legal Description
the East line of said Section 6, distant 598.28 feet South of the Northeast corner thereof; thence
run Southwesterly at an angle of 73 degrees 12 minutes 13 seconds with said East section line
for 547.65 feet; thence deflect to the right on a 4 degree 00 minute curve (delta angle 13 degrees
16 minutes) for 331.67 feet and there terminating; and except that part of the above described
tract adjoining and Southerly of the first above described strip, which lies Northerly of a line run
parallel with and distant 115 feet Southerly of the following described line: Beginning at a point
on the East line of said Section 6, distant 1175.09 feet South of the Northeast corner thereof;
thence run Northwesterly at an angle of 71 degrees 56 minutes 02 seconds with said East section
line for 709.28 feet; thence deflect to the left on a 6 degree 00 minute curve (delta angle 13
degrees 21 minutes 10 seconds) for 222.55 feet; thence on tangent to said curve for 500 feet
and there terminating.
Parcel 3:
Lots 8, 9, and 10, Block 17, Minnetonka Arlington Heights; Lots 1 to 7 inclusive, Block 17,
Minnetonka Arlington Heights, except those portion of said lots embraced in the plat of
“Glenbrook”.
That part of Outlot 4, Wayzata Revised, lying between the Northeasterly line of the
Southwesterly 120 feet thereof, and the Southwesterly line of the Northeasterly 104 feet
thereof, except highway.
Outlot B, The Widsten of Wayzata
Those portions of a tract of land in the plat of Wayzata, designated as Outlots 14 and 15 on the
Plat of Wayzata "Revised", Hennepin County, Minnesota, described as follows:
That part of the Southeasterly 70 feet of said Outlot 14 and that part of said Outlot 15 lying
Northwesterly of Registered Land Survey No. 1317, which lie Southwesterly of the Northeasterly
line of said Registered Land Survey and its Northwesterly extension, according to the recorded
plat thereof.
Together with a permanent easement for driveway purposes over and across those portions of
the following described tracts:
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18. 0611722440004 998 Lake St E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Legal Description
A tract of land in the plat of Wayzata, designated as Outlot 14 on the plat of Wayzata "Revised"
Hennepin County, Minnesota; Broadway, as dedicated in said plat of Wayzata "revised"
Hennepin County, Minnesota, now known as Broadway Avenue South; embraced within a strip
of 16 feet in width, the center line being described as follows: Commencing at the intersection
of the Easterly right-of-way line of said Broadway Avenue South with the Northerly right-of-way
line of that part of the Burlington Northern Railroad, as shown across said Outlot 14 and
designated as the St. P.M. & M. Ry; thence on an assumed bearing of North 84 degrees 36
minutes 46 seconds West along the Northwesterly extension of said Northerly right-of-way line
55.64 feet to the point of beginning; thence South 50 degrees 06 minutes 03 seconds East 18.65
feet; thence Southeasterly 36.61 feet along a tangential curve, concave to the Southwest, having
a radius of 55.43 feet and central angle of 37 degrees 50 minutes 16 seconds; thence
Southeasterly 76.70 feet along a reverse curve, concave to the Northeast, having a radius of
79.19 feet and a central angle of 55 degrees 29 minutes 56 seconds; thence Southeasterly 53.11
feet along a compound curve, concave to the Northeast, having a radius of 171.58 feet and a
central angle of 17 degrees 50 minutes 01 second; thence Southeasterly 63.58 feet along a
reverse curve, concave to the Southwest, having a radius of 354.98 feet and a central angle of
10 degrees 15 minutes 44 seconds, thence South 75 degrees 20 minutes East 84.71 feet; thence
Southeasterly 39.95 feet along a tangential curve, concave to the Southwest, having a radius of
315.16 feet and a central angle of 7 degrees 15 minutes 44 seconds; thence South 68 degrees 04
minutes 16 seconds East 105 feet and said line there terminating. The side lines of said easement
are prolonged or shortened to terminate on said Northwesterly extension of the Northerly right
of way line of the Burlington Northern Railroad and on the Northwesterly line of the
Southeasterly 70 feet of said Outlot 14.
Block 61, except that part thereof lying Northeasterly of a line drawn from a point on the East
line of said Block 61, distant 54 feet South of the Northeast corner thereof to a point on the
North line of said Block, distant 54 feet Westerly of said Northeast corner, Minnetonka Arlington
Heights,
together with the adjoining Southeasterly 25 feet of Midway Circle, now vacated, lying between
extensions across it of the North and South lines of Blocks 61 and 65, according to the plat
thereof on file or of record in the office of the Register of Deeds in and for said County.

19. 0511722330038 330 Central Ave S
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lot 9, Block 4, NEW WAYZATA
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20. 0511722330054 330 Reno St
Wayzata, MN 55391

Outlot A, RENO POND

21. 0511722320078 1115 Lasalle St
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lot 6 Block 1 Redpath Court,
And
The South 164 feet of Tract C, Registered Land Survey No. 216,
And
Lots 9 to 14 inclusive, Block 43 and,
Lots 1 to 8 inclusive and Lots 13 to 23 inclusive, Block 57, all in Minnetonka Arlington Heights,
And
That part of Lot 9, Block 57, Minnetonka Arlington Heights lying North of a line drawn parallel
with and 1150 feet South from the North line of the SW 1/4 of Section 5, Township 117, Range
22,
And
That part of Block 59, Minnetonka Arlington Heights, described as follows: Commencing at the
Northeast corner of said Block 59, thence Southerly along the East line thereof to its
intersection with the Southeasterly line of said Block 59, said point referred to as Point A,
thence Southwesterly along said Southeasterly line a distance of 161.1 feet, thence West along
a line parallel with the North line of the SW 1/4 of Section 5, Township 117, Range 22, said
parallel line referred to as Line A, a distance of 285 feet to the point of beginning of the
property to be described, thence deflecting left 90 degrees for a distance of 378.98 feet,
thence Southeasterly to a point on the Southeasterly line of Block 59 distant 715 feet
Southwesterly from Point A, thence Southwesterly along said Southeasterly line to its
intersection with a line parallel with and 1150 feet South from the North line of the SW 1/4 of
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22. 0511722320054 1106 Wayzata Blvd E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Legal Description
said Section 5, thence Westerly along said parallel line to the West line of Block 59, thence
North to a point on the West line thereof distant 200 feet South from the Northwest corner
thereof, thence East and parallel with the North line thereof a distance of 175 feet, thence
South and parallel with the West line thereof a distance of 80 feet, thence deflecting left 61
degrees and 26 minutes a distance of 119 feet, thence deflecting right 30 degrees to its
intersection with Line, thence Westerly to the point of beginning.
Tract A and that part of Tract B lying north of the south line of Tract A and its extension
easterly, Registered Land Survey No. 216, Hennepin County, Minnesota

23. 0511722320059 120 Central Ave S
Wayzata, MN 55391

Tract D, Registered Land Survey No. 216, Hennepin County, Minnesota

24. 0511722320060 120 Central Ave S
Wayzata, MN 55391

Tract E, Registered Land Survey No. 216, Hennepin County, Minnesota

25. 0511722230025 1225 Wayzata Blvd E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lot 1, Block 3, CENACLE WOODS

26. 0511722230023 1223 Wayzata Blvd E
Wayzata, MN 55391

Lot 1, Block 1, CENACLE WOODS

27. 0611722120010 380 Broadway Ave N
Wayzata, MN 55391

Outlot 3, Wayzata Revised, Hennepin County, Minnesota

#7011176
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WAYZATA PLANNING COMMISSION
April 18, 2022
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF APPROVAL OF
NEW PARKS AND OPEN SPACE ZONING DISTRICT AND REZONING OF CERTAIN
PROPERTIES TO SUCH DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION
Approval* of a new Zoning District for Park and Open Spaces within the City, and the
Rezoning of certain properties within the City to such new Zoning District

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION
Section 1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

Zoning Ordinance Amendments (text and map). City planning staff
recommends the addition of a new Zoning District in the Zoning Ordinance related
to park and open spaces within the City, and the rezoning of certain properties
within the City listed on Attachment B (the “Properties”) to such new Zoning
District. A draft amendment to the Zoning Ordinance (Part IX of City Code) has
been prepared by City Staff and is attached to this Report as Attachment A (the
“Zoning Ordinance Amendments”).

1.2

Notice and Public Hearing. A neighborhood meeting on the Zoning Ordinance
Amendments was held on March 10, 2022 in accordance with City policy. Notice
of the public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Amendments was published in the
Sun Sailor on April 8, 2022 and on the City’s website. The public hearing on the
Zoning Ordinance Amendments was held at the April 18, 2022 Planning
Commission meeting.

Section 2.

STANDARDS
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Zoning Ordinance Amendments. City Council has the discretion and authority
under state law and City Code to amend the City’s Zoning Ordinance (Text or
Zoning Map). In considering a proposed amendment to the Zoning Ordinance
under Sec. 903.02.F of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission and City
Council must consider the possible adverse effects of the proposed amendment.
Their judgment shall be based upon (but not limited to) the following factors:
A.

The proposed action in relation to the specific policies and provisions of
the official City Comprehensive Plan.

B.

The proposed use’s conformity with present and future land uses of the
area.

C.

The proposed use’s conformity with all performance standards contained
in the Zoning Ordinance (i.e., parking, loading, noise, etc.).

D.

The proposed use’s effect on the area in which it is proposed.

E.

The proposed use’s impact upon property value in the area in which it is
proposed.

F.

Traffic generation by the proposed use in relation to capabilities of streets
serving the property.

G.

The proposed use’s impact upon existing public services and facilities
including parks, schools, streets, and utilities, and the City’s service
capacity.

Section 3.

FINDINGS OF FACT

Based on the materials submitted by City Staff, the Staff report, comment and
information presented at the public hearing, and the standards of the Wayzata Zoning
Ordinance, the Planning Commission of the City of Wayzata makes the following
findings of fact:
3.1

Zoning Ordinance Amendments. The Planning Commission has considered all
of the factors of Sec. 903.02.F of the Zoning Ordinance and finds that the
proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendments would not have any adverse effects,
and instead would better reflect the current and future use of parks and open
spaces within the City. The Zoning Ordinance Amendments meet the applicable
standards in that:
A.

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments do not contravene any policies and
provisions of the official City Comprehensive Plan, and would instead
better implement the policies and goals for parks and open spaces within
the City. The P District allows more protection and preservation of the
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properties and contributes to the Guiding Principle of Vibrant Parks and
City Spaces.
B.

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments would conform to the present and
future land uses within the City. The City of Wayzata Parks and Trails
Master Plan outlines future plans for the parks in the City. The P District
was created to support the existing uses and structures as well as the
future proposed uses and structures noted in the Master Plan.

C.

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments would conform to all performance
standards contained in the Zoning Ordinance, and improve the standards
for parks and open spaces within the City, better aligning them with
current and future uses of such areas.

D.

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments would not have a negative effect on
any areas of the City, including parks and open spaces, and the areas
surrounding them. The new P District will not change any future plans for
the applicable properties, but instead, will help to protect the areas from
any future negative impacts.

E.

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments would not have any known effect on
property values in the City.

F.

There would be no additional traffic generation caused by the proposed
Zoning Ordinance Amendments.

G.

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments would not negatively impact existing
public services and facilities including parks, schools, streets, and utilities,
and the City’s service capacity.

Section 4.
4.1

RECOMMENDATION

Planning Commission Recommendation. Based on the findings in section 3 of
this Report, the Planning Commission recommends APPROVAL of the
Zoning Ordinance Amendments.

Adopted by the Wayzata Planning Commission this 18th day of April 2022.
Attachments:
Attachment A: Zoning Ordinance Amendments
Attachment B: Rezoned Properties
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Staff Report
Wayzata Planning Commission
April 18, 2022
Project Name:

Parks and Open Space Rezoning

Requests:

Zoning Map Amendment
Zoning Text Amendment

Applicant:

City of Wayzata

Addresses of Request:

Multiple Parcels

Prepared by:

Nick Kieser, Parks Planner

Development Application Introduction
In order to implement the goals of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan, City of Wayzata staff
is recommending that the City establish a new zoning district for Parks and Open Space.
In addition to introducing a new District, staff recommends amending the Zoning Map to
rezone nearly all city-owned parks and open spaces to the newly created District.
Currently, all subject properties are zoned for a residential use, commercial use, or a
Planned Unit Development. The goal of the text and map amendments are to protect and
preserve the parcels from any future development and to create a new zoning district that
fits the current and future use of the properties.
Property Information
The addresses and property identification numbers of the city-owned parcels are as
follows:
Address
699 Lake St W
599 Lake St W
499 Lake St W
220 Grove La E
228 Minnetonka Ave S
340 Park St E
320 Margaret Cir
550 Ridgeview Dr E
552 Ridgeview Dr E

PID
0111723130005
0111723140047
0111723410029
0611722320007
0611722240063
0611722240060
3111822340027
0611722120023
0611722120055
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550 Broadway Ave N
570 Broadway Ave N
600 Broadway Ave N
821 Wayzata Blvd E
508 Broadway Ave N
831 Superior Blvd
738 Lake St E
998 Lake St E
330 Central Ave S
330 Reno St
1115 Lasalle St
1106 Wayzata Blvd E
120 Central Ave S
120 Central Ave S
1225 Wayzata Blvd E
1223 Wayzata Blvd E
380 Broadway Ave N

0611722120007
3111822440004
0611722110010
0611722140020
0611722120012
0611722420048
0611722420032
0611722440004
0511722330038
0511722330054
0511722320078
0511722320054
0511722320059
0511722320060
0511722230025
0511722230023
0611722120010

Project Location
A proposed zoning map is attached that shows the thirty applicable parcels throughout
the city.
Application Requests
As part of the submitted development application, the applicant is requesting approval of
the following items:
A. Zoning Text Amendment (§ 903.02.F): Staff proposes to establish a new Parks
and Open Space zoning district.
B. Zoning Map Amendment (§ 903.02.F): Staff proposes to rezone the subject
properties to a new zoning district: Parks and Open Space District.
Public Hearing Notice
Notice of the public hearing on the Application was published in the Sun Sailor on April 8,
2022. The public hearing notice was also mailed to all property owners located within 500
feet of the subject property on April 6, 2022.
Community Input
Community Meeting
Staff held a neighborhood meeting on March 10, 2022 to discuss the rezoning proposal.
The following primary concerns were discussed:
• Building height – the community noted that the building height should be a
maximum one-story
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•

Open space parcels – the community brought up concerns that residents could
believe that the parcels that are not designated as a public park are open to the
public to access if they are in the same zoning district.

Zoning Task Force (ZTF)
The ZTF discussed this item at the February 28, 2022 and March 28, 2022 meetings.
Discussion focused on the building height, comparison of the long-term plan for various
parks and open spaces in the city, and the types of existing structures on the properties.
At the March meeting, the ZTF decided to keep the code language as presented, including
the reduction of the maximum height in the district from two stories to one story.
Parks and Trails Board (P&T Board)
The P&T Board discussed this item at the March 1, 2022 and March 16, 2022 meetings.
The Board was in favor of the rezoning application, but requested that the building height
be maintained at two stories to allow more flexibility for future projects if necessary.
Existing Conditions
The proposed parcels to be rezoned are either a public park noted in the Parks and Trails
Master Plan or are parcels that are not developed. 11 parcels are part of the parks
system and the remaining 15 parcels are open space areas. The parcels that are not
developed are mainly wetland areas so the city does not have a plan to develop these
properties. Any development of these properties would face significant environmental
constraints. Currently, all of the subject properties are either zoned as residential,
commercial, or a Planned Unit Development. The proposed parks that are proposed to
be rezoned are as follows:
• Klapprich Park
• Shaver Park
• Margaret Circle Park
• Post Office Park
• Heritage Park
• Big Woods
• Nature Center
• Future Eco Park/Section Foreman House
Each of the parks listed above have a future plan for updates listed in the Parks and Trails
Master Plan. The Parks and Trails Board and staff are currently working to implement this
Master Plan in approximately 8 years. The proposed updates in the Master Plan are
incorporated into the current Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The proposed zoning
district was created with the current and proposed conditions for each property under
consideration.
Proposed Code Language
Overall, the goal of rezoning the parcels to Park and Open Space is to add an additional
layer of protection for these areas from any future development.
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Permitted Uses
The proposed code language is attached. The permitted uses are as follows:
A. Public parks, open spaces, playgrounds, swimming pools, natural and
recreational areas
B. Park buildings
C. Public docks
D. Public service and water treatment structures
E. Utility substations
The list permitted uses was created to have a broad list of usual park uses to allow for
flexibility since each park use is unique. Public service and water treatment structures
and utility substations were included in this list because there are currently water
treatment structures and utility structures at 340 Park St E (Klapprich Park) and 499
Lake St W. It is staff’s intention to avoid the creation any non-conforming uses in this
zoning district so these items were included in the list of permitted uses.
Accessory Uses
The accessory uses are as follows:
A. Uses customarily and incidental to the uses permitted in Sections 960.02 and
960.05
B. Off-street parking and loading areas
Items that would be considered as customarily and incidental to the uses permitted
would be; rental equipment structures, “little free” libraries, observation towers, fire pits,
etc.
Staff is not proposing to include any Conditional Uses.
Setbacks
The proposed language includes a setback requirement of 10 feet from every property
line. The main reasoning for this requirement is that in the R-2, R-3A, R-3, R-4A (singlefamily), R-4 (single-family), zoning districts the side-yard setback minimum is ten feet.
Since the proposed properties abut most of these core residential districts it was important
to keep a similar setback requirement for any kind of structure placed on these properties.
Lot Requirements
A minimum lot area, width, and depth was not incorporated in this zoning district to avoid
the creation of non-conforming lots. There is a significant variety of lot sizes in the
proposed zoning district. For example, 120 Central Ave S, which is one of the parcels of
Heritage Park, is 884 square feet compared to 340 Park St E, Klapprich Park, is 386,910
square feet. Therefore, creating a lot size requirement would either create nonconformities or the area requirement would need to be extremely low. Another reason is
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that this allows flexibility to potentially include additional properties in this zoning district
more easily if there is not lot size restrictions.
Building Height
As stated previously, the main topic of discussion with the community, Zoning Task Force,
and the Parks and Trails Board revolved around building height. Staff first introduced the
code language with a maximum two-story, 30 foot building height requirement. This
evoked major discussion to determine if a two-story building would be desired and
aesthetically fit within the proposed properties. Hearing from these groups, the consensus
was that the building height should be reduced to one-story.
Therefore, staff created a building height requirement that may not exceed one-story or
20 feet. The height of 20 feet was reviewed in relation to the existing structures in the
parks system. For example, the Klapprich Park warming house has a maximum building
height of 18’8’’.
The only group that desired to keep the building height at two stories was the Parks and
Trails Board. The reasoning for their decision was that they did not want to limit the
options for future amenities in the parks system to one-story. For example, at one point
the Board was exploring an option of a two-story building in Klapprich Park with the
platform tennis project. Since then, that project has changed location and scope, but the
point was that there could be a reasonable option for a two-story building in the future. In
addition, the one-story requirement will create a legal non-conformity for the Section
Foreman House, which is two-stories in height. Therefore, if the city ever decided to
expand the size of the Section Foreman House, a variance would need to be requested.
This House is a unique example because it is on the National Register of Historic Places
and the House is in the preservation and restoration process which would keep the House
essentially as it currently is. A variance would not be needed for the proposed work to the
House at this time. Only if the House is expanded in any way then that work could require
a variance.
Review
The criteria to evaluate a Zoning Map and Text Amendment are listed within City Code
Section 903.02.F, which is included within the summary at the end of this report. Those
criteria include evaluating if the request is in conformance with the present and future
uses of the area, conformance with the performance standards of the City Code, and if
the application would affect the area in which the development is proposed.
The Zoning Map and Text Amendment requests are legislative reviews and decisions,
meaning that the Planning Commission acts like a legislative body and has wide
discretion on whether to recommend approval or denial if it has a rational basis for its
decision.
The Planning Commission should recommend approval of the zoning map and text
amendment if the Commission determines that there are no substantial adverse effects
of the amendment in City Code § 903.02.F
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Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the Zoning Map and Text Amendment for the Parks and
Open Space rezoning. Staff believes the new zoning district fits the current and future
uses of these properties better and will also help to protect them from any future
development. In the 2040 Comprehensive Plan, one guiding principle is Vibrant Parks
and City Spaces which has a specific statement, “vibrant City parks and City spaces are
essential to Wayzata’s future”. The Parks and Open Space District will support the Parks
and Trails Master Plan by designating these properties only for park use instead of
permitting residential or commercial uses. Also, the city-owned open spaces that are
included in the Park and Open Space zoning district since this fits the current and future
use of those properties better than a residential or commercial district.
Primary Questions to Consider
• Does this text and map amendment fit with the City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan?
• Does the proposed zoning district conform to the current and proposed land uses?
Action Steps
After considering the items outlined in this report, holding the public hearing on the
application, and discussing the requests of the Application, the Planning Commission can
consider adopting the draft Planning Commission Report and Recommendation of
Approval that is attached.
Attachments
• Proposed code language
• Applicable Sections of the Parks and Trails Master Plan
• Proposed Zoning Map
• Draft Report and Recommendation of Approval
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Applicable Code Provisions for Review
Staff has analyzed the facts provided by the applicant in comparison with the criteria for
approval. While several criteria appear to be met, staff has highlighted in bold the
criteria that may require additional discussion with the Planning Commission.
2040 Comprehensive Plan Amendment
Guiding Principles of the Comprehensive Plan
Charming
•

Fostering charm in a community known for its small-town character requires
intentionality and purpose. A stronger focus on design – sending developers
back to the proverbial drawing table to bring a more tasteful proposal – is a
check that would go a long way. City residents want to connect to the City’s
shared spaces. City spaces can be plain, or they can be charming – it is just a
question of thoughtfulness. Visitors and residents connect to places that evoke
a sense of belonging, and a sense of nostalgia. Wayzata – by nature, as it is
located on the shore of Lake Minnetonka – evokes these feelings. The challenge
for the City is to make charm an utmost priority not only in new
developments but in every aspect of the City’s lifecycle. Placing emphasis on
the arts, for example, is something that allows passers-by and visitors to slow down
and enjoy the City. Development should be small and intimate, creating room
for “randomness.”

Walkable and Pedestrian Friendly
•

•

•

A walkable and pedestrian friendly environment leads to a greater vibrancy in the
community, reduces social isolation, and leads to healthier and happier
communities. Wayzata is primed for increasing its walkability: it is compact,
has great connectivity potential, and counts with a demographic that is
highly interested in walkable spaces. The argument for a more pedestrian
oriented community goes beyond the social and health benefits it provides –
walkable communities also lead to increased economic activity.
In order to foster a more walkable community, it is key to create safe and
physically enticing spaces, convenient locations to go to and from, and
routes that are welcoming to pedestrians. City ordinances and design
standards relating to sidewalk widths would have to be revisited, commercial space
design would have to be evaluated through a pedestrian centric lens as human
scale spaces need to be at the forefront of any new development.
For Wayzata to be more walkable, development needs to occur on a smaller
human scale – smaller parks near neighborhoods, small node development for
small economic activity in otherwise traditionally residential neighborhoods, and
housing within traditionally commercial spaces.
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Healthy, Engaged and Active
•

•

The built environment has a direct impact on the community’s health, engagement,
and activity level. Thoughtful and intentional City planning can foster greater levels
of activity, engagement and positively impact human health. Healthy communities
are communities where residents have easy access to good nutrition, access to
transportation, and plenty of physical activity opportunity.
Easily accessible physical activity is another area of opportunity in Wayzata.
Enhanced parks, greater access, recreation and enrichment opportunities
could be greatly enhanced, making physical activity and the outdoors part
of the Wayzata community’s daily life.

Vibrant Parks and City Spaces
•

•

Vibrant City parks and City spaces are essential to Wayzata’s future. Parks
provide mental health benefits to residents, opportunities for physical activity, and
bring the important nature connection to daily routines. City spaces allow residents
and visitors to come together, create a sense of belonging, and encourage
walkability. Wayzata, through the upcoming robust Parks and Trails System
Master Plan, can revive its park spaces and transform them into intergenerational centers with opportunities and spaces from young families to
older generations. Connecting the parks and city spaces are also crucial for
Wayzata’s vitality. While Wayzata has plenty of park land, some spaces feel
forgotten. The Nature Center is the key example of a place that could be
reinvented to further connect residents and visitors with nature, and provide
opportunities for physical activity.
Recreation opportunities can be further enhanced by improved Wayzata
parks and recreation. The work currently being carried out through partnerships
fostered by the Lake Effect Conservancy (with the YMCA, Wayzata Sailing School,
Wayzata School District, Interfaith Outreach, and Science Museum of Minnesota)
is a fantastic step in that direction, so the focus should be on enhancing those
partnerships and centralizing them at the City level so as to enhance access and
grow the number of programs offered.

Connected
• City-wide connectivity is a topic that came up repeatedly throughout the visioning
process. Wayzata residents and stakeholders want to interact with the City in ways
they haven’t interacted before. To achieve a fully connected and vibrant City,
Wayzata should approach connectivity from a multidimensional standpoint. Parks,
trails, and City spaces systems should be linked to each other. Pedestrian
focus should be a high priority. A transportation system that better addresses
both intracommunity and intercommunity mobility should be considered.
• Additionally, connectivity could be greatly enhanced if green networks were
created throughout the City. The wetlands on the Nature Center could serve as
a main green artery connecting Wayzata Boulevard to the downtown area. The
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more visibility there is between City nodes, the more natural mobility between them
can occur.
Zoning Map and Text Amendment (§903.02.F)
The Planning Commission shall consider possible adverse effects of the proposed
amendment. Its judgment shall be based upon (but not limited to) the following factors:
1. The proposed action in relation to the specific policies and provisions of the
official City Comprehensive Plan.
2. The proposed use's conformity with present and future land uses of the area.
3. The proposed use's conformity with all performance standards contained herein (i.e.,
parking, loading, noise, etc.).
4. The proposed use's effect on the area in which it is proposed.
5. The proposed use's impact upon property value in the area in which it is proposed.
6. Traffic generation by the proposed use in relation to capabilities of streets serving the
property.
7. The proposed use's impact upon existing public services and facilities including parks,
schools, streets, and utilities, and the City's service capacity.
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KLAPPRICH PARK + BELL COURTS
EXISTING CONDITIONS
Klapprich Park is at the center of the Wayzata
park system located oﬀ of Wayzata Boulevard
and Minnetonka Avenue North. Klapprich Park is
considered an “ac ve park” and includes many
facili es including picnic tables, a so ball diamond,
a mul -use field, a permanent hockey rink that
serves as a seasonal oﬀ-leash dog park, a warming
house, a large hill for sledding and viewing the park,
and a playground. Being restricted in size, the ball
diamond is predominantly used by younger children.
The mul use field is in good condi on, but is le
unstriped, making it available for casual use and pickup games. This park a racts users all year with the
hockey rink, and a popular, but unoﬃcial sledding hill
during the winter months. The warming house is open
3:00-10:00pm on weekdays and 10:00am-10:00pm
on weekends and when school is not in session.
The warming house is small and fairly distant from
the hockey rink. The playground has two tradi onal
structures that are in fair condi on, but do not meet
current ADA accessibility standards. A few picnic
tables, surrounded by a number of large shade trees,
are also located near the playground.

Bell Courts is adjacent to Klapprich Park and separated
only by Park Street East. Bell Courts Park, originally
called the Tourist Park by local residents, features
three striped tennis courts, two of which are striped
to accommodate pickleball; two bocce courts; and a
grill and picnic tables. The bocce courts are popular
with local residents and are currently reserved in the
summer by the bocce leagues. The Louise H. Bell
cabana overlooking the courts was a gi to the city in
the mid-1960s from the James Ford Bell family. This
facility has recently been renovated with restrooms.

Existing playground outdated and inaccessible.

The City Water tower and water treatment facility are
located on the site as well as several
exis ng telecommunica on facili es. These
telecommunica on u li es have future plans for
reloca on to the City’s new monopole, but have been
designed around for this plan.
Existing hillside showing erosion on non-accessible route.

Existing tennis facility at Bell Courts
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THE PROPOSED DESIGN
Klapprich Park and Bell Courts are intended to
be u lized in a similar fashion as today, but with
improvements that will create more opportuni es for
year-round and mul -genera onal use. Currently, the
north and east sides of Klapprich Park are disjointed
with steep grades and few walking paths.
The current maintenance drive is proposed to
be modified to allow for drop-oﬀ and addi onal
ADA accessible parking spaces adjacent to the
proposed playground. The outdated and inaccessible
playground is proposed to be replaced with an ADA
accessible route for inclusive play built into the
hillside. Play op ons will be expanded with a new
nature play element tucked into the trees near the top
of the hill.

Bell Courts will retain its primary uses, but this master
plan will expand the tennis court and move the
bocce courts to accommodate four new pickleball
courts, while retaining two doubles tennis courts.
Minimal improvements to the north side of Bell
Courts Park include addi onal screening between
adjacent residences and an addi onal bu erfly garden
surrounding the exis ng water tower.
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Addi onal street improvements are proposed to
accommodate safer crossings and dedicated bike
sharrow lanes.

The exis ng so ball diamond will remain for casual
play and use by youth teams. The exis ng hockey rink/
dog park is to remain in in its current configura on.
Klapprich Park Plan proposed to provide several winter
recrea onal opportuni es, including the current ice
ska ng and sledding ac vi es.
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NEW SCREENING + BUTTERFLY GARDEN
PICKLEBALL

EX. WATER TOWER

EX. TENNIS
RENOVATE EX. BUILDING

SHARROW
BIKE LANE

EX. BOCCE BALL
WALKING LOOP

ON-STREET PARKING

EX. STORAGE +
WARMING HOUSE

EXPANDED
PARKING

POTENTIAL EXPANSION

ACCESSIBLE PATH

EX. BASEBALL
B

A

NATURE PLAY

UPDATED PLAY
DROP OFF/
ACCESSIBLE PARKING

E

EX. HOCKEY/ DOG PARK

PROOF OF PARKING
ADDED SIDEWALK

KLAPPRICH PARK + BELL COURTS PROPOSED PLAN
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EX. WARMING HOUSE
POTENTIAL EXPANSION

D
C
SKATING RINK

EX. SLEDDING HILL

EX. HOCKEY RINK

KLAPPRICH PARK + BELL COURTS WINTER PLAN
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IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW
•

renovated and relocated ADA accessible
playground

•

addi on of nature play

•

addi on of four (4) pickleball courts

•

renovated tennis courts and bocce courts

•

renovated exis ng diamond and field

•

renovated Bell Court building

•

addi on/renova on of new and exis ng trails

•

renovated driveway/drop-oﬀ and ADA accessible
parking

•

pedestrian crossing improvements

•

expansion of exis ng warming house/ storage
building
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WAYZATA BEACH + SHAVER PARK EXISTING CONDITIONS

54

WAYZATA PARKS & TRAILS MASTER PLAN

Page 472 of 499

WAYZATA BEACH + SHAVER PARK
EXISTING CONDITIONS
Wayzata beach is located on the south side of Lake
Street East near the Dakota Trail trailhead. Given to
the ci zens of Wayzata in 1930 by the first Mayor,
Rufus Rand, Wayzata’s swimming beach is a favorite
among local families. A seasonal concession stand
gives park users the opportunity to stay at the beach
throughout the day. Picnic tables and Adirondack
chairs available throughout the park provide places to
eat and view the lake. The exis ng playground has a
central loca on, but its tradi onal play style and open
layout should be updated to current standards and
trends. A swimming dock provides access to the lake
for swimmers of all abili es.
The beach, located at 220 Grove Lane East, is open to
the public from mid-June to mid-August. A lifeguard
is on duty from noon un l 6:00 PM, seven (7) days a
week. The beach is not guarded on any day that the
air temperature is at or below 65 degrees Fahrenheit
and remains so during regular hours. This beach is
located just across the walking bridge, east of Shaver
Park and close to the Dakota Rail Trail trailhead.

Shaver Park is located on the west side of Wayzata
Beach, south of Grove Lane. The park includes a
connec on to the regional trail system, an exis ng
sand volleyball court, a picnic and grilling area, as well
as the historic Trapper’s Cabin.

Existing parking lot dead-end and beach entrance.

Existing showers hidden behind the building.

Existing historic Trapper’s Cabin.
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POTENTIAL BIKE RENTAL FACILITY

D

EXPANDED BUILDING
(CONCESSIONS/RESTROOMS)
NEW SIDEWALK

EX. HISTORIC
TRAPPER’S CABIN

RECONFIGURED
PARKING/
DROP OFF
PA

VOLLEYBALL
RENTAL RACKS

PICNIC/ ENTRY PLAZA

RELOCATED
SHOWERS

A
B

SHADE STRUCTURE

D

FIRE PIT
E

DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
RENTAL ACCESS DOCK
ART/ HAMMOCK POLES
ICE SKATING (WINTER)

C

EX. SWIMMING DOCK
UPDATED PLAY AREA

WAYZATA BEACH + SHAVER PARK PROPOSED PLAN
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PROPOSED DESIGN
Preserving the character and general feel of the park,
while op mizing spaces to provide residents with
the best experience, was the primary considera on
when evalua ng improvements in this area. The
reconfigured parking is proposed to allow for easier
access and drop-oﬀ. This change would simply close
oﬀ the mid-access point between the two lots and
provide a drop-oﬀ and circula on area between
the sec ons of the lot at the south. This would also
eliminate the dead-end parking and create a new
sense of entry. A new picnic/dining plaza would
provide more ea ng and gathering space around the
exis ng concessions building at the entrance. The
showers would be moved from their current loca on
behind the concession building to the beach entrance.
This will make clean up a er a day at the beach easier.
A new play structure will open up views to the
lake, while providing children with more exci ng
opportuni es to climb and explore. The playground
will be placed in the same loca on. The beach will be
retained in virtually the same footprint. Expansion
of the beach was explored, but many residents felt
the green space was valued for lounging, picnicking,
and keeping things out of the sand. Provide more
Adirondack chairs and picnic tables along the grassy

areas and in the shade to be er u lize green spaces.
A new shade structure is suggested to provide more
opportuni es for gathering and may include a gas
firepit for extended seasonal use. It is to be noted
that the shelter is adjacent to a natural area that is to
be preserved.
The lagoon, boat slips, and boat access are to be
preserved and maintained, as necessary. The small
peninsula near the access is an exis ng gathering
area that provides a space for relaxa on. This area
is proposed to be enhanced with hammock poles
that double as art features. The hammock poles also
protect trees in this area, by providing a dedicated
space for the popular ac vity. In the future, there
may be opportuni es for hammocks to be rented to
visitors who may not have one themselves.
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Shaver Park will include a new drainage swale to help
move water from the flat land near the volleyball
court to the lake, while improving water quality and
providing a buﬀer between the park and private
residences. This will allow for easier maintenance and
increased use of the volleyball court and surrounding
area.
The addi on of rentals is important to the Parks
and Trails Board, to help fill a need and support the
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Share programs/rentals are becoming increasingly
common in the Twin Cities with everything from
cars, to clothes. Recreational opportunities are
available with Nice Ride Bicycles and the Mississippi
River Paddle Share. These systems are selfoperated and rely on partnership organizations.
The City of Wayzata should consider partnerships

greater community for increased access to Lake
Minnetonka. Rentals have been proposed in this park
because of the prime loca on and connec on to
Lake Minnetonka and the Dakota Trail. The canoe/
kayak rental racks are proposed to be located west of
the lagoon, to provide more convenient access into
the lake without taking up valuable beach access.
A canoe/kayak access dock at the south end of the
lagoons could provide improved accessibility directly
into the lake. An addi onal rental building is proposed
at the far north end of the lagoons, near the parking
lot and Dakota Trail trailhead. This could provide a
space for other non-water rentals such as bicycles,
hammocks, beach chairs, and umbrellas, etc. The City
should explore partnerships for rental services.

IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW
•

reconfigured parking lot

•

drainage improvements

•

renovated play area

•

renovated volleyball court

•

renovated and expanded park building

•

relocated showers

•

addi on of shade structure + firepit

•

addi on of rental facility, racks + access docks

•

addi on of picnic/ entry plaza

•

addi on of hammock/art poles

for rental opportunities.

E
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MARGARET CIRCLE PARK EXISTING CONDITIONS
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MARGARET CIRCLE PARK
EXISTING CONDITIONS
Located on the north side of Wayzata, Margaret
Circle Park features a neighborhood field. This small,
open green space park was deeded to the City as
dedicated park land by Roger Fazendin, who
was the developer of the Margaret Circle subdivision.
During the warmer months, the park is used by the
surrounding neighborhood for various types of play.
During the winter months, the city floods the park and
u lizes the space as an ice rink that is used by a
broader popula on than just those residents of the
neighborhood. The park does not get as much use
during the rest of the year, due to drainage issues.
Maintenance and mowing of the field is problema c
for City staﬀ because of the wet soil condi ons.

The current lack of drainage prevents the field from
being used during the spring and during wet conditions.

Winter skating is a beloved community asset at this park.

60

WAYZATA PARKS & TRAILS MASTER PLAN

Page 478 of 499

ASH TREE REPLACEMENT
ADIRONDACKS + A PICNIC TABLE
FUTURE USE TO BE DETERMINED
MULTI-USE FIELD WITH
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS

RAINGARDEN

B

A

MARGARET CIRCLE PARK PROPOSED PLAN
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62

PROPOSED DESIGN

IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW

Because of the quiet neighborhood loca on, the park
will remain as is, with some minor improvements.
The field will be improved with drain- les or other
drainage improvements to help get water to a new
raingarden. The exis ng trees bordering the field
are mostly Green Ash,and will need to be replaced
or treated. Other improvements include adding
Adirondack chairs, a picnic table, and park signage.

•

Field drainage improvements

•

Addi on of raingarden

•

Misc. signs, trees, furniture

WAYZATA PARKS & TRAILS MASTER PLAN
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NATURE CENTER EXISTING CONDITIONS
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NATURE CENTER
EXISTING CONDITIONS
This natural park and trail area is located south of
Wayzata Boulevard and west of Bushaway Road, in the
Old Holdridge Neighborhood. There are two entries
to the park; one on Central Avenue South, behind
the Boardwalk Apartments, and the other on LaSalle
Street.
In 1977, the City of Wayzata began development of a
13.5 acre natural park area. The park was constructed
in 1978 and included natural and boardwalk pathways,
an observa on overlook, educa onal signage, and an
informal parking area.
It has been noted that, beginning in the mid-1980’s,
the Nature Center was not being u lized as originally
intended or an cipated by the public. Addi onally,
the Nature Center became challenging to maintain
both financially and prac cally. Vandalism was
prevalent throughout the park.

The old boardwalk remnants still exists.

View of the closed park from La Salle Street.

The area has since been closed to the public. The
Nature Center is, however, an important area as it
relates to stormwater management and its wetland
areas func on as a filter for runoﬀ, before it enters
Lake Minnetonka.
Access from the Boardwalk apartments easement is
restricted with fencing and a collapsed bridge.
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EXPLORE FUTURE CONNECTIONS
WITH REDEVELOPMENT

WALKING LOOP

PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE

C

NATURE OVERLOOK

INTERPRETIVE SIGNAGE

OBSERVATION TOWER
A

B

PARKING & ENTRY
BOARDWALK

NATURE CENTER PROPOSED PLAN
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PROPOSED DESIGN

IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW

The Nature Center is a valuable, passive, natural
park, with a lot of poten al to become a jewel of the
Wayzata Park System. The proposed design for this
park will op mize use with loop walking trails, while
maintaining consciousness of total investment.

•

Entry and parking Improvements

•

Renova on of strategic sec ons of boardwalk

•

Addi on of natural surface walking trails

•

Addi on of observa on tower

•

Habitat improvements

•

Misc. interpre ve signage, sea ng, etc.

Boardwalks are costly, but are needed to provide a
full loop around this park, due to wetland condi ons.
The design proposed to use exis ng upland to provide
natural surface walking paths around most of the
park, and provide boardwalk only where needed.
A modest observa on tower would provide visitors
with a place to bird-watch and see a 360 degree view
of the park. Interpre ve signage is suggested to be
staggered throughout the park to provide visitors
with informa on about na ve species, habitats, and
wildlife.
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Access to the park is proposed to be restored with
a main entry and parking located on LaSalle Street,
at the southern end of the park. There are two
other proposed access points to the park - from the
Boardwalk Apartments easement, oﬀ Central Avenue
on the west, and a new connec on oﬀ of Wayzata
Boulevard, to the business district to the north.
C
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BIG WOODS PRESERVE EXISTING CONDITIONS
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BIG WOODS PRESERVE
EXISTING CONDITIONS
This park is located east of the Colonial Square
shopping center, north of Wayzata Boulevard. A
walking trail is located in this woodland preserve.
The Big Woods Preserve is one of the last metro
remnants of a hardwood forest, which once covered
all of central Minnesota and the East Coast. Within the
23-acre site are 14 acres of protected land featuring
na ve wildflowers in the spring and the spectacular
fall beauty of a forest filled with sugar maples and
basswood trees. Annually, when the sap becomes
ac ve, maple tree tapping is a fun and educa onal
ac vity for residents. The thick forest provides a
buﬀer for the City from the adjacent Highway 12.
14 acres of the site were preserved under a
conserva on easement in 2004 by the ci zens of
Wayzata in partnership with private donors and The
Retreat (a recovery organiza on that occupies a
por on of the site). A rus c path invites visitors to
walk through the park. Six parking stalls are dedicated
to park use.

Existing parking lot/entry to the park and retreat center.

Park board member show present species.

The Preserve is public land and a Wayzata City Park.
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POTENTIAL PARKING & ACCESS POINT

NATURAL SURFACE TRAIL

B
A

INTERPRETIVE SIGNAGE
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EX. PARKING

BIG WOODS PRESERVE PROPOSED PLAN

73
CHAPTER 4: PARK PLANS
Page 487 of 499

PROPOSED DESIGN

IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW

This special wooded area in the heart of Wayzata
should be appreciated by more residents. During this
process, it was made clear that very few residents
knew that this was a Wayzata park. New park
signage at the entrance, poten al addi onal access
points, and interpre ve signage will improve the
park for visitors. Addi onally, street improvements
on Wayzata Boulevard should be explored to include
a mid-block pedestrian crossing and traﬃc calming
measures.

•

Addi on of entry/park signage

•

Renovate natural surface trail

•

Misc. signs, benches, and restora on eﬀorts

•

Street/crossing improvements
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HERITAGE PARK EXISTING CONDITIONS
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HERITAGE PARK
EXISTING CONDITIONS
From 1912 to 2000, this property was known as
Batson’s Corner, as the Batson family owned and
farmed this area of land. The small park honors
the City’s heritage, as well as those who served in the
armed forces. A veterans’ memorial is located on the
east side of the park.
The park oﬀers several perennial gardens and features
a public bus shelter, extensive landscaping, a bricklined walking path, and a number of benches, which
recognize local residents and families. The park is used
for community gatherings and annually for Veteran’s
Day and Memorial Day ceremonies.

Existing entry and signage from Central + Wayzata Blvd.

Existing border along Wayzata Boulevard.

Built in seating, leaves little room for flexibility.
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UNIQUE SEATING ELEMENTS
NEW PICNIC / GAME AREA
BUS STOP

BUSINESS CONNECTION

A
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ADIRONDACK CHAIRS

HERITAGE PARK PROPOSED PLAN
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PROPOSED DESIGN

IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW

The proposed plan adds minor elements to make the
park more usable and invi ng. A new, small games/
picnic area is centered toward the entry. Addi onal
movable Adirondack sea ng will allow for more
comfortable sea ng. Addi onal connec ons to the
bus stop open up the park to people passing by or
wai ng for the bus. A more direct connec on to the
adjacent business district to the east should be further
explored.

•

Addi on of picnic/ game tables and various
sea ng

•

Connec ons to business district
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POST OFFICE POCKET PARK EXISTING CONDITIONS
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POST OFFICE POCKET PARK
EXISTING CONDITIONS

PROPOSED DESIGN

Post Oﬃce Pocket Park is located on Minnetonka
Avenue South across the street from the historical
1941 WPA Wayzata Post Oﬃce. It oﬀers a quiet place
to read or meet and chat with friends. Each year,
volunteers plant flowers and maintain the gardens in
the park.

This quiet “old Wayzata” pocket park will remain
preserved.

Designed by interna onally renowned, Minneapolis
based ar st Siah Armajani, this small “pocket park”
was a gi to the city from Lucy and Judy Dayton in
1996. It is meant to be a calming place for people
to meet and enjoy. The layout and design of the
benches in the park contribute to the park’s ar stry.
Armajani’s design begins with a sculpture entrance to
the park and leads to a boardwalk loop with benches
he designed to encourage visitors to pause. He also
chose the poetry aﬃxed the building adjacent to the
park.

Existing entry gateway/sculpture.

An existing quote along the building.

Existing custom benches along the wood-planked path.
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ECO PARK EXISTING CONDITIONS
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ECO PARK
EXISTING CONDITIONS
Located along the northern shore Lake Minnetonka
this site features the exis ng Sec on Foreman House,
a historic railroad structure, as well as a storm water
treatment basin.
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ECO PARK PROPOSED PLAN
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PROPOSED PLAN
The Eco Park will be located on the east end of
Wayzata’s lakefront, east of the Broadway Avenue
community docks. One of the most significant
changes proposed to the Eco-Park is the boardwalk
itself. Rather than a sta c pier that reaches out
into the marsh land, the boardwalk is proposed to
create a loop taking visitors through several plant
communi es. This new experience creates many
opportuni es for learning about the variety of plants
and animal species that are integral to this the lake
ecosystem.

Proposed Eco Park

Addi onally, an environmental educa on center
is suggested to be housed within the historic
Sec on Foreman House, providing a convenient
loca on for local schools to come and learn about
diverse ecosystems, as well as an intergenera onal
community center.
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